
  

  

 As a 
silenc

 Any 
comm
five m
Anyo
cards 

 Please
meeti

 MEET
Act, i
Office
reason

 DOCU
Coun
inspec
desk 
additi
City’s

 Pursu
Coun
Housi
meeti

 If you
be lim
corres

 The C
meeti
Street

 
 
 M
 C

 

courtesy to 
ce all pagers, 

member of 
ment period an
minutes per 
ne wishing to
are located n

e provide 10
ng to the City

TING ASSIS
if you need 
e at (626) 38
nable arrange

UMENT AV
cil/Agency/A
ction at the C
at the Covina
ion, such wri
s website at w

uant to Gove
cil/Successor
ing Authority
ng. 

u challenge in
mited to raisin
spondence de

Covina City 
ng was poste
t, Covina, in a

City of 
Covina 
Covina 
Covina 
Mayor Peg
Council M

REGU
125 E. C

Co
Tu

Council/Age
cellular teleph

the public m
nd on any sch
speaker unle
o speak is re

near the agend

0 copies of a
y Clerk prior t

STANCE INF
special assist

84-5430.  Not
ements to ensu

VAILABILIT
Authority rega
City Clerk’s O
a Library loc
itings and do

www.covinaca

ernment Cod
r Agency to t
y unless liste

n court any di
ng only those

elivered to the

Clerk’s Offic
ed on Februa
accordance w

f Covina
Redeve
Public 
Housin

ggy Delach
Members: W

ULAR M
College St
ouncil Cha
uesday, F

6:

ency/Authorit
hones and any

may address 
heduled item 

ess, for good
quested to su

das or at the C

any informat
to the meetin

FORMATION
tance to part
tification 48 
ure accessibil

TY: Any wr
arding any it
Office at City
ated at 234 N

ocuments are 
a.gov. 

de Section 5
the Covina R
d on agenda,

iscussion or a
e issues you 
e City at or pr

ce does here
ry 12, 2015 n

with Section 54

a/Succe
elopme
Financ

ng Auth
h – Mayor 

Walter Alle

MEETING
treet, Cov
amber of C
ebruary 
:30 p.m.

 
ty Members,
y other comm

the Council
on the agend

d cause, the M
ubmit a yello
City Clerk’s d

tion intended
g. 

N: In compli
icipate in thi
hours prior t
lity to this me

ritings or do
tem on this 
y Hall located
North Second

available in 

54954.2, no 
Redevelopmen
, which has b

action taken c
or someone e

rior to the City

by declare th
near the front
4954.2(a) of t

ssor Ag
ent Agen
ce Autho
hority 

Pro Tem J
en - Jorge M

G AGEND
vina, Califo
City Hall
17, 2015

staff and at
munication de

l/Agency/Aut
da.  Commen
Mayor/Chairp

ow Speaker R
desk. 

d for use at 

iance with th
is meeting, p
to the meetin
eeting. 

ocuments pro
agenda will 

d at 125 E. C
d Avenue dur

the City Cle

matter shall
nt Agency/Pu
been posted n

concerning an
else raised du
y’s considera

hat the agend
t entrance of 
the California

gency to
ncy/ 
ority/ 

John King 
Marquez - 

F

DA 
fornia 

5 

ttendees, eve
evices. 

thority during
nts are limited
person amen

Request Card 

the Council/

he Americans
please contac
ng will enable

ovided to a
be made av

College Street
ring normal b
erk’s Office 

l be acted u
ublic Finance
not less than

n item on this
uring the me

ation of the ite

da for the F
the City Hall
a Governmen

o the 

Kevin Sta

February 17, 

eryone is ask

g both the p
d to a maximu
nds the time 

to the City C

/Agency/Auth

s with Disab
ct the City C
e the City to 

a majority o
vailable for p
t and the refe
business hour
and posted o

upon by the
e Authority/C
n 72 hours pr

s agenda, you
eeting or in w
em at the mee

ebruary 17, 
l, 125 East Co
nt Code. 

apleton 

2015 

 

ked to 

public 
um of 
limit.  

Clerk; 

hority 

bilities 
Clerk’s 

make 

of the 
public 
erence 
rs.  In 
on the 

 City 
Covina 
rior to 

u may 
written 
eting. 

2015 
ollege 



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 2 February 17, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/ 

COVINA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY 
JOINT MEETING—CLOSED SESSION 

6:30 p.m.  
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL 

Council/Agency/Authority Members Allen, Marquez, Stapleton, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice 
Chairperson King and Mayor/Chairperson Delach 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Public is invited to make comment on Closed Session items only at this time.  To address the 
Council/Agency/Authority please complete a yellow speaker request card located at the entrance and give 
it to the City Clerk.  Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak.  Individual speakers are 
limited to five minutes each. 

 

The City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Covina Public 
Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority will adjourn to closed session for the 
following: 

CLOSED SESSION  

A.  G.C. §54957 -  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT  
 Title: City Manager 
 
B. G.C. §54957-  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION 
  Title:  City Attorney 
 
C. G.C. §54956.9(d)(1)- CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- Existing Litigation 
  Name of Case: Aguilar v. City of Covina et. al., U.S.D.C.  
 Case No.: 2:14-cv-09183-JEM 
 
D. G.C. §54956.8 –  CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
 Property:  633-635 S. Citrus Avenue (APN 8453-001-906) 
 Agency negotiator:  Kim Raney, Acting City Manager and  
  Elizabeth Hull, Assistant City Attorney 
 Negotiating parties: Sage Automotive Group 
 Under negotiation: Negotiations to include both price and terms of payment 
 
 
  
RECESS 

 
  



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 3 February 17, 2015 

 

CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/ 

COVINA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY 

JOINT MEETING—OPEN SESSION 

7:30 p.m. 
 

RECONVENE AND CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL 

Council/Agency/Authority Members Allen, Marquez, Stapleton, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice 

Chairperson King and Mayor/Chairperson Delach 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by Mayor Delach 

 

INVOCATION 

Given by Covina Police Chaplain Dave Truax 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

Proclamation – Covina Vikings Jr. Midget Football Team - 2014 National Champions 

Presentation –  Donation from The Champion Family Foundation to Covina Police K-9 Program 

Presentation –  Introduction of Miss Covina 2015 

Presentation – 2015 Homeless Count Participation 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
To address the Council/Agency/Authority please complete a yellow speaker request card located at the 

entrance and give it to the City Clerk/Agency/Authority Secretary.  Your name will be called when it is 

your turn to speak.  Those wishing to speak on a LISTED AGENDA ITEM will be heard when that item is 

addressed.  Those wishing to speak on an item NOT ON THE AGENDA will be heard at this time.  State 

Law prohibits the Council/Agency/Authority Members from taking action on any item not on the agenda.  

Individual speakers are limited to five minutes each. 

 

COUNCIL/AGENCY/AUTHORITY COMMENTS 
Council/Agency/Authority Members wishing to make any announcements of public interest or to request 

that specific items be added to future Council/Agency/Authority agendas may do so at this time. 

1. Appoint Ken Fields as the employee representing on the Oversight Board of the 

Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency. 

 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

  



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 4 February 17, 2015 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under consent calendar are considered routine, and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council/Agency/Authority votes 
on them, unless a member of the Council/Agency/Authority requests a specific item be removed from the 
consent calendar for discussion. 
 
CC 1. City Council to approve the minutes from the January 20, 2015 meeting of the Covina 

City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Public Finance 
Authority/Covina Housing Authority. 

CC 2. City Council to approve the summary minutes from the January 29, 2015 joint workshop 
meeting of the Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment 
Agency/Public Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority with Covina Planning 
Commission. 

CC 3. City Council to receive and file the Downtown parking update.  

CC 4. City Council to receive and file the report on the 2015 Citywide Homeless Count. 

CC 5. City Council to receive and file the Public Works monthly activity report. 

CC 6. City Council to receive and file the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 2nd Quarter update on Major 
Funds.  

CC 7. City Council to approve agreements with Blackboard, Inc., and Nixle LLC, for 
emergency communications systems and authorize the Acting City Manager or his 
designee to execute all related documents on the City’s behalf.  

CC 8. City Council to approve participant agreement between Los Angeles County for 
countywide address management system and authorize the Acting City Manager or his 
designee to execute all related documents on the City’s behalf.  

CC 9. City Council to consider approval of the pre-qualified consultant lists for provided on-
call as needed Planning services and Environmental services to the City and authorize 
the Acting City Manager to negotiate and execute said agreements on behalf of the City. 

CC 10. City Council to approve Temporary License and Right of Entry Agreement with MWH 
Americas Inc., for Geotechnical Evaluation of Kahler Russell Park. 

CC 11. City Council to approve Professional Services Agreement with John L. Hunter and 
Associates and authorize the Acting City Manager to sign the Professional Services 
Agreement. 

CC 12. City Council to approve Option agreement to purchase equipment from Covina Rents 
and authorize the Acting City Manager or his designee to execute all related documents 
on the City’s behalf.   

CC 13. Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency to approve Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A), covering July 1, 2015 through December 
31, 2015 and direct it to be provided to the Successor Agency Oversight Board for 
consideration and approval. 



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 5 February 17, 2015 

CC 14. City Council to make certain findings as required by California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) guidelines Section 15301 (repair of existing facility) and Section 15269 
(emergency project); and to adopt Resolution 15-7315, to determine that an emergency 
condition exists for City Hall repairs and to delegate authority to the Acting City 
Manager to procure services and equipment without notice for bids to let contracts in the 
case of a declared emergency under Section 22050 of the California Public Contract 
Code. 

CC 15. City Council to adopt Resolution 15-7316, amending the fiscal year 2014-2015 Library 
Services operating budget to expend the UMIGO! You Make It Go and Children’s 
Museum of Manhattan stipend funds to support the development of California Libraries.  

CC 16. City Council to adopt Resolution No. 15-7317, amending the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
Budget to finalize the funding for the Energy Efficient Projects.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

PH1.  City Council to conduct a continued public hearing from the February 3, 2015 cancelled 
meeting; introduce and waive further reading of an Ordinance regarding Planned 
Community Development Ordinance 99-001, adding “automobile rental” as a permitted 
use within and modifying the sign regulations for one property within the Shoppers 
Lane/Terrado Plaza Planned Community Development Area. 

 Staff Recommendation: 
1) City Council to open the public hearing and consider public testimony; and 
2) Make certain findings as required by California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

guidelines that this is not a project as defined in Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3) 
and Section 15378, that has a potential resulting in physical change to the 
environment, directly or indirectly; and 

3) City Council to introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 15-2037, first 
reading, establishing Planned Community Development Ordinance PCD 99-001 
(Amendment No. 1) to allow, as a permitted use, “automobile rental” and to allow  
for the modification to the sign regulations for one property within Shoppers 
Lane/Terrado Plaza Planned Community Development Area. 

 

PH2.  City Council to conduct a public hearing, introduce and waive further reading of an 
Ordinance, allowing medical, dental and therapeutic offices as a permitted use in the “C-
2/Neighborhood Shopping Center”, “C-3/Central Business”, “C-3A/Regional or 
Community Shopping Center”, “C-4/Highway Commercial”, and C-5/Specified 
Highway” zoning districts, subject to certain requirements.   

 Staff Recommendation: 
1) City Council to open the public hearing and consider public testimony; and 
2) Make certain findings as required by California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

guidelines that this is not a project as defined in Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3) 
and Section 15378, that has a potential resulting in physical change to the 
environment, directly or indirectly; and 

3) City Council to introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 15-2035, 
allowing medical, dental and therapeutic offices of a permitted use in the “C-



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 6 February 17, 2015 

2/Neighborhood Shopping Center”, C-3/Central Business”, “C-3A/Regional or 
Community Shopping Center”, “C-4/Highway Commercial”, and  “C-5/ Specified 
Highway” zoning districts, subject to certain requirements. 

 

PH3. City Council to conduct a public hearing, introduce and waive further reading of an 
Ordinance, a request to modify the City’s parking requirements citywide concerning 
automotive repair shops and automotive body and paint shops. 

 Staff Recommendation:  
1) City Council to open the public hearing and consider public testimony; and  
2) Make certain findings as required by California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

guidelines that this is not a project as defined in Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3) 
and Section 15378, that has a potential resulting in physical change to the 
environment, directly or indirectly; and 

3) City Council to introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 15-2036, 
modifying the City’s parking requirements citywide concerning automotive repair 
shops and automotive body and paint shops. 

 

PH4. City Council to conduct a public hearing and consider adoption of resolutions 
reapproving Lease with Option to Purchase, approving an Amended and Restate 
Operating Covenant Agreement, and accepting an Economic Development Subsidy 
Report as they pertain to 633-635 South Citrus Avenue, Covina, California. 

 Staff Recommendation: 
1) City Council to open the public hearing and consider public testimony; and 
2) Making certain findings under Section 15162 of the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) guidelines that all environmental impacts associated with the project 
were already analyzed and mitigated by MND adopted on October 21, 2014 and no 
changes are being undertaken warranting further review; and 

3) City Council to consider adopting Resolution No. 15-7318, accepting the economic 
development subsidy report prepared pursuant to Government Code 53083 for 
property located at 633-635 South Citrus Avenue, Covina; and 

4) City Council to consider adopting Resolution No. 15-7319, reapproving a lease with 
option to purchase by and between the City of Covina and Covina MJL, LLC, for 
property located at 633-635 South Citrus Avenue, Covina; and 

5) City Council to consider adopting Resolution No. 15-7320, approving and restated 
operating covenant agreement by and between the City of Covina and Covina MJL, 
LLC for property located at 633-635 South Citrus Avenue, Covina. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

NB1. City Council to consider approval of agreement for employment by and between the City 
of Covina and Andrea Miller.  

Staff Recommendation: 
1)  City Council to consider approval/ ratification of employment agreement negotiated 

by legal counsel and establishing compensation and other terms and conditions of 
employment of City Manager. 

 



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 7 February 17, 2015 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Covina 
Public Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority will adjourn to its next regular meeting of 
the Council/Agency/Authority scheduled for Tuesday, March 3, 2015, at 6:30 p.m. for closed 
session and 7:30 p.m. for open session inside the Council Chamber, 125 East College Street, 
Covina, California, 91723. 



CC1 

MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 REGULAR MEETING OF THE COVINA CITY 
COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
/COVINA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY HELD 
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER OF CITY HALL, 125 EAST COLLEGE STREET, 
COVINA, CALIFORNIA 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Delach called the Council! AgencylAuthority meeting to order at 6:33 p.m., with Council 
Member Allen arriving at 6:35 p.m. City Attorney Marco Martinez announced the closed 
session items. There were no public comments. 

ROLLCALL 

Council Members Present: ALLEN, DELACH, KING, MARQUEZ, STAPLETON 
Council Members Absent: NONE 
Elected Members Present: COBBETT, WALCZAK 

Staff Members Present: City Attorney Martinez, Acting City Manager Raney, Finance 
Director De Alwis, Assistant to the City Manager Brancheau, Interim Public Works 
Director Gonzalez, Interim Community Development Director Fong, Finance Manager 
Cole, Police Captain Webster, Police Lieutenant Doonan, L.A. County Fire Chief Enriquez, 
Associate Planner Carter, Senior Housing and CDBG Economic Development Manager 
Gasser, Electronic Resource Analyst Kadir and Chief Deputy City Clerk LaCroix 

AGENDA POSTING DECLARATION 
The Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina hereby declares the Council! Agency! Authority agenda for the 
January 20, 2015 meeting was posted on January 8, 2015 near the front entrance of City Hall, 125 East College 
Street, Covina, in accordance with §54954.2(a) of the California Government Code. 

CLOSED SESSION 

A. G.C. §54957.6 
Agency representative: 

Title: 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
J. Scott Tiedemann, Special Counsel 
Unrepresented Employee - Position: City Manager 

B. G.c. §54956.9(d)(l) 
Name of Case: 
Case Number: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing Litigation 
The Inland Oversight Committee v City of Covina, et al. 
Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. BS 152268 

C. G.C. §54956.9(d)(2) and G.C. 54956.9(d)(4) 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL Anticipated Litigation 
Dispute with Municipal Auditing Services (MAS) relating to 
termination of agreement 

Number of case(s): one (l) 

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES January 20, 2015 



RECONVENE THE MEETING 

The City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Public Finance 
Authority/Housing Authority meeting reconvened at 7:31 p.m., with all members present. 

City Attorney Marco Martinez announced that the City Council/ Agency/Authority met in closed 
session with all members present. There is no reportable action related to closed session items 
B andC. 

Mayor Delach announced that Council meet in closed session to discuss closed session item A 
Mayor Delach reported by a 5-0 vote, would make an offer to Andrea Miller to appoint as the 
new City Manager. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member King led the pledge of allegiance. 

INVOCATION 

Covina Police Chaplin Dr. Patricia Venegas gave the invocation. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Mayor Delach invited Anthony "Tony" Lombardi to the lectern and presented a proclamation 
honoring his 93rd birthday. Mayor Delach asserted Tony's representation of Covina in local 
and State horseshoe competitions. 

Katrina Moramarco introduced the 2015 Miss Covina contestants, Kamille Gordy, Karoline 
Florez, Brittany Rodarte, Vivian Tang, Casey Fleckerstein, Brittney Morales and Julianne 
Evans. The 2015 Scholarship Pageant will be held January 31, 2015 at Walnut High School 
Performing Center. 2014 Miss Covina Caitlin King and 2014 Miss Covina Valley Vanessa 
Garcia gave their farewell speech thanking Council for the support this past year. 

Andy McIntyre of the McIntyre Company presented a $10,000 donation to the Covina Police 
Department K -9 program. 

Dawn Nelson of the Covina Chamber of Commerce along with John Brittain, Golf Tournament 
Chairman, presented a $5,000 donation to the Covina Police Department K-9 program. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Dora Gomez, representing Covina Assembly of God 29: 11 program, a non-profit organization 
that provides assistance to the community, shared highlights from their December Community 
Christmas Party. 

COUNCIL/AGENCY/AUTHORITY COMMENTS 

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 2 of 5 January 20, 2015 



Mayor Delach Mayor Pro Tern King, Council Member Stapleton and Council Member Allen 
congratulated the 2015 Miss Covina contestants. They thanked 2014 Miss Covina and Covina 
Valley for always representing the community. 
Mayor Pro Tern King recounted the new Covina Stater Bros grocery store opening and how 
nice the store is and encouraged those that have not shopped to visit the store. Mayor Pro Tern 
King cited that Georgie's Mediterranean Cuisine is open on Citrus Avenue. 

Council Member Stapleton advised The Artist Pizzeria, located on Citrus Avenue, had its 
ribbon cutting grand opening on January 14,2015. Council Member Stapleton mentioned how 
great the downtown is. Council Member Stapleton acknowledged Council for the work on 
selecting a new city manager. 

Council Member Allen expressed appreciation to Covina Special Response Team for running 
along with the graduate class of the Rio Hondo Police Academy. The graduating class ran their 
three-mile Pride Run this morning in honor of fallen police officer Jordan Corder. Council 
Member Allen reported on his attendance, as Chairman, to the League of California Cities 
Public Safety Committee meeting. Council Member Allen spoke on the goals of the 
Committee. 

Mayor Delach announced the following "hold the date" events: 

• The Joslyn Center will be having their Sweetheart Dance on Saturday, February 7 from 5:00 
p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

Acting City Manager Raney related that Stater Bros corporate office sent a letter 
complementing the positive experience they had working with staff. Acting City Manager 
Raney thanked the Rio Hondo police recruits for recognizing officer Corder in their Pride Run. 
Acting City Manager Raney affirmed Council's choice of a new city manager. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

CC 1. 	 City Council approved the summary minutes from the November 20, 2014 special joint 
meeting of the Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment 
Agency/Public Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority with Covina Planning 
Commission. 

CC 2. 	 City Council approved the minutes from the December 2, 2014 meeting of the Covina 
City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Public Finance 
Authority/Covina Housing Authority. 

CC 3. 	 City Council approved the minutes from the December 16, 2014 meeting of the Covina 
City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Public Finance 
Authority/Covina Housing Authority. 

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 3 of 5 	 January 20, 2015 



CC 4. 	 City Council approved the minutes from the January 6, 2015 meeting of the Covina 
City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment AgencylPublic Finance 
Authority/Covina Housing Authority. 

CC 5. 	 City Council received and filed an update on the Strategic Plan matrix. 

CC 6. 	 City Council received and filed the payment of demands in the amount of 
$4,574,047.92. 

CC 7. 	 Successor Agency received and filed the payment of demands In the amount of 
$332,027.55. 

CC 8. 	 City Council received and filed the quarterly report of the treasurer to the City of 
Covina and the Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency for the quarter 
ended December 31, 2014. 

CC 9. 	 City Council received and filed the Public Works Monthly Activity Report. 

CC 10. 	Covina Housing Authority received and filed the Housing Authority fiscal year 2013
2014 audit report required by Health and Safety Code Section 34176.l(f), requiring a 
complete and independent financial audit and that it be provided to its governing body. 

CC 11. 	City Council approved an amendment to a Professional Services Agreement with AEI
CASC Engineering, Inc.; and authorized the Acting City Manager, or his designee, to 
provide written approval for total compensation. 

CC 13. 	City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-7314, requesting a budget transfer from the 
elections budget to the records management budget; and authorized staff to purchase 
necessary storage devices for the City's permanent documents and begin process of 
document restoration. 

CC 14. 	City Council awarded bid for pre-qualified on-call engineering services bench to the 
following eight firms 1) Civiltec Engineering, Inc., Monrovia, 2) Geo-Advantec, Inc., 
San Dimas, 3) JMDiaz, Inc., Industry, 4) Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., Los 
Angeles, 5) Wildan Engineering, Industry, 6) Iteris, Inc., Santa Ana, 7) Johnson-Frank 
& Associates, Inc., Anaheim, 8) Hamilton & Associates, Torrance; and authorized the 
Acting City Manager, or his designee, to execute all related documents on the City'S 
behalf. 

CC 15. 	City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-7322, to amend Resolution No. 14-7309, 
extending the appointment of Police Chief Kim Raney, to serve as Acting City 
Manager on a part-time basis and for a limited duration. 

CC 16. 	City Council to adopt Resolution No. 15-7323, to approve an employment agreement 
with retired PERS annuitant for Human Resources Director Services for a limited 
duration. 

COUNCJL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 4 015 	 January 201 2015 

http:332,027.55
http:4,574,047.92


On a motion made by Council Member Stapleton, seconded by Mayor Pro Tern King, the City 
Council approved Consent Calendar items CC 1 through CC 11, with Mayor Delach abstaining 
from Consent Calendar CC3, and CC13 through CCI6. Consent Calendar item CC12 was 
removed from the agenda for further discussion and consideration. 

Motion approved the Consent Calendar items CC1-CC 11 & CC13-CC 16 asfollows: 
AYES: ALLEN, DELACH, KING, MARQUEZ, STAPLETON 
NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS REMOVED FOR DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION 

CC 12. City Council to approve a one year renewal of agreement for towing services and 
vehicle storage facilities with Jan's Towing. 

Jim Salazar, Baldwin Park, introduced his business, Royal Coaches Auto Body and Towing, as 
a company that has served four communities in the San Gabriel Valley and its police 
departments since 1985. Mr. Salazar stated he would like to be able to participate in a future 
request for proposal. 

Council Member Marquez inquired, and Acting City Manager Raney responded, the prior two 
year recover fees totaled $207,000 and $227,000. 

Following a brief discussion and on a motion made by Council Member Stapleton, seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tern King, the City Council approved Consent Calendar item CCI2, thereby 
approving a one-year renewal agreement with Jan's Towing for towing services and vehicle 
storage facilities. 

Motion carriedfor Consent Calendar item CC12asfoliows: 
AYES: ALLEN, DELACH, KING, MARQUEZ, STAPLETON 
NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 8:24 p.m., the Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment 
Agency/Covina Public Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority adjourned to its next 
regular meeting on Tuesday, February 3, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., for closed session and 7:30 p.m., 
for open session in the Council Chamber located inside of City Hall, 125 East College Street, 
Covina, California, 91723. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

Catherine M. LaCroix, Chief Deputy City Clerk 
Approved this 17th day of February 2015: 

Peggy Delach, Mayor/C~airperson 
--~----------------------------------------------

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 5 of5 January 20, 2015 



CC2 

ACTION MINUTES OF JANUARY 29, 2015 SPECIAL JOINT WORKSHOP MEETING 
OF THE COVINA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COVINA 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY /COVINA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY/COVINA 
HOUSING AUTHORITY WITH COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION TOUR OF THE 
VITA-PAKT FACILITY LOCATED IN COVINA 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Delach called the Council/Agency/Authority joint workshop meeting with the Planning 
Commission to order at 10:00 a.m. 

ROLLCALL 

Council Members Present: ALLEN, DELACH, STAPLETON 
Council Members Absent: KING, MARQUEZ 

Planning Members Present: PATTERSON, HODAPP 
Planning Members Absent: CONNERS, McMEEKIN, MANNING 
Elected Members Present: COBBETT 

Staff Members Present: Assistant City Attorney Martinez, Interim Community 
Development Director Fong, Senior Building Official Rossi, Assistant to the City Manager 
Brancheau, Chief Deputy City Clerk LaCroix 

AGENDA POSTING DECLARATION 
The Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina hereby declares the January 29, 2015 
Council! Agency/Authority joint workshop meeting with Planning Commission agenda was posted on January 28, 
2015, near the front entrance of City Hall, 125 East College Street, Covina, in accordance with §54954.2(a) of the 
California Government Code. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

COUNCIL/AGENCY/AUTHORITY COMMENTS 

None. 

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS 

NB 1. 	 City Council to consider the appointment of Council Member Allen III to serve as 
second alternate to the San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments for their January 29, 
2015 special meeting. 

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES 	 Special Joint Workshop Meeting - January 29, 2015 



Assistant City Attorney Jim Priest announced that in April 2014, Council Member Stapleton 
was appointed as Delegate, and Council Member Marquez as Alternate, to the San Gabriel 
Valley Council of Governments (COG). Staff was made aware of a special meeting at COG 
and Council Member Stapleton and Council Member Marquez are not able to attend, therefore 
it is recommended to appoint Council Member Walter Allen III to serve as an alternate at the 
January 29, 2015 special meeting of the COG. 

On a motion made by Mayor Delach, seconded by Council Member Stapleton, the City Council 
moved to appoint Council Member Walter Allen III to serve as an alternate representing the 
City of Covina at the January 29, 2015 special meeting of the San Gabriel Council of 
Governments. 

Motion carried as follows: 
AYES: ALLEN, DELACH, STAPLETON 
NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 
ABSENT: KING, MARQUEZ 

NB 2. 	 Tour of the Vita-Pakt Citrus Product Company located at 707 N. Barranca Avenue, 
Covina, California, 91723; and general discussion of development opportunities for the 
site (no action will be taken). 

At 10:05 a.m., Mayor Delach announced Council Members, Planning Commissioners and staff 
would be leaving for Vita-Pakt, 707 N. Barranca A venue. 

At 10:20 a.m., All Members and Commissioners were present and the meeting reconvened. 

Jim Mihalka, Covina resident, inquired and staff confirmed the agenda for the special joint 
workshop meeting was posted and delivered in accordance with Government Code Section 
54956; the Brown Act. 

At 10:21 a.m., the walking tour began. 

At 11 :05 a.m., the walking tour concluded and said meeting was adjourned. 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 11 :05 p.m., the Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment 
Agency/Covina Public Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority adjourned to its next 
regular meeting on Tuesday, February 3, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., for closed session and 7:30 p.m" 
for open session in the Council Chamber located inside of City Hall, 125 East College Street, 
Covina, California, 91723. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

Catherine M. LaCroix, Chief Deputy City Clerk 
Approved this 17th day of February 2015: 

Peggy Delach, Mayor/Chairperson 

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 2 of 2 Special Joint Workshop Meeting - January 29, 2015 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 3 

ST AFF SOURCE: 	 Alex Gonzalez, Interim Director of Public Works ~ 
Captain Derek Webster, Covina Police Department 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Downtown Parking Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive and File information on recent citation activity. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact with this item. 


BACKGROUND: 

At the January 6, 2015 City Council meeting there was a request for information by the City Council 

regarding parking time limits in the Downtown, specifically the decision to implement a one-hour time limit 

on Citrus Avenue between Badillo Street and San Bernardino Road. There were claims made during public 

input regarding the strategy that led to the change of parking time limits. Attached is a City Council Agenda 

Item Commentary from July 5, 2011 which details the strategies approved by the Covina Downtown 

merchants, property owners, and residents. 


The one-hour time limit on Citrus Avenue was not determined in 2011 by comparison to any other City. City 

staff allowed the participants in the process to determine parking time limits and at that time the determination 

of the group was that a one-hour limit would best guarantee parking turnover of the most critical parking 

spaces on Citrus Avenue and would direct employees and long-term parkers to less critical parking areas in 

Downtown that were designated as two-hour and four-hour parking. 


Attached is a report noting parking citations on Citrus Avenue between Badillo Street and San Bernardino 

Avenue during the months of November and December 2014. The report details a total of 56 on-street parking 

citations, 18 in November 2014 and 38 in December 2014. During the critical retail sales period of 

Thanksgiving Day, Thursday, November 27th through Tuesday, December 2nd

; zero on-street parking citations 

were issued on Citrus A venue between Badillo Street and San Bernardino Road by the Covina Police 

Department. During the critical retail sales period of Friday December 19th through Thursday, December 25 th 

; 


two on-street parking citations were issued on Citrus Avenue between Badillo Street and San Bernardino 

Road. 


RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 

This item is directly relevant to the City's Strategic Plan's Goal of providing efficient, visible and responsive 

public safety. 




EXHIBITS 
A. Citation report 
B. City Council Agenda Item on Downtown Parking from July 5,2011 

::::~Q2 0.Do1..-~....::~J+IFinance Director: __ _____ 

City Manager: ~ Other: _____________ 



EXHIBIT A: 

REPORT OF ON-STREET PARKING CITATIONS ON CITRUS AVENUE BETWEEN 
BADILLO STREET AND SAN BERNARDINO ROAD FROM NOVEMBER 2014 TO 
DECEMBER 2014 

On Street/
CltaUon Issue Date 

Parking Lot 
1645851 11/3/2014 On Street 

1645862 11/3/2014 On Street 

1645921 11/3/2014 On Street 

1645932 11/3/2014 On Street 

1648323 11/5/2014 On Street 

1648334 11/5/2014 On Street 

1648301 11/5/2014 On Street 

1648290 11/5/2014 On Street 

1648312 11/5/2014 On Street 

1648426 11/6/2014 On Street 

1648415 11/6/2014 On Street 

1648485 11/6/2014 On Street 

1648453 11/6/2014 On Street 

1648474 11/6/2014 On Street 

1648662 11/7/2014 On Street 

1648710 11/7/2.014 On Street 

1648695 11/7/2014 On Sireet 

1648706 11/7/2014 On Slreet 

1656001 12/3/2014 On Street 

1653971 12/3/2014 On Street 

1653993 12/3/2014 On Slreet 

1656244 12/4/2014 On Streer 

1656491 12/5/2014 On Street 

1656476 12/5/2014 On Street 

1656524 12/5/2014 On Street 

1656480 12/5/2014 On Street 

1655441 12/9/2014 On Street 

1655522 12/9/2014 On Street 

1655511 1l/9/2014 On Street 

1655651 12/10/2014 On Street 

1656970 12/11/2014 On Street 

1656981 11/11/2014 On Strt>et 

1657025 12/11/2014 On Street 

1657036 1,~Lll/2014 On Street 

1657014 12/11/2014 On Street 

1657003 12/11/2014 On Street 

1655791 12/12/2014 0rI Street 

1655802 12/11/2014 On Street 



On StreetJ
Citation Issue Date 

Parking lot 
1658300 12/15/2014 On Street _ .. 

1658580 12/16/2014 On Street 

1558554 12/16/2014 an Street 

1658613 12/17/2014 On Street 

1658672 12/17/2014 On Street 

1658694 12/1812014 On Street 

1658731 12/1812014 On Street 

1658720 11/18/2014 On Street 

1.658742 12/18/2014 On Street 

1658801 12/19/2014 On Street 

1658926 12/23/2014 On Street 

1659000 12/29/2014 On Street 
1658985 12/29/2014 On Street 

1658996 12/29/2014 On Street 

1658974 12/Z9/2014 On Street 
1659011 12/29/2014 On Street 

16')90.33 12/30/2014 On Strl"et 

1659065 12/31/2014 On Street 



EXHIBITB: 

CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

MEETING DATE: 	 .July S,2011 ITEM NO,: CC 9 

STAf<T SOURCE: 	 Steve HeDley. PubUe Works Director ~.J 
Alex Gonzalez, Senior MlloaBerneDt. ADa~~t 

lTEM TITLE: 	 Approve COllin. Parking Study Implementation Strategies 
1 tbrough 6 

STAFF RE<':OMMENDATION 

Approve Covina Parking Study Implementation Strategies I through 6, 


FISCAL IMPACT 

Increased parking revenue and n:duccd capital outlay and operational costs to off~t $11.149 1n 

yearly deficit spending in the City of Covina's municipal parking lob, as identified In the 

financiailU1:alysis section of the July 2010 Covina Parking Stud),. With the cl iminalion of deficit 

spending. there "Will be a reduction in the probability Iha! the City General Fund will he required 

to subsidize the municipal parking lots. 


BACKGROUND 

On January 18. 2011, the Covina. Cit)' Council appro"'t:J parking policy Goals and Objectives 
based on the resuhs of the 20 I 0 Parking Study and a series of three public input meetings that 
occurred in Atlgust and September of 20 I 0 and drew ~ommcllts from 28 individuals. On 
[It.''Ccmber 2, 20)0 and January 24, 20J I. Publi.c Works and Police Dep..·mment slaff met to 
discuss proposals fbr execution oflhe approved Goals and Objectives of the Parking Study. with 
partk-ular attention paid to the C01>'t effectiveness and operalionalefficieoc), for each stated Gool 
or O~iecth'e. It was dc.'Cided lbat strategies would be developed to improve ttteparking 
experience for customers and to simplify parking enforcement operations. Once Ihese service 
str.llegies were implemented to improve the customer parking experience an analysis of the 
financial effecls would occur. (n February 2011. a survey (attached as E:II:hibit A) was targeted 
to 317 stakeholders and received 29 responses (9'H; response rate), On March 28, 201 J a fourth 
ptlhlic input meeting was attended by 11 participrults to discu''5s the results of the SUI'\!C)' and to 
review s.uggestions for implementulion, The results of this process to idcnti,fY improvements to 
the customer park.ing experience are detailed below. 



Proposed Implement.doll SrrategiClJ 

1. 	 Oajltime parking enfnn.-ement in effect in all Municipal Parking Lots from 8 AM to 8 PM 
Monday lhnlugh Frida)'. 

• 	 Strict parking 1!f!/or('emell1 (}4 hour.If a ii£l)' / 7 d'~l!S a week} as recommended by {he 
Parking Study way ....oflsil;/ered hy PO/i"f Dt!partmem and PuhJic Works .~tq(.r If} he 
cf)sl..prohjhm'>'t!, Tllii COl1ina Police Deptmmenl recommended parking enj<Jrcement 
IUlr4r.~' ('if BAM 10 IOPA.f ,l{onliI.J):' thnmRh Friday. Input during Ihl! public meetings 
resluJf!a in a mmproml$t' that parkinR tm/wCftmenl (XCIII' from HAM to Sf',"" Ml1ruJay 
through Frida)'. 

2. 	 Overnight parking enforcement in effect in all Municipal Parking Lots from 2 AM to 4 AM 
seven days a week. 

• 	 ;\-Jerel/an/s expr~s!ff!d concerns ref{lIrdiljg Ol'ernighr parking alld Juggt!<fted JOmt' 

~\'Ct'ntlriO,~ Ihal t.:ou/d re.~uJI in jillure i"'~U(!5 if {he <lw:rniRhl parking restrictiom aft? 

,~hll.w3'd. Since Ih~ greater ohjectivt' ol rl's:pef:/ and equal u,~e jor all stulu:holders ij 
paramoun1 (the rer:ommendalions adl'onc:ed by merchanl.1 in (he public irrpU! .'fieHion.' 
would negatively alfeef hOnfif(Ju'nel'f .md I't'ntl'rs that U"-e in 'he /)cwn(own). Public 
WOl'b and Polke lkportmem stc~fdef.;idea (hal/nIlY W{)uJd nIonitor the purchase and 
,.,n~ {~l overnight parking permits ali fire,V !i<!orch 1m- syMem upgrade.~. Police 
Department and Public Wl)ru 51(10 wff/ COnfimte Jo look at coordincuinR parking 
permit !'itlle.l {lI'du'Il1logy to address possihle uttlHe of m()l'Ilh{J' overnighl p"rking 
permit~, .~'im.·e at til/,f pollll 1M (J1.Ui/'lbll! ledmoJogies do nOl meet (II/ of (he (Jty';,; 
lIeed.~. 

3. 	 Improve tbe customer parking experience by: I) eliminating the split time limitations 
(n:mo...c all references to blue zone{whlterone) in all lots and "hanging all otT-str'-'t.1 
Municipal Parking loIS to a 4 hour time limit during enforcement tl4.)uts, 2} provide short
tenn 1 hour on-street parking on Citrus Avenue between San Bernardino Rood and Badillo 
Street. ru1d 3) provide snort-term 2 hour on-street parking on Colh:ge Street.halin Street. and 
Cottage Stn."et between Second Street and Third Street. Kt.>ep aU other time restrictions in the 
Downtown area 11.,'; currend) posted. 

• 	 Merr;:;'anl.! sJJpporud kfteping tl 3 Amlf lime limit mer tl 4 hQur lime limit by a small 
majoritY' Howel't~r. CiJy.~tafl recommendv a .J hour lime limit hWled on lhe 
aSJfUmpiion thai cu.~t(Jmer!f having a !iiI down meal and (11I.mdinX a CWflINJ! or (lrfr 
el'enl DowntOWN would not he covered by a J hour time limit. 

• 	 Then: W(L~ €A tk.\'ire 10 ffUljntain .~horJ.lerm parking in The DmvnlQwtt with f(enr:rllf 
agreement lft"l the mosl dt>.vireJ VJtJf:fS 011 Cima Aw.mue should receil'e a I hour 
Hmitaf/(m with 2hold parking remall1iftg on College. IlfIlia d11li O,Iltlge. 

4, 	 Improve the customer experience by retno":I1~ all parkitl!l fll<K:hines in the "'·{unidpal Parking 
Lots by ~\Ugllst I, 20ll. except for the Civic Ccnter PutKins Structure. Customers should 
drive into a parking lot and see a simple 1ime limit sign with 110 partins machine present to 
.confirm free parking (with a posted lime limit) in the D<JWntown. 



• 	 Baw!d on the high (:''Pita! CO!,t of impr()l'eJ parkiflR tecll1f%gy. the small ummml of 
fimd\' cUFremly receil'l?d by parkinx permit mm:hines in the Downtown. and (Itt! 
diret'fi\)t' €~f the Police Department and Finance Department fo eJimlmdp cmh 
t'lJ/hu:lioYl!{; in Ihe jlcM, parkinR permit machines tire recomm4;'ncled 1(1 he remowtd 
from all munidpal parking lots except lor the Civic G"nler PdrkirrK SirlJClUre, 

5. 	 Reduce .he complexity of parking enforcement operations b)' limiting tbe sale and acceplance 
of daily parking permits in tile DoWnI01i"n to the Civic Center Parking Structure, Promote the 
sale of monthly parking permits by accepting monthly p.:nnits in all Municipal Parking Lots, 

• 	 To improve the parking experiettce,f(Jr J:knmiown ('!l.s/omen, litejixu,f ofOw Ims will 
shift /0 lime resfrj,tions withm,(t (InY splits or di\'i.<rfon,s wilhi" u p{lrking /01 The 
chill/eng!: creUft!d by Ihis decision was: how 10 iMn I1ftlnage emploYtft ptlfJcing IJnd 
collect revenue for the parf.ing dls/riCf without creating rutes or barrier,,, (hut W()uiJ 
negatively qlfict 1m ,'ustomer 's perception when ptlrltlng f)ownfown. 

• 	 Daily parking machine rt'vcnlle i,~' a ...mull :wurce qfrewml#t! for "'Iff Parking District, 
and by SCIUllI? and iu:tepling dailY parking permit" only oJ (he Civic Center Sml{:IW'1! 
lhe City C'onti1rl~es to prtWldt: an lip/ion fe,,. employees thai do nol llc'tlnllO pun:hml! a 
month(vpermil hid daily parking ~rmit purchaser.~ will hI! altowtd.1o park on{v in 
Ihe CiVic Center Slructure. The cUTrnli number o/dali)' parking permit tfamac1ion,~ 
can fll within the capacity (If the Ol'ic Center Parking .')/ruCfW'f! in addition 10 the 
City flail tm</ Cifibank employee.s thaI currently ptlrK in Ihe Civic Ce,mJer S{fUL'iufe. 

• 	 Monthly parking permi! .1'ule.<; account jiw Ihe bulle of/Xlrklng per-mil !t.nluJ;, and the 
CtJ/Xlclty oflhe Civic Cenler Ptlrkfng SlrU(:tlire i.~ not '~'u,lifeit!ru to hold all monthl), 
amidai(v parKing p<!fmif holder.... 

• 	 The P~lrl<ing Study re('ommended Je.)ignmed .. empluyee" and "premlum" parking 
lots at different/ol price." w m(lJIIY parking nehavior. Two. tiered pri(..'ing is nfll 

rel'{)mmendt!tl by Ih£ P()/ice lkptlrtment or Pllb/ic Works staffs/IIl·t: ilWili cOlHplkate 
purking r.m/orcemmt alld ",eare c(Jnju.don jt)r slabJu,Jders and ""....tahlers. In the 
pllbik input Jessions. num::hanB were' requesting an equitable dlslrti:mtil.m ufparfcing 
resources ~ diliided into l1orth~wmth. tasr/wftM, (" ptusibly (~quaJ qlltJt/rantfi in the 
Je1wltlOWn area. City !ilqff looked al several Jijl;mml .~cenari()j to a.HiS" different 
monthly pCl,king permilS 10 N.mghly equal .lrt.>as' I/owever, since parking space 
inwmtory I:. Tlol balanced in lhe DoWttloM'n. it i.. btlpo'l'sibte 10 divide 'he parking 
resources in a balanced manm~r and any attempt hy Cify J/ql.r to imposq arbitrary 
parking lot Jivi:/{ioflS will re:f1Ilr in :riguijicalll discontent for one Of'mOrt! stakelwlder 
grolqJ,'j, 

• 	 ldent(I}'ing parking lou thai are ,'I(Js~ 10 Ctlpacil), anti keeping lhr.}...~ impw.'fed lots' (?If' 
{imiJ,f/ 10 monthly and d€lily INJrking permif hoMeY'; WllS re"ommemied In Ihe ParkIng 
Study and received uniji.1rm(J,' negcuil-'e re.pomes from pub/i'-' inplll Jession 
partidpant,'IJ, A witk range ofopini(ms W(lS cxpreJ,'sed in public inpul on IargeJing OF 

baryj"g selected grdllps or individl~l.\ from parking in impucteti auas. h!lI in the 
llbsence ofany ra/Ilmal and defensible o/ternatillt 'hut would nsult i~t COIlUnjfJ.f and 
protecl the right, olall tn(4t amtribulf jincurciaill-' if' the pf.Jrking di.~Iri#"t. the idea (1,( 

limiting monthly permit parking in uny /01 is ncing wltluJrawfi by City SlqlJ,~im:e 'he 

http:altowtd.1o


greater (In/ecliwJ 0] U,'pqff and equal use .j(~r alf ,~jakeho'r1er,y cfluld noJ be 
Kuarantee(/ wilh lfu:! rr:commendtlti()f1s rece/wd in the puhii.c inpul pr()('"'~!!i,'i:. 

• 	 F()llow~up observations ofrmmicfpal parking Jr,/ UJC in April and May 201 I by City 
slaff and COIl\v!ntatiolts regar(fing .l'h~/ting parlring u.~e patterns wirh Ihe enginf!en 
fhat authored the Parkfng Stud}' resulted in a conclusion thai restrkting mumhly 
emplo}'ce permits in all), one /0/ wjll have ,m/oreseen ejfect.'f «HI parking demand in alt 
parking 101J and will/tad to ,ii,f(:rmtenl among mer(:hantj' that purcha.\'f: suo,/amitJI 
tfumln!rs ofmonthly parking permits, 

• 	 The mercHants that plff~'ha$e bulk parking permits did not attend any qf tire JiJUr 
public input se,~sjon.". .fV Citv st!1D' ('ontacl£'cI t'w:h menhont imii I'iduaJ{y' ftJ 

understand hew the}' would reNprmd 10 parking itt u designated empJo)t¥e lilt. All (~r 
the ,"Im'hanl., fhat pr~rch(lse bulkpermits re.,J1Onded thai they would mosl likely .~IOp 
p,m:h/Jsing the monlhly permiB ami direct their entpl()yee.~ to mOlle their whides to 
avoid citations. Theu was consensus uilhin 1M... grol1p q/ merd1unlf that 1M 
busine.fses lhat contrihute to the parking diHricl by purd,u.!flng momhl}' permits};;r 
their employees should not be penalized by heiI1J(lim~ed to parkjarfhrtr uway. . 

• 	 ThtJ Parking Rilla), i.i' a "snapshot" a/parking demand, and wilh new developments iM 

Downtown over lime, demand will ;!Ohm and parking tot demand will change rrn!r 
lime. instead (~f regulating mornhly pur/cJng permit use in f;ertain IOfs based on the 
Parking Study, il L'i recommended hy City SUU)'lhat monthly permits be llt'cepted In (III 
Munkipal Parking Ips, and Ihat dai~v lxulr.inf( permiu he sold and restricted10 only 
Ihe Ci"ie Center Parking Slnt(.'luTC, Umiting monthlJ' Pt,mit,s 10 ,'trlul11 lot:. will 
,'reate additional ,frictiON in Ih~ Down/own and will refilllt in a dedinfC c1'parking 
permit ,'Iales ha<;eci on the input ret.'t'lved Limiting the purcmlse i!f tiaily parking 
permits to Ihe Civic Center I'arkiflg .)frUCTUrt? willfimpl!/y parking thfilTcemem, 

a/Jow jar rite temm'Ol of Gutdated parking led;fU)/ogy, anJ promote the .snlt! III 
momhl"parkin,,! permit,s, 

6, 	 Monthly Municipal Lnt Parking Lot Permits will remain at $20 a month a... approved by the 
Covina City Council in January 2011. Monthly Municipal Lot. pennits wilt also be valid (or 
overnight parking in the Iv1unicipal Lots. Daily MUl1icip,d Lot permits at the Civic Center 
Parking Structure Il.1'e recommended I() ima'Case from $! "day to $2 a day, Overnight 
Municipal Lot penulls will be introduced at the Civic C~l1h:r Stnlcture lor $3 a day. 

• 	 With lhe L'orwen';on /0 credit ('ard only (ran.'OU('fim1.'j at Ihe ('iliic Cemlr Parking 
StrumU'~, !rQ115adion and m.erchunl/eeJ will (weraj(e close 10 SOJO lJt!r ltans(J(:tion, 
11 is fleces,vary to increase Ihe daily rule to recoup,he introJuctif)Jl oj/hew: lees IJnd 
~llso to provide an J",enJ;ve jor lhe pl4n,,'Jm,~e (J{momhly ptlricll1g permiJs In relalionto 
daily permits, Daily permits at the Metrolinlc Parking Structure ore currently $1 and 
o..'ernight permils at Ihe Police Department and Mefrolink Structure an t:urremly 51. 

• 	 Based on !he monitoring of tn'tlmlght pl.lrkfrrg pt!'rmil.'l 11;' Polict Dtpt.Jrttnenf and 
Public Works !i/~Jar po.tsible abuse, (I St'purate ntfmlJrly ovemight permit nu,)' hi! 
(.'reUleJ in (he fitture for fhe Munidpai Parking L(Jli~. A.s I·oll,'e /)epmtment and 
Public: Worb sfq[f disr:uS'se.f the upgrade lind merging of parking permit .foJes 
techTWlogy, 1M capabWty /0 reslric' and monitor tl\'t'lflight parking fWrtnU USt! will 
rt'muin a central is:sut.!, 



• 	 B(l~'(Jd (JH puhU(' input, There was a desire IQ ittlroduce a medrani5ffl If) purchase 
overtlighJ pm'king fJl.'rmits mt shorf notice in the Dowt7JownJor the ,\Iunicipal Parking 
l.ots, 

Implementation hC1llS 1 through 6 are directly intended to improve the customer experience in 
Downtown in a cost-effective manner; not to increase revenue to the Parking District. All 
informational parking pamphlet will be created for Mettolink and Parking Dif>1rict stakeholders 
to promote the sale of monthly permits, and it is ooped that Parking District stakeholders will 
choose to purdta..~e addidonal monthly permits for their employees under this new parking 
config.uration. City su1.ffwi1l return to the City Council with another parking update in December 
20 I t to assess Ibe revenue impacts of these changes and to discuss the progress of dis(;ussions 
with Shoppers Lane owners and merchants towards developing a sustainable financial model for 
common area maintenance at Sboppers Lane, 

RELEVENCE TO TilE STRATEGIC PLA~ 


This item is din.-ctly related to the City's three year goal of '~enhancing financial stability" by 

attempting to stabilize deficit spending in account 2600-2800-00. 


EXHIBITS 
A. 	 Municipal Parking Sur'lt'ey Summary, Fcbntary 2011 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 4 

STAFF SOURCE: Dilu de Alwis, Director of Finance f! 
Nuala Gasser, Senior Housing & CDBG Economic Development Manager fl1'Q 

ITEM TITLE: Report on 2015 Citywide Homeless Count conducted January 27,2015. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

City Council to receive and file the report on the 2015 Street Homeless Count. 


FISCAL IMPACT 

None 


BACKGROUND 

On November 18, 2014, the City Council approved the City's participation in the Los Angeles 

County Continuum of Care Street Homeless Count. Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority 

(LAHSA), as the lead agency, set the parameters and guidelines for the count, which took place 

in Los Angeles County on January 27, 28 and 29. The San Gabriel Valley, including the City of 

Covina, was counted on Tuesday, January 27, 2015. The Joslyn Senior Center was the 

deployment center for the City'S count. 


A total of thirty-three people volunteered to help with the Covina count, which required counting 

people living in places not meant for human habitation such as cars, parks, campers, sidewalks 

and abandoned buildings. After a session of volunteer training, ten teams deployed at 8 p.m. 

Teams were assigned to specific census tracts, each amounting to approximately fifteen road 

miles. In addition to the ten census tracts counted in Covina, five additional tracts were counted 

in the contiguous unincorporated area north of Covina, in Charter Oak and in West Covina. 


After counting, the teams reported back to the deployment center and turned in their enumeration 

forms. After the Count ended at midnight, the material was returned to the collection site in 

West Covina. 


Many citizens participated in this event, but several groups in particular provided strong support. 

Without their help, the count would not have been possible. The groups were as follows 


Organization No. of Volunteers 

Covina United Methodist Church 6 

Police Volunteers 5 


Other represented groups were Covina City Employees, Los Angeles County employees, and the 

community. 




The Parks and Recreation Department provided the facility, and the Police Department provided 
security for the night. 

Official results will not be available from LAHSA until mid-summer. According to LAHSA, the 
count takes place at night because it's hard to tell who is homeless during the day, when people 
are not out seeking a place to sleep. LAHSA also tracks the number of homeless that are in 
shelters, emergency rooms, transitional housing facilities and jails and treatment centers, to get 
an accurate number of people in need of housing. 

Based on the forms turned in by the volunteers the following statistics were revealed for 
homeless individuals and places where homeless people were living in Covina on the night of 
January 27,2015. The numbers for three prior years are included also. 

Covina Street Count 2015 2013 2012 2011 

Individuals-Adult 26 6 12 5 
Individuals-Youth 2 0 0 0 
Cars 6 1 2 4 
Vans 2 0 1 0 
CamperlRV 7 4 4 11 
Tent 1 0 1 0 
Make-shift shelter 1 3 0 0 

Final LAHSA number for Covina 2015 2013 2012 2011 

Street Count TBD 21 24 31 
Emergency & Winter Shelter TBD 0 30 0 
Transitional Housing TBD ~ ~ 
Total Covina count TBD 27 59 37 

Total Los Angeles County count TBD 39,463 39,414 42,963 

For more information about the 2015 Homeless Count or to obtain a copy of the 2013 Homeless 
Count report, visit www.1ahsa.org . 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
None. 

EXHIBITS 
None. 

REVIEW TEAM ONLY ==~ 
City Attoraey: ~7~?:::=Sfr- Finance Director: ~ 

----~~---------------

Other: ____________________________City Manager: ---.,;~~________ 
f 

http:www.1ahsa.org


CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 5 

STAFF SOURCE: Alex Gonzalez, Interim Director ofPublic Works f<1
Paul Hertz, Public Works Superintendent 

ITEM TITLE: Public Works Department Monthly Activity Report 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive and file the Public Works Department Monthly Activity Report 


FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report is informational only and has no budgetary impact. 


BACKGROUND: 

Attached for the City Council's review and information are the Public Works Department's 

Monthly Activity Report for January. 


In conjunction with the implementation of a revised Zone Maintenance Program in 2007, the 

Department implemented a renewed focus on Key Performance Indexing (KPI). KPI is a useful 

tool for developing a measurement system of organizational effectiveness by identifYing 

activities important to the community and tracking their output over time. 


During January, the following trends were noted: 


• 	 With Community Development now directed to oversee the responsibility of Code 
Enforcement and Building and Safety, the Public Works Department will no longer be 
tracking the KPI's for these respective areas beginning this month. Therefore, these 
categories have now been eliminated from the monthly activity report. 

• 	 With the beginning of the new year, and also a full work month, the Equipment Maintenance 
Division was rather high in almost all categories in their tracking compared to last month. 
Areas of particular notation were emergency call outs and safety inspections. 

• 	 As similar to last month, Pothole filling activities consumed much of the Street Maintenance 
activities. Numbers for the month of January were more than doubled in relation to 
December which was already above average for this category. 

• 	 All other Divisions and Sections were generally on par with their tracking considering the 
shortened work month. 



RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN: 

The Public Works Department consists of the Water Division, Streets and Sewer Division, 
Central Equipment Division, Building Maintenance, and Development Services which includes 
Engineering, Environmental Services, Building and Safety, as well as Code Enforcement. The 
combined activities of each of the divisions continually strives to enhance the safety, 
development and infrastructure needs of the community in the most cost effective and responsive 
way possible. In this way, while not directly responsive to any of the currently identified 
objectives of the Strategic Plan the activities which are reported on herein support several of the 
specific Strategic Plan's Goals, as follows: Improve and promote customer service; Enhance 
financial stability; Become an environmentally sustainable community; and Provide efficient, 
visible and responsive public safety. 

EXHIBITS: 
A. Public Works Department Monthly Activity Report - January 2015 

REVIEW TEAM ONL 
Qty AttoJ'lley::.;::::;;:!~~¥;i::;.==~C~ 

City Manager: _(!Z-....:::;.. Other: _______________ _______+



CITY OF COVINA 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 


JANUARY 2015 


DIVISION ACTIVITY QUANTITY 
Water Utility Meter replacements 5 

Consumer responses 531 
Backflow tests 15 
Flushed blow-offs 20 
Service line repair/replace 2 
Main line repair/replace 2 
Fire hydrants maintained 7 
Isolation valves exercised 0 
Dig alert emergencies 47 
Emergency call outs 4 

Equipment Maintenance Preventative Maintenance service 63 
Safety inspections 74 
Daily demand repairs 77 
Tire repairs 40 
Major repairs over $1000 3 
Emergency call outs 20 

Street Maintenance Traffic sign remove/replace/install 4 
Potholes repaired 748 
Grind sidewalk 277 
Ramp sidewalk 2 
Curb painted (LF) 0 
Illegally dumped items picked up (LBS.) 2,000 
Utility cuts repaired 0 
Trees trimmed 5 
Asphalt - Skin Patch (sq.ft.) 2,040 
Emergency call outs 3 

Environmental Services Used oil containers distributed 2 
Compost bins distributed 0 
NPDES violations investigated 7 
NPDES Permit Inspections 1 
Waste management consumer contacts 0 
Industrial Waste Permit Inspections 23 
Plans checked for environmental compliance 24 
Environmental legislation & regulations reviewed 7 
Special Waste collection events promoted 2 

Engineering Permits issued 26 
Inspections conducted 30 
Complaint responses 0 
Jobsite meetings 6 
Plan checks conducted 22 
Document research requests 2 
Value of plans prepared 242,000 

Building Maintenance Service requests completed 23 
Facility heat/air conditioning repairs 1 
Facility lighting/electrical repairs 2 
Emergency call outs 0 

Exhibit A 
2 Pages 



CITY OF COVINA 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 


JANUARY 2015 


DIVISION ACTIVITY QUANTITY 
Transportation Bus passes sold 40 

Covina Transit total passengers 1,811 
Covina Transit on time performance 9901.00% 
Covina Transit passengers per rev hr 3 
Metrolink monthly permits sold 757 
Metrolink machine revenue $2,922.00 
Municipal Lots monthly permits sold $63 

Sewer Maintenance Manholes inspected 102 
Linear feet of main cleaned 61,840 
Hot-spot locations cleaned 39 
Sewer overflow responses 0 
Manholes treated for vermin infestation 89 
Manholes treated for rodent infestation 6 
Routine pump station checks 31 

Special Activities of Note Contract project inspection hours 10 
Shopping carts removed 70 
Curb repair locations 2 
Sink holes repaired 1 

Exhibit A 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: 	 February 17th
, 2015 ITEM NO.: CC 6 

'~1l1
STAFF SOURCE: 	 Dilu de Alwis, Finance Director ~. 

Steven Smith, Management Analyst 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Fiscal Year 2014-2015 2nd Quarter Update on Major Funds 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Receive and file the budget update report for the quarter ended December 3 P\ 2014. 


FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 


BACKGROUND 

The current City of Covina Budget Policy requires staff to provide quarterly reports to the City 

Council on the status of budgeted revenues and expenditures. As the information through the 

first quarter is extremely preliminary, we have combined the first and second quarters into a 

single mid-year report. 


The attached report gives an overview of the budgets for the General and Enterprise Funds for 

the City of Covina as of December 31 S\ 2014. For analysis purposes, we have used 50% of 

budget to determine whether revenues and expenditures are trending over or under budget. Of 

the major funds presented in the report, General Fund expenditures are at 53.5% of budget. All 

other funds are well below the 50% mark. General Fund revenues are at 50.9% guideline; the net 

of Enterprise Fund revenues are at 60.8% of budget 


RELEVANCE TO STRATEGIC PLAN: 

There is no relevance to the strategic plan. 


EXHIBITS 


A) Mid-year budget report 


~~~~~ Finance Director: __-...:::.=-1'--____ 

City Manager: -:....111!!7~----- Other: ______--'-_____ 



CITY OF 

CDIINA 
City of Covina 

Mid-Year Report 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015, Period Ended 12/31/14 

February 2015 

OVERVIEW 

The accompanying financial report reflects the City's 
budget position for the period ended 12/31/14. Included in 
this report are the General and Enterprise Funds, with a 
more detailed focus on the General Fund. For analysis, we 
have used 50% of the total fiscal year budget as a baseline 
to determine whether revenues and expenditures are 
trending over or under budget. Budgeted amounts include 
any revisions to the Adopted Budget based on Council 
action as of 12/31/14. Every effort was made to capture 
revenues and expenditures as accurately as possible, using 
an approximate accrual of both. Actual dollar amounts are 
exclusive of any encumbrances. 

The City's cash balance as of12/31/14 is $19,913,845.04, 
a decrease from $16,389,539.55 at the beginning of the 
fiscal year. This total includes the combined available 
cash balances of all City funds - not just the General Fund 
- and is exclusive of any long-term investments. As a point 
of reference, the City's cash balance as of 12/30113 was 
$16,947,490.91. 

The decrease in cash since the beginning of the fIScal 
year is due to the timing difference between when revenue 
is recognized and when it is received. For example, Utility 
Users Tax remittances received in January are for billings 
that occurred in December. For accounting and budgetary 
purposes, this revenue is recognized as having been earned 
in December. However, the cash for these remittances 
wasn't received until January and was not included in the 
cash balance in the Treasurer's Report dated December 31, 
2014. Additionally, the timing of the monthly payments to 
L.A. County Fire for the cost of the fire prevention 
contract, as well as several capital expenditures which are 
to be reimbursed later in the fiscal year, had a negative 
impact on the cash balance through mid-year. 

GENERAL FUND 


Through the first six months of the fiscal year, General 
Fund revenues were received at 50.9% and expenditures 
were at 53.5% of budget. 

The net of all General Fund expenditures is above the 50% 
guideline for mid-year. This is discussed in detail below. 

"Expenditures by Program" shows most categories right 
around 50% for the year to date, with slight variances in 
either direction. The exceptions to this are the General 
Government, Community Development and Non
Departmental programs. 

The appearance of the General Government program so 
markedly under budget is due to the application of City's 
cost allocation model. Through the cost allocation plan 
(CAP), a m~ority of the costs of General Government are 
allocated across all major funds. However, the amounts 
recognized to date are based on budget as opposed actual 
costs. Through mid-year, the credits applied through the 
CAP exceeded the actual cost of the General Government 
program. All costs will undergo a true-up/down process at 
the end ofthe fiscal year. 

White the Community Development program seems to be 
extremely over budget at this point in the fiscal year, this is 
almost entirely due to the purchase of property located at 
633 - 635 S Citrus Avenue from the Successor Agency. 
Excluding this cost, the Community Development program 

EXHIBIT A 
Page 1 of4 

http:16,947,490.91
http:16,389,539.55
http:19,913,845.04


Quarterly Financial Report July 2014 - December 2014 

is at approximately 55% of budget for the year, the excess 
of which is related to increased staffing in the Planning 
Department. 

Expenditures in the Non-Departmental program 
approached 80% through mid-year. This is due in part to 
certain annual fees and subscriptions that are paid during 
the first half of the fiscal year. Additionally, the cost of the 
City's lifeline subsidy for its utility customers is contained 
within this program. Although that line item is exceeding 
50% of budget for the year-to-date, the revenue derived 
from the water late fees which fund the program is more 
than adequate to cover the costs. 

223,738 
24,572,358 

1,512,623 
4,736,313 
3,793,694 

73,110 
1 

38,311 
12,302,153 

661,279 
2,351,687 
3,255,209 

58,197 
000 

"Expenditures by Major Category" also shows all 
categories under or only slightly over the 50% guideline. 
The major exception to this is Capital Outlay, which again, 
is related to the purchase of property from the Successor 
Agency. Additionally, Interdepartmental Charges are 
below 50% due to budgeted transfers to the General Fund 
that have not yet occurred. 

18, 9, 
Professional & Technical 9,923,635 4,959,365 50.0% 
Property Services 2,038,523 954,863 46.8% 
Other Services & Charges 1,594,705 795,322 49.9% 
Supplies 517,569 236.176 45.6% 
Capital Outlay 3,271,301 2,959,440 90.5% 
Contingency 10,000 1,434 14.3% 
Interdepartmental Charges (1,145,880) (432,408) 37.7% 

I 

Revenues are fractionally over 50% of budget. 

Tax revenue in general is approximately $595,000 higher 
than it was for the same period last year. This includes a 
year-over-year increase in Property Tax revenue of 
$109,000 and in Sales Tax revenue of $388,000. Utility 
Users Tax revenue is steady at just over 50% of budget 

and is in line with what was received during the same 
period last year. 

The Licenses and Permits and Charges for Services 
categories are well above the 50% guideline. This is due in 
part to the timing of the receipt of Business License 
revenue, as well as Aquatics revenue, the majority of 
which is received during the first half of the fiscal year. 
Although most Permit category revenue is above 50% for 
the fiscal year to date, it should be noted that Building 
Permit revenue is approximately $46,000 less than for the 
same period last year. 

Intergovernmental revenue is below 50% for the year to 
date, largely due to the timing of payments received from 
various governmental agencies. Additionally, certain 
revenue is on a reimbursement basis and tied to specific 
expenditures. If these expenditures aren't made, then that 
revenue won't be recognized, which result in net zero 
budget impact. 

Although expenditures currently exceed revenue for the 
fiscal year to date, this is due solely to the aforementioned 
purchase of property from the Successor Agency. We 
anticipate the offsetting revenue to be received in April 
2015, the impact of which will be seen in the 4th quarter 
report. Excluding the expense related to this transaction, 
revenues exceed expenditures by approximately $138,000. 

Taxes 
Licenses & Pennits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Fines & Forfeits 
Employee Benefit 
Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Other Sources 

25,670,470 
640,000 

1,035,498 
2,259,740 

701,000 

12,436,393 
415,532 
334,610 

1,364,382 
337,334 

5,940 
131,636 
138,297 

1 115 853 

48.4% 
64.9% 
32.3% 
60.4% 
48.1% 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 2 of4 




Quarterly Financial Report July 2014 - December 2014 

40,000,000 

30,000,000 

20,000,000 

10,000,000 

,-.BUdget I 
L·A_ctu~J 

Expen° Revenue ditures 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

General Fund Budget to Actual YTD 

Enterprise Fund Budget Condition: The City maintains 
three Enterprise Funds (a fund established to account for 
operations financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprise): Water Utility, Environmental 
Services, and Sewer Funds 

At mid-year, the combined Enterprise Fund revenues were 
at 60.8% and expenditures were at 23.4% of budget. 

All Enterprise Fund expenditures are well under 50% of 
budget for the year to date. In the case of the Water and 
Sewer Funds, this is primarily due to large Capital Outlay 
budgets that have only been partially expended through the 
first half of the year, as well as the timing of the 
recognition of depreciation expenses in both funds. For the 
Environmental Services Fund, this is due to unexpended 
Professional & Technical Services related to the state
mandated storm water management program. 

Water supply purchases are under budget for the year and 
approximately $430,000 lower than for the same period 
last year. It should be noted that, although we have 
purchased less total water, we have had to purchase almost 
as much water from MWD for the same period as last year, 
at over twice the cost per acre foot as from Covina 
Irrigating Company. This trend is expected to continue as 
drought conditions persist. 

I 'prndilnrr, Hlldgl'l \ I J) \(\lIal "" I '!I('IIth-1I 

Water Utility 16,044,530 4,836,860 30.1% 

Environmental Services 1,625,883 546,020 33.6% 

Sewer 1l,007,020 1,329,797 12.1% 

Total Enterprise Funds 28,677,433 6,712,677 23.4% 

The combined Enterprise Fund revenues were at 60.8% of 
budget through mid-year. Water Fund revenue exceeded 
50%, simply due to higher than budgeted revenues, 
especially for retail water sales. Environmental Services 
revenue was under 50% year to date, however, revenue 
exceeded expenditures. This is generally what we expect 
to see from Enterprise Funds, as their revenues need to 
cover their costs of operations. 

Sewer Fund revenue was slightly under the 50% guideline. 
Although expenditures in this fund slightly exceeded 
revenues, a majority of the budgeted expenditures in this 
fund are paid for from bond proceeds and is not reflective 
of an ongoing shortfall of revenues against expenditures. 

Enterprise Funds Budget to Actual YTD 

30,000,000 

25,000,000 

20,000,000 

• Bud;etl15,000,000 

• Actual10,000,000 

5,000,000 

° Revenue Expenditures 

LOOKING FORWARD 

As departments begin to plan for the 15116 budget, it is 
useful to look at the anticipated budgetary impacts for the 
upcoming fiscal year, particularly as it relates to costs that 
are beyond the control of the City. 

EXHIBIT A 
Page 3 of4 

I{(', runr lIudgl'i , II) \llual "" 1~('l'('I\ ('tl 

Water Utility 10,758,000 6,883,714 64.0% 

Environmental Services 1,265,700 551,702 43.6% 

Sewer Fund 2,390,000 1,327,937 55.6% 

Total Enterprise Funds $ 14,413,700 $ 8,763,352 60.8% 

i 



Quarterly Financial Report July 2014 - December 2014 

Preliminary PERS calculations show an increased cost of 
approximately $550,000 in the General Fund, largely due 
to the cost of paying down the City's portion of Public 
Safety's unfunded liability. This required payment is in 
addition to the City's regular PERS costs and is 
represented as a lump-sum payment of $328,079 for 15/16, 
increasing to a projected payment of $494,121 for 16/17. 
This increase is somewhat mitigated by the requirement 
that employees begin paying their full cost in 15116 - a 
one-time savings of approximately $133,000. 

Although the City will not receive the preliminary 
estimates for the cost of the contract with L.A. County Fire 
until March, staff anticipates that the increase over the 
current fiscal year could exceed $125,000. 

There are indications that revenues are trending up. Early 
estimates for FY 15/16 show Property Tax revenue 
increasing approximately $250,000. Additionally, 
preliminary projections from HdL show Sales Tax revenue 
increasing approximately $500,000, though that amount 
will most likely be adjusted with their next report. While 
this is all positive news, the City must exercise caution and 
not commit to expenditures that are long-term in nature. 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 4 of4 




CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

lVIEETING DATE: February 17, 2015 ITEM NO.: CC 7 

STAFF SOURCE: Alex Gonzalez, Interim Director of Public Works ~ 
Lieutenant David Foster, Covina Police Department 

ITEM TITLE: Approve Agreements for Emergency Communications Systems 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Agreements with Blackboard, Inc. and NixIe LLC for emergency communications systems 

and authorize the Acting City Manager or his designee to execute all related documents on the City's 

behalf. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 

This item is included in the FY 2014-2015 budget under (6010-5000-51990). City staff negotiated a 

six month renewal with Blackboard and the cost of Nixie is less than half of the annual cost of 

Blackboard, therefore there will be a savings of $2,219.00 in FY 2014-2015 and a savings of 

$20,229.00 in FY 2015-2016. 


BACKGROUND: 

Blackboard, Inc. provides an emergency/mass notification system that contacts citizens through 

automated phone calls. The Covina Police Department has assessed the capabilities of the current 

emergency/mass notification system and determined that the product provided by Nixie LLC is not 

only more cost effective, but also is better suited to their operations environment and introduces 

social media modules that Blackboard does not provide. The emergency notification system is also 

required to immediately notify water service customers in the event of a water emergency and is an 

important part of transforming the Public Works Department communications strategy to keep 

citizens informed of developments in the community. If this item is approved, there will be an 

overlap of systems to ensure that emergency communications remain viable as the new system is 

developed and staff is trained. It is expected that the full transition to Nixie will occur by May 2015. 


RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 

This item is directly relevant to the City's Strategic Plan's Goal of providing efficient, visible and 

responsive public safety. 


EXHIBITS 

A. Blackboard six month invoice and NixIe annual invoice 
B. Nixie Service Level Agreement 

City Manager: _~..=..;;;,---______Other: ______________ 

http:20,229.00
http:2,219.00


b 

EXHffiITA: 

Blaekboard 1/'(1. 
6150 M'aIilOOUHU$ 
Avetm 
am F/Ocr 
WIIlhlllgtOn DO 20001 

P H.10lU63.4860 
F "'81&"1>.11425 

blel:kOowlI.com 

August 27, 2014 

Client Contact lofo.rmatlon Send PUI'ch,n.. On:ler (If required to pay Invoice) to: 

OrY OF COVINA 
125 E. COllEGE STRE£T 
COVINA. CA 917232199 
626-384-5400 

Client 10; 31sa30 

Blackboa«l. Inc. 
650 MSlWlcnusetts Ave., NW, 6111 floor 
W<lshlnaton, DC 20001 
201-318-2619 (eFax) 

Federal 10 "20131178 

Renewal Quote; December 1, 2014 -May 30, 2015 

Productlon Descrlption Term Price 
COnnect Service 18.012 Reaplents K $2.00 ~oo

Annual Support fee 

TotalDul! $18,Q12.00 I 

The pricing hted here is based On your contract with efackboard, Int.. and 1$ provfded to facilitate generatiOn Qf purchase order\.. 
An Invoice will be Issued for payment. Thi$ quote Is vaRd for 30 days from date of issue. 

If you are able to pay your invoice without a Purchase Order, please respond to faith Kn.ht It Falth.Kn11lM:@blatkboard.comwith 
an afflrmathle response on yaur rencwllland the renewal win be pnx:essed iilnd invoiced. 

http:blel:kOowlI.com


c§.1nixle 

Quote Namo 

1311 roName 
EliIling Address 

ComadName 

Phone 

EmIli 

NlxleComea 

Nixie 3150 

Vole. 

Me:ssaoino 

TipWaIdl 


Internal 
MHsaQino 


IPAWS 


Pdygon 
Targellr1g 

NW$ 
Rehr~ing 

Ptllrnium 
S~POIt 

ProWsloning & 
lklIlJ1l 

CQllina Police Dcparlrrlent 360 

Co>.Iina Police Depar1lT16f1l. CA 

444 N. C~r~9 Ave. 
Co'lina, CA 91723 
US 

DMiid Fosler 

(626) 384-5006 

dfoster@COlliOaca.gov 

QI.IQIeNwnb\!!( 2014-1686 

Greeted Oate 1011612014 

E.:piraliOO Date 12"512014 

T(allle Stolt 

1.871.049.5362 x215 

lta'll$.scolI@mie.com 

NllCle's ."fIY level tllOdud,. fellllJling I.InJmIed lext. email & web nolil1r.atiOns. 

AI fulut98 of NaConnec!. p1U$ unli~ pl.lblfsherl. social mtdlalniego-aIIon, advanced 

llllOlJrapi'Jic '''!II'IinQ. sched1Aed IMmlfIlng. 


Nlxte'$ fI.lllleatuIed prorJUCI, .,~ eMefgel1C\f \1Q1Ce 111e$$lI!iing. 


,Seod lIfI\!ll'ge1lCy voICIQ ~1!$1l11ill'ldllno phoFllM 0I'Id pllbk 9"'1J1l ml!l'!1bora. 

!
! 

ReaillYe pWk: ananymoUllllps ~111IeywooJ. wvb totm. and In ta,p.?Me 10 14m text I1Q\I1icallans. 

I 
[ TW<I-way. inlama! noliIicdon "Ia taliI & Gl11l1il for ~e grol.ijl4.


IIWliale it rnes&iI!le to !'EMA's IPAW$ network. Require FEMA aulhori:Ullon. 


ICullklrn Geographic tetgedng '*'9 I new« uVfld map bsllGd pol)1Jon. 

ClI1IlooliZlllble, auIOmaIic ~JQadcasl$ ofNWS advL$oI1es IlIf01.19l'1 Nixie. 

Prlanty i!tCCM3 to NfXle', stq)Ol'l24-1. 

Comact tenlJlh 

PaymentTlIrm 


Au\hOrizallooTo Puroha&e 

Nam. ___________________________________ 

Grand Totlll 

TlIIt _________•_____~_~ 

100 so.oo 

so.oo1.00 

1.00 ' 514.195.00 

i 

l,OO! 

1.001 so.oo 

1,00 1 . SO.OO 

1,001I suo 

1.00j SOOQ 

1.00,I $0.00 

1 
100 SO.OO 

1 

1.001 
I 

4UI'OO.00 

$lS,lI)S.UQ 

50.00 

http:lS,lI)S.UQ
http:4UI'OO.00
http:514.195.00
mailto:lta'll$.scolI@mie.com
mailto:dfoster@COlliOaca.gov


EXHIBIT B: 


nixie 
NIXLE LLC 

smVICE LEVEL AGREEMlNT 

This S4nlce A!vee~t ("Aireement1 b entared into b)t atld between 
Nilde, LLC ("'HlxIe'), .. . ,,:uttomet") • on 
___......,..2014 (the "Effective Date",. Nixie iII1d Customer ant 
eOlCh tlerelrtafter 1OIl1etlmet. referred to as a '''party'' and co(lectlvely, 
!:he "'Parties'" 

THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING ~ AiIID 
C0t4PlTIONS GO\IEJU.IIHG THE US!'! Of' NIXtE'S SEItVI(E: 

t, SERVICE. Nbde shall prwIoe Customer acCeH to Its prq>rletary 
Interactive comm\lllcation 1I!fYICes (tile ~S.rvlat"l $ll.bject to tl1e 
terrm and condltlon$ set fOltll in thls ~nt, the Sel'Ylce level 
Ajreement app\1cabte to wen Services In ~ aocI tile 
dtKription 01 Services and pric~ attaci1ed hereto as ~ (the 
"Q.\.Ioh"). If applicable, NIxie shall provide tralnlni and profESSiCllllI 
$lIf\Ikes In llCCOI'danc:e with th!! Prldnl (en defined below) set forth In 
the Q!,.ote. NlxLl! shall provide Cu~tomer with 10iin and pasw;oo:j 
infcrmatlol'l for each User (as defined below) and WiU coofisure the 
Sel'Ylce to wntact the rnaxitmllTl oomber of penoos or colllOlmlCation 
d .... ices (each a "ContKt8

) purd"laiad by CultolMf as set forth In 
Exhibit B. Nllde may from time to tIm, Qffer Customer new features, 
enllanO!ftlents or services whkh. if aca!pted by Customer In writinl, 
lind SUIijec;t to Customer'l payment of any aopl1cable addltiooat fee, 
Ihalt become part of the StMces atwI1Ubject to tile PfO'iislons of this 
Ajreement. 

3. CUSTOMER RESPOM'SIBILmES. 

3.1 USERS. Ctistomer shall in Its discretiOn eutnDrize certain 01 Its 
emplOyees .md amtru:ton to aexes; me service ("U_(I)~j. Ead! 
Uler mull be bound In writirla to coofldent\al.lty obI.f!atlons that ant 
no Ie$$ reruk:tlve tIIlrI those set forth tlerein. and that are wfflclent 
to permit Custom« to fully perform IU obligations IIIder this 
AtI'ftJ'l'lent. Customer shall caust USers to l.I'\odeflO Initial setup and 
tralnll'll 11'1 iCCordance With Exhibit a. CUSton\l!( nn be f!!S(lonmle 
for II} ensur!ni that U~ maiJ'ltalr. tile COOlldflntiillityof ail User log" 
lI"d ptiSWOfd inforrnllllOl\; (II) <iIIl$ut101J that UIler1 use tho Servl~ " 
accordance with all ~Icable taws, and reeulations, indudillll thClSl!! 
relatlnfl to use of perSQruj inf'llmIation, (iii) llIny ~ of tm: term~ 01 
this Agreement by any Usee'; and (lV! all canmurlkatiOm by USefS oS1n\1 
thf> SeMce. Customer sha" irnmlldiatel" notify NlXle if it bec:omes 
iWlre of any User '.ttfoo or ombslon that would constitute a tlAach or 
'Ilolatkm of any tImI'I of this ~t. 

1.1 CUSTOMER DATA. All ~on!e data CIlst_ prOllldes to 
Nixie in connection with the \M of the Sefvfce (-OnUlmer Clat.", 
\hall be trw. accuratt>. currmt ami complete, and shall be In II form 
a"d formAt $pettned by mete. C\lIStOIn.et wI! have sote rtsj'loosibility 
far the aecuracy, quality, itltegrn:y, IE1IaUty. reliabilIty. and 
approprlatel'eu of lilt Customer !)ata. By purchama t.he Service, 
Customer authorizes HIlde to colLl!ct. !tore and ptOces CustCmef Data 
s\lbject to !he terms of thii Agreement. Customer stliltl maintain II 
copy of all Customer Data !t pnw!.des to Nilde. If Customer Qr <In'lUwr 
j)f'OI'ides MY Customer DauI that Is untrue. illilCtLfite. outdated or 
incomplete. Customer aeknowtedaesand ilsrtllft mat any 
camrnunic:atiOns $eI"It utllizlnt the Service may not re6dt the tnterrded 
contact. Customer Shalt prevent ooaumorlzed access to, or USl' 01, tN 
ServIce, and shalt notify tillite promptly o( My sudlunautilClrired 1M. 
Nix1t thall ~ 1\0 liabUlty for My I.o5.SI!!. damllgs. dalms, 1;1.jit.s or 
other IIttlom IIIrb',. out of or in cafl(leCtlon with the ooauthol:ized or 
Improper lise of Hle Service on f..ustomfr', hardware or networkl. 
Cu:ltcmer acknowtedges thIIt Hilde is not re5(lOOlible for morlltollflg 
Custmler or Users' use of the SeNn. to examint tile content pamog, 
thr0ush it, II1d Nbel. shall have no liability far \!UCh CCJntellt. 

4. T£ItM. Thil A\lreement wll\ commence 01'1 the effEctive Da~ and 

wiU contiooe In force until (The ~Term· of this 
agreEment itldudes the In1llal Term and any pre·paid Il!N!'NM period. 
f\lrlhef.. HIxte will provide !he S)'item Initl~LI)I wiI:h 110 J)4)'1T1ent 
neflded, out w11l requll'1! a tetter of intll!nt and purc"~se Older to allow 
the customer to utllte- the fulHeI1tured product. 

I. TE1WIMATlON·S,U5P£MSJON. eltiler Party may terminate tnl, 
Agreemeflt IlIJQD the otl1er I'arty'$ matlllial breach of thll Allreetne!lt. 
provided that (I) the nM-btead1iOlJ Party $tfTds written notice to the 
bre4Ctlfrlv Party describing me breacl'l In reasonable <leta.; lilt the 
bread1!1'lg Party does not cure the brudl wltllin thirty (30) da\II 
tollowin& its receipt of such notke (the "NotIce 1'«100'.1; and (!til 
fOilowlnl the expirat.iOfl of the Notice PerIod, tlte norHlreachins party 
sends a setOfld written not!c;e to the breaclJlIIlI Pany nifOltint its 
elettion to terminate this AlJreement. 

6. PROPRlETARY RIGHTs.. 

6.1 GRANT OF UC£tGE. Hilde hereby wants to Customer. donna the 
tflmI of thh Agreement, a nO!'l'e:u\us!VI1, noo·tramCerable, IICO"Sub
licensabLe right to U~ the 5ertlCe SUbject to the terms anll cCIlditlOll$ 
of thls AgreenlMt. Upon susptnslon of the ~Nk;e or terminatiGl of 
ttlrs Aar~ent for any reason, thft foregoing lk:ense SllalL terminate 
automltlcally and CUlitomef mlill promptly discontinue all further u:lC 
of the Sel"'llice. 

6.% RESTRICTIONS. Customer shall use the Serv1c.1!' $OIe\y for jb 
internal bLtSiniI!ss purposes and shall not make the SeIv1ce available to, 
ar use ~e ServIa/or !:he benefit of, airy tIIlrd party e~ept iI$ 

e)q)ntlsly rontsnplatM by this AarMment. (U$~ shall not: (il 
copy, modify, reverJe ens1Aeel'. dIr·compilft, dj~_mble or othelWlse 
attempt to diKnw!r ar repUcah'! till!' computer scurce code and object. 
code provided or used by Ni:>d.~ in connertlon with del~ of the 
ServIce (thl!! "5oftw4llt.") or create derlItative WOI1cs based 01'1 the 
Sdtw..-e, the Service or any portion tllIWt!otj (II) merit any 0( the 
faregoing with any third party wftw.!!rl' or 5Il!fvk.es; (III) U5Il! any Nixla 
CClnfidentiill Information to create /I ptowct that COT!1Petes w1t1l the 
Software; 1M remO\llt. obscur@ ar all:« any J)rOf)riittllry ",:Kites or 
Iab,is on ttle SottWlll"ll 01 any portion of the Service; (v) Cf'ttlte 
intemet "links" to Qf from the Service, or "frame" or "mlrrar" ~ 
content formlnJ part of the Service, other thIII on Cusl_'s own 
intranets for Its own lotemat business IlUrpos:es; (viI 1J5Il!. post, 
tf3fl5lfllt or Introlb:e any device, ~o1twlilre or routine ....hlch interferes 
ar attempts to Interfere wlth the oper:aticn of t.he Service, or {vi)1l$& 
the SeNice In violation of l1l'i'1 applicable IlIw or regutatlOl'l. 

6.3 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS Ot.her than as exptm'lly set iOith In this 
Aifeement. Nbde grants tQ Cunomer no lkense or other lights In or to 
the Sli'fYice, the Softwar& or any other prq)r1etary tecMo\oJ)'. 
material Of rntormatlon made available to CUSlcrner tIlrouf\ the 
Sel"'lll~ or otherwise in (:onnectiOn with this Av~mef1t (collectively, 
the MNbtle Techr\o."), and au sud1 ri!lhts are hereby apreSSl.y 
reserved. NMe (or its lIcef1lOl'1 wtIere 3ppUcabtef owns all riJhts, title 
and Interest In and to the Serv!Ce. the SOftware and any Nixie 
Technaloay, and all patl!ttt, copyrignt, tracht W!:IlI:t and ather 
lntelllKtual property rlsnts C"It> MlahtJ'" therein. 

6." CUSTOMER I>ATA. As 1>«_ tne ' ..ties, Customer .etalM salll 
nll'lt. Ittle and Interest in the Customer Data. Without limltinll IhlP 
forqoinl. HIlde mall be permitted to dIr·idenUly Customer Dlla and 
a8llrevate it. including with other CiJstornen;' d~ta ~the "De·ld8!otrffoed 
Data-I. lor use 11'1 Its lellitimatt> bus.ine-ss actMtle5. 

7. C~F1D£HTlAL INFORMATlOM. 

1.1 OEFlNmON ProtKt\on. As used herm, ~<;Qltfld4mtl.t 
Information" meam aU Information or a Party ("DI$C\Oiinl 'arty'" 

No Standard Terms of SIINic& 01.1IU3 1 

http:5Il!fvk.es
http:C\lIStOIn.et


dt1C\osed to the other Party I"Reativinl P¥ty-), whetMr orally or In 
writinv, that is d@sigrl&ted .1, confldt!nlJai or that r-euonablv Inould be 
Ul'\defstood to be alfIf!dentlal given tM !lawre of the fnformatkJri ana 
the elronmtances of disclosure. Confidential Informatloo indtJdes 
without llmttatlon, any petsonally identifiable Custom« Data, all Hilde 
Tecnl'lOlo8Y, atu1 either Party', tlUsiness and marketing plllns, 
tedlr'lOlolY and ted!nltat information, product <1esiBn., reports and 
buslnm pr~. eonlldenti.lll lnformatioo (except: for CLKtomer 
Data) .\hall not Inchide 1IJtj information that: (I, 1s or becomf/$ 
aeneraUy known to !he publiC without brt'1IiCh of arff obUlJIltfon owed 
to the DisdoJing Party; (Ii) was lcnown to the fleceMnt Party priM to 
ItS diSClosure by the DiscLcmnI Party wjthout breach 01 any oMlgatkln 
owed to the Dfsclosl", Party; (III) was independently devetoped by the 
Receivina Party without breach of M'1 obligation owed to tt'oe 
Dbctasinl Party. The ~ivinl Party ,hall not dbclose or we an)l 
Coofideritllll Information 01 the DiKtOcsinii Party for any pu~ other 
tMn ~rfom'llln«' or enforcement of thh Agreement without the 
Disclosini Party's prtIr written cons!!I1t, unl@$ lbut only to the ~tent) 
atnll'l'WiH required by II jOVemmental authoc1ty. Each Party i\iJeeS to 
protect the Conrlt1ential Infonnatioo of tile otl'ler Party with the ~I'I'I& 
~I of (are that It uses to problr::t It$ own (QIlfldliilltial information, 
btlt In no event tess Ihan Ii reasonable l~ ot eatt'. 

I, WAWtmD; DlSCIAMR. 

'.1 HV(LE WARRAKlY. ~lxle $hall U$e eommcrdelly f\\'lUalIbLe lM'forts 
to provide tile Servkes herein contemPlated. To the @Xtent the Quote 
proylde:! 'or any prot'es$iorlal se",lces, Nixle shall perform them 1n a 
profasional manner consktent with Industry standards 

'.1 DISCUJM!R. NIXU: IS A MASS NOTlfIO.TlON fACIUTATOR. IN NO 
EVENT SHALL t41XI.E HAVE ANY LIABilITY TO CUSTOMER, USERS, 
CONTACTS OR ANY THIRO PARTY FOR PUSONAL IItIURY (INC:WD/NG 
DEATH) OR PROPERTY DAMAGE ARISING FROM FAILURE OFTHE SERVICE 
TO DELIVER Al'I ElECTRONIC COMMUNICATION, HOWEVER CAUSED RlO 
UNDEIUNY THEORY OF UABIUTY. 

IU CUSTOMER REPS AND WARRAtrrIES. Customer represents and 
warrants mat dun,.. use of the Service, Cuitomer shall have prfmiry 
$l!fety and e~y 1'lI!SP(lit1'l4l' procedures includlna. wfthout 
Ilmltlltlol'l, I1Q(lfyinl 911 or equivalent fire, police, ~medleal 
and public Nalth officials «(QUeeH/ely, "First AespoMers",. 
Customer fepr'eSenU Ind werrants that all colMlunlcations ullliU\t 
tho! Service shall be sent Dy lII.Ithorlzed Ut.en, and dlat tile coUectloo, 
stDnIlll! and PrtlCeSltll of CustotMl' DIU, and the use of \t1e Service, 
itS pmvided in thi!l Agrl!ement, wm lilt III times comply with {xl 
Customer'! own poUc;1e$ ,~dil1l privacy ..nd protection of pefSQl1ll 
informatiofl: and (y) all applicable taws and regulations., fncludlnt 
those related to proCe5$ins. Jt«aSe", use, dlscloue. l!etUfity. 
protectlm and handUng of Customer Data. 

9. INDtMtIIFICATION. NiKle shall defend, IndemnIfy and hold 
ClI$tomer hatml8ls fnlm and apinst any Claim aaainst Cinmmer, 
btlt only to the ~l It Is based m a: Claim that tile Service 
directly VlfrlnlltlS an !ssued patent or other IP Rlaht In a c04Jntly In 
wIlfeh tt'Ie Strvlce Is actually 1lfI)'Yid!'<i to Customer. If the SeJvfce 15 
Mid to Infringe and the use enjoined, NixIe shall have Ihe option, 
at Its own expense, to: (I, to ptoc.ure fOr Customer the rtQht to 
continue using the Service; (ii) replace same with 11 non·lnflinlVlI 
servlte; 1111, mOdffy luch SeMee so that It becoII'Ie$ rlofHnt'~i1n8: 
or (Iv) refund any fees plid to Hilde and terminate thh Agreement 
without further liability. Mme shall !law no liability for any Clarn 
arisin" cut of Iw) Customer Dllta or other Customer supplied 
COIlUlrlt, (Ill use 01 th& S«!fylce or Software In eanblnation w!tl1 
other prod.!cts, equipment, UJitware or data not supplied by t-Ibde, 
M iIIlY lise, reprO<tlttlm. Of distribution of MfI release 01 tile 
~ or Softwal1t I:)Itiet than the most current rwlease made 
ava!lab(e to Cu5to'lIe", or fl.) lin; mooificat1on of 1M ServICe or 
Wtwal1t b!lllIny perSQl'l «her than HIlde. 

to. LlMfTATlctI OF LlABILITY. In no event snail either Pllrty have 

ally liability to the other Party for any tQ$$ of 1JS1t. interruptloll of 

bumess, lost IlroftU. costs llf substitute ~MCes.. or for any cxhl!r 

In<1frect. 5Peclal, Int!dlll'lttt, punitive, or conseq.ll!fltial ditrnages. 

hcwe'Ier caused, under any tlleory of Uability, and whether or not 

the PIId'f:)' ha, been adviSt'd of the ponl'llUt:y of sudl dllmClfie. 


2 

Notwithstandlns anything In Itlls A&reement 10 ~ c:ootrary. In no 
.vent shalt Nlxle's aggregate! liability, regardless of tneof)' of 
liability, excevd amounts actually paid by Custorller to NIxIe 
hereul'ldl!t durfng tile 12·month period prior to the ;went tMnI rise 
to ,,",eh lI/1bility. 

11. PRICING. A5 coo$fderatlon for the Setvke and subject to tile 
other tenns of this Ajreement, Customer shellplIY Ule fees Sl!t forth 
in the Quote ("Pricing") Inc.tLKled as Exhibit B. 

12. PROf'ESSIOtlAL SEJMCES. I'fuI:Ie may provide 
Ilrot'Em1Onat sentlces to Cus.torIIer fram time to time. Such 
profeslonal $t4Nice shall, u~, otherwise eJ(pressly therein 
set fortl\. be prOVided in acrordance with. and subject fO, the 
pl'OYisi0f\5 hereof lind any addltlonal tellTl$ related thereto wf11Ch 
are let forth in a SOW 

13. PAYMENT T!lWS~ TAXES. 

13.1 PAYMENT. Nilde shall Involcl/ Customer in adv~trllCe for the 
[nitiat Term 1rld lil1l'1uaUy In adVance for any Renewal Term. AU 
paymetlti, Intludlnt, w1thout limitation, fees for profestonat 
servk:es. shalt b« made within thirty )0 days from the date of a 
proper inVOice. 

13.2 TAXES. PrIcing and fl!!i!'& fOf professIonal services do not 
Intlude any local state feoeral or foreign taxes, leVies, or duties of 
any nawl'ft (,Tall."). Nlxte res«ves the rlsht to request ffOOl 
Customer a valid ti1.X exemptlon certifICate autl1or1md ny the 
apprOj)fiate tuna authority. 

,... MISCELLANEOUS. 

14.t FORCE MAJEUAE; UMITATlOHS.. Nixie shall not be mj)OIUille 
for perfoonanoo under tht5 Aareement to the extent precluded by 
drcurmtanc:es beyond NI:de'lI reu0l121b~ ((1n(n'lI, Includil'll without 
lirnltatlon: acts Of GOd: acts of iICIVI!fIlment; acts. 01 terl1)l'~ user errar. 
or f'Ietl,yQrlot componerIt failure. filial deilvery of infonnatioo to 
reclp1ents is deJ)EndeI1t on and Is the tespOMlbtllty of the desianated 
pub!fc and pfflU lIetworb. 

14.1 WAIVER The failure of elttler Party hel'ftto to ertfOrte at My time 
iIrfi of the provlswn. {.Ir terms of this Airt:ement snail In no way be 
carmdeoJd to be a waIver of wch Pl'Qltl$ions. If any pt'O¥Ision of thl& 
Agreemenl 1$ foood by fIlY court or other allthorftv of campetent
jurisdiction to be invalid, illepl or unenforceable, tMt pmviilon tn.U, 
tI) the eltWll I'4I!QUinId. be deemed deleted and tile remafr1ina 
prt'JllisiMS $halt tontil'lue " (ull forc4t and eff«t. 

14.1 ASSIGHM!HT. Neither tllis AgreelJ\lllflt nor any rights !lralll.ed 
hel'ltlnder ma" be $dd,lellsed. IWi1iniid {including an assigrlMeflt b;t 
operlllloo of lawh or otherwise transferred, 1n 'NhoIe or In part,. bV 
Customer, and any 'SUCh attempted a~nment "hall be yoitt ,lnd 01 no 
err ect without the advance written c.cnsent of Hilde. 

1".6 GOVERNING LAW This A!lrftmel'lt shall be soverned III'Id 
construed In accordance with th& lam of tile State of___• 

14.7 MAAKfT1NG. Customer consents to Nlxle referl!l"lCil'lQ CUstomer's 
name It a Nixie (ultomer In NW. IWbt\catiorl~. il.$ website and in 
other mar1letl"a materlats. 

1.... 8 SurvlY.l Se<:tloot 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, S, 9, to, tt, 11. 13, , .. ahd 
alllilcable pl'OIIislons of ~ 'Shall SUNMi the eo!lIlratlon or 
&.rl1« termination of thi$ Agreement, 

14.9 COUNTERPARTS, Thli Ai~ent may be C?:eCuted In one or 

more counterparts, aU of v.tIldI toQether shaH constitute one 

original document. A. fa~lmil~ ttllllsrniw.lfon or copy or the origin&t 

shall be as effeetl'le and enkiro?allte as tile original. 


t 4.10 ElCPOIn' COMPllA-"T. "either Part,! sbaU export, dlrectlv Of 
indirectly, allY' tEchnical. data acquired from the other pursuant to 

http:lralll.ed


ttl 1$ Atteement or any product utll1z,ina IIIlV HKh data ttl any COURtlY 
fClr whiCh the U.S. Government ot any "SeI"I(y thereof at the time of 
eJq)Ort I'll.!qull'ft IAn ~t lk;eme or I)thef pemmentat approval 
wit!'Kltit fir5t obtalnln; such license or approval. 

.".12. EIII1R[ AGitEfMtNT: Thl~ A!lr~nt c:onstltlJtes the entire 
IIgreemel"lt bet\<oe$\ the parties !Xl the subject matter of thh 

Alreemenl. This Agreetniffit $I.lI)efSedes aU prlor agreements. 
\in~i'S, or repnutntatlons, whether oral or wrltten. 
concernf!l!l the subject matter of this AIlf~t. Any d1Il11Qe$ or 
modificatlMl of thIs Agreement s~U I:Mt made and ag}'ee4 to in 
writlrlg. 

1M Wfl'HESS WHEM:O,. the Parties have C!\IS(!d this i\Qreement to be dulYelIeaJted as of the date set forth below. 

tlXLE, LLC 

8y:---------
Print Name: ____~_______ 

nue: ________________________ __ 

Da~: __________________________ 

HlXL£ LLC 

5,.. Howard St, Suit. 200 

San F'ranciuo, CA 94tOS 

877-649·5162 

[CUSTOMER]: ___~__________ 

Signature: ______ 


Pr~t~: ________________~____ 


flUe: • ___~____~__ 
DII~; __________________________ 

[CU5TOM£R]'s adrkeu for allllni a Lap' Not1C1!PJ! 

Attn:__________________________ 

Te4.ephone oomber: ________ 

3 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 8 

STAFF SOURCE: 	 Alex Gonzalez, Interim Director of Public Works & 
Doc Tisuthiwongse, 1.T. Services Manager 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Approve Participant Agreement between Los Angeles County and the City of 
Covina for Countywide Address Management System 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Participant Agreement between Los Angeles County and the City of Covina for Countywide 
Address Management System and authorize the Acting City Manager or his designee to execute all 
related documents on the City's behalf. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to this item. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Countywide Address Management System (CAMS) is a regional program to provide accurate 
address information to all participating system users in a web-based Geographic Information System. 
By participating in this system, the City will provide up to date address information that will be 
useable in real time by numerous system users, which include emergency service providers. The City 
will designate existing employees to maintain the City's address database and submit the information 
to the County. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
This item is directly relevant to the City's Strategic Plan's Goal of providing efficient, visible and 
responsive public safety. 

EXHIBITS 
A. Participant Agreement 

City Manager: _~~:--______Other: ________-"-_____ 



EXHIBIT A: 

PARnCIPANT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES AND pARnCIPAHTS 
FOR 

COUNTYWIDE ADDRESS MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS ("CAMS") 

This Participant Agreement (Agreement) is made and entered into by and 
between the County of los Angeles, a political subdivision of the State of California 
(County), and , a California city, special district, or agency. Each individual 
city, district, or agency is referred to herein individually as a ~Participanf' and collectively as 
the "'Participants". The County and the Participants are hereinafter referred to collectively 
as the "Parties" and each individually as a "Party." 

A. WHEREAS, County would like to maintain an authoritative, current, accurate, and 
complete address and street center1ine database for use in address validation, address 
lookup, and other address related functions; 

B. WHEREAS, County has developed a management system for addresses known 
as the "Countywide Address Management System" (CAMS); 

C. WHEREAS, Participants issue and create addresses, and have interest in 
addresses both within their jurisdiction and in neighboring areas; 

D. WHEREAS, in order to avoid the duplication of efforts and costs by the Parties, 
the Parties desire to pool their resources to collectively undertake CAMS; and 

E. WHEREAS, the Parties intend to partiCipate in CAMS upon the terms and 
conditions set forth herein below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth 
and the mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Purpoae 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a vehicle for the collective 
participation in CAMS by the Parties. CAMS shall focus on the maintenance of addresses 
which may include, but are not limited to, products listed in Attachment A ("CAMS Data"). 
It is the intent of the Parties that CAMS Data shall be maintained under this Agreement for 
areas within the County of los Angeles covered by the jurisdictions of the Parties. 



2. 	 RaRon.jbititie. of the County 

A. 	 Provide coordination of address error collection and the CAMS system. 

B. 	 Maintain a CAMS database to be used for storing and managing 

addresses; 

C. 	 Maintain an application that will be used to update addresses in the CAMS 

database; 

D. 	 Provide Participant access to CAMS Data via direct database access, 

extract download, or other mutually agreed upon methods. 

E. 	 Provide regular reports to the Participants on the status of CAMS. 

3. 	 Raponslbll!tlea of the PartiCipant 

A. 	 Provide an address steward who will be responsible for ensuring 

addresses are updated within the jurisdiction of the Participant. 

B. 	 Update addresses within CAMS or provide updated addresses from the 

PartiCipant's address maintenance systems in a mutually agreed upon 

format; 

3. 	 The Participant has the right to: 

A. 	 Participate in identifying and providing technical specifications for the CAMS 
Data (or their derivatives). 

B. 	 Use CAMS address data to support the operations of the Participant 

8. 	 General Tenns and Conditions 

A. This Agreement shall take effect upon execution and shall remain in effect 
until terminated by either Party. 

F. This Agreement may be amended or modified by County only after 
collaboration and consultation with the Participants. 

G. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any person or entity, 
other than the Parties hereto, any legal or equitable right, remedy. or claim under 
or in respect to this Agreement or any provision herein contained. This 



Agreement and the provisions hereof are intended to be and are for the sale and 
exdusive benefit of the Parties. 

t Any other California city, special district, or agency may become a 
Participant under this Agreement if such entity executes this Agreement, and 

J. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and the signed 
counterparts shall constitute a single instrument The signatories to this 
Agreement represent that they have the authority to bind their respective party to 
this Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have exea.ded 1his Partidpant Agreement for the 
COUntywide Address Management System Program on the dale indicated below. 

PARTICIPANT ENTITY 

Br. ______________________ 

DR: ______________________ 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
CHIEF INFORMATION OFACE 

By. ~~~~------------
Richard sanCheZ 
Chief Informa1ion Officer 

ome: ____________________ _ 



CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

CC9
MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: 

STAFF SOURCE: Nancy Fong, AICP, 

Interim Director of Community Development 


ITEM TITLE: City Council to approve the pre-qualified consultant lists for providing on
call as needed Planning services and Environmental services to the City 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the attached lists of firms for providing on-call as needed Planning services and 
Environmental services for 4 years and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
agreements not to exceed $25,000 for on-call as needed Planning and Environmental services on 
behalf of the City 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The budget for FY 14/15 included $35,000 for professional services (Account No. 1010-4010
51005). Of the total amount, approximately $10,000 has been expended on project management 
and environmental review for small projects, leaving $25,000 available for on-call as needed 
services to continue to process smaller projects such as 4 or less new residential units, 
conditional use permits or City initiated applications such as Zoning Code Amendments. The 
cost of the on-call as needed Planning and/or Environmental services for larger and more 
complex development projects will be paid for by the Applicant/Developer. 

BACKGROUND 
This request was initially scheduled for the February 3, 2015 City Council meeting. Because of 
the cancellation of the meeting, the request was re-scheduled for this regular meeting. 

The Planning staff has used consultants to provide on-call as needed services for project 
management of planning applications and for the preparation of environmental documents such 
as Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration. However, the consultant service was not 
used consistently by staff and therefore, did not alleviate the backlog of planning applications. 
As a result, there was a time delay in the development review process for many planning 
applications. The limited resources in the Planning Division and the continued increase in 
planning applications compounded this problem. 

Based on the recent Community Development Department/Planning Division organizational 
audit conducted by Kelly Associates Management Group (Kelly Report) in July 2014, a 
recommendation was to continue using contract staff/consultants to address the backlog of 
projects and the processing of complex or large projects. In November 2014, and in response to 
the recommendation of the organizational audit, former City Manager Parrish directed staff to 



prepare a Request for Proposal (RFP) to solicit Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) from firms 
that provide on-call as needed Planning services and Environmental services. 

ANALYSIS 

A 	 Request for Proposal (RFP) and Statement of Qualification (SOQ) Selection Process. 
On November 20, 2014, staff sent a RFP to 12 consulting firms via electronic mail as well 
as posted the RFP on City's Website. The deadline to submit the RFP was December 11, 
2014. The City received timely responses from 8 firms, and four consulting firms did not 
respond. Of the 8 firms, 4 requested to be on both the Planning and Environmental 
services. A City Staff Review Team consisting of the Community Development Director, 
Public Works Director, Contract City Engineer and Assistant to the City Manager reviewed 
the SOQ for completeness and content, and evaluated them on the following factors: 

1. 	 The firm's proposal and its completeness (20 points) 
2. 	 The firm's relevant experience and qualifications (25 points) 
3. 	 The firm's offer the depth and qualify of services (10 points) - Planning 


The firm's technical knowledge of CEQA (10 points) - Environmental 

4. 	 The firm's familiarity with locality. (10 points)-Planning 


The firm's experiences in CEQA challenge. (10 points) - Environmental 

5. 	 The firm's credentials of staff assigned. (25 points) - Planning 

The firm's credentials of staff assigned to prepare Initial Study, Mitigated Negative 
Declaration or Environmental Impact report. (25 points) - Environmental 

6. 	 The firm's professional standing and references from past clients (10 points) 

The City Staff Review Team rated the proposals and the personnel based on the above 
criteria. The following Tables provides a summary matrix of the rankings for Planning and 
Environmental services. 

TABLE 1 - SUMMARY PLANNING SERVICE CANDIDATES' RANKING 

Candidate firms' names 
(in Alphabetically order) 

Average Score Rank 

Civic Solutions 90 2 
Dudek 85 4 
LDM-MDG 72 5 
Lilley Planning Group 85 4 
MIG/Hogle-Ireland 91 1 
PMC 87 3 
Yapremian Associates 68 6 

The City Staff Review Team recommended the following consultant firms to be placed on 
the list of approved and pre-qualified consultants for Planning services: MIG/Hogle
Ireland, Civic Solutions, PMC and Lilley Planning Group. Although Dudek has the same 
ranking as Lilley Planning Group, Dudek is well known for its work in CEQA and staff 
decided to place Dudek under the pre-qualified list ofenvironmental services. 



TABLE 2
SUMMARY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE CANDIDATES' RANKING 


Candidate finns' names 
(in Alphabetically order) 

Average Score Rank 

Bon Terra-Psomas 89 3 
I Civic Solutions 78 6 

Dudek 91 2 
MIGlHogle-Ireland 82 5 
PMC 85 4 
Ultra Systems 92 1 

The City Staff Review Team recommended the following consultant finns to be placed on 
the list of approved and pre-qualified consultants for Environmental services: Ultra 
Systems, Dudek, Bon Terra-Psomas and PMC. 

B. 	 How does on-call as needed Planning or Environmental Services Work? 
The pre-qualifying of the consultant finns for providing on-call as needed Planning 
services and Environmental services will streamline the time for the development review 
process as development projects are submitted to the City. Instead of seeking project
specific Requests for Proposal, the pre-qualified consultants will only need to address and 
respond to the scope of work unique to the project in question and not have to demonstrate 
the qualifications, since their qualifications have been established. Their response to the 
scope of work will have a shorter period of time. In doing so, this process reduces staff 
time necessary for preparation, solicitation and review of consultants' proposals, which 
could have easily added 6 to 8 weeks to the process before selection of the consultant. 

The Community Development Director will make the decision to use consultants to process 
planning applications, to conduct peer review of environmental documents and technical 
studies submitted by the applicant, or to prepare the required environmental documents. 
Once a development project is received or the City initiates a planning application, the 
Director will issue a Task Order to the pre-qualified consultants' lists and request a bid 
proposal with detailed scope of work and the total cost within a two-week period. The 
Director will review the proposal submitted by the consultants and compare their scope of 
work and the cost. The selection of the consultant to work on the projects or planning 
applications is based on the proposal that best meets the scope of work and the lowest cost. 
For larger and complex development projects, the Director will inform the applicants of the 
selected consultant to perform the scope of work and the total cost. Upon payment of the 
total cost, the Director will issue a notice to the selected consultant to proceed with the 
work. 

C. 	 Examples of Potential Future Private Development Projects and City Projects. 



1. 	 8.57 acres Elementary School site. The site was surplus and sold by the Charter Oak 
School District to a development company with a potential residential development for 
over 100 units that involve land use change, zone change, establishment of a Planned 
Community Development Overlay District, Tentative Tract Map, Site Plan Review and 
compliance with CEQA, which may be an EIR or at a minimum MND. 

2. 	 The City has been awarded a $342,000 grant from a MTA's Transit Oriented 
Development Planning Grant Program. This grant will allow the City to amend the 
General Plan, the Zoning Ordinance and the Town Center Specific Plan and adopt land 
use regulations that are supportive of transit oriented development (TOD' s) around the 
Covina Metrolink station areas and adjacent transit corridors. Part of the grant money 
will be used for compliance with the CEQA process. 

3. 	 A tremendous increase in development activities for single family and multi-family 
developments that are less than 12 units. 

4. 	 City Council is examining the appropriate land use for a few industrially zoned areas 
that might be subjected to future development. 

5. 	 The vacant Clippinger auto dealership site at Citrus and San Bernardino Road. 

D. 	 Professional Services Agreement. 
Each of the consultants on the approved pre-qualified list will have to sign the City'S 
Professional Services Agreement. Instead of including all 8 draft Professional Services 
Agreements to the report, staff has attached a sample one. The amount for each 
Professional Services Agreement is stated not to exceed $25,000. The City Manager is 
authorized to negotiate and execute an agreement not to exceed $25,000. Again, the 
amount is an estimate at this time. When the contract services from a consultant has 
reached to $20,000, staff will forward a request to amend the agreement for the City 
Council review and approval before assigning more contract work for the consultant. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
The use of on-call as needed consultants for Planning and Environmental services is an action 
program that implements the recommendations of the Kelly Report. Improving the development 
review process and the reduced time to process projects and applications will meet the goal of 
enhancing customer service. 

EXHIBITS 
A. 	 Request for Proposal issued November 20, 2014 
B. 	 List of consultants responded and their Statements of Qualifications (On file in the office of 

the City Clerk) 
C. 	 Sample of professional Services Agreement with the approved & pre-qualified consultants 

REVIEWTE 

City Attonaey:~~ii~~g;~~~~!!i;;;:= Finance Director: ~ ~tJW.) 


City Manager: ----.:=l~~:......-_________ Other: ___________ 



CITY OF COVINA 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) TO ESTABLISH ON-CALL LISTS FOR PLANNING SERVICES AND 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW SERVICES 


I. 	 Introduction 
The Community Development Department is responsible for the administration of the City's 
planning, economic development, building and code enforcement activities and services. The 
Division of Planning SelVices provides advanced and current planning functions, Advanced 
planning includes the preparation and administration of the Genera' Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
Housing Element, Specific Plans, and governmental referral special projects. Current planning 
consists of the review and processing of development and land use applications including 
conditional use permits, site plan review, variances and Planned Community Development, 
Application processing includes the preparation of any required environmental review documents 
in accordance to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA) if applicable. 

From time to time the Planning Division requires additional professional planning services, 
environmental review services, and technical expertise either acting as an extenSion of the city 
staff for project management or as independent technical consultant. The City is issuing this 
Request for Qualification (RFo.) to identify the consultant who has extensive experiences working 
with the public entities to provide planning selVices and environmental review services and to 
streamline the Consultant selection process for the provision of these services. 

A. 	 Creation of a Planning Services On-Call Consultant List and an Environmental Review Services 
On-Call Consultant list: 

Statements of Qualifications (Sao.) are to be submitted bV consultants in response to the RFQ. 
Onlv firms which respond to this RFQ will be considered for placement on the Planning 
Services On-Call ust or Environmental Review Services On-Call List or both. The City will use 
the On-[all Consultant Usts to select qualified planning andlor environmental services 
consultants on an as needed basiS. Once approved bV the City Council, the On-Ca/l Lists (List) 
will be valid for a three (3) year period. 

B. 	 Selection of Firm to Provide Planning Services andlor Environmental Review Services: 

As projects are received that required additional professional planning andlor environmental 
review services and technical expertise, the City staff will provide a description of the project 
and the requested services to two firms on the list with demonstrated expertise in the 
services requested. Each consultant will in turn provide a scope of work and not to exceed 
cost estimate based upon its fi)Ced fee schedule. Planning Services will review the materials 
received from each consultant to identify the consultant with the best work plan and budget 
(selection may not be based on the lowest budget), and will then negotiate with that 
consultant to develop a mutuallv acceptable professional services agreement. If the City and 
selected consultant are not able to reach an agreement, the City will consider the second 
highest ranked proposal. 



II. Scope of Work 
A. 	 Planning Services. Selected consultants for Planning Services shall have demonstrated 

expertise in processing applications for various types of projects that include. but not limited 
to, residential. commercial, industrial, mixed use and transit oriented development. Some 
application may require a General Plan Amendment, Zone Change, establishment of a Planned 
Community Development Overlay, etc. Typical and examples of Planning Services tasks are: 

• 	 Initial Site Assessment 
• 	 Review project for completeness and compliance with the General Plan, Zoning 

Ordinances, Town Center Specific Plan (if applicable), Design Guidelines. and all applicable 
codes and ordinances 

• 	 Prepare letters for Director's review 
• 	 Attend Development Review Committee meeting(s) for the project 
• 	 Coordinate comments from members of the Development Review Committee 
• 	 Meet with Applicant 
• 	 Coordinate the Project Review with CEOA Review 
• 	 Prepare public hearing notices, staff reports, resolutions and conditions of approval 
• 	 Attend Planning Commission and/or City Council meetings 
• 	 File management for the projects 
• 	 Plan Check review of projects including, but not limited to, construction plans, grading 

plan, landscape and irrigation plans, lighting plans, etc., for compliance with conditions of 
approval 

8. 	 Environmental Review Services. Selected consultants for Environmental Review Services shall 
have demonstrated expertise in preparing environmental review documents as required by 
CEQA that include, but not limited to, one or more of the following environmental review 
tasks: 

• 	 Initial Site Assessment 
• 	 CEQA Initial Study to determine whether project requires EIR. MND, NO or CE 
• 	 Cultural and Historical Evaluations 

• 	 Noise Studies 

• 	 Air Quality 
• 	 Transportation Studies 
• 	 Water Quality/Storm and Wastewater Control Management 
• 	 Greenhouse Gas Emission Studies 
• 	 Environmental Mitigation Studies/Reports 
• 	 Coordinate and distribute environmental documents and notices 

• 	 Mitigation Monitoring 
• 	 Presentations at public meetings 
• 	 Coordinate the CEQA Review with Project Review 

In addition to the above environmental review tasks, the consultant may be assigned to 
conduct a peer review of EI R, MND, or NO submitted by the project applicant for a review of 
completenl!ss, adequacy and compliance with CEQA. 



III. 	 SOQ Format 
The SOQ must include, at a minimum, the following information: 

A. 	 A Brief description of the consultant's firm, including the year the firm was established, the 
type of organization (partnership, corporation, etc.), and a statement of the firm's 
qualifications for performing the subject consultant services. 

8. 	 A summary of the qualifications and e)(perience of each member proposed to provide 
planning services and/or environmental review services. 

C. 	 A project summary list with descriptions of the proposed team's experience relative to the 
provision of planning services and/or environmental review services. Emphasis should be 
given to work done for public entitles. 

D. 	 A list of sub-consultants to be used, if any, and their relevant expertise. 
E. 	 A list of references of relevant clients, including a contact person with their current telephone 

number and email address. 
F. 	 A fi)(ed fee schedule that includes the hourly rate and classification of all employees who 

would be assigned to the anticipated projects. The fee schedule must be submitted in a 
separate sealed envelope and will not be ysed as part ofthe evaluation criteria. 

G. 	 Other information that will assist the City in selecting the most qualified consultant(s). 

IV. 	 SOQ Submittal Requirements 
An original, two p~':...~op-ies aod one original copy of the fee schedule in a separate sealed 
envelope must be ~1Bk.EI by December 11, 2014. late submittals will not be accepted. 
Submittal requirements send via email will not be accepted. 

Submission are to be mailed or hand delivered to: 

Nancy Fong, AICP 

Interim Community Development Director 

City of Covina 

125 E. College Street 

Covina, CA 


V. 	 Evaluation Procedure 
City staff will review each SOQ for completeness and content. Each SOQ will be evaluated based 
upon the relevant qualifications and experience of the consultant. Staff may conduct interview if 
oecessary. License status and references will be also verified. The SOQ review will focus upon the 
following criteria: 

A. 	 Organization. Does the firm offer the breadth and quality of services required for the types of 
planning services and/or environmental review servi ces listed in the Scope of Work? Does the 
firm's organizational structure show sufficient depth, capacity for it present and additional 
workload? 

B. 	 Staff. 00 the qualifications of key personnel to be assigned to the anticipated projects 
coincide with the tasks listed in the Scope of Work? Do assigned personnel have requisite 
education, e)(perience and professional qualifications? 

C. 	 E)(perience. Has the firm demonstrated the ability to successfully provide services for projects 
of a similar complexity and nature s described herein? 



D. 	 Specific Management Approach. Has the firm described its ability to achieve budget and 
project delivery goals for projects of a similar complelCity and nature as described in the Scope 
ofWorlc? 

E. 	 Professional Standing. Are the firm's references from past clients and associates favorable? 
Are deliverabtes submitted on time and within the budget? 

F. 	 Familiarity with Locality. Is the firm familiar with the City and the San Gabriel Valley. 

City staff will identify those best qualify to meet the City'S needs and will submit one or more 
recommendations on the selection of the on-call consultant(s) to the City Council for approval. 

VI. 	 Selection Process 

Based on staff recommendation, the City Council will consider approval of the on-call list for the 
Planning and Environmental Services On-Call Lists for a three-year period. The City Council may 
select more than one consultant/firm or choose to determine that no SOQ proposal elChibits 
adeQuate qualifications. The number of consultant/firms selected wUl depend on the number of 
qualified seas received. 

Upon selection by the City Council, consultants/firms mayor mav not be called upon bV the City to 
provide planning and/or environmental services. During tile three-year period, the City will have 
the discretion to negotiate with a consultant on the total cost for the consultant services based 
upon its fixed hourly fee schedule and the scope of work of the project. 

VII. 	 Acteptance or Rejection of Proposal 
The City reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposals. The City also reserves the 
right to waive any informality or irregularity in any Qualifications. Additionally, the City may, for 
any reason decide not to award an agreement as a result of this RFQ or cancel the RFP process. 
The City shall not be obligated to respond to any proposed submitted, nor be legally bound in any 
manner by the submission of the proposal. The City reserves the right to negotiate project 
deliverables and associated costs. 

VIII. 	 Estimated Tlmellne 

• 	 Request for Qualifications Issued November 20, 2014 

• 	 Statement ofQualifications Due December 11, 2014 

• 	 Interview (if required) January 6, 2015 
(City office is closed between December 
19, 2014 and January 2, 2015) 

• 	 City Council Approval of On·Calilists January 20, 2015 

1)(. 	 Inquiries 
For Questions regarding this. RFo.. please contact Nancy Fong, Interim Community Development 
Director at (626) 384·5458 or via email at nfong@covinaca.gov 

mailto:nfong@covinaca.gov


Addendum to RFQ: 


A list of Pote ntial Projects 


• 	 8.57 acres Elementary School site. The site was surplus and sold by the Charter Oak School 
District to a development company with a potential residential development for over 100 units 
tnat involve land use change. zone change, establishment of a Planned Community 
Development Overlay District, Tentative Tract Map, Site Plan Review and compliance with CEQA, 
which may be an EIR or at a minimum MND. 

• 	 City has been awarded a $342,000 srant from a MTA's Transit Oriented Development Planning 
Grant Program. This grant will allow the City to amend the General Plan, the Zoning Ordinance 
and the Town Center Specific Plan and adopt land use regulations that are supportive of transit 
oriented development (TOO's) around Covina Metrolink station areas and adjacent transit 
corridors. Part oftne grant money will be used for compliance with the CEaA process. 

• 	 A tremendous increase in development activities for multi-family developments. that are less 
than 12 units 

• 	 AntiCipate 3 new developments for Starbucks cafe with drive-through facilities. 
• 	 City Council is examining the appropriate land us.e for a few industriallv zoned areas that might 

be subjected to future development. 



TO: INTERESTED VENDORS 
~,., 

FROM: NANCY FONG. AICP . ~.....:I.I.:....;F':..io""'" 

INTERIM COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR / ~>/ 

DATE: 	 NOVEMBER 20, 2014 

SUBJECT: 	 REQUEST FOR QUALlFICA TrONS (RFQ) TO ESTABLISH ON-CALL 
LISTS FOR PLANNING SERVICES AND ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
SERVICES IN THE CITY OF COVINA 

You are invited to submit your Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) and a sealed cost proposal to 
be considered for placement on the City of Covina's Planning Services and Environmental 
Review Services On-Call Lists. Submissions are due to 

Nancy Fong, AICP 
Interim Community Development Director 
City of Covina 
125 East College Street 
Covina, CA 91723-2199 

Postmarked or Hand Delivered by 5:00 p.m. on December 11, 2014 

For further infonnation, contact Nancy Fong at (626) 384-5458 or via email at 
nfong@covinacagov. The document may also be downloaded from the City or Covina website 
at: W"MV.covinaca.gov. 

Attachment: 

• Request for Qualifications 

EXHIBIT A (6 pages) 

http:W"MV.covinaca.gov


AGREEMENT FOR CONSULT ANT SERVICES 

BETWEEN 


MIGIHOGLE-IRELAND 

AND 


THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA 


This Agreement for Consultant Services ("Agreement") is entered into as of this 
__day of 2015, between MIG/Hogle-Ireland ("Consultant") and the City of 
Covina, a municipal corporation ("City"). City and Consultant are sometimes hereinafter 
individually referred to as "Party" and hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. City has sought, the performance of the serVIces defined and described 
particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant was selected by the City to perform those serVIces defined and 
described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

C. Pursuant to the City of Covina's Municipal Code, the City has authority to enter 
into this Consultant Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 

D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Consultant for performance of 
those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement and desire that 
the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and described herein. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the Parties and contained 
here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 

The term of this Agreement shall be the period commencing from the effective date of 
this Agreement, as first shown above and shall terminate on February 17,2019. 

EXHIBIT C (26 pages) 



SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit "A" "Scope of Services" 
and made a part of this Agreement. 

SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 

Consultant shall be compensated for any services rendered in connection with its 
performance of this Agreement, which are in addition to or outside of those set forth in this 
Agreement or listed in Exhibit "A" "Scope of Services," upon authorization in advance and in 
writing by the City Manager of City. Consultant shall be compensated for any such additional 
services in the amounts and in the manner agreed to by the City Manager. Any amount 
exceeding a total of $25,000 shall go to the City Council for approval, first. 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND :METHOD OF PAYMENT. 
Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Consultant the 

amounts specified in Exhibit "A" "Compensation" and made a part of this Agreement. The total 
compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, shall not exceed Twenty Five 
Thousand dollars ($ 25,000), unless additional compensation is approved in writing by the City 
Council. 

(a) Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and 
expenses incurred. The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: 1. Daily labor 
per hourly basis and, if applicable, 2. travel, materials, equipment, supplies, and sub-consultant 
contracts. Sub-consultant charges shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, 
materials, equipment and supplies. City shall independently review each invoice submitted by 
the Consultant to determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. In the event that no charges or expenses are 
disputed, the invoice shall be approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection 
(c). In the event any charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be 
returned by City to Consultant for correction and resubmission. 

(b) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Consultant 
which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Consultant to be paid within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of Consultant's invoice or be subject to a late charge of 3% of the 
amount owed. 

(c) Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not 
be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 

SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 

City may inspect and accept or reject any of Consultant's work under this Agreement, 
either during performance or when completed. City shall reject or finally accept Consultant's 
work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City. City shall reject work by a timely written 



explanation, otherwise Consultant's work shall be deemed to have been accepted. City's 
acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with respect to latent defects, fraud and 
such gross mistakes as amount to fraud. Acceptance of any of Consultant's work by City shall 
not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
sections 16 and 17, pertaining to indemnification and insurance, respectively. 

SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 

All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Consultant in the course of providing any services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the 
sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the 
permission of the Consultant. Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
Consultant shall turn over to City all such original maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 

If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement any 
maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer 
files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of 
providing any services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant's guarantees and warrants related 
to Standard of Performance and found in Section 9 of this Agreement shall not extend to such 
use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, 
computer files, files or other documents. 

SECTION 7. CONSULTANT'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 

(a) Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or 
relating to Consultant's performance of services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall 
maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other 
documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and disbursements 
charged to City pursuant to this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records shall be 
maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently 
complete and detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by 
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records shall be 
maintained for three years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent 
required by laws relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 

(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular 
business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative. Copies of such documents 
or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and copying when it is 
practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such documents and 
records shall be made available at Consultant's address indicated for receipt of notices in this 
Agreement. 



(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to 
be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination 
ofConsultant' s business, City may, by written request, require that custody of such documents or 
records be given to the City and that such documents and records be maintained by the 
requesting party. Access to such documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its 
successors-in-interest and authorized representatives. 

SECTION 8. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times remain an independent contractor and not an 
officer, employee or agent of City. Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any 
manner, or to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this 
Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 

(b) The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant shall at all times be under Consultant's exclusive direction and control. Neither City, 
nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall have 
control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents 
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents are in any manner 
officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 

(c) Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant's officers, employees or agents, shall 
obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to 
City'S employees. Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant may have to any such 
rights. 

SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 

Consultant represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience and facilities 
necessary to properly perform the services required under this Agreement in a thorough, 
competent and professional manner. Consultant shall at all times faithfully, competently and to 
the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services described herein. In meeting its 
obJigations under this Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted 
standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to those 
required of Consultant under this Agreement. 

If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement any 
maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer 
files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of 
providing any services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant's guarantees and warranties 
related to Standard of Performance shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, 
drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 



SECTION 10. 	 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND 
LICENSES. 

Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of this 
Agreement. Consultant shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and authorizations necessary to 
perform the services set forth in this Agreement. Neither City, nor any elected or appointed 
boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a 
result of any failure of Consultant to comply with this section. 

SECTION 11. 	 PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 

It is the understanding of City and Consultant that California prevailing wage laws do not 
apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the following services 
subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code or regulations 
promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work 
performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under contract and paid for in 
whole or in part out of public funds. In this context, "construction" includes work performed 
during the design and preconstruction phases of construction including, but not limited to, 
inspection and land surveying work. 

SECTION 12. 	 NONDISCRIMINATION. 

Consultant shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the basis of race, 
color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, medical condition or 
marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 

SECTION 13. 	 UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 

Consultant hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, and in connection 
therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. Should Consultant so employ 
such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this 
Agreement, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of 
unauthorized aliens, Consultant hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such 
liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, 
incurred by City. 

SECTION 14. 	 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 

(a) Consultant covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or 
shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the 
interests of City or which would in any way hinder Consultant's performance of services under 
this Agreement. Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or 
subcontractor without the express written consent of the City Manager. Consultant agrees to at 



all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests 
of City in the performance of this Agreement. 

(b) City understands and acknowledges that Consultant is, as of the date of execution 
of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services for other 
governmental agencies and private parties. Consultant is unaware of any stated position of City 
relative to such projects. Any future position of City on such projects shall not be considered a 
conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 

(c) City understands and acknowledges that Consultant will, perform non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties following the completion of the 
scope of work under this Agreement. Any such future service shall not be considered a conflict 
of interest for purposes of this section. 

SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 

(a) All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in performance 
of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public 
domain or already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any such 
information or work product to persons or entities other than City without prior written 
authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required by law. 

(b) Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without 
prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of 
City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, response to 
interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this Agreement. 
Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered "voluntary" provided Consultant 
gives City notice of such court order or subpoena. 

(c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Consultant, 
provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have 
the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, 
including attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant's conduct. 

(d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, employees, 
agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of 
deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 
request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work 
performed thereunder. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be 
present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully 
with City and to provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests 
provided by Consultant. However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 

SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 



(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability. Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Consultant's Services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Consultant shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City and any and all of its 
officials, employees and agents ("Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney's fees and costs to the extent same 
are caused in whole or in part by any negligent or wrongful act, error or omission of Consultant, 
its officers, agents, employees or sub-consultants (or any entity or individual that Consultant 
shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of professional services under this 
Agreement. 

(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability. Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its employees, officials and 
agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any 
kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorneys fees and costs, court costs, 
interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence 
of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by 
Consultant or by any individual or entity for which Consultant is legally liable, including but not 
limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Consultant. 

(c) General Indemnification Provisions. Consultant agrees to obtain executed 
indemnity Agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here in this section from each 
and every sub-contractor or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 
Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. In the event Consultant fails to obtain such 
indemnity obligations from others as required here, Consultant agrees to be fully responsible 
according to the terms of this section. Failure of City to monitor compliance with these 
requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in no way act as a waiver of any 
rights hereunder. This obligation to indemnify and defend City as set forth here is binding on the 
successors, assigns or heirs of Consultant and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or 
this section. 

(d) The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of 
City'S sole negligence or willful acts or omissions. 

SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 

Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this 
Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit "B" "Insurance" and made a part of this 
Agreement. All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to form and content. 
These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by the City 
Manager. Consultant agrees to provide City with copies of required policies upon request. 

SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 



The expertise and experience of Consultant are material considerations for this 
Agreement. City has an interest in the qualifications of and capability of the persons and entities 
who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Consultant under this Agreement. In 
recognition of that interest, Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion 
of this Agreement or the performance of any of Consultant's duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the City Council. Any attempted assignment 
shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement 
entitling City to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including summary termination of this 
Agreement. City acknowledges, however, that Consultant, in the performance of its duties 
pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize subcontractors. 

SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 

Consultant shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and continuity of 
Consultant's staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the services required under this 
Agreement. Consultant shall notify City of any changes in Consultant's staff and subcontractors, 
if any, assigned to perform the services required under this Agreement, prior to and during any 
such performance. 

SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Consultant. In the event such notice is given, 
Consultant shall cease immediately all work in progress. 

(b) Consultant may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) 
days written notice of termination to City. 

(c) If either Consultant or City fail to perform any material obligation under this 
Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Consultant, or City may terminate this 
Agreement immediately upon written notice. 

(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Consultant or City, all property 
belonging exclusively to City which is in Consultant's possession shall be returned to City. 
Consultant shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed and expenses incurred by 
Consultant, prepared as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. 

SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 

In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the City shall 
not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Consultant for any work performed 
after the date of default. Instead, the City may give notice to Consultant of the default and the 
reasons for the default. The notice shall include the time frame in which Consultant may cure the 



default. This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not 
reduced, if circumstances warrant. During the period of time that Consultant is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on the 
invoices. In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or all of the 
outstanding invoices during the period of default. If Consultant does not cure the default, the 
City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under Section 20. Any failure on the 
part of the City to give notice of the Consultant's default shall not be deemed to result in a 
waiver ofthe City's legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision ofthis Agreement. 

SECTION 22. 	 EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 

Consultant shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if any, caused 
by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the control of Consultant. 
Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of federal, 
state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, 
and unusually severe weather. The term and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted 
for any delays due to such causes. 

SECTION 23. 	 COOPERATION BY CITY. 

All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and available to 
City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the work as outlined in the 
Exhibit "A" "Scope of Services," shall be furnished to Consultant in every reasonable way to 
facilitate, without undue delay, the work to be performed under this Agreement. 

SECTION 24. 	 NOTICES. 

All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage prepaid and return 
receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

To Consultant: 	 MIGlHogle-Ireland 

To City: 	 City of Covina 
Attn: Community Development Director; 

or hislher designee 
125 E. College Street 
Covina CA 91723 

Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by 
facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States 
Postal Service. 



SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 

The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant represents and 
warrants that he/she/they haslhave the authority to so execute this Agreement and to bind 
Consultant to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

SECTION 26. BINDING EFFECT. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns of the parties. 

SECTION 27. MODIFICATION OF AGREElVIENT. 

No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing 
and approved by the Consultant and by the City Manager. The parties agree that this 
requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be 
void. 

SECTION 28. WAIVER. 

Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver by 
any party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any 
other provision or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this 
Agreement. Acceptance by City of any work or services by Consultant shall not constitute a 
waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 29. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the laws of the 
State of California. In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in state trial courts shall 
lie exclusively in the County of Los Angeles, California. In the event of litigation in a U.S. 
District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in Los Angeles. 

SECTION 30. A TTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 

In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any provision 
of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation or other proceeding shall be entitled to 
an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to 
which it may be entitled. 

SECTION 31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 



This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, complete, 
final and exclusive expression of the parties with respect to the matters addressed therein and 
supersedes all other Agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into 
between Consultant and City prior to the execution of this Agreement. No statements, 
representations or other Agreements, whether oral or written, made by any party, which are not 
embodied herein shall be valid and binding. No amendment to this Agreement shall be valid and 
binding unless in writing duly executed by the parties or their authorized representatives. 

SECTION 32. SEVERABILITY. 

If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of 
this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be read and construed 
without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 

CITY OF COVINA, a California municipal corporation 

By: __________________________________ Drue: __________________________ _ 
City Manager 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By: __________________________________ Drue: __________________________ _ 
City Attorney 



CONSULTANT 

By: ______________Date: ___________ 

(Name) 



EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 


The Selected consultant for Planning Services shall have demonstrated expertise in processing 
applications for various types of projects that include, but not limited to, residential, commercial, 
industrial, mixed use and transit oriented development. Some application may require a General 
Plan Amendment, Zone Change, establishment of a Planned Community Development Overlay, 
etc. Typical and examples of Planning Services tasks are: 

• 	 Initial Site Assessment 
• 	 Review project for completeness and compliance with the General Plan, Zoning 

Ordinances, Town Center Specific Plan (if applicable), Design Guidelines, and all 
applicable codes and ordinances 

• 	 Prepare letters for Director's review 
• 	 Attend Development Review Committee meeting(s) for the project 
• 	 Coordinate comments from members of the Development Review Committee 
• 	 Meet with Applicant 
• 	 Coordinate the Project Review with CEQA Review 
• 	 Prepare public hearing notices, staff reports, resolutions and conditions ofapproval 
• 	 Attend Planning Commission and/or City Council meetings 
• 	 File management for the projects 
• 	 Plan Check review of projects including, but not limited to, construction plans, grading 

plan, landscape and irrigation plans, lighting plans, etc., for compliance with conditions 
ofapproval 



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

BETWEEN 


DUDEK AND 
THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA 

This Agreement for Consultant Services ("Agreement") is entered into as of this 
__day of , 2015, between Dudek ("Consultant") and the City of Covina, a 
municipal corporation ("City"). City and Consultant are sometimes hereinafter individually 
referred to as "Party" and hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. City has sought, the performance of the servIces defined and described 
particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant was selected by the City to perform those serVIces defined and 
described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

C. Pursuant to the City of Covina's Municipal Code, the City has authority to enter 
into this Consultant Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 

D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Consultant for performance of 
those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement and desire that 
the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and described herein. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the Parties and contained 
here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 

The term of this Agreement shall be the period commencing from the effective date of 
this Agreement, as first shown above and shall terminate on February 17,2019. 



SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit "A" "Scope of Services" 
and made a part of this Agreement. 

SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 

Consultant shall be compensated for any services rendered in connection with its 
performance of this Agreement, which are in addition to or outside of those set forth in this 
Agreement or listed in Exhibit "A" "Scope of Services," upon authorization in advance and in 
writing by the City Manager of City. Consultant shall be compensated for any such additional 
services in the amounts and in the manner agreed to by the City Manager. Any amount 
exceeding a total of $25,000 shall go to the City Council for approval, first. 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 
Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Consultant the 

amounts specified in Exhibit "A" "Compensation" and made a part of this Agreement. The total 
compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, shall not exceed Twenty Five 
Thousand dollars ($ 25,000), unless additional compensation is approved in writing by the City 
Council. 

(a) Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and 
expenses incurred. The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: 1. Daily labor 
per hourly basis and, if applicable, 2. travel, materials, equipment, supplies, and sub-consultant 
contracts. Sub-consultant charges shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, 
materials, equipment and supplies. City shall independently review each invoice submitted by 
the Consultant to determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. In the event that no charges or expenses are 
disputed, the invoice shall be approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection 
(c). In the event any charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be 
returned by City to Consultant for correction and resubmission. 

(b) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Consultant 
which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Consultant to be paid within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of Consultant's invoice or be subject to a late charge of 3% of the 
amount owed. 

(c) Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not 
be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 

SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 

City may inspect and accept or reject any of Consultant's work under this Agreement, 
either during performance or when completed. City shall reject or finally accept Consultant's 
work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City. City shall reject work by a timely written 



explanation, otherwise Consultant's work shall be deemed to have been accepted. City's 
acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with respect to latent defects, fraud and 
such gross mistakes as amount to fraud. Acceptance of any of Consultant's work by City shall 
not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
sections 16 and 17, pertaining to indemnification and insurance, respectively. 

SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 

All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Consultant in the course of providing any services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the 
sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the 
permission of the Consultant. Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
Consultant shall tum over to City all such original maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 

If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement any 
maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer 
files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of 
providing any services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant's guarantees and warrants related 
to Standard of Performance and found in Section 9 of this Agreement shall not extend to such 
use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, 
computer files, files or other documents. 

SECTION 7. CONSULTANT'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 

(a) Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or 
relating to Consultant's performance of services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall 
maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other 
documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and disbursements 
charged to City pursuant to this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records shall be 
maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently 
complete and detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by 
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records shall be 
maintained for three years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent 
required by laws relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 

(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular 
business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative. Copies of such documents 
or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and copying when it is 
practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such documents and 
records shall be made available at Consultant's address indicated for receipt of notices in this 
Agreement. 



(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to 
be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination 
of Consultant's business, City may, by written request, require that custody of such documents or 
records be given to the City and that such documents and records be maintained by the 
requesting party. Access to such documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its 
successors-in-interest and authorized representatives. 

SECTIONS. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times remain an independent contractor and not an 
officer, employee or agent of City. Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any 
manner, or to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this 
Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 

(b) The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant shall at all times be under Consultant's exclusive direction and control. Neither City, 
nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall have 
control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents 
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents are in any manner 
officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 

(c) Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant's officers, employees or agents, shall 
obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to 
City'S employees. Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant may have to any such 
rights. 

SECTION 9. ST ANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 

Consultant represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience and facilities 
necessary to properly perform the services required under this Agreement in a thorough, 
competent and professional manner. Consultant shall at all times faithfully, competently and to 
the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services described herein. In meeting its 
obligations under this Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted 
standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to those 
required ofConsultant under this Agreement. 

If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement any 
maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer 
files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of 
providing any services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant's guarantees and warranties 
related to Standard of Performance shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, 
drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 



SECTION 10. 	 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND 
LICENSES. 

Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of this 
Agreement. Consultant shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and authorizations necessary to 
perform the services set forth in this Agreement. Neither City, nor any elected or appointed 
boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a 
result of any failure of Consultant to comply with this section. 

SECTION 11. 	 PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 

It is the understanding of City and Consultant that California prevailing wage laws do not 
apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the following services 
subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code or regulations 
promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work 
performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under contract and paid for in 
whole or in part out of public funds. In this context, "construction" includes work performed 
during the design and preconstruction phases of construction including, but not limited to, 
inspection and land surveying work. 

SECTION 12. 	 NONDISCRIMINATION. 

Consultant shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the basis of race, 
color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, medical condition or 
marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 

SECTION 13. 	 UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 

Consultant hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, seq., as amended, and in connection 
therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. Should Consultant so employ 
such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this 
Agreement, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of 
unauthorized aliens, Consultant hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such 
liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, 
incurred by City. 

SECTION 14. 	 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 

(a) Consultant covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or 
shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the 
interests of City or which would in any way hinder Consultant's performance of services under 
this Agreement. Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or 
subcontractor without the express written consent of the City Manager. Consultant agrees to at 



all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests 
of City in the perfonnance of this Agreement. 

(b) City understands and acknowledges that Consultant is, as of the date of execution 
of this Agreement, independently involved in the perfonnance of non-related services for other 
governmental agencies and private parties. Consultant is unaware of any stated position of City 
relative to such projects. Any future position of City on such projects shall not be considered a 
conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 

(c) City understands and acknowledges that Consultant will, perfonn non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties following the completion of the 
scope of work under this Agreement. Any such future service shall not be considered a conflict 
of interest for purposes of this section. 

SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 

(a) All infonnation gained or work product produced by Consultant in perfonnance 
of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such infonnation is in the public 
domain or already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any such 
infonnation or work product to persons or entities other than City without prior written 
authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required by law. 

(b) Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without 
prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of 
City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, response to 
interrogatories or other infonnation concerning the work perfonned under this Agreement. 
Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered "voluntary" provided Consultant 
gives City notice of such court order or subpoena. 

(c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Consultant, 
provides any infonnation or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have 
the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, 
including attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant's conduct. 

(d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, employees, 
agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of 
deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 
request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work 
perfonned thereunder. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be 
present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully 
with City and to provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests 
provided by Consultant. However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 

SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 



(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability. Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Consultant's Services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Consultant shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City and any and all of its 
officials, employees and agents ("Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney's fees and costs to the extent same 
are caused in whole or in part by any negligent or wrongful act, error or omission of Consultant, 
its officers, agents, employees or sub-consultants (or any entity or individual that Consultant 
shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of professional services under this 
Agreement. 

(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability. Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its employees, officials and 
agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any 
kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorneys fees and costs, court costs, 
interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence 
of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by 
Consultant or by any individual or entity for which Consultant is legally liable, including but not 
limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Consultant. 

(c) General Indemnification Provisions. Consultant agrees to obtain executed 
indemnity Agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here in this section from each 
and every sub-contractor or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 
Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. In the event Consultant fails to obtain such 
indemnity obligations from others as required here, Consultant agrees to be fully responsible 
according to the terms of this section. Failure of City to monitor compliance with these 
requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in no way act as a waiver of any 
rights hereunder. This obligation to indemnify and defend City as set forth here is binding on the 
successors, assigns or heirs of Consultant and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or 
this section. 

(d) The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of 
City's sole negligence or willful acts or omissions. 

SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 

Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this 
Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit "8" "Insurance" and made a part of this 
Agreement. All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to form and content. 
These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by the City 
Manager. Consultant agrees to provide City with copies of required policies upon request. 

SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 



The expertise and experience of Consultant are material considerations for this 
Agreement. City has an interest in the qualifications of and capability of the persons and entities 
who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Consultant under this Agreement. In 
recognition of that interest, Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion 
of this Agreement or the performance of any of Consultant's duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the City Council. Any attempted assignment 
shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement 
entitling City to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including summary termination of this 
Agreement. City acknowledges, however, that Consultant, in the performance of its duties 
pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize subcontractors. 

SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 

Consultant shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and continuity of 
Consultant's staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the services required under this 
Agreement. Consultant shall notify City of any changes in Consultant's staff and subcontractors, 
if any, assigned to perform the services required under this Agreement, prior to and during any 
such performance. 

SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Consultant. In the event such notice is given, 
Consultant shall cease immediately all work in progress. 

(b) Consultant may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) 
days written notice of termination to City. 

(c) If either Consultant or City fail to perform any material obligation under this 
Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Consultant, or City may terminate this 
Agreement immediately upon written notice. 

(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Consultant or City, all property 
belonging exclusively to City which is in Consultant's possession shall be returned to City. 
Consultant shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed and expenses incurred by 
Consultant, prepared as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. 

SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 

In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the City shall 
not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Consultant for any work performed 
after the date of default. Instead, the City may give notice to Consultant of the default and the 
reasons for the default. The notice shall include the timeframe in which Consultant may cure the 



default. This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not 
reduced, if circumstances warrant. During the period of time that Consultant is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on the 
invoices. In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or all of the 
outstanding invoices during the period of default. If Consultant does not cure the default, the 
City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under Section 20. Any failure on the 
part of the City to give notice of the Consultant's default shall not be deemed to result in a 
waiver of the City's legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 

SECTION 22. 	 EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 

Consultant shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if any, caused 
by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the control of Consultant. 
Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of federal, 
state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, 
and unusually severe weather. The term and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted 
for any delays due to such causes. 

SECTION 23. 	 COOPERATION BY CITY. 

All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and available to 
City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the work as outlined in the 
Exhibit "A" "Scope of Services," shall be furnished to Consultant in every reasonable way to 
facilitate, without undue delay, the work to be performed under this Agreement. 

SECTION 24. 	 NOTICES. 

All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage prepaid and return 
receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

To Consultant: 	 Dudek 

To City: 	 City of Covina 
Attn: Community Development Director; 

or his/her designee 
125 E. College Street 
Covina CA 91723 

Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by 
facsimile or, ifmailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States 
Postal Service. 



SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 

The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant represents and 
warrants that he/she/they haslhave the authority to so execute this Agreement and to bind 
Consultant to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

SECTION 26. BINDING EFFECT. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns of the parties. 

SECTION 27. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT. 

No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing 
and approved by the Consultant and by the City Manager. The parties agree that this 
requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be 
void. 

SECTION 28. WAIVER. 

Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver by 
any party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any 
other provision or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this 
Agreement. Acceptance by City of any work or services by Consultant shall not constitute a 
waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 29. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the laws of the 
State of California. In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in state trial courts shall 
lie exclusively in the County of Los Angeles, California. In the event of litigation in a U.S. 
District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in Los Angeles. 

SECTION 30. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 

In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any provision 
of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation or other proceeding shall be entitled to 
an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to 
which it may be entitled. 

SECTION 31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 



---------------------------------- ---------------------------

---------------------------------- ---------------------------

This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, complete, 
final and exclusive expression of the parties with respect to the matters addressed therein and 
supersedes all other Agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into 
between Consultant and City prior to the execution of this Agreement. No statements, 
representations or other Agreements, whether oral or written, made by any party, which are not 
embodied herein shall be valid and binding. No amendment to this Agreement shall be valid and 
binding unless in writing duly executed by the parties or their authorized representatives. 

SECTION 32. SEVERABILITY. 

If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of 
this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be read and construed 
without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 

CITY OF COVINA, a California municipal corporation 

By: Date: 
City Manager 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By: Date: 
City Attorney 



CONSULTANT 

By: ______________.Date: ___________ 
(Name) 



EXHIBIT"A " 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 


The Selected consultant for Environmental Review Services shall have demonstrated expertise in 
preparing environmental review documents as required by CEQA that include, but not limited to, 
one or more of the following environmental review tasks: 

• Initial Site Assessment 
• CEQA Initial Study to determine whether project requires EIR, MND, ND or CE 
• Cultural and Historical Evaluations 
• Noise Studies 
• Air Quality 
• Transportation Studies 
• Water Quality/Storm and Wastewater Control Management 
• Greenhouse Gas Emission Studies 
• Environmental Mitigation Studies/Reports 
• Coordinate and distribute environmental documents and notices 
• Mitigation Monitoring 
• Presentations at public meetings 
• Coordinate the CEQA Review with Project Review 

In addition to the above environmental review tasks, the consultant may be assigned to conduct a 
peer review of EIR, MND, or ND submitted by the project applicant for a review of 
completeness, adequacy and compliance with CEQA. 



CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: 
CCIO 

STAFF SOURCE: Alex Gonzalez, Interim Public Works Director ~ 
Amy Hall-McGrade, Parks & Recreation and Library Services Director 
Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager 

ITEM TITLE: Temporary License and Right of Entry Agreement with MWH Americas 
Inc. for Geotechnical Evaluation of Kahler Russell Park 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Acting City Manager, or his designee, to sign the Right of Entry Agreement with 
MWH Americas Inc., to perform a geotechnical evaluation of Kahler Russell Park. 

FISCAL FUND IMPACT: 
This item does not have a fiscal impact as costs for the proposed work have already been paid to 
the Contractor via Los Angeles County per the agreement approved by City Council on 
September 3, 2013 and budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2013-14 Environmental Services Fund 
(6200-5550-51005). 

BACKGROUND: 
The Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) adopted a new 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) storm water permit that went into effect on 
December 28,2012. Prior to the effective date of the Permit, the City petitioned the State Water 
Resources Control Board (State Board) challenging portions of the permit. However, on 
November 22, 2014 the State Board issued a Draft Order on the Petition generally upholding 
those provisions being challenged by the City, as well as provisions challenged by other co
permittees and stakeholder groups. The City submitted written comments to the State Board on 
the Draft Order on January 21,2015, but the Permit remains in effect as adopted by the Regional 
Board, requiring the City to proceed with the permit as drafted until further notice. 

Unlike previous permits, the new MS4 Permit encourages the 86 permittees to collaborate with 
one another in the development of planning strategies and projects to achieve compliance. The 
MS4 permit allows for Permittees to prepare Enhanced Watershed Management Programs 
(EWMPs) to achieve compliance with stormwater quality objectives. The EWMP is a planning 
document prepared in collaboration with other permittees to address the group's stormwater 
issues on a watershed basis. 

The three MS4 Permit compliance alternatives were presented to the City Council on June 4, 
2013, with a recommendation to notifY the Regional Board of the City's intent to develop an 



EWMP collaboratively with other Upper San Gabriel River permittees. Council authorized staff 
to proceed with said notification. On June 27, 2013, the City of Covina submitted a letter to the 
Regional Board stating the City's intent to collaborate and form a watershed group with the 
LACFCD, the County of Los Angeles, and the Cities of Baldwin Park, Glendora, Industry, and 
La Puente in the development of an EWMP and a Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Plan 
(CIMP) for portions of the San Gabriel River Watershed. 

On September 3, 2013 the City Council authorized the City to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the other members of the watershed group in order to begin 
development of the compliance programs. The EWMP group then proceeded to hire a 
Consultant, MWH Americas, Inc. (Consultant), to prepare and deliver the plans and agreed to 
contribute funds to LA County, who contracted with the Consultant for the preparation of the 
Plans. Once requirement of the EWMP Plan is that the group develops a series of projects to 
achieve the water quality objectives required in the permit for its individual watershed. 

Since that time the Consultant and staff from the EWMP member jurisdictions have been 
working to develop draft EWMP and CIMP plans for submission to the Regional Board. One of 
the requirements of the EWMP compliance option is the identification of regional projects that 
retain all runoff from the 85th percentile, 24-hour storm event (approximately one inch a day) for 
tributary drainage area. 

In order to determine the feasibility of constructing such a regional project at Kahler Russell 
Park, it is necessary to assess whether the soil at the site meets the project infiltration 
requirements. Ninyo & Moore, a sub subcontractor to MWH Americas, Inc. will be conducting 
said soil testing at Kahler Russell as well as the other potential regional project sites in the 
EWMP area. 

Exhibit A specifies the conditions under which the Consultant and its subcontractor are 
authorized to conduct the geotechnical sampling at the site so as to protect the City and its 
facility. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN: 

This item is not directly responsive to any specific objective in the Strategic Plan. 


EXHIBITS: 
A. Right of Entry Agreement with MWH Americas, Inc. 

REVIEW TEAM ONLY 
City Attomey: ~~~~~=;;.J IIllanC!e Director: -~--F------
City Manager: _~________ Other: _____________ 



TEMPORARY LICENSE AND RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 
(City of Covina - Kahler Russell Park) 

This Temporary License and Right of Entry Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into 
this Seventeenth day of February, 2015 by and between the City of Covina, a California 
municipal corporation ("City"), and MWH, a California Corporation ("Licensee"). City is the 
legal owner of Assessor's Parcel Number 8428-015-902, which is identified in Exhibit "A", 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and which is commonly referred to as 
Kahler Russell Park (the "Property"), with a street address of 735 N Glendora Avenue, 
Covina, CA 91724.b 

1. Scope. City hereby grants to Licensee, its employees, agents and subcontractors, a temporary 
and non-exclusive license and right to enter upon and over the Property for the sole purpose of 
performing geotechnical evaluation of the Property in furtherance of the Upper San 
Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program, as set forth in Exhibit "B", 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the "Project") and for no other purpose. 
Licensee shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses of Project activities as 
contemplated in this Agreement. 

2. No Interest in Land Granted. Nothing herein shall be deemed to grant to Licensee any fee 
interest, leasehold, or other possessory interest in the Property, or any portion thereof, beyond the 
rights set forth herein. 

3. Term. This Agreement shall be effective upon the date specified above when both parties 
have executed this Agreement and shall terminate at midnight on the date of April 15, 2015, 
unless earlier terminated as set forth in this Agreement. 

4. Conditions for Entry Onto Property. The Property shall be entered upon by Licensee 
solely for the Project and for no other purpose. Such entry shall not unreasonably interfere with 
City's use of the Property. All existing improvements located on the Property are to be protected 
in place, unless otherwise agreed to by the City. Licensee shall be subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 

a. City makes no representation, covenant, warranty or promise that the Property is fit for 
any particular use, including the use for which this Agreement is granted and Licensee is not 
relying on any such representation, covenant, warranty or promise and accepts the Property in its 
"as is" condition. 

b. Licensee shall conduct the Project in compliance with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws. 

c. At the completion of the Project, Licensee will backfill all borings with native soils 
and bentonite to the preexisting surface elevation of the Property prior to this Agreement. 
Efforts will be taken to minimize disturbance to all grass and other landscaping. 

d. Licensee shall not permit to be placed against the Property, or any part thereof, any 
design professionals', mechanics', materialmen's, contractors' or subcontractors' liens with 



regard to Licensee's actions on the Property. Licensee agrees to hold City harmless for any loss 
or expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising from any such liens which 
might be filed against the Property. 

5. Notice: Prior to entering the Property Licensee shall provide City with twenty-four (24) 
hours advanced written notice at the address below. 

DIG ALERT: Prior to commencing any potholing activities, Licensee shall notify 
Underground Service Alert [Dig~Alert, (8-1~1)], as required for the work to be performed, 
obtaining an inquiry identification number. 

6. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for or without cause upon 
ten (10) days' written notice to the other party, or immediately by the City if it is determined that 
the actions of Licensee are illegal, unsafe or a liability to the City. 

7. Access to the Property. Licensee shall keep access to the Property open at all times and 
shall not, to the greatest extent feasible, interfere with City'S activities in any way. 

8. Indemnification. Except as to sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City, Licensee 
agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel approved by City) and hold the City, its officers, 
officials, agents and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, liability, 
cost or expense, including defense costs and attorney's fees, including, but not limited to, bodily 
injury, death, personal injury or property damage, which arise out of or are in any way connected 
with the performance of the Project under this Agreement by Licensee or any of Licensee's 
employees, agents or subcontractors. Licensee shall also be responsible for any attorneys' fees 
the City incurs in the event the City has to file any action in connection with this Agreement. 
The parties expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expenses City incurs or 
makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the City's workers' compensation insurance 
coverage shall be included as a loss, expense or cost for the purpose of this Section, and that this 
Section shall survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement. 

9. Workers' Compensation Insurance. By executing this Agreement, Licensee certifies that it 
is aware of and will comply with Section 3700 of the Labor Code of the State of California 
requiring every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation, or to 
undertake self-insurance before commencing the Project. Licensee shall carry the insurance or 
provide for self-insurance required by California law to protect Licensee from claims under the 
Workers' Compensation Act. Prior to City's execution of this Agreement, Licensee shall file 
with City either (1) a certificate of insurance showing that such insurance is in effect, or that they 
are self-insured for such coverage, or (2) a certified statement that they have no employees, and 
acknowledging that if they do employ any person, the necessary certificate of insurance will 
immediately be filed with City. Any certificate filed with City shall provide that City will be 
given ten (10) days prior written notice before modification or cancellation thereof. 

10. Other Insurance. Prior to City'S execution of this Agreement, Licensee shall provide to 
City a certificate of insurance showing that Licensee is insured or self-insured for commercial 
general liability insurance, automobile liability insurance and professional liability insurance 
with minimum limits as follows: commercial general liability insurance policies shall cover both 



bodily injury (including death) and property damage (including, but not limited to, premises 
operations liability, products-completed operations liability, independent contractor's liability, 
personal injury liability, and contractual liability) in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence and a general aggregate limit in the amount of not less than $2,000,000, unless 
otherwise approved or reduced by the City in writing. Licensee's automobile liability policy 
shall cover both bodily injury and property damage in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence unless otherwise approved or reduced by City in writing. Licensee shall procure and 
maintain, and require its subcontractors to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years 
following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 
profession. Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

These minimum amounts of coverage shall not constitute any limitation or cap on Licensee's 
indemnification obligations under Section 8 hereof. 

Prior to City'S execution of this Agreement, copies of insurance policies or original certificates 
and additional insured endorsements evidencing the coverage required by this Agreement, for 
both commercial general and automobile liability insurance, shall be filed with City and shall 
include City and its officers, employees and agents, as additional insureds. Said policies shall be 
in the usual form of commercial general and automobile liability insurance policies, but shall 
include the following provisions: 

It is agreed that the City, and its officers, employees and agents, shall be added as additional 
insureds under this policy and each policy shall contain a waiver of the insurer's right of 
subrogation against the City. 

The policies shall not be canceled unless thirty (30) days prior written notification of intended 
cancellation has been given to City by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid. 

The policies shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis in relation to any insurance or self
insurance available or applicable to the City. 

The City, its officers, officials, employees and agents make no representation that the types or 
limits of insurance specified to be carried by Licensee pursuant to this Agreement are adequate 
to protect Licensee. If Licensee believes that any required insurance coverage is inadequate, it 
shall obtain such additional insurance coverage, as it deem adequate, at its sole expense. 

11. Hazardous Substances Indemnity. Licensee expressly agrees to and shall indemnify, 
defend (with counsel approved by City), release and hold the City, its officers, officials, agents 
and employees harmless from and against any liability, loss, fine, penalty, fee, charge, lien, 
judgment, damage, entry, claim, cause of action, suit, proceeding (whether legal or 
administrative), remediation, response, removal, or clean-up and all costs and expenses 
associated therewith, and all other costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' 
fees, expert fees, and court costs) in any way related to the disposal, treatment, transportation, 
manufacture, or use of any Hazardous Substances on, in, under, or about the Property by 
Licensee, or its respective officers, directors, agents, subcontractors, servants, employees or 
developers, or by any other third party acting under the control or request of Licensee, other than 



the City and its respective officers, agents, servants, employees or developers. This indemnity, 
defense and hold harmless obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

12. Hazardous Substances Defined. Hazardous Substances shall mean any (a) substance, 
product, waste or other material of any nature whatsoever which is or becomes listed, regulated, 
or addressed pursuant to CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601, et seq.; The Hazardous Materials 
Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 1801, et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 
U.S.C. § 6901, et seq. ("RCRA"); The Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.; 
The Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251, et seq.; The Hazardous Waste Control Act, California 
Health and Safety Code ("H. & S.C.") § 25100, et seq.; the Hazardous Substance Account Act, 
H. & S.C. § 25330, et seq.; the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act, H. 
& S.C. § 25249.5, et seq.; Underground Storage of Hazardous Substances H.& S.c. § 25280, et 
seq.; the Carpenter-Presley-Tanner Hazardous Substance Account Act (H & S.C. § 25300 et 
seq.); The Hazardous Waste Management Act, H. & S.C. §§ 25170.1, et seq.; Hazardous 
Materials Response Plans and Inventory H. & S.C. § 25001 et seq.; or the Porter-Cologne Water 
Quality Control Act, Water Code § 13000, et seq., all as amended, or any other federal, state or 
local statute, law, ordinance, resolution, code, rule, regulation, order or decree regulating, 
relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic or 
dangerous waste, substance or material, as now or at any time hereafter in effect, (b) any 
substance, product, waste or other material of any nature whatsoever which may give rise to 
liability under any of the above statutes, (c) petroleum, crude oil or any substance which contains 
gasoline, diesel fuel or other petroleum hydrocarbons other than petroleum and petroleum 
products contained within regularly operated motor vehicles, and (d) polychlorinated biphenyls 
(PCB), radon gas, urea-formaldehyde, asbestos and lead. 

13. Venue and Attorneys' Fees. Any action at law or in equity brought by either party for the 
purpose of enforcing a right or rights provided for by this Agreement shall be tried in a court of 
competent jurisdiction in the County of Los Angeles, State of California, and the parties hereby 
waive all provisions of law proving for a change of venue in such proceedings to any other 
county. In the event either party shall bring suit to enforce any term of this Agreement or to 
recover any damage for and on account of the breach of any term or condition of this Agreement, 
it is mutually agreed that the prevailing party in such action shall recover all costs thereof, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, to be set by the court in such action. 

14. Notices. Service of any notices, bills, invoices or other documents required or permitted 
under this Agreement shall be sufficient if sent by one party to the other by United States mail, 
postage prepaid and addressed as follows. 

City LICENSEE 
City of Covina 
Attn: Vivian Castro Attn: ------------------
125 E. College Street 
Covina, California 91723 ______:, California ___ 



15. Assignment. It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement is personal to 
Licensee and shall be binding upon Licensee and its successors and may not be assigned or 
transferred in any way without the prior written consent of the City. Any transfer shall be void 
and ofno effect. 

16. Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement each represent and warrant that they 
have the legal power, right and actual authority to bind their respective entities to the terms and 
conditions hereof and thereof. 

17. Severability. Each provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole and in 
part, in this Agreement shall be considered severable. In the event any provision, term, 
condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole and/or in part, in this Agreement is declared 
invalid, unconstitutional, or void for any reason, such provision or part thereof shall be severed 
from this Agreement and shall not affect any other provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or 
restriction, of this Agreement and the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force and 
effect. 

CITY: 

CITY OF COVINA, a California municipal corporation 

By: 
City Manager 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

LICENSEE: 

By: 

Its: 



EXHIBIT"A" 
(Description ofthe Property) 

Parcel number 8428-015-902 , commonly known as Kahler Russell Park at 735 N Glendora 
Avenue in Covina CA 91724. 

Site Address 735 N GLENDORA AVE 
City/Zip COVINA, CA 91724 
AIN/APN 8428-015-902 
Primary Owner COVINA CITY 
Secondary Owner 
Existing Land Use (County) Govt. Owned 
Description Public Park 
Census Tract 4037.222 
Tract Number 206750002 
General Plan Land Use P 
General Plan Description P - Park 
Zone R-1-7500 
Zone Description 	 R-1-7500 - Residential Zone (Single Family -7,500 sq. ft. minimum lot 

size) 
Mailing Name 	 COVINA CITY 
Mailing Address 	 735 N GLENDORA AVE 
Mailing City/Zip 	 COVINA CA 91724 
Lot Area Sq. Ft. 	 710233 
Living Area 	 0.0 
Acres 	 16 
Bedrooms 	 0.0 
Bathrooms 	 0.0 
Buildings 	 0.0 
Legal Description 	 PART OF LOT 2 BERLIN HEIGHTS TRACT LOT EX OF STS COM 

AT NW COR OF LOT 2 BERLIN HEIGHTS TR TH SON W LINE OF 
SD LOT TO N LINE OF TR NO 20675 TH E ON SD N LINE AND E 
PROLONGATION THEREOF TO W LINE OF TR NO 20678 TH N 
AND FOLLOWING 

Land Use Update 
TRA 	 02643 
Latitude 	 34.092800286 
Longitude 	 -117.866911974 



EXHIBIT "B" 
(Description of the Project) 


[See attached NINYO & MOORE proposal] 




June 6,2013 
Proposal No. P-21 085 

Mr. Victor Harris 
MWH 
618 Michillinda Avenue, Suite 200 
Arcadia, CA 91007 

Subject: 	 Proposal for Geotechnical Services 
San Gabriel River Watershed Management 
San Gabriel Valley, Los Angeles County, California 

Dear Mr. Harris: 

In accordance with your request, we are submitting this proposal for geotechnical ser
vices on the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works' San Gabriel River 
Watershed Management project. The current scope of services involves providing fea
sibility-level geotechnical support for preparation of the Enhanced Watershed 
Management Program (EWMP) Plan. 

In preparing this proposal, we reviewed the draft Development of an Enhanced Water
shed Management Program for San Gabriel River Watershed Management Group 
Scope of Work, dated April 17, 2013. Section 8.2.4 of the Scope of Work calls for con
ducting "a preliminary soils analysis and testing of proposed regional project sites to 
support feasibility analysis" on up to eight (8) sites". No specific information on the loca
tion, size and planned facilities at each site was available. Per our discussion on June 6, 
2013, we understand that one (1) boring at one site up to 100 feet in depth is desired . 

.SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Our proposed scope of services is presented below: 

• 	 Review of in-house geologic maps, geotechnical reports, seismic hazard reports, aerial pho
tographs and topographic maps. We would also review plans, as-built plans, utility plans, 
geotechnical reports, other data provided by the client relative to each site. 

• 	 Performance of a site reconnaissance by our geologist or engineer to observe and docu
ment the existing site conditions. Proposed boring locations will also be marked out for utility 
clearance . 

• Acquisition of County of Los Angeles boring permits if required. 

255710 Ruffin Road • San Diego. Califomia 92123 - Phone (858) 576-1000 -Fax (858) 576-9600 

San Diego • Irvine • I.os Angeles • Rancho Cucamonga • Qakland • San Francisco • Sacramento 
laS IA!gas • Phoeni;< • Tucson • P/'eS(Olt Valley • Denver • El Paso • Houston 



San Gabriel River Watershed Management June 6,2013 

Los Angeles County, California Proposal No. P-21085 


• 	 Clearance of utilities by contacting Underground Service Alert (USA) at least 48-hours prior 
to field exploration. 

• 	 Performing subsurface field exploration that includes the drilling, sampling and logging of 
one (1) boring at one of the sites. The boring will be drilled to depths up to 100 feet (or re
fusal) using a truck-mounted drill rig equipped with hollow-stem augers and will be logged by 
our geologist or engineer. The water table level will be measured at the time of drilling. Bulk 
and in-place drive samples will be returned to our in-house laboratory for testing. The boring 
will be backfilled in accordance with the County of Los Angeles requirements. 

• 	 Laboratory testing of samples obtained from the borings will include moisture content, dry 

density, gradation (sieve size), direct shear strength, permeability, and soil corrosivity (pH, 

resistivity, chloride content and sulfate content). 


• 	 Compilation and analysis of data obtained. Slope stability analysis of the berm slopes also 

will be performed as appropriate. 


• 	 Preparation of a feasibility-level geotechnical evaluation report presenting our findings, con
clusions and recommendations for conceptual design of the project and for inclusion in the 
environmental document. The report will address potential geologic and seismic hazards, 
liquefaction, geologic units, groundwater table depth, soil permeability, slope stability, set
tlement, earthwork and grading, foundations, soil corrosivity and concrete cement type. Our 
report will be signed by a California certified Engineering Geologist (CEG) and registered 
Geotechnical Engineer (GE). An electronic PDF copy of our report will be provided. Up to 
five hard copies of the report will be provided upon request. 

ASSUMPTIONS 

In preparation of the cost estimate, we have made the following assumptions: 

• 	 Permission for access to the site will be provided for our equipment and personnel. 
We also assume the site is drive-up accessible with conventional two-wheel drive 
vehicles. 

• 	 Existing documents such as site plans, utility maps, geotechnical reports, and other 
pertinent data regarding the site will be provided by the client or County for our re
view, if available. 

• 	 Except for County of Los Angeles boring permit, no other permits are required for 
conducting our field exploration. 

• 	 The water table will be measured in the boring during drilling, if encountered. How
ever, if an accurate evaluation of the water table level is desired, the installation of a 
monitoring well in the boring is recommended. The installation of a monitoring well 
would be performed on a time-and-materials basis as an additional service in ac
cordance with our fee schedule upon request. 

• 	 Environmental services (e.g. Phase I and II site assessments. analytical testing, 
etc.) are not included in the scope of services. These services can be provided as 
an additional service upon request. 

2 



San Gabriel River Watershed Management June 6, 2013 

Los Angeles County, California Proposal No. P-21 085 


COST AND SCHEDULE 

Our scope of services described above will be charged on a time-and-materials basis in accor

dance with our fee schedule (attached). Performance of the scope of services is estimated to be 

approximately $16,000 (sixteen thousand dollars) per site. 

We are prepared to begin our geotechnical services for the project immediately upon receiving 

your authorization to proceed. The acquisition of boring permits. utility clearance and scheduling 

of equipment and personnel will take two weeks per site. Our field exploration will take approxi

mately 1-112 days per site. Our report will be submitted approximately four weeks after 

completion of the field exploration at each site. Separate reports for each site can be provided, 

We are prepared to begin work immediately upon receiving your written authorization to pro

ceed. We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal for our services and look forward 

to working with you on the project. 

Respectfully submitted, 
NINYO &MOORE 

~='-~ 
Gregory T. Farrand, P.G., C.E.G. 
Principal Geologist 

GTF/cdb 

Distribution: (1) Addressee 

3 



CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: 
CCll 

STAFF SOURCE: Alex Gonzalez, Interim Public Works Director ~ 
Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager 

ITEM TITLE: Professional Services Agreement with John L Hunter and Associates 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the City Manager to sign the Professional Services Agreement with John L. Hunter 
and Associates, for environmental and engineering services as specified in Exhibit A, to support 
the City's implementation of stormwater and wastewater laws and regulations. 

FISCAL FUND IMPACT: 
$42,000 is budgeted in the fiscal year 2014-15 Environmental Services Fund (6200-5550-51005) 
for this contract. Contract costs for subsequent fiscal years will be included in requested budgets. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board adopted a new Municipal Separate 
Storm Sewer System (MS4) storm water permit that went into effect on December 28,2012. The 
permit changed to allow some customization based on the needs of the particular watersheds. 
The watershed approach is complex and requires the City to engage in data gathering, modeling, 
pollutant monitoring and plan development activities that are new to the City. In addition, the six 
"core" programs that were in the previous MS4 permit were expanded significantly in the new 
permit and require substantial staff and fiscal resources. 

In order to satisfy the varied, specialized and time-sensitive activities mandated by the MS4 
Permit (as well as, other laws, regulations and programs pertaining to wastewater and potable 
water), Environmental Services distributed a Request for Qualifications for Environmental 
Consulting and Engineering Services for Stormwater and/or Wastewater and/or Potable Water on 
May 13, 2014. Pursuant to Covina Municipal Code Section 2.20.175 the purchase of 
professional and specialized services may be procured based on the demonstrated competence 
and experience of the service provider. 

Eleven consultants responded by the May 29, 2014 deadline. Nine submitted qualifications 
related to stormwater environmental consulting and engineering services. Public Works staff 
reviewed the submissions and selected five consultants to provide the numerous services required 
for stormwater compliance. John L. Hunter and Associates was one of those selected, in part for 
their expertise with various NPDES programs and wastewater programs. Furthermore, John L. 
Hunter and Associates has successfully reviewed development and redevelop project plans for 



_________ ______ 

compliance with MS4 permit requirements since 2008. Tasks will be assigned to John L. Hunter 

and Associates on an as~needed basis and will be compensated on an hourly basis as specified in 

Exhibit A. 


The Professional Services Agreement with John L. Hunter and Associates is for five years, with 

three optional one-year extensions. The annual not-to-exceed contract amount is $125,000, with 

the actual contract amount for any specific fiscal year not to exceed the amount budgeted for that 

fiscal year as approved by the City Council. 


RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN: 

While not directly responsive to any specific objective in the Strategic Plan, this item will 

support the City's efforts to enhance the financial well-being of the City of Covina by supporting 

Staff's effort to ensure compliance with mandated federal and state regulations. 


EXHIBITS: 

A. Professional Services Agreement with John L. Hunter and Associates. 

REVIEW TEAM ONL 
City Attorney: ::::!::::::==~'JIIIIIIiii'_======--- Finance Director: __---''''-+______ 

City Manager: _..fi?-, Other: -1--______ 



CITY OF COVINA 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 


1. PARTIES AND DATE. 


This Agreement is made and entered into this SEVENTEENTH day of FEBRUARY, 
2015 by and between the City of Covina, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of 
the State of California with its principal place of business at 125 East College Street, Covina, 
California 91723 ("City") and, JOHN L. HUNTER & ASSOCIATES, INC., A CALIFORNIA 
CORPORATION with its principal place of business at 6131 ORANGETHORPE AVE., SUITE 
300, BUENA PARK CALIFORNIA 90620 ("Consultant"). City and Consultant are sometimes 
individually referred to as "Party" and collectively as "Parties" in this Agreement. 

2. RECITALS. 

Consultant. 

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing ENVIRONMENTAL 
CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE 
ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PROGRAMS AND THE INDUSTRIAL WASTEIFATS, 
OILS, AND GREASE CONTROL PROGRAM (IWPIFOG) IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
STATEWIDE GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR SANITARY 
SEWER SYSTEMS to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar with 
the plans of City. 

2.1 Project 

City desires to engage Consultant to render such services TO SUPPORT THE CITY'S 
IMPLEMENT A TION OF NPDES AND IWPIFOG PROGRAMS IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS ("Project") as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to 
the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional ENVIRONMENTAL AND 
ENGINEERING consulting services necessary for the Project ("Services"). The Services are 
more particularly described in EXHIBIT "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. All Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, 
the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state 
and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 



3.1.2 Tenn. The tenn of this Agreement shall be from FEBRUARY 17, 2015 
TO JUNE 30, 2020, WITH THE OPTION OF THREE ONE (1) YEAR EXTENSIONS, unless 
earlier tenninated by mutual, written consent. Consultant shall complete the Services within the 
tenn of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines. The 
Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the tenn of this Agreement if necessary to 
complete the Services. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates: Independent Contractor. The 
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision. Consultant will determine 
the means, methods and details of perfonning the Services subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement. City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee. 
Consultant retains the right to perfonn similar or different services for others during the tenn of 
this Agreement. Any additional personnel perfonning the Services under this Agreement on 
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under 
Consultant's exclusive direction and control. Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other 
amounts due such personnel in connection with their perfonnance of Services under this 
Agreement and as required by law. Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security 
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers' 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services. Consultant shall perfonn the Services expeditiously, 
within the tenn of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in 
EXHIBIT "B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Consultant represents that 
it has the professional and technical personnel required to perfonn the Services in confonnance 
with such conditions. In order to facilitate Consultant's confonnance with the Schedule, City 
shall respond to Consultant's submittals in a timely manner. Upon request of City, Consultant 
shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated perfonnance to meet the Schedule of 
Services. 

3.2.3 Confonnance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel. Consultant has represented to City that 
certain key personnel will perfonn and coordinate the Services under this Agreement. Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 
at least equal competence upon written approval of City. In the event that City and Consultant 
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to tenninate this 
Agreement for cause. As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perfonn the 
Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 
Consultant at the request of the City. The key personnel for perfonnance of this Agreement are 
as follows: JOHN HUNTER, JILL IAN BRICKEY, MIKKI KLEE, CAMERON MC 
CULLOUGH, JOSE RODRIGUEZ, AND ANNE CHANG. 

-2



3.2.5 City's Representative. The City hereby designates VIVIAN CASTRO, or 
his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement ("City's 
Representative"). City's Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 
purposes under this Contract. Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from any person 
other than the City's Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant's Representative. Consultant hereby designates JILLIAN 
BRICKEY, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement ("Consultant's Representative"). Consultant's Representative shall have full 
authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement. 
The Consultant's Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and 
attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures 
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services. Consultant agrees to work closely with City 
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City's staff, consultants and other 
staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care: Performance of Employees. Consultant shall perform all 
Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 
generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 
California. Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 
necessary to perform the Services. Consultant warrants that all employees and subconsultants 
shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them. Finally, 
Consultant represents that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses, permits, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, 
including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement. As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement 
from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the 
Consultant's failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein. Any employee of 
the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, 
incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of 
persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner 
acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall 
not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall perform 
and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 3.1.2 above 
("Performance Time"). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict accordance with any 
completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits "A" or "B" attached hereto, or 
which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant ("Performance 
Milestones"). Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned 
Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to 
provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer 
damage. 

-3



3.2.10 Laws and Regulations; Employee/Labor Certifications. Consultant shall 
keep itself fully informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations in any manner affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including all 
CaIlOSHA requirements, and shall give all notices required by law. Consultant shall provide 
evidence of staff training on an annual basis as required by the Los Angeles County MS4 permit. 
Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations in connection with 
Services. If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and 
regulations and without giving written notice to the City, Consultant shall be solely responsible 
for all costs arising therefrom. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its officials, 
directors, officers, employees, and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged 
failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10.1 Employment Eligibility; Consultant. By executing this 
Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements and restrictions of 
state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, including, but not 
limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended from time to 
time. Such requirements and restrictions include, but are not limited to, examination and 
retention of documentation confirming the identity and immigration status of each employee of 
the Consultant. Consultant also verifies that it has not committed a violation of any such law 
within the five (5) years immediately preceding the date of execution of this Agreement, and 
shall not violate any such law at any time during the term of the Agreement. Consultant shall 
avoid any violation of any such law during the term of this Agreement by participating in an 
electronic verification of work authorization program operated by the United States Department 
of Homeland Security, by participating in an equivalent federal work authorization program 
operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly 
hired employees, or by some other legally acceptable method. Consultant shall maintain records 
of each such verification, and shall make them available to the City or its representatives for 
inspection and copy at any time during normal business hours. The City shall not be responsible 
for any costs or expenses related to Consultant's compliance with the requirements provided for 
in Section 3.2.10 or any of its sub-sections. 

3.2.10.2 Employment Eligibility; Subcontractors, Consultants, Sub
subcontractors and Subconsultants. To the same extent and under the same conditions as 
Consultant, Consultant shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, sub-subcontractors and 
subconsultants performing any work relating to the Project or this Agreement to make the same 
verifications and comply with all requirements and restrictions provided for in Section 3.2.10.1. 

3.2.10.3 Employment Eligibility: Failure to Comply. Each person 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant verifies that they are a duly authorized officer 
of Consultant, and understands that any of the following shall be grounds for the City to 
terminate the Agreement for cause: (1) failure of Consultant or its subcontractors, consultants, 
sub-subcontractors or subconsultants to meet any of the requirements provided for in Sections 
3.2.10.1 or 3.2.10.2; (2) any misrepresentation or material omission concerning compliance with 
such requirements (including in those verifications provided to the Consultant under Section 
3.2.10.2); or (3) failure to immediately remove from the Project any person found not to be in 
compliance with such requirements. 

-4



3.2.10.4 Labor Certification. By its signature hereunder, Consultant 
certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which 
require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake 
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.2.10.5 Equal Opportunity Employment. Consultant represents that it is 
an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee 
or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, 
sex or age. Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination. Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City'S Minority 
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.2.10.6 Air Quality. To the extent applicable, Consultant must fully 
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in furnishing or using equipment and/or 
providing services, including, but not limited to, emissions limits and permitting requirements 
imposed by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) and/or California Air 
Resources Board (CARB). Although the SCAQMD and CARB limits and requirements are 
more broad, Consultant shall specifically be aware of their application to "portable equipment", 
which definition is considered by SCAQMD and CARB to include any item of equipment with a 
fuel-powered engine. Consultant shall indemnify City against any fines or penalties imposed by 
SCAQMD, CARB, or any other governmental or regulatory agency for violations of applicable 
laws, rules and/or regulations by Consultant, its subconsultants, or others for whom Consultant is 
responsible under its indemnity obligations provided for in this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Insurance. 

3.2.11.1 Time for Compliance. Consultant shall not commence Services 
under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all 
insurance required under this Section. In addition, Consultant shall not allow any subconsultant 
to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that 
the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this Section. 

3.2.11.2 Minimum Requirements. Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants. 
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance 
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum 
levels of coverage: 

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as 
broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 
Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); 

-5



and (3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability: Workers' Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California and Employer's Liability Insurance. The policy shall not 
contain any exclusion contrary to the Agreement, including but not limited to endorsements or 
provisions limiting coverage for (1) contractual liability (including but not limited to ISO CG 24 
26 or 21 29); or (2) cross liability for claims or suits by one insured against another. 

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain 
limits no less than: (1) General Liability: $1,000,000 MINIMUM; per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other 
form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the 
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 
MINIMUM; per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers' 
Compensation and Employer's Liability: Workers' Compensation limits as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California. Employer's Liability limits of $1,000,000 MINIMUM; per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. Defense costs shall be paid in addition to the limits. 

C. Notices; Cancellation or Reduction of Coverage. At least 
fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of any such policy, evidence showing that such insurance 
coverage has been renewed or extended shall be filed with the City. If such coverage is 
cancelled or materially reduced, Consultant shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of written 
notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage, file with the City evidence of insurance 
showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or has been provided through another 
insurance company or companies. In the event any policy of insurance required under this 
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, the City 
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid 
by the City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or the City may withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, the City may suspend or 
terminate this Agreement. 

3.2.11.3 Professional Liability. Consultant shall procure and maintain, 
and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years following 
completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their profession. 
Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 MINIMUM; per claim, and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability. Defense costs shall be paid in addition to the limits. 

3.2.11.4 Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain 
the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

A. General Liability. The general liability policy shall include 
or be endorsed (amended) to state that: (1) using ISO CG forms 20 10 and 20 37, or 
endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the City of Covina, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to 
the Services or ongoing and completed operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, 
including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work; and (2) using 
ISO form 20 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the insurance coverage 

-6



shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the 
Consultant's scheduled underlying coverage. Any excess insurance shall contain a provision that 
such coverage shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis for the benefit of the City, 
before the City'S own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a 
named insured. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and 
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. Notwithstanding the minimum limits 
set forth in Section 3.2.11.2(B), any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of coverage shall be available to the parties required to be named as additional 
insureds pursuant to this Section 3.2.11.4(A). 

B. Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall 
include or be endorsed (amended) to state that: (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the 
ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage 
excess of the Consultant's scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall 
be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any 
way. Notwithstanding the minimum limits set forth in Section 3.2.11.2(B), any available 
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of coverage shall be available to 
the parties required to be named as additional insureds pursuant to this Section 3.2.11.4(B). 

C. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability 
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

D. All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that: (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 
or canceled except after thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment of premium) prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure 
to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, 
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its directors, officials. officers, employees, agents, 
and volunteers. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies 
including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officials, 
officers, employees. agents and volunteers, or any other additional insureds. 

3.2.11.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations; Waiver of 
Subrogation. All insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds 
provisions. In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the City. its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers. All policies shall waive any right of subrogation of the insurer against the City, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any other additional insureds, or shall 

-7



specifically allow Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these 
specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own 
right of recovery against City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any 
other additional insureds, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses 
from each of its subconsultants. 

3.2.11.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any deductibles or 
self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. Consultant shall guarantee 
that, at the option of the City, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or 
self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, 
and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and 
related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.11.7 Subconsultant Insurance Requirements. Consultant shall not 
allow any subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract relating to the work under the 
Agreement until they have provided evidence satisfactory to the City that they have secured all 
insurance required under this Section. If requested by Consultant, the City may approve 
different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subconsultants. The Consultant 
and the City shall be named as additional insureds on all subconsultants' policies of Commercial 
General Liability using ISO fonn 20 3S, or coverage at least as broad. 

3.2.11.S Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers 
with a current A.M. Best's rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and 
satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.11.9 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish City with 
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
Agreement on fonns satisfactory to the City. The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf, and shall be on fonns provided by the City if requested. All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences. The City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 

3.2.11.10 Reporting of Claims. Consultant shall report to the City, in 
addition to Consultant's insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in 
connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.12 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 
injury or damage to any person or property. In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at 
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, 
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature 
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be perfonned. Safety precautions as 
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to: (A) adequate life protection and life saving 
equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and 
subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, 
confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, 

-S

http:3.2.11.10


equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or 
injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety 
measures. 

3.2.13 Accounting Records. Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate 
records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement. All such records 
shall be clearly identifiable. Consultant shall allow a representative of City during normal 
business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 
documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work, 
data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) 
years from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth 
in Exhibit "c" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The total compensation 
shall not exceed ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY- FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS PER 
FISCAL YEAR ($125,000.00 PER FISCAL YEAR) without written approval of the CITY 
MANAGER. Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be 
compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to City a monthly 
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by 
Consultant. The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the 
initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, 
through the date of the statement. City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review 
the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 
expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 
request that Consultant perform Extra Work. As used herein, "Extra Work" means any work 
which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which 
the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement. 
Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization 
from City'S Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California 
Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 
Title 8, Section 16000, et seq., ("Prevailing Wage Laws"), which require the payment of 
prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on "public works" and 
"maintenance" projects. If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable "public 
works" or "maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage 
Laws. City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in 

-9

http:125,000.00


effect at the commencement of this Agreement. Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing 
rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the 
Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant's 
principal place of business and at the project site. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or 
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Termination of Agreement. 

3.4.1 Grounds for Termination. City may, by written notice to Consultant, 
terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving 
written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at 
least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination. Upon termination, Consultant 
shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and 
Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation. Consultant may not terminate this 
Agreement except for cause. 

3.4.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, 
City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and other 
information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of Services 
under this Agreement. Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other 
information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.4.3 Additional Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated in whole or 
in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may 
determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property. This Agreement 
creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or sublicense 
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, 
studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible 
medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically or 
otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by 
Consultant under this Agreement ("Documents & Data"). All Documents & Data shall be and 
remain the property of City, and shall not be used in whole or in substantial part by Consultant 
on other projects without the City's express written permission. Within thirty (30) days 
following the completion, suspension, abandonment or termination of this Agreement, 
Consultant shall provide to City reproducible copies of all Documents & Data, in a form and 
amount required by City. City reserves the right to select the method of document reproduction 
and to establish where the reproduction will be accomplished. The reproduction expense shall be 
borne by City at the actual cost of duplication. In the event of a dispute regarding the amount of 
compensation to which the Consultant is entitled under the termination provisions of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide all Documents & Data to City upon payment of the 
undisputed amount. Consultant shall have no right to retain or fail to provide to City any such 
documents pending resolution of the dispute. In addition, Consultant shall retain copies of all 

-10



Documents & Data on file for a minimum of fifteen (15) years following completion of the 
Project. and shall make copies available to City upon the payment of actual reasonable 
duplication costs. Before destroying the Documents & Data following this retention period, 
Consultant shall make a reasonable effort to notify City and provide City with the opportunity to 
obtain the documents. 

3.5.2 Subconsultants. Consultant shall require all subconsultants to agree in 
writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any Documents & Data the 
subconsultant prepares under this Agreement. Consultant represents and warrants that 
Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data. Consultant makes no 
such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data which were prepared by design 
professionals other than Consultant or its subconsultants, or those provided to Consultant by the 
City. 

3.5.3 Right to Use. City shall not be limited in any way in its use or reuse of the 
Documents and Data or any part of them at any time for purposes of this Project or another 
project, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement or on a 
project other than this Project without employing the services of Consultant shall be at City's 
sole risk. If City uses or reuses the Documents & Data on any project other than this Project, it 
shall remove the Consultant's seal from the Documents & Data and indemnify and hold harmless 
Consultant and its officers, directors, agents and employees from claims arising out of the 
negligent use or re-use of the Documents & Data on such other project. Consultant shall be 
responsible and liable for its Documents & Data, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, only 
with respect to the condition of the Documents & Data at the time they are provided to the City 
upon completion, suspension, abandonment or termination. Consultant shall not be responsible 
or liable for any revisions to the Documents & Data made by any party other than Consultant, a 
party for whom the Consultant is legally responsible or liable, or anyone approved by the 
Consultant. 

3.5.4 Indemnification. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the 
indemnification provisions of this Agreement, for any alleged infringement of any patent, 
copyright, trade secret, trade name, trademark, or any other proprietary right of any person or 
entity in consequence of the use on the Project by City of Covina the Documents & Data, 
including any method, process, product, or concept specified or depicted. 

3.5.5 Confidentiality. All Documents & Data, either created by or provided to 
Consultant in connection with the performance of this Agreement, shall be held confidential by 
Consultant. All Documents & Data shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used 
or reproduced by Consultant for any purposes other than the performance of the Services. 
Consultant shall not disclose, cause or facilitate the disclosure of the Documents & Data to any 
person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project. Nothing 
furnished to Consultant that is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has 
become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential. Consultant shall not use 
City'S name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or 
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other 
similar medium without the prior written consent of City. 

-11



3.6 General Provisions. 

3.6.1 Delivery of Notices. All notices pennitted or required under this 
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other 
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Consultant: 

JOHN L. HUNTER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
6131 ORANGETHORPE AVE., SUITE 300 
BUENA PARK, CALIFORNIA 90620 
ATTN: JILLIAN BRICKEY, 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS MANAGER 

City: 
CITY OF COVINA 
125 E. COLLEGE STREET 
COVINA, CA 91723 
ATTN: VIVIAN CASTRO, PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 
its applicable address. Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 
occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.6.2 Indemnification. 

3.6.2.1 Scope of Indemnity. To the fullest extent pennitted by law, 
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
volunteers and agents free and hannless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or 
persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any 
alleged acts, errors or omissions of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors, 
consultants or agents in connection with the perfonnance of the Consultant's Services, the 
Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all consequential 
damages, expert witness fees and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Consultant's Services are subject to Civil Code 
Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code 
Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or 
willful misconduct of the Consultant. 

3.6.2.2 Additional Indemnity Obligations. Consultant shall defend, with 
Counsel of City's choosing and at Consultant's own cost, expense and risk, any and all claims, 
suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by Section 3.6.2.1 that may be brought 
or instituted against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents. 
Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against 
City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such 

-12



claim, suit, action or other proceeding. Consultant shall also reimburse City for the cost of any 
settlement paid by City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers as part 
of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding. Such reimbursement shall include payment 
for City's attorney's fees and costs, including expert witness fees. Consultant shall reimburse 
City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all 
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the 
indemnity herein provided. Consultant's obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received 
by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.6.3 Governing Law: Government Code Claim Compliance. This Agreement 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in Los Angeles County. 
In addition to any and all contract requirements pertaining to notices of and requests for 
compensation or payment for extra work, disputed work, claims and/or changed conditions, 
Consultant must comply with the claim procedures set forth in Government Code sections 900 et 
seq. prior to filing any lawsuit against the City. Such Government Code claims and any 
subsequent lawsuit based upon the Government Code claims shall be limited to those matters 
that remain unresolved after all procedures pertaining to extra work, disputed work, claims, 
and/or changed conditions have been followed by Consultant. If no such Government Code 
claim is submitted, or if any prerequisite contractual requirements are not otherwise satisfied as 
specified herein, Consultant shall be barred from bringing and maintaining a valid lawsuit 
against the City. 

3.6.4 
this Agreement. 

Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

3.6.5 City's Right to Employ Other Consultants. City reserves right to employ 
other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.6.6 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.6.7 Assignment or Transfer. Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 
prior written consent of the City. Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.6.8 Construction: References: Captions. Since the Parties or their agents have 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party. Any 
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 
work days. All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement. All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement. The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 

-13



convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content or intent of this Agreement. 

3.6.9 Amendment: Modification. No supplement, modification or amendment of 
this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.6.10 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition. No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.6.11 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except to the extent expressly provided for 
in Section 3.6.7, there are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed 
by the Parties. 

3.6.12 Invalidity; Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.6.13 Prohibited Interests. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. Consultant further 
agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic 
Interest with the City's Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 
Services. For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 
Agreement without liability. For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.6.14 Cooperation; Further Acts. The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.6.15 Attorney's Fees. If either party commences an action against the other 
party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing party reasonable attorney's fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.6.16 Authority to Enter Agreement. Consultant has all requisite power and 
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement. Each Party 
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.6.17 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an originaL 

-14



3.6.18 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings or agreements. This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by 
both parties. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

-15



------------------------

-------------------------

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINA 


AND JOHN L. HUNTER AND ASSOCIATES 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the 
SEVENTEENTH day of FEBRUARY, 2015. 

CITY OF COVINA 

By: Attest: 

City Manager Senior Deputy City Clerk 

JOHN L. HUNTER AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. 

By: By: 
(Signature) (Signature) 


Name (Print) Name (Print) 


Title (Print) Title (Print) 


-16



EXHIBIT"A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 


As assigned by the City, the Consultant will provide support services to City staff in the development, implementation and 
enforcement of programs and projects for compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4), Industrial, and Construction permits. 

Tasks will be assigned by the City via written communications (including email) to the Consultant. John L. Hunter and 
Associates shall provide services to the City of Covina on an as-needed basis per the Schedule in Exhibit Band 
Compensation in Exhibit C. Work may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

• 	 Program Assistance - Assess compliance provisions, oversee implementation of NPDES program elements, 
train client staff, serve as client contact and represent client in program audits. 

• 	 Plan Development - Prepare documents such as TMDL Implementation Plans, Storm water QualitylWatershed 
Management Programs and Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans. 

• 	 Permitting - Administer environmental permitting programs (such as Industrial Waste Permit [IWP] /Fats, Oils 
and Grease [FOG] Control). 

• 	 Plan Review - Review new development plans to address risks and assess regulatory compliance related to the 
sanitary and storm drain systems (e.g. Standard Urban Stormwater Management Plans [SUSMPs]/Low Impact 
Development [LID] Plans, Green Streets Plans and Water Quality Management Plans [WQMPs]). 

• 	 Public Outreach - Produce and deliver relevant outreach materials to facilities and hold educational events. 
Develop and implement outreach campaigns to public and private sectors. 

• 	 Site inspections - Conduct field Best Management Practice (BMP) inspections at industrial, commercial, 

municipal and construction sites. 


• 	 Facilities Inspections - Inspect facilities for compliance with Industrial Waste Permit and/or as required by 
NPDES permits, such as IWP inspections and inspection of SUSMP and LID treatment systems and post
construction BMP implementation and maintenance. 

• 	 Investigations and Enforcement - Investigation potential violations and issue enforcement actions to 

noncompliant facilities. 


• 	 Reporting - Prepare Annual Reports for NPDES MS4, Construction, Industrial and Individual Permits. 

• 	 Training - Conduct program training for municipal staff, consultants, contractors and businesses. 

• 	 Studies - Conduct studies and prepare subsequent reports such as determining Trash Daily Generation Rates 
(DGRs) for Trash TMDLs. 

• 	 Municipal Program - Audit, develop, implement and prepare Public Agency Activities as mandated by state 
law. 

For plan review services, Consultant shall provide the City with a written list of items needing clarification, corrections, or 
change to achieve conformance with all laws, regulations, and codes. This document shall be in electronic format. 

For plan review services, Consultant shall review plans delivered via electronic submission/format, generally in PDF. 
Only final plans, forms or documents requiring wet signatures ready to be stamped for approval will be provided in hard 
copy format to the Consultant. Three sets of such hard copy documents will be submitted to the consultant. 

For plan review, inspection, enforcement services and other services, Consultant shall input required information about 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) in private development, redevelopment, and City projects into the City's internet
based tracking software/ database. 



All forms, documents, reports and materials created by the consultant become the property of the City. Documents, 
forms, templates, outreach, or informational materials shall be provided in original editable files to the City. 

Consultant may be required to attend meetings on the City's behalf at the request of the Environmental Services Manager 
and attend City Council meetings. 

18 




EXHIBIT "B" 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 


Consultant shall perform tasks as assigned by the City within specified timelines and in accordance with timelines 
specified in the various NPDES permits, including the Los Angeles County MS4 Permit, and federal and state water and 
wastewater laws and regulations. 

Consultant shall provide written comments for initial and subsequent review to the City no later than 10 working days 
from date of receipt of the plans. Consultant shall provide comments for expedited plan reviews within 3 working days of 
receipt of the plans at the cost specified in Exhibit C. 

19 




EXIDBIT "C" 
COMPENSATION 

STANDARD RATE SCHEDULE 

Principal/Staff Engineer 

Environmental Compliance ManagerlProject Engineer/Public Outreach Manager 

Expedited Plan Review - Staff EngUleer/ Project Engineer 

Environmental Compliance Specialist 

Environmental Outreach Specialist 

Laborer (OSHA 40hr celtilied) 

State Certified Laboratory Analysis 

Legal Consultation. court AppearancesIDocument re,,'iew, etc. 

Inspection - Industrial/commercial facilities 

Inspection - State Industrial General Permit Facilities 

Inspection - Combined CBR/FOG 

Inspection - FOG only 

Subcontracted equipment 

5145/hr 

$125/hr 

$190/hr 

S95/hr 

$85/hr 

Cost +5% 

$250/hr 

$125Jinspection 

$250/inspection 

$l50/inspection 

$115/inspection 

Cost +5% 

JlHA does not add charges for overhead items st1ch as administrative copying or mileage in and around the city. 

20 




CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 12 

STAFF SOURCE: Alex Gonzalez, Interim Director of Public Works ~ 
Amy Hall-McGrade, Parks & Recreation and Library Services Director 
Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager 

ITEM TITLE: Approve Option Agreement to Purchase Equipment from Covina Rents 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Option Agreement with Covina Rents for the future purchase of used equipment and small 
tools and authorize the Acting City Manager or his designee to execute all related documents on the 
City's behalf. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funds for the purchase of these items are not budgeted and will be included in a future budget 
adjustment, as the equipment and tools will not be procured until early summer 2015. The purchase 
costs will be supported by the following funds: FY 14-15 and FY 15-16 savings in the Equipment 
fund (7010), Water fund (6010), and General Fund Parks and Recreation (1010). A future staff report 
will be presented to Council, once the final list of items has been identified and a pricing structure has 
been established. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Covina Public Works and Parks and Recreation Departments regularly purchase 
materials and rent equipment from Covina Rents. 

The owners of Covina Rents will be retiring and plan to close their business in the summer of 2015. 
The business owners have informed staff of their intention to close the business and have provided 
the City the option of purchasing the equipment and small tools that it currently obtains from Covina 
Rents before these items are offered to other potential customers. The City would inspect and take 
possession of the equipment and small tools once Covina Rents closes, to ensure that the business 
remains viable until the owners complete their transition to retirement. 

Public Works and Parks and Recreation staff visited the facility and inspected the used equipment 
and small tools available for sale. Staff found the equipment to be in excellent condition and being 
offered to the City at a significantly discounted rate. Exhibit A lists the equipment that City staff is 
interested in purchasing, the sale price at which Covina Rents is offering the equipment to the City, 
the price of the equipment if purchased new, and the price of the equipment in used condition being 
sold by other vendors/sellers. 

Based on these price comparisons and the frequent rental of these items from Covina Rents, staff 
believes that purchasing this equipment will save the City money over time and will guarantee: 1) a 



reliable, conveniently located local source of concrete at a wholesale price which can later be 
leveraged as a future revenue stream for the City, 2) the ability of parks and recreation staff to service 
street banners and replace lighting in City parks with the acquisition of an aerial lift and a scissor lift 
which have been requested in the FY 15-16 budget, 3) provide the water crew a needed trailer at a 
fraction of the cost of a new trailer which is requested in the FY 15-16 budget, and 4) provide parks 
and recreation staff access to the equipment and small tools that they currently rent, with a future 
savings of rental costs and the cost of labor that will be necessary to travel to the next nearest rental 
facility in Pomona when Covina Rents ceases operations. 

As one example of the opportunity available with this agreement, Public Works would like to 
purchase a concrete batch plant and eight two-yard concrete trailers that are being offered at a total 
cost of $20,000. Similar equipment would cost $90,000 to purchase new and is being sold elsewhere 
in used condition at $75,000. The Streets and Water Divisions currently purchase batches of concrete 
from Covina Rents for close to $200 a yard. By purchasing and installing the concrete batch plant at 
the City Yard, City staff will have access to concrete at an estimated cost of less than $50 a yard. 
With proper staffing of the concrete batch plant (0.50 full-time equivalent positions funded by the 
future sale of concrete) and appropriate placement in the City Yard, the City could introduce a new 
revenue stream with the installation of the concrete batch plant and also address limited funding for 
sidewalk, curb and gutter repairs by performing concrete repairs in house with existing staff at a 
wholesale cost for materials. 

Other neighboring cities, utilities and school districts currently purchase concrete batches from 
Covina Rents, which is one of the last such remaining suppliers in the San Gabriel Valley. The next 
closest batch plant facilities are in Pasadena and Ontario, however the required travel time and 
distance compromise the quality of the material and require incurring additional expenditures in staff 
travel times. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
This item is directly relevant to the City'S Strategic Plan enhancing the financial well-being of the 
City by: securing low-cost equipment and small tools that would otherwise have to be purchased by 
the City at a higher cost, and providing a possible future revenue source to the City. 

EXHIBITS 
A. Equipment List and Purchase Price 
B. Agreement with Covina Rents for the Purchase of Used Equipment and Small Tools 
C. Equipment Price Comparison Documentation 

Finance Director: -----'~-r------

==~~~~~~___Other: ____________________________ 



EXHIBIT A 

REQUESTED DEPARTMENT USED PRICE - COVINA RENTS PRICE FOR NEW ITEM USED PRICE - OTHER SELLERS 

PARKS & REC. 
EAGLE 40H LIFT 

20 FT SCISSOR LIFT 

$10,000.00 

$6,000.00 

$41,000.00 

$23,000.00 
$35,000.00 

$8,100.00 

STREETS 
CONCRETE BATCH PLANT 

(WITH 8 TWO-YARD 

CONCRETE TRAilERS) $20,000.00 $90,000.00 $75,000.00 

WATER 
UTILITY TRAILER $1,000.00 15,000.00 7,000.00 

PARKS & REC. 
100 FT. SNAKE 

7,500 WAn GENERATOR 

TRIPOD WORK STATION 

ElECTRIC JACK HAMMER 

MITER SAW 

SMALL POWER WASHER 

ROTARY HAMMER 

$1,000.00 

$300.00 

$100.00 

~ 

$4,500.00 

$999.00 

$332.00 

$4,000,00 
$649,99 

$5,000.00 

$850.00 

$1,330.00 

$400.00 

$275.00 

$800.00 

$495.98 

$2,629,00 

$800.00 



EXHIBIT B 


EQUIPMENT AND SMALL TOOL PURCHASE OPTION AGREEMENT 

This Equipment and Small Tool Purchase Option Agreement (the "Agreement") is 
entered into this February 17,2015 ("Effective Date"), by and between COVINA RENTS, INC., 
a California corporation ("Owner") and the City of Covina, California, a California municipal 
corporation ("City"), with reference to the following recitals, terms and conditions. Owner and 
City may be referred to herein individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties". 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Owner is the owner of certain equipment and related small tools that 
Owner uses for its business, as more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the "Equipment"). 

B. WHEREAS, Owner intends to cease its business operations within approximately 
the next year, at which point its Equipment will be surplus property. 

C. WHEREAS, Owner desires to grant to City, and City desires to obtain from 
Owner, an option to purchase the Equipment after Owner ceases its business operations, on the 
terms and conditions set forth herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 

GRANT OF OPTIONITERM 

1.1 Grant of Option/Term. Owner hereby grants to City an exclusive option 
to purchase the Equipment on the terms and conditions set forth herein (the "Option"). The 
Option shall become effective upon the Effective Date and shall expire ninety (90) calendar days 
following City's receipt of Owner's Business Cessation Notice (defined below). The Parties 
may extend the Term of the Option by mutual \vritten amendment. 

1.2 Owner's Business Cessation Notice. Not later than thirty (30) calendar 
days after Owner ceases its business operations and its use of the Equipment, Owner shall sent a 
written notice of this fact to City ("Business Cessation Notice"). 

Exhibit B, 7 Pages 

65002.01000\9556433.2 



ARTICLE 2 


OPTION FEE 


2.1 In exchange for the Option, City shall pay to Owner a non-refundable fee 
in the amount often dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration ("Option Fee"). 
City shall pay the Option Fee to City not later than fifteen (15) days after the Effective Date. 

ARTICLE 3 

PURCHASE PRICE 

3.1 If City exercises the Option, the purchase price for the Equipment shall be 
FOURTY THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($40,300.00) ("Purchase Price"). City 
shall pay the Purchase Price to Owner in a single payment drawn upon immediately available 
funds at the time it takes possession of the Equipment as set forth below. 

ARTICLE 4 

MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENTILIENS 

4.1 Maintenance of Equipment. Throughout the term of this Agreement, 
Owner shall use reasonable means to maintain the Equipment in good working order, reasonable 
wear and tear excepted. Owner shall not be required to take extraordinary measures to maintain 
or repair the Equipment to the extent such maintenance or repair would not be cost effective for 
Owner. 

4.2 Representation - No Liens, Etc. on Equipment Owner represents and 
warrants that the Equipment is free and clear of all levies, claims, liens and encumbrances. In 
addition, Owner has no knowledge of any existing or threatened actions, suits or legal 
proceedings affecting the Equipment or any portion thereof. 

4.3 Keep Equipment Free of Liens, Etc. Owner shall keep the Equipment free 
from levies, legal process, taxes and other claims, liens, and encumbrances. Upon request by 
City, Owner shall provide proof of payment of any taxes or other charges, the nonpayment of 
which may result in a lien on the Equipment. Owner shall promptly notify City in writing of any 
liens or other encumbrances on the Equipment of which Owner has knowledge. Owner will 
promptly payor satisfy any obligation from which any lien, claim or encumbrance arises. If City 
exercises the Option, Owner shall pay all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees that City 
may incur in defending or removing any prohibited claim, lien, or encumbrance caused by 
Owner on the Equipment, which City may deduct from the Purchase Price. 

65002.0 I 000\9556433.2 2 

http:40,300.00


ARTICLES 


TITLE/OWNERSHIP TO EQUIPMENT 


5.1 Owner hereby represents that it has good and marketable title to the 
Equipment and has the authority under the laws of the State of California to convey such title to 
City upon City's exercise of the Option and completion of the purchase. 

5.2 Notwithstanding City's exercise of the Option as set forth herein, all risk 
of loss to the Equipment shall remain with Owner until the sale of the Equipment is complete, at 
which point the risk ofloss shall pass entirely to City. 

ARTICLE 6 

CITY'S RIGHT OF INSPECTIONIEXERCISE OF OPTION TO PURCHASE 

6.1 Inspection by City. At any time after City's receipt of Owner's Business 
Cessation Notice, City will have the right (but not the obligation) to inspect the Equipment and 
to enter upon Owner's premises where the Equipment is located, during Owner's regular 
business hours and upon forty-eight (48) hours prior notice to Owner. City shall conduct such 
inspection as it deems necessary to properly assess the functioning of the Equipment, including 
seeing the Equipment in operation. City shall not disassemble or remove any parts from the 
Equipment without the consent of Owner. City may conduct follow-up inspections of the 
Equipment, if necessary. 

6.2 City's Release upon Unsuccessful Inspection. If City, in City's sole and 
absolute discretion, determines that the Equipment is no longer desirable, suitable, needed, 
wanted, or otherwise satisfactory, City shall give written notice to Owner of such fact. Upon 
Owner's receipt of such notice, this Agreement shall immediately terminate and City shall have 
no obligation to purchase the Equipment. 

6.3 City's Exercise of Option upon Successful Inspection. If City, in its sole 
and absolute discretion, determines that the Equipment is desirable, suitable, needed, wanted, or 
otherwise satisfactory for its purposes, City shall give to Owner, no later than the expiration date 
set forth in Section 1.1 above, written notice that it is exercising the Option ("Option Exercise 
Notice"), and City shall purchase of the Equipment as set forth in Article 7 below. 

6.4 No Alteration, Modification or Operation of Equipment After Inspection. 
After Owner's receipt of City's Option Exercise Notice, Owner shall make no alterations or 
modifications to the Equipment nor shall it operate the Equipment without the prior written 
consent of City. If the Equipment is altered, modified or operated in violation of this Section 
6.4, City reserves the right to revoke its Option Exercise Notice and not to purchase the 
Equipment. Prior to completing the purchase, City may conduct a final inspection of the 
Equipment to verifY compliance with this Section. 

65002.0 I 000\9556433.2 3 



ARTICLE 7 

PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT 

7.1 Purchase of Equipment/Delivery of Possession. If City exercises the 
Option, City shall purchase the Equipment from Owner for the Purchase Price not later than 
THIRTY (30) days after Owner's receipt of City's Option Exercise Notice. Title to the 
Equipment shall be conveyed by Owner to City by a title certificate, bill of sale, or other transfer 
document acceptable to City. The Parties shall agree to a date when Owner shall deliver 
possession of the Equipment to City, at which time, City shall deliver to Owner the Purchase 
Price as a single payment drawn upon immediately available funds. City shall be responsible for 
transport of the Equipment from Owner's premises, at no cost to Owner. Owner shall reasonably 
cooperate with City in registering, recording or filing any documents evidencing the transfer of 
title from Owner to City. 

7.2 Taxes. In addition to the Purchase Price, City shall be responsible for the 
payment of any and all sales taxes, use taxes, personal property taxes, or other taxes or 
governmental charges assessed in connection with the purchase of the Equipment. 

7.3 Other Charges. Upon the purchase of the Equipment, City shall be 
responsible for any and all fees or expenses for licenses, registrations, permits, and other 
certificates that may be required for the lawful transfer or ownership and operation of the 
Equipment. 

7.4 Taxes Paid by Owner. If a government authority requires that any tax, 
assessment, fee, or other charge as set forth in Sections 7.2 and 7.3 above, be paid directly by 
Owner, City will, to the greatest extent allowed under the law, pay that tax, assessment, fee or 
other charge on Owner's behalf directly to the government authority. Should the government 
authority not accept payment from anyone other than Owner, City shall promptly reimburse 
Owner the amount of any such tax, assessment, fee or other charge. 

7.5 Equipment Purchased in "As Is" Condition. City expressly acknowledges 
that it is purchasing the Equipment hereunder on an "AS-IS, WHERE-IS" basis, without 
warranty as to condition or function, except that (i) there shall be no liens or encumbrances on 
the Equipment created by or for the benefit of Owner and Oi) there shall be no alteration, 
modification or operation of the Equipment without City's consent after the inspection. 

ARTICLE 8 

NOTICES 

8.1 Service of Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any 
notices or other communications required or permitted by this Agreement or by law to be served 
on or given to either Party by the other Party shall be in writing and will be deemed duly served 
or given when personally delivered to the Party to whom they are directed, or in lieu of personal 
service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to City 
or to Owner at the address set forth on the signature page to this Agreement. Notice shall be 
deemed received immediately upon personal delivery or three (3) calendar days after its deposit 

65002.01000\9556433.2 4 



in the United States mail. Either Party may change its address by giving \\ITitten notice of the 
change to the other Party in the manner provided in this Paragraph. 

ARTICLE 9 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

9.1 This Agreement may not be amended, modified, or altered in any manner 
except in writing signed by both parties. 

9.2 This Agreement and the attached Exhibits constitute the entire agreement 
between the parties with regard to the Equipment. No agreements, representations, or warranties 
other than those specifically set forth in this Agreement or in the attached Exhibits will be 
binding on any of the parties unless set forth in writing and signed by both parties. 

9.3 This Agreement will be governed by the laws of California. 

9.4 This Agreement and each of its provisions will be binding on and will 
inure to the benefit of the respective heirs, executors, administrators, trustees, successors and 
assigns of the parties to this Agreement. Nothing contained in this paragraph will be construed 
as a consent by Owner or City to any assignment of this Agreement or any interest in this 
Agreement. 

9.5 Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

9.6 The prevailing party in any judicial or non-judicial action or arbitration 
brought to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be entitled to an award of its expenses 
incurred in connection therewith, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. 

9.7 If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any of its 
provisions to any party or circumstance is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement, and the application of those provisions to the other parties or circumstances, will 
remain valid and in full force and effect. 

Signatures on Next Page 

65002.01000\9556433.2 5 



----------------

----------------------------

---------------------------

---------------------------

Dated: OWNER: 

COVINA RENTS, INC., 
a California corporation 

By: 
Edward Starnes 
Title 

By: 

Name 

Title 

Address of Owner: 
457 E San Bernardino Road 
Covina, CA 91723 

CITY: 

City of Covina, California, 
a California municipal corporation 

By: 
Kim Raney, Acting City Manager 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

65002.0 I 000\9556433.2 6 



EXHIBIT"A" 


LIST AND DESCRIPTION OF EQUIPMENT 


REQUESTED 

DEPARTMENT USED PRICE - COVINA RENTS PRICE FOR NEW ITEM USED PRICE - OTHER SElLERS 

PARKS & REC. 

EAGLE 40H LIFT $10,000.00 $41,000.00 $35,000.00 

20 FT SCISSOR LIFT $6,000.00 $23,000.00 $8,100.00 

STREETS 
CONCRETE BATCH PLANT 

(WITH 8 TWO-YARD 

CONCRETE TRAILERS) $20,000.00 $90,000.00 $75,000.00 

WATER 

UTI LlTY TRAI LE R $1,000.00 15,000.00 7,000.00 

PARKS & REC. 

100 FT. SNAKE $1000.00 $4,500.00 $1330.00 

7,500 WAn GENERATOR $300.00 $999.00 $400.00 

TRIPOD WORK STATION $100.00 $332.00 $275.00 

ELECTRIC JACK HAMMER $600.00 $4,000.00 $800.00 

MITER SAW $300.00 $649.99 $495.98 

SMALL POWER WASHER $600.00 $5,000.00 $2,629.00 

ROTARY HAMMER $400.00 $850.00 $800.00 

65002.01000\9556433.2 



EXHIBITC 


Power Tools \ Drain Cleaning Equipment \ Drain Cleaning Machines \ Drain Cleaning Machlne.115VAC 

Bad( to Product Family 

",' ~ 

AI How can we .mprove our Product Images? 


Compare 


Technical Specs 

Drain Cleaning Machine 

Drain Line U.l. Size 3" to 10" 
Rang!; 

250 It 

HP 4110 

OperaUn9 Spet¥! 200 rpm 

Drain Cleaning Machine, 115V %RIDGID 

Check Availability ~ Your Price 

$3,255.20 I each o 
list Price 
$406900/ each 

Add to CO2" 

+Add to list 

'* -It I I 5.0 of 5 I 1 review I Write a Review I k & Answer 

Item # 4CX14 Mfr. Model # 60052 UNSPSC # 47121808 

Catalog Page # 1186 Shrpprng Weight 287.0 bs. 

country of Origin USA I Country of Ongin IS subject 10 chang<! 

*4500 
~~""$~ 

115VAC 

Hz 60 

125 ft. of 3 'I" or 150 ft. 01518" Cable 

Audio and Visual Signal$ Obstruction 
and Redu ed Drum Speed, Adjustable 
Handle, G I Protected 

In x 100 Ft Inner CO"" Cable. 
ar Blade Cutter. (lVXEI.I) 

(1VXF1J 2 In, {1VXF2j 3 
I 4 and 8 In Double 
Cuttllr 81a e Only, (1VXE9) Spiral 
Sawtooth utter. (1VXE6J3 tn P.lrlllp 
Culler, (1V G2)314 In l( 2 Ft Fled!>le 
Leader, He Key, Pair of Gloves, Tool SOl( 

https:/ Iwww.grainger.com/product/RIDGID-Drain-Cleaning -Machine-4CX 

Exhibit C, 12 Pages 

4 ?functionCod... 2/4/2015 

http:3,255.20


Ridgid K 400 Drain Cleaning Machine Used Local Pickup NJ I eBay 

Hit Sign in or register Gill Cards Sell Help & ContacI 

ShOp by Search...category 

f:lack to search results I Usted In aolegory: Suslness &. Industrial,. MRO &. Industrial Supply;> Pumps &. Plumbing" Plum 

Mou•• over image to zoom 

• 
Have one to HlI? Sell now 

People lNho viewed this item also viewed 

I 
USEDMYTANA USEOMYTANA 
DRAIN CLEANING DRAIN CLEANING 
MACHINE MACHINE... 

$500.00 $500.00 
euv rt Now Buy It Now 

Free shipping FrH .hlpplng 

Shipping and payments 

Seller aSllU~ all re$pOOsibilily fOr this listing. 

Item apacifies 


Condition: 


Model: k-400 

http://www.ebay.comlitmiRidgid-K-400-Drain-Cleaning-Machine-USED-

Rldgld K-400 Drain Cleaning M chine ·USEO* Local Pickup 
NJ 

I Add to walch list 
.. 1 viewed per hour 

Seller: rkatarwars (41182 ) _ H.8% Positive feedback 

Follow Ihis seller I See otfleritems I Vi.ils 

Item condition: Used 

Price: US $329.99 

11 WlltChlng 

3o.day returns 

Shipping: 

Delivery: 

Payments: 

Returns: 

Guarantee: 

Brand: 

Spend $99+ and get 8 month 

~ 

30 days money back, bu 

ridgid 

Buy It No 

Page 1 of5 

MyeBay 

:vl Search 

FAST CASH ON THE SPOT 

Buy It Now 


Add to cart 


Add to watch list 


Add 10 coliec!ion 


Experienced seller 

10 pay ~ I ~ 

paye retum shipping I ~ 


I~ 


Feedback on our suggesliOna 

General E 
ERSewer 
Pipe... 

'8S0.0( 
eUY It No" 

Print I Report item 

.Say item number. 38112_1487 

cal-Pickup-NJ-... 2/512015 

Free Local Pid<up I 

Varies 

l'arPal CIIDII' 

http://www.ebay.comlitmiRidgid-K-400-Drain-Cleaning-Machine-USED


Generac GP7500E Electric Start 7500 Watt GP Portable Generator 5943 20cc OHV 696... Page 1 of7 

MyeBayHit Sign in CK register Daily DealS Gift Can:Is Sell Help & Contact 

Search AdvancedSearch ... AlICaebEtY :tC:go~ 
Back to search results I Usted in catl!!/OrY: Home 8. Garden " Tools " Generators 

Generac GP7500E Electric S rt 7500 Watt GP Portable 
Generator 5943 420cc OHV 

s.....tller He",. I Visit.t : OMB Wareilouse 

New 

Id 

Seller : ombwarehouse (28457 

Follow this seller I 

Item condition: 

Quantity: 

Price: US $999.00 

F.....hlpping 

Shipping: 

MOUM over image to zoom 

Delivery: 

Payments: 

Have one to seD? Sell now 

Returns: 

Guarantee: 

People who viewed this item also viewed 

Generac GP1500E Generac GP1500E 
1500 Watt, 120124... GP Series 7,500 

Watt ... 

$999.00 $1.059.00 
Buy It Now Buy It Now 

Free shiPP'f19 Freeshlp 

Buy It No 

-.:.OIl 

New condition 

I~ 

Feedback on our suggeatfOllS 

DescrIption Shipping lind payments 

Seller assumes 1111 responsibility for this listing. 


Last updated on Jan 26, 201516:49:19 PST View all revisions 


Item specificS 

Condition: Brand: Generac 

Generator Type: Portable AC Max Oulput 9375Watl 

MPN: 5943-4, 5978·2, 5943-5, GP1500E UPC: 696471059434 

http://www.ebay.comlitmlGenerac-GP7500E-Electric-Start-7500-Watt-GP

I Add to watch list 

Buy It Now 


Add to cart 


Add to watch list 


Add to colledion 


Genarac E 
Portable E 

$1.267. 
8uy It No.. 

ng FraShlppl 

Print I Report item 

aSay item numboc 18125!i7!!88i!2 

ortable-Genera... 2/4/2015 

http://www.ebay.comlitmlGenerac-GP7500E-Electric-Start-7500-Watt-GP
http:1.059.00


--

Generac GP7500E 7500 Watt Electric Start Portable Generator 5943 IeB y Page 1 of3 

HI! Sign in or register Dally Deals Gift Cards Sell Help & Cont.ac:t 

Shop by Search", AIcategory 

II!Ick to sean:l1 results I Usted in category: auslness &. Industrial > Ught Equipment &. Tools > G_rators 

Generac - GP7500E 7500 Watt 
Generator 5943 

Seller: b1a.audlo_apple (525 ) 100'1{, P 

F allow this seller I S... oilier items 

Item condition: Used 

Time lell: 4d 04h ~.e:l8P" 

Starting bid: US $400.00 

Enter us $400,00 or m~ 

Mouse over image to zoom 

Have one to sell1 Sell now 

People who viewed this item also viewed 

Gensl1Ic 15000 Willi 
Generator 

$375.00$200.00 
o bids o bids 

Shipping and payments 

Seller assumes all responsibility for this listing. 


Last updated on Feb 04, 2015 03:22:21 PST View all revisions 


Item specifics 

Condition: Brand: Genorac 

Type: Portable Model: 5943 

http://www.ebay.comlitmlGenerac-GP7500E-7500-Watt-Electric-Start-Po 

Free local pickup 

Shipping: FI'M Local Pickup I 

Delivery: Varies 

Payments: 

Returns: 

Guarantee: 

Genel1lC . GP7500E 
7500 watt Eiactr!C., , 

es Search Advance<! 

Electric Slart Portable 

I Add to watch list 

ltin ,""back 

[ObidS) 


Place bid 


Add to watch list 


Adq to OOIlection 


100% positive feedback 

, --..j... 

.:.....I -
ma. You are covered by the aBay Money 


'ved an item that is nat as deecribed in 


I~ 
get your money bac.k. 


original Shipping. 


Feedback on our suggasllons 

Titan B()()( 
Generator 

$400.0( 
Buy It No~ 

Print I Report item 

ble-Generator-... 2/4/2015 

http://www.ebay.comlitmlGenerac-GP7500E-7500-Watt-Electric-Start-Po


INGERSOLL-RAND Air Rock DrilL2000 BPMJ 15.0 CFM - Diggers, Pa~ing Breakers a ... Page 1 of 3 

I 
A;""''' .'''.'''' .PM.,,,~~ 

w,w Prt>d"c\ Family 

Air Rock Drill, 2000 BPM, 115.0: CFM 
i 

INGERSOLL-RAND 

Check AvailabilityYour Price 0 
$3,463.681 each 

list Price 0 
$3.936.00 I each 

Add 10 Cart 

+Add to list I 

A" ""'" ",""m,"'C"~,,,o,,,,,,, ~"I 
s. the nt's! to writ. a reVH,W l Ask 8. Ans1"r 

.... How aim w<; unpmv6 our Product Images? 
Itern # 3Y698 Mfr Model # JH40C3 UNSPSC # 27131504I 
Catalog Page # 3549 ShIpping Weigrlt 63.9 1'5.I ] Campa!'!> 

Technical Specs 

item Air Rock Drill 314" 


~~!h1nk SIZ~ 1 X 4·114" 


Piston S:rok", 2-518" 


Piston [jere 2·112" Latch 


CFM@FlIi: 115.0 


r;t~qt!ir0;! 90 psi ~~.. ~I 
inlf:t 314" NPT 	 Easily·adj stable 3-tpeed Th(ottle; with 

Reversibl Pawls 

I 
i 

https:llwww.grainger.com/product/3Y698?cm_mmc=PPC:GooglePLAC- -fneumatics-_-P... 2/4/2015 
I 

https:llwww.grainger.com/product/3Y698?cm_mmc=PPC:GooglePLAC--fneumatics-_-P
http:3.936.00


Buy It Now 

Add to cart 

Pneumatic Air Rock Drill Gardner Denver S55 Rockdrill1414 eBay 	 Page 10f3 

Hi! Sign in Of "1,,;$Mr Dally Oeals Gift Cal1ls Sell H"lp I> Contact 	 MyeBay 

Shop by Search.. 	 All categoti~s Search 
cat!~goryeb 	

i 

j 

i 
& 	 }o HDtMy,H<linmc:r (-"(il!'\) 

Pneumatic Air Rock Drill Gard~er Denver S55 Rockdrill1414 
I 	 i A.dd to watch list
! 	 . 

Seller. eairtool_1 (4446 ) - 100% PcisitJlle fe1ldback 
! 

I \h:,jt ','1':' 

Item coniJiI,()n Seller refurbished 

..This tool has been 00 

wot1<:ing condition. All t 

Prir;" US $199.99 

3watd1ing Add to watch list 

100% positive feedback 

Have one to sell? Sell now 

$74.93 Standard 
tfi:tr(Ht. 

PoyPaJ CREDf1 
12l''Ilonth l'inandng a'lIfailable! !2;~fi~LJ~~:;'·'t£ ! 

I 
Hassle-free retums I Le2~rn 
14 days money back or Item exchange, you pay return 
shipping. 20% reSIOCkin1 fee rnay apply 

Cuarantt)t}' i I 
Get [he rterll you ordered at- get your money back. 
Covan; 'Iou( purchaso pm:" ~ orig.nal sh'pp.ng. 

i 

IPeople who viewed this item also viewed 	 I Feedback on our suggestions 

IAS10NE' 	

lHIL I 

$394.99 

pnt::umatk H()ril~jnjai Pneumatlt 

Rock Drill nm, 

n "nt; 

Description Shipping and paymenlq 	 Pnn! I R,eport ,tern 

.00044141836 

Seller assumes all responsibility for this listing. 

Item specifics 

Condition 	 Seller refurbished : 

$<)lier Notes; 	 "This tool h,,:; been completely ,,,,\.>ulll "lit.! 'eMmet.! \0 Us origln,,1 wOIKlng conClmol'l. AIIIOO~ that are rebuilt come Wltt1 a 30 
day warranty that ~ins on the day that you receive it We always soggest lila! you try your tool oul within the first 30 days 
thaI you receive it" ; 

Brand: Gardner Denver 	 Bit Size: 1" Hex X 4 114 

Pneumatic f'\jf ROCk 
DnIL .. 

$451.55 

D,jJi Suihv 

$349.9t 

http://vv·ww.ebay.comlHm!Pneumatic-Air-Rock -Drill·(J ardner-Denver-S55-~ockdril1-1414-1... 2/5/2015 

http://vv�ww.ebay
http:sh'pp.ng


Milwaukee 12 in. Sliding Dual Bevel Miter Saw-6955-20 - The Home Depo~ 	 Page 1 of3 

Tool & Truck Renlal Inslallation S~"'i(;8$ and Repair Gift Cards Help 

Yoc" SWi0 Baldwin Park #6663 
More doing: Use My Current Location Of lin(! store 
;7~f'€ I~!ng. 

Milwaukee Model II 6955"20 lnt,,'l'tld # I()O('4:;4ii7 

12 in. Sliding Dual Bevel Miter Saw 
***.' ,. (US) v Customer Images (4) v Wnw a Review + Questions & Ans-.rs (21) .~ I 

$64$.99 leach 
i 
i 

ACCESSORIES (3) 

YOUR CUAAENT PFIOOUCT 

~~-~ 

$649.99 reach $69.97 leaCh $18.88 'B3ch $130.00 iea,;h 

Milwaukee i 2 in. Sijding Dual 
Bevel Miter Saw 

(36) 

Diablo 12 In, • 64-Tooth 
TrexiComposUe .. 

(all 

General Tools Crown 
Moulding Cult!ng Jig 

(fOl 

The Home Depot ~Year 
Protection Plan for... 

Solact TillS Item 

1 Itemls) Selected ADD ITEMS TO CART 

PRODUCT OVERVIEW Model 11 /1955-20 

I 
Milwallkee t5.. Amp 12 in. Sliding Dual·Bevel Compound Mitre Saw features a powerful. 3.3 HI' motor thai delivers l~p to 3.200 RPM fOr making dIfficult cuts in hard lumber The 
fine-adjust mitre angle offen; a detent ovenida 10 help you easily dial In predse mitre angles, wrJle the digilal mltre-angJa readouj allows for repeatable accuracy up to !110 Qf a 
de9f'Elii!· Constent Power tec.hnology with soft start maintains a constant culling spend while under load and decreases startup htiad mov~ment lor ease of operation. 

• Milwaukee il955-2Q features a 15-amp direct-drive m()IOr delivers liP to 3.3 HI' for C<ll1ing in hard lumber 
• 	 12 in. blade IS durable 

Bevel culS up to 48 degrees with stops for aq;urale bevel cut~ 
Miter culs 55 degrees to the lelt and 60 degrees to the light for versatility 

• Miler·angle fine adjustment with detent override makes it simple to dial in f"ecise mIter angies 
Milwaukee 6955·20 features a Miter angle digital ",adoul provides repealat>le accuracy to llj 0 of a degree 

http://www.homedepot.comlp/Milwaukee-12-in-Sliding-Dual-Bevel-Miter-~aw-6955-20/10... 2/4/2015 

http://www.homedepot.comlp/Milwaukee-12-in-Sliding-Dual-Bevel-Miter-~aw-6955-20/1


Dewalt 12" Double Bevel Sliding Compound Miter Saw DWS780R IcBay 

eb Search." 	 ,.11 c~legO""' 

Page 1 of3 

I
H.1(Sr, In ~b'tt:i'l If!t>l;,t'!; j lfi:t~d in <:ilte9(tl'V: ~J:tmp ft (dl'"d<..'j;:;' r,":~b:o> P:;~~J .' ~,~"""'$.:); t:'lv;';{'<;: > Hitl'l I} eIK;;'1 >"'-"1$ I 

I 
SAVE MORE WHEN YOU ADD RELATED ITEMS """.nll"g,ble'''''''' • I 

DeWALT 12" Double Bevel Sliding compounb Miter Saw DWS780R 
j\uthor'LGd ~ull \1',,';,),'"; ;"nri t,,1oney F.h:j< GUhtante1:: I-

I 

Seiler , cpooutlel~ (~6I.?165 ) _ 99.3% Posittvl> feedbacl 
I 
! 

. 1 Umited quantrty available 

~uy It Now 

tad to cart 

I 
77 watching llll 

1 
Add 

GO·day retums 

Hav .. (>n.. to ",,111 Sell now 

FREE slana"re S~lpping I 

PtryPaI 0!SlfT 
~;;Pf'$I''' $4&9 ,]li<! I#et i ~ H!I')r;tJi$ finaocing 

(;0 ~. mo""y i:la<:k. 

Gat tha It&m you Of:det'ad (:of' ~ yoor moner back 
Cov<:?f'S "OUfPUJ~ ~I.)e and l)fllJtla{ st;fp;Ji~ 

i 

SAVE MORE WHEN YOU ADD RELATED ITEMS* See all eligible items. • 
DiscOUfl! will btl applied in your c.art when Vou add both ttle current item and any qualifying related ll\,;rns from CPOrOutlets 

fll promotional offers from cpo.outlets 

Current item ! 	 Don't miss out, add items and 
save! 

DeWAlT 12" Double Bev $495.98 

Subtolal: US $495.98 

0;:::",,\',4L' 9' [»uble Bt?V€i $1i.,'1;n~ 


CompC't.Jrld Ml:e, Saw [j'v'VS780R 


pnz',v 
Now: 

Diitbh:; 12" or,;: ;':),,:,:h 
CC"'nh;nrM!,~ 81tH (iJQdf; 

D1Z-60X N?"W 

;..;;~~ 
$44.115' 

People who viewed this item also viewed 

http://www.ebay.comlitm/DEWALT-12-Double-Bcve!-SJiding-Compound-~1iter-Saw-DW.. , :2/512015 


http://www.ebay.comlitm/DEWALT-12-Double-Bcve!-SJiding-Compound-~1iter-Saw-DW


Simpson Honda GX630 Water Shotgun 5000-PSI 4-GPM Belt Drive Gas Pressure Washe ... Page 10f3 

Tool & Truck Rental Installation $ervices and Repair Gift Cards Help 

Your St'OI" Baldwin Park #6663 {t~~"~ Qdving. 
Use My Current Location or I,M ,"~O'8MonIdoIng! 

Simpson Model" WSso-1oH Inkmd ti lOOt>I()432 : 

Honda GX630 Water Shotgun 5000-PSI 4-GPM Belt Drive Gas Pressure Washer 
*'***'!l: (1, ¥ IWrite a Re"iew + 

$4,9~9.00 leach 
! 

MORE IN THIS COLLECTION FROM SIMPSON (2) 

YOUR CURRENT PRODUCT 

$4999.00 leach $3799.00 each $2699.00 iE'ach 

Simpson Honda GX630 Simpson Vanguard Water Simpson Honda GX390 
Water Shotgun SOOO-PSI ... Shotgun 400{}'PSI Water Shotgun 3500-PSI... 

Pi 

SeleCI This Item S"I .. ct Thi. Item 

! 

1 Item(s) ~elected ADO iTEMS TO CART 

ACCESSORIES (1) 

PRODUCT OVERVI EW Model # WSS040H Internet tI 10061'1432 

i 

Created for the commerCIal and industrial use, the Simpson Water Sholgull Series is simple to use alld designed for the heavies! bf deanlng, Perfect tor paint preparation, 
profesSional deaning services, graffiti removal, Industrial jobs!les. and fleet majntammca, Adv.;Jnta09G of i1~ rlti(t)!.hp.}t ~y~tQ,m tl'1J"III;;6: lo~c h~,t 1"';~·\'"IGf'OI' h,)t-.... ~~ thu P\o,J«,YP o"d the 

engine, due to the fact that they are not directly r.onneded. Its duel·bell drive system draws cool air inlo the pump to p~vent o\ler:Mallng, absorb \l\bration, and reduce pump 
fatigue, TIlls ultimalely results In greater efficiency ami tonger engine and pump life. Heavy duty Industrial triplex plunger pump d~Si!ln with ceramic coaled pistons and thermal 
relief valve for lOng lif/). Fxceplionally strong welded steel frame body and pneumatic (i~s tor mobility across most any surface, P(o-Slyle quick connect spray wands and noules, 

http://www.homcdepot.com/p/Simpson-Honda·GX630-Water-Shotgun-5000-PSl·4-GPM-B .. , 2/4/2015 

http://www.homcdepot.com/p/Simpson-Honda�GX630-Water-Shotgun-5000-PSl�4-GPM-B
http:4,9~9.00


Hot Water Pressure Washer Cleaner Cam Spray Ete Start 13 H P Honda 3$00 PSI I eBay· 
1 	 . 

Hi! Sign In Of fegist<6'r Daily Deal. Gill Cards Set! Help & Contact MveBay 

eb Shop by Search. 	 All Ca!E~ori~s 
category 

~--•.,-' :E....•.. 

Have one to sell? Sell now 

People who viewed this item also viewed 

M,·1'·M 2()OO pSI Hot 
~>Vater Pressure... 

$1,750.00 

~ 

Oosc:r1ptlon Shipping and payments 

Seller assumes all responsibility for this lISting 

i..aslllpli;ltE!'d on Jan 27, 2015 12:00:20 PST View,,:; 

Item speCifics 

Hot Water Pressure Washer Clkaner CAM-SPRA Y Ete. Start 
13 H.P Honda 3500 PSI 

! Add to walel1 !J,t 
I 

Seller: biker88S-8430 (5469 ) 100% P()S~ive feedback 
I 


i Sve d."~H ,~~rn!> : jt,.'I~ 


! 
condiHon Used ! 

"Worlcs great! New ealtrry' Completely self-containedl Bumer uses 
diesel" . 

I 

Pr;r,e US $2,629.00 Buy It Now 

Add to cart 

Best Offer: Make Offer 

5 watching 

, 
I 

Free local pickup 100% positire feedback Best offer available 
I 
I 

Shippmg F,'ee Local Pickup I ,ls':.ct'L~ 
Hi."!lflith, FhB'id41 Urnte-d St.<tio!'!s 

L,_()cai ~q.;k-..up only ! 

Delivery Varies 


Payments PcryPQI "ISA e, 

C(tIdrt Cl!rds p",,,,,..e<l by 

12 lnonlh 1inarn::ing a~ajlabte i f;.QL.4::....:~UcY I ,~~~,,\~....J.~,:.EI:~ 
I 

Returns. No returns or e)(Chal1ge~ contact seller wlth questions. 

Cov""rage 	 This item is eligible for u+ to $20,000 in 9usiness Equpment 
Purchase Prat"ctIOf1. , 

, 

2015 Easy KIG<!n IIOl 2015 Eiljv Kleen 2015 E~s) 
VvatHf ~"r~ssl,..lrn " Magnurn Gold 4000 	 Magnum' 

GOLD... 

$2,175.00 $.2.199tOO 	 $2,575. 
r~;jy l~' 

Pont I Report item 

Condition' Used: 
Seller Notes: "Works great! New Batteryl Comptetely self-contained I Bumer uses dieseL" 

Country/Region of Manufacture 	 United States 

http://www.ebay.com/itmJHot-Water-Pressure-Washer-Clcaner-CAM-SPRtj\ Y -Ele-Start-13... 2/5/2015 

http://www.ebay.com/itmJHot-Water-Pressure-Washer-Clcaner-CAM-SPRtj
http:2,175.00
http:J.~,:.EI
http:2,629.00
http:1,750.00


WHEELER~REX Pipe Threading Machine Stand.Steel - Pipe Threading MrChine Stands ... Page 1of2 

-11'~ 
Power Tools \ Pipe Threading Equipment \ Pipe ThreaIJing Machine StandS \ P!pe Threading Machine Stand,Stell! Pm tv 

Pipe Threading Machine Stand~ Steel 
WHEELER-REX 


Price; 0 
 Checp; Availability 

$332.00 I each 

Add to Cart 

+ Add to Lis! 
I, 
! 

Add Repair & R9placam",nt Coverage for $75.95 GlIch. ! 

./' Be Ihe firstlo WT"Ite a rovi"... I Ask &A"..+r 

"" How can we improve our Product Images? Item # 20WT07 Mfr. Model # 841 UNSPSC # 23171708 

Catalog Page # N/A Shipping Weight 29.0 I s.Compare 

Coontry of Origin Japan Cour.11y of Origi/l is subject Iv chilngll. 

Technical Specs i 

It"m Pipe Threading Machine Stand 3 

Starl(j I \iP~ Folding 28" i 
For Use t/iith Mfr. No~ 7991 I. oad Capacity 2000 lb. ., 
Overall Vil~!h 28" 

10" W X 21" 0 X 39" H 

Steel 

, 

http://www.grainger.comJproduc1/WHEELER-REX.Pipe-Threading-Machi~le-Stand-20WT... 2!5!1015 


http://www.grainger.comJproduc1/WHEELER-REX.Pipe-Threading-Machi~le-Stand-20WT


Page 1 of2Rothenberger 00230 Pipe Threading Machine Stand for 4ERZ41 eBay 

(,.~ 
Dally Deals Gill Cards Sell Help & ConUJc! Mye8ay 

eb Shop by ~9Search,. All CatedQn~s Searchcategory i 

RO"rHENBERGER 00230 Pipe Threading Mal:hir!ei Stand, For 4ERZ4 

1:",11'1 Seller refurbished 

"I plCI<ed this up at an Auction Please see illl 
pictures. Looks {Ike olle or the legs was slightly " 

us $275.00 Buy It Now 

Add to cart 

Fr&e Shipping 100% poSilive feedback 

Shipp;",) 

Cehery 

Han one 10 $8111 Sell now 

fleturns: 

Get tile itern you ordered Of' get your money back 
Covem your pur(',.t,,,,~ Pfl.\.~ un,l Of'lgm:al sh:ppmg. 

OncriptiOll Shipping and paym<lnls 

Seller assUIl1<''''' all responsibility for this Iistin!J. 

I.a,,! updot~d on Feb 03,201518:36:21 PST Vi€w fl'!'1is'cns 

Item specifics 

Cond~ion: Seller refurbished : 
Seller NOles: ", piCKed this up at an Auc:lIon Please see all picture •. Looks I'Ke one of Ihe legs was slightly bent. 

Brand: 


Type: 

Manutacturer1"artNumber 


SKU 
Max. Leg Spread (In.); 

Characteristics: 

ROTHENBERGEI-I 

Folding 
00;13Q 

G3555842 
m 
Heavy-Duty Construction 

FREE Econonly Shippmg I 

Esumated between Wild, Feb, 11 and Thu. Feb. 
19 

PayPoJ \liSA 

PayPoI 0lI:Dft 
aN git 6 frH,>t)th~ to pay 

Seller does nol offer relLlffls, You are co¥ere<J by 
the eBay Money !la;~k G'"~'1.ln!C" If you receiwod 
an item that is not as de$Cflbed in the li$ting. 

'Mleel Type: Rubber 

Number of Legs: 4 
Con$!ruciion: Steel 

>M1eel Dia. (In.): 12 
~. p~ 

For Use Wl1/l 4ERZ4 

Print 

Mad1tneSlal'ld 

http:/hvvvw.ebay .com/itmfROTHENBERGER -00230-Pipe-Threading-Mach~nc-Stand-F01'-4... 2/5/2015 

http:/hvvvw.ebay


SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 


AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 13 

STAFF SOURCE: Dilu de Alwis, Finance Director 
Tricia Cole, Finance Manager 

ITEM TITLE: Approve Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) 
covering July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and direct it to be 
provided to the Successor Agency Oversight Board for consideration and 
approval 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency review and approve the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) covering July 1, 2015 through December 31, 
2015 and direct it to be provided to the Successor Agency Oversight Board for consideration and 
approval. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Once the successor agency adopts the ROPS 15-16A and it is approved by the Oversight 
Committee and the State Department of Finance, then fiscal impact will be the Agency funds 
necessary for the enforceable obligations to be paid each month. 

BACKGROUND 
The Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule ("ROPS"), sets forth the enforceable obligations 
of the Agency. This ROPS covers the period of July 1,2015 through December 31, 2015. 

The current form, ROPS 15-16A, is requesting from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund (RPTTF) the amount of$125,000. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
Approving the ROPS 15-16A and the funding for current obligations the Agency is enhancing its 
financial stability, which is one of the Strategic Plan's three-year goals. 

EXHIBITS 
1. ROPS 15-16A for July 1,2015 through December 31,2015. 

REVIEW TEAM ONLY 
City AttorDey:~f.iI~~~;;;:;ii_-=~ Finance Director: ----...=::---1-----

~~==~~~~~~Other: ____________________________ 



Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (RaPS 15-16A) - Report of Cash Balances 
(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars) 

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34177 (I), Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) may be listed as a source of payment on the ROPS, but only to the extent no other funding source is available or 

when payment from property tax revenues is required by an enforceable obligation. For tips on how to complete the Report of Cash Balances Form, see https:Urad.dof.ca.gov/rad

sa[pdf[Cash Balance Agency: Tips Sheet.pdf. 

A B C D E F G H I 

Fund Sources 

Bond Proceeds Reserve Balance Other RPTTF 

Prior ROPS Prior ROPS 
period balances RPTTF 

Bonds Issued on and DDR RPTTF distributed as Rent, Non-Admin 
or before Bonds Issued on balances reserve for future Grants, and 

Cash Balance Information by ROPS Period 12131110 or after 01101111 retained period(s) Interest. Etc. Admin Comments ..

ROPS 14-15A Actuals (07101/14 -12131/14) 
-- ... -

1 Beginning Available Cash Balance (Actual 07/01/14) 
6,915,432 802,651 1,177,553 

- -

2 Revenue/Income (Actual 12131/14) 
RPTTF amounts should tie to the ROPS 14-15A distribution from the 

Col (D) Bonds refunded during December with County Auditor-Controller during June 2014 
221,085 8,532,760 968.528 3,938,967 defeasance occurring in January_ 

3 Expenditures for ROPS 14-15A Enforceable Obligations (Actual 
12131/14) 
RPTTF amounts, H3 plus H4 should equal total reported actual 
expenditures in the Report of PPA, Columns Land Q 

32,026 1,428,-923 3,915,315 
4 Retention of Available Cash Balance (Actual 12131/14} 

RPTTF amount retained should only inClude the amounts distributed as 
reserve for future period(s) 

7.104,491 9,335,411 
5 ROPS 14-15A RPTTF Prior Period Adjustment 

RPTTF amount should tie to the self-reported ROPS 14-15A PPA in the No entry required
Report of PPA, Column S 

22,770 
6 Ending Actual Available Cash Balance 

C to G =(1 + 2 ·3 - 4), H =(1 + 2 - 3 - 4 - 5) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 717,1~ $ 882 
-

ROPS 14-158 Estimate (01/01/15 - 06130/15) 
7 Beginning Available Cash Balance (Actual 01101/15) 

(C, D. E, G =4 + 6, F =H4 + F4 + F6, and H =5 + 6) 
$ 7,104,491 $ 9,335,411 $ . $ - $ 717.158 $ 23,652 

8 Revenuellncome (Estimate 06130/15) 
RPTTF amounts should tie to the ROPS 14-15B distribution from the 
County Auditor-Controller during January 2015 1,973.653 

9 Expenditures for ROPS 14-15B Enforceable Obligations (Estimate Col (D) Bonds refunded during December with 
06/30/15) 6,795.95..2 f---7,523.385 1.973.653 defeasance occurring in January. 

10 Retention of Available Cash Balance (Estimate 06/30115) 
RPTTF amount retained should only include the amounts distributed as 
reserve for future period(s) 308,539 1,812,026 

11 Ending Estimated Available Cash Balance (7 + 8 - 9 -10) 
$ $ $ $ $ 717,158 $ 23,652- - - -

i 

I 



Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - ROPS Detail 

July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 


(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars) 

Contract/Agreement 
Date 

12/112023 

G H J K o p 



___ 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15·16A). Report of Prior Period Adjustments 
Reported lor the ROPS 14·15A (July 1,2014 through Oecember 31, 2Q14) Period Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC) section 34186 (a) 

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars) 

ROPS 14-15A Successor Agency (SA) Self.reported Prior Period Adjustments (PPA): Pursuant 10 HSC Seclion 34186 (a), SAs are reqUIred to report the differences between their actual available funding and their actual expenditures for the ROPS 14-15A (July through December 2014) period. The amount of 
I~:.~:.e.lopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTIF) ap.pra.Ved for the RO.PS 1S-1eA (July through December 2015) period will be offset by the SA's se~·reported ROPS 14·15A prior period adjustment HSC Section 34186 (al also specrties that the prior period adjustments s.e~.reported by SAs are subJ6Ct to audit by Ihe 
~ aljdltor -controller CAC and the State Contralle" __ __ _ 

A S 

Non·RPTIF Expenditures 

l-----~ Reserve Balance Other Funds-,--

Avail.able 
RPTTF 

(ROPS 14·15A 
distributed ... all other 

available as of 

RPTIF Expenditures 

Non-Admin 

RPTTF (If total actual 
(ROPS 14-15A exceeds tOial 

Net Lesser O'f distributed + all othel Net lesser of authorized. the 
Authorized I avaitable as of Authorized t total djfference is; 

Net SA Non-Admin 
and Admm PPA 

(Amount Used: to 
Offset ROPS 15-16A 

T 

Project Name I 
hem # I Debt Obligation Authorized !'dual l Aut~orized I Actual I A~~~~~~~_ Authorized 0711114) 

Available ~ Dillerence 

Available 0711114) AV3i1ab4e Adual zero} SA Comments 

$ 6.770,392 1$ 32.02l! 1 $ 
1 I 1997 TaxAHocation 
2 t 1997 TaxAJlocaoon 

a Continuing 

~9~D07k~:n~~~~~:~----+--------1---------"4--------
C~tculations 

10 Note Payable 626 S 

t Citrus Avenue 
11 Lease PayabJe 611 

S Citrus Avenue 
- -12 Lease Payable RJS 

rmancial 
131 EmplO)"le 

Ob4iaations 
14 I Transitional House 
151 DPAP 
16 I Trammenal House 
17 I Housing 

Develooment 
1B I Personnel 

Pavments 
19 I Auditing Payments 
20 Administration 

Pa ents 
21 Legal f)ayment1; 
n 

I"",.ncv "'''''''' 

23 

27.000 13.765 

18.000 18.000 
678.626 

I 

$ 1.428.923 I $ 1,428.923 I $ 
147,5441 147,644 

882.262 

399.017 

882,262 

399.017 

3.827.664 $ 3.794.621 1 $ 
118,7721 118,772 1$ 

1,906,424 

315.055 

a.ooo 
2.500 

299.040 

10.000 

1.906.424 1 $ 

315,055 1$ 

6,930 IT 

299.040 1$ 

$ 

$ 
to.858 I $ 

3.793,739 I S 
116.m 

1.906.424 

315.055 

.6IlQ!! 
6.930 

238.688 

299.040 

10.000 

3,783,554 1$ 10,1851 $ 144.3461 $ 
144,346 "144.346 1$ - 131.761 1$ 12,585 I $ 

118.7721 $ 

1.906.4241 $ 

315.055 1$ 
/---

2,0031 $ 
6,9301$ $ 

---/-I------1---

238.6861 $ 

$ 

~ 
$ 

$ 1$ 

2,909 

$ 

24 I SERAF loan from ·1 . r .- -:-j---- ~$----- -----=-T rr ; , 1$ 
HoUSing 2010 

25 SERAFloanfrom ~ r- _ - -- --- _ $ _ $ _ $ 
I He_.2011 

n,no 

94 

7,091 

30 CItYLoan - . _ $. $ • $ • 
31 Bond Pro 989685 261 - • $ $. s -

I ;; ~::~~::: 5057081 . _ _ ~ • :: : • : -

Obliaation 
341 TaxAlk>caOOn I -----r----.---=1 ·1 602.651 I 11i12~65i Is-- 602.6511----802,651 Is----- - r----- ,----- ,--- , 1$ 

Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series 2013E 

351 TaxAiIoeaWn 
Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series 2013E 

L-_ ___ L----.. 

3.000 3.0001$ 

-'---- --,-----

3.000 $ 3.000 
I- .------

___ J ______ 
~I----------~------------------



CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: 
CC 14 

STAFF SOURCE: Alex Gonzalez, Interim Director ofPublic Works ~ 

ITEM TITLE: Consideration of Resolution No. 15-7315, which authorizes emergency 
repairs to City Hall restrooms and adopts certain findings as required by 
the California Environmental Quality Act and the Government Code 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt Resolution No. 15-7315, 

1) 	 declaring that a need for an emergency repair to City Hall exists and delegating authority 
to the Acting City Manager to procure services and equipment without notice for bids to 
let contracts in the case of a declared emergency under Section 22050 of the California 
Public Contract Code, and 

2) 	 making certain findings as required by the California Environmental Quality Act and 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal impact of the project is yet to be determined, current engineer's/architect's estimates 
without demolition and exposure of the damaged areas range from $60,000 to $80,000. This 
project will be funded from undesignated funds in Fund 4701 - Impact Fees General 
Government. A future agenda item will allocate funding for the project. 

BACKGROUND 
The City's contract engineering firm began work in late October 2014 on assessing and designing 
a repair for the damaged floor in the City Hall restroom. During design and inspection, it was 
determined that the restroom floor has suffered significant damage due to wood rot, termites and 
moisture intrusion. As a result, the men's restroom was closed to all users on January 27, 2015. 
The women's restroom remains open, as it has been determined that the foundation of the 
women's restroom is stable. The extent of damage may extend into a utility room in the City 
Clerk's office. The identified issues require an immediate emergency response to protect the 
health and safety of public and private property, as the integrity of the floor cannot be determined 
without exposing the overlying structures. 

In order to determine the scope of the project and complete final plans several preliminary steps 
must be taken. Asbestos testing is scheduled to take place on February 5, 2015. Demolition to 
expose the floor and lower walls is projected to occur the week of February 9, contingent upon 
the negative results of the asbestos testing. Once the demolition occurs, the City's 



engineer/architect will complete the draft plans and a general contractor will be procured for the 
project once the plans are complete and the project scope is defined. 

There is a men's restroom upstairs in City Hall, which is ADA accessible though the City Hall 
elevator. The locking mechanism on the upstairs men's restroom has been modified to allow 
access, and a clear ADA path of travel has been designated to the upstairs men's restroom. 

Under Public Contract Code, Section 22050 (a) (I), in the case of an emergency, a public agency, 
pursuant to a four-fifths vote of its governing body, may repair or replace a public facility, take 
any directly related and immediate action required by that emergency, and procure the necessary 
equipment, services and supplied for those purposes, without giving notice for bids to let 
contracts. 

In order to maintain the public's health and safety, as well as maintaining the City's 
infrastructure and limiting legal liability, it is requested that the City Council determine than an 
emergency condition exists, and to allow these repairs to proceed on an emergency basis, as 
authorized by Section 2.20.080(B)(2) of the Covina Municipal Code. 

This action is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Title 14 of 
the California Code of Regulations Sections 15301 (repair of an existing facility) and 15269 (an 
emergency project). 

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGIC PLAN 
This item is directly relevant to the City's Strategic Plan's Goal of providing efficient, visible and 
responsive public safety. 

EXHIBITS 
A. Resolution 15-7315 
B. Draft Plans for City Hall Restrooms 

mwmw~_.~O~NL~Y~~~~§5~~~CIty AUoI'llfl)': ...: Finance Director: ----".-.e-~-----

City Manager: ~£~...:.-________ Other: -------f-----



EXHIBIT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-7315 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINA, CALIFORNIA, DETERMINING THAT AN EMERGENCY 

CONDITION EXISTS FOR CITY HALL REPAIRS, AUTHORIZING 

THE LETTING OF A CONTRACT TO COMPLETE EMERGENCY 

REPAIRS PURSUANT TO SECTION 22050 OF THE CALIFORNIA 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE AND DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO 


THE ACTING CITY MANAGER TO PROCURE SERVICES AND 

EQUIPMENT WITHOUT NOTICE FOR BIDS 


WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the Constitution and laws of the State of California ("City"); and 

WHEREAS, the City endeavors to provide safe and reliable public facilities for public use; and 

WHEREAS, from time-to-time City facilities will experience unexpected failure, stress, or 
damage in the course of any day or night; and 

WHEREAS, the floors in the City Hall first-floor restrooms have suffered serious damage due to 
wood rot, termites and moisture intrusion. As a result, the City was forced to close the first-floor 
men's restroom on January 27, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1102 of the California Public Contract Code defines an emergency as "a 
sudden unexpected occurrence that poses a clear and imminent danger, requiring immediate 
action to prevent or mitigate the loss or impairment of life, health, property, or essential public 
services"; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the condition of the first-floor restrooms at City Hall 
require immediate attention to ensure public safety, reduce the risk of liability in the event of an 
accident, and mitigate the loss or impairment of life, health or property, given that these are the 
primary restroom facilities serving the general public visiting City Hall; and 

WHEREAS, under Section 22050 of the California Public Contract Code "a public agency, 
pursuant to a four-fifths vote of its governing body may repair or replace a public facility, take 
any directly related and immediate action required by that emergency, and procure the necessary 
equipment, services, and supplies for those purposes, without giving notice for bids to let 
contracts; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby finds that based on substantial evidence set forth in this resolution 
and the minutes of this meeting that the emergency will not permit a delay resulting from a 
competitive solicitation for bids; and 



WHEREAS, the City hereby finds that based on the substantial evidence set forth in this 
resolution and the minutes of this meeting that the restroom floor repair is necessary to respond 
to the emergency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of the City of 
Covina, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The City Council does hereby find, determine and resolve that all of the 
foregoing recitals are true and correct; and the damage to City Hall's first-floor restrooms 
constitute an emergency under section 1102 of the California Public Contract Code. 

SECTION 2. The competitive bidding requirements for the City Hall restrooms repair are 
waived pursuant to section 22050 of the California Public Contract Code. 

SECTION 3. The City Hall first-floor restrooms repair is authorized pursuant to section 
22050 of the California Public Contract Code. Further, such action shall be reviewed by 
the City Council at subsequent regular City Council meetings to determine whether there 
is a need to continue the action. 

SECTION 4. The action is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") (Pub. Res. Code §§ 2100, et seq., and Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations, §§ 15000 et seq. ("State CEQA Guidelines")), pursuant to 14 Cal. Code of 
Regs., §15301 as repair of an existing facility and §15269 as an emergency project and 
Staff is hereby directed to file a Notice of Exemption with the Los Angeles County 
Clerk's Office. 

SECTION 5. That authority is delegated to the Acting City Manager to procure services 
and equipment without notice for bids to let contracts in the case of an emergency. 

SECTION 6. The City Clerk shall certifY to the adoption of this resolution. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of February, 2015. 

Peggy Delach, Mayor 

ATTEST: 


City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM; 

City Attorney 



--

--

I 

....1. -.L __--.. ____.. .......v.0I'f_

• __ ... .....a. 

.. CII'l' ..............__..... _ .. -. 
lI.lLL_~-...___~ 

L =-~=J:"J}-~==--_ ...'=!~ .... 
___... ........ III' ...
___ Cft-.=-'7rr.:r:,'L.".:::"••_ ...="_~==.:L. .. ___ .-u __ -.III.t1.1.. .... 

7. __ .,......,,._ ........
_~_.~.....,.............
_~._.,..:1'f_ 
..__..... (IICIWU' ..... _ ...... _--.. 

1- ::=:t;:"...........--.- .........._-
... ... .. __--..:r~a.ra _~..: 

""....---..---.,..~...-: ... 
=:..-=---=--=--...:=-.:..-r_~... 
'.'=-="'#-:::r&~~--::~.~.1.. _._....... ___~~_ ...... 1DlOD
_n_ 

CITY OF COVINA 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 


CITYHALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

FIlt.YT FLOOR RESTROOMRENOVATION 


CITY PROJECT NO. X-XXXXX 

I 

~, 

"" 

... - ,---l-

I I 
, 

- -- .. 
- -'L 

~".~.. 
PROJECT- 1\.- JIIIIj l0CA11ON_-

I ~ /--'--
I...., .. 
- .. 
_I It J 

L__ - ----- ~L.-.. 
17- -- '{- ...,. 
-~-- ~1M1N--.mts1lCf-i'::-:::,..... 

w/ 

='"-...=: ....... fWf...-WIllI 

WllJC!'""? ...,C!'""? 

.(f!i!!!!l!!\ -JIHW !!!t!I!PQW.- ••.,,,1'1 
..... --

~Ia:.. 
~=-. 

--
1 fJf5 .... 

CITY OF COVINA:.t=-- ,.... U'~.. S!. .....' ...1. 
CITY HALL.iINIJ YARD IMPROII'BMENTS 


FllISTFLOOR l/ESTlWOM RENOVATI(JNS 

TTIl.E SH1!ET/ VlCIN1Tl' MAP/INDEX 


IIOJ:IIIO_":'lMa JP.- _ 
..,.".... x-= 





INtl~ 

NOlES: 
1. INSTAll All 11lI.f.1li. -.s. i\IIl SIllS AS __ O'LR 

2. IlG$I'IOGSEU"~INSTAll -. !WI) ~ i\IIl ftIIN.E _, 

OISPOISElIAS_ 


3. AIlNSTAll ~waD ~1E CCUN'lIl!1iJ'S AS __ 
" 	 INSTAll lOUT PN!1l1IONS MIl 4' HIGH _ PRIVACY PM~ 
AS_ 

~ _ IIAUS AS 1fD'!iSNI't. 
6. IISIAll '2" _ R.lXII 1I.!li. CQ.OII 10 lIE ~C1ED BY art. __ 1II.£S OR N'PIIO'IIlI EIlUN

7. INSTAll nil" IMU. 1I.ES 10 A _T Cf r. 0l.0R 10 lIE sruc1ED 
BY art. _ 1lfS OR N'PIIO'IIlI [WI<.. 

&. PMIT IIAUS __ 1I.!li. CQ.OII 10 lIE sn.EC1!D BY art. IIEHR 
PMIT OR N'PIIO'IIlI EIlUNa. IISIAll _ i\IIl AQlUS1lC _ 


'0. AEllSTAll So<i.waD IIoIU. _ AI! FR£!HNERS. 

'1. 	art II£SERI!:S 1!£ !IQ(f 10 So<i.VAIl[ MIl/OR ~ N4Y/All 

ElIISlIiC .....1EIIAI.S 1HI.T HAlt 1I([N-' 

.. 
~ 

i 

j 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
-2 -1 0 

P""""'I 
SCAi.£: l/T-l'-O"' 



C

t 	 t 

NOT£S: 
I. 	 FlOOR IotOUHTEil 0'iER!iEAl) BRAaD NOTES:
2. POIiIDER co.+.1ED C()MMERCIN.. GRADE S1E£l NOlES: 	 NOTES: I. SURf'Aa: NOONTEO
J. UGHT CRA'" all.0R 1. COWIoIERCIAl GRADE WHITE TOUT 1. ~CIAI. CRACE WHITE _AI. 2, C_ET W_ OF' 22 GAUGE STAINUESS STEEL 
... PANELS RElNFORC£D INSIDE ..m I" HCHEYCOMB 2. 1,1 GPf' TOUT FUJSH VAllot: 2. 0,125 GPf' URINAl. FlUSH VAl.1IE 3, '" SATIN FINISH CH ElCPOSED SURf'ACES

CEl.J.5 	 3. HARD-..REO AC PO\IDEll 3. HARD-IIR[D AC PO'IIIE'RED 4. c.\PAClTY: JO NAl'kINS/27 TANPCNS
5. ADA _lIED LATQ£S 	 ... TOOQi fRD' INFR~ Of'ERATlON 4, TDUCH fRD' INFIRARED OPERATlON 5. AS! DISPENSER 0864-. OR ....PROIIED EOUAI. 

lOLET PAR1I1IONS DETAIl. 	 10LET DETAIl. 12\ URINAl.. DETAIl 1'3"\ f'E:MAl.E lWITARY SUPPlYED 
NOT TO SCAI..E - NOT TO SCAI..E '\.:::.,I NOT TO SCALE '\.:::.,I DISPENSER DETAIL 17'\ 

NOT TO SCALE '\.:::.,I 

(~~"~.r ~\_ao~ 
4" 

~ .. c"·':· 1 
..,.... ,.' ."?~~. ~ ~ 
NOlES: 
1. STAINlESS STEEl ..m SATIN FINISH 

2, lUllING OUTSIDE DlWENSION - 1 1/.. " 

3. 	 BEST 81.TH IIOOEl BB-GBI2QSS OR 

_OIlEDE()IJAl NOTES: NOlES: NOTES: 
L AOUAlYN SElf-RIWIHG CROP-IN OVAl. I. Il£I.TA WOOEL 8SIOLF'-P!'U OR _OIlED [OUAI. I. KRAUS 1I0Il£!. KSO-JOQ< OR _OIlED [OUAI. 

SINK OR _OIlED EOUAL 2, 4" CENTER SET 2. ~ FIROW AIlOIot: 

RES1ftOOM GRAB BAR DETAIl. @ 2. WHITE STAIN RESISTANT PORctl.AIN 3, QiRBl£ FINISH 3. QiROIIE FINISH 


NOT TO SCAlE ~ 3. PREllRIU.£D 4" .AUa:T a:NTER HOlE 4. SINGLE HANDLE 	 4. HOUlS 14 rrl. OF' UQUIO 

SIN< DETAIl 	 FAUCET DETAIL/6\ 	 17\ SOAP DISPENSER DETAIl ® 
NOT TO SCAI..E '\.:::.,I NOT TO SCAI..E '\.:::.,I NOT TO SCAI..E 



- -------
- _.. 	 - §~----------------~~~t=====::::======~~~~~~~~~~~----~=r:~~::::::::====~~~~~~~cnY~~or~co~~~~~~ffS~H~E~ET~N:OI·i
I~ _..' 	 5 ~F1RSTFLOOR RESTROOM RENOVATIONS OF 5 
l::- _ ..----	 DETAILSHEET 20F2 ~ 

---- ....,... 	 6: .. ..... ... . 

ADA DOOR AClUAroR 
~ IIJTI'CN DETAR. @ 
NOT TO SCALE ~ 

NOm;, 
1. £TO 36" X SO" DOOR OR APf'RO\Ifl) EQUAL 
2. II_NY 2 PANEL ARCHED DOOR (1-3/4;. 
3. 	10"X34" STAlNL£SS SlEEl. KICK Pl.AlES TO B£ 

ATTAC*ll. (HJ\GER MODEl. AE-19OS1034 OR 
AI'PRO'I£D EQUAL) 

DOOR DETAR. 16\ 
NOT TO SCALE \..::;/ 

NOTES; 
1. HEADER IIOUNTEO 
2 ViIR!l£SS OPERAnON 

ADA~DOOR 

AClUAroR DETAR. ffi 
NOT TO SCAlf ~ 

NOTES: 
1. O'r.'iON IIIRIlU\DE 08 (AS14) OR APf'RO\Ifl) EQUAL 
2. GRAY COI.OR 
3. DOUel.E UFE HEPA FILTER 
4. TOUCH FREE INFRARED OPERAnoN 

ELEClRIC HAND DR'IER DETAR. ED 
NOT TO SCALE 

[ ~
~ 

' 	 ..J-'....::~. ~.
~\~ ; 
~ 

NOTES; 
1. UGHT GRAY COI.OR 
2. 2!!O LB. LOAD CAPAQTY 
3. I>DA COIIPUANT 
4. FDA APPRO'I£O HIGH-O£NSITY POLY£THYL£N£ 

BABY CH~ TAlI.£' DETAR.@ 
NOT TO SCAlE ~ 

" 

I 
f 

J 
I 
i 
.. 
5 



CITY OF COVINA 
AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 

MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 15 

STAFF SOURCE: 	 Amy Hall-McGrade, Parks & Recreation Director .oM
Jennifer Blair, Library Services Supervisor O~ 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Adopt Resolution No.15-7316 amending the fiscal year 2014·2015 
Library Services operating budget to expend the UMIGO! You 
Make It Go and Children's Museum of Manhattan stipend funds to 
support the development of California Libraries 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution No.15-7316 amending the fiscal year 2014·2015 Library Services 
operating budget to expend the UMIGO! You Make It Go and Children's Museum of 
Manhattan stipend funds to support the development of California Libraries 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no General Fund impact. The account numbers requiring amendment are as follows: 

28003900·42090 UMIGO Revenue $1,000 
28003900-53590 UMIGO General Printing and Binding 900 
28003900-54410 UMIGO Food, Supplies, and Meals 100 

BACKGROUND: 
Children's Museum of Manhattan announced a partnership opportunity with UMIGO! You 
Make it Go in November 2014. The announcement required that libraries provide UMIGO! and 
Children's Museum of Manhattan with a basic summary of demographic and budgetary 
information including population served, dates of fiscal budget, and programming. 

Jennifer Blair, Library Services Supervisor researched and prepared the summary. The program 
and stipend focuses on promoting the UMIGO! You Make it Go software via an iPad, iPad 
mount, graphics, and promotional materials at the Covina Public Library. UMIGO! You Make it 
Go is a children's digital software that provides games, songs, and stories to early elementary 
age children. The software provides games, songs, and stories that are entertaining while 
enhancing developmental abilities. The program allows children to become active learning 
through increase of skills in math, problem solving, and critical thinking. UMIGO is made 
possible in part by a Ready to Learn grant from the U.S. Department of Education. In partnering 
with UMIGO! You Make it Go and Children's Museum of Manhattan, this will endow the City 
with the means and capability to expand the services and programs beyond past expectations and 
target audience. 

Library staff will be able to achieve the promotion of UMIGO! You Make it Go by installing a 
provided iPad with pre-loaded software, iPad mount, graphics, and promotional materials as well 



as participating in a Summer Learning Event to take place in June 2015. Children's Museum of 
Manhattan will provide and coordinate the logistics and required participation of the Summer 
Learning Event at a later date. The $1,000 stipend is expected to cover any promotional costs 
associated with this event and any promotional materials. 

The following summary was prepared and submitted to UMIGO! You Make it Go and 
Children's Museum of Manhattan on November 19,2014: 

The majority of the audience at Covina Public Library is comprised of adults and children 
with the highest population centered towards families. According to the American 
Community Survey provided by the United States Census, the city of Covina is 
composed of8,595 children between ages 0-12. A report provided by the Covina Public 
Library demonstrates 6,718 children are library cardholders, which includes the 
surrounding cities. From this estimation, the library currently serves 6,718-9,000 
children, including non-card holders. The total amount of library cardholders (all ages) 
equals 31,782, and it is estimated that the library serves 31,782-35,000 people within a 
given year on a continual basis. 

Contributing factors towards the audience of Covina Public Library includes the services 
and programs the library provides. The Library provides a variety of services for our local 
community and surrounding areas and is dedicated to promoting literacy, education, and a 
love of reading by providing free access to books and educational, informational, and 
recreational materials and programs. Library services include Toddler and Baby story 
times, Homework Help (for children ages 6-13), Adult Basic Education, ESL classes, 
Citizenship Preparation, Children Literacy services, Play and Learn Workshops, Summer 
Reading Programs (all ages), and Child Development programs. 

The Play and Learn Workshops are made possible because the Covina Public Library is a 
Family Place Library. A Family Place Library is made possible through being a grant 
recipient, of which included a rigorous application process. Family Place Libraries is a 
network of libraries that believe literacy begins at birth and that libraries can help build 
healthy communities by nourishing healthy families. Weekly sessions include child 
development and behavior, nutrition, speech and hearing, literacy, and more. This is 
supported by: U.S. Institute of Museum and Library Services under provisions of the 
Library Services and Technology Act, administered in California by the State Librarian. 

Because of such programs, the Covina Public Library has become known as a family 
library where parents and caregivers have opportunities to strengthen their relationship 
with their children in an educational setting via parent/child workshops, and are able to 
connect through story times and participate in free programs. In addition and as a grant 
recipient of Early Learning with Families, the library is also able to offer free checkout 
services of iPads with pre-loaded applications that focus on early learning and provide 
parenting resources. Connecting these iPads and extending the service to UMIGO would 
provide a perfect opportunity for children to experience a service that extends their 
educational needs with easy access. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The UMlGO grant funds will provide an opportunity to enhance customer service to young 
children by providing an opportunity to enhance their mathematical skills by utilizing age 
appropriate software. This is one ofthe three-year goals of the current Strategic Plan. 



EXHIBITS: 
A. Resolution No. 15-7316 

REVIEW TEAM ONLY~~~~~~~==_
City Attomey: .....ii::::I!!:::::=IC Finance Director: ---'~~~______ 

City Manager: ~ Other: 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-7316 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA, 
CALIFORNIA, TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 LIBRARY 
SERVICES OPERATING BUDGET TO EXPEND THE UMIGO! YOU 
MAKE IT GO AND CHILDREN'S MUSEUM OF MANHATTAN 
STIPEND FUNDS TO SUPPORT THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES. 

WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing 
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California ("City"); and 

WHEREAS, the budget for the City of Covina for fiscal year commencing July 1, 2014 
and ending June 30, 2015 was approved on June 17,2014; and 

WHEREAS, the approved budget is in accordance with all applicable ordinances of the 
City and all applicable statutes of the State; and 

WHEREAS, the reallocation of the appropriations between departmental activities may 
be made by the City Manager, amendments (increases/decreases) to the Budget shall be by 
approval and Resolution of the City Council; 

WHEREAS, the intent for all expenditures for program supplies will be covered through 
UMIGO! and Children's Museum ofManhattan grant funds 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of the 
City of Covina, as follows: 

SECTION 1. Amend the fiscal year 2014-2015 Parks & Recreation Department's 
Library Services Division operating budget as follows: 

28003900-42090 UMIGO Revenue $1,000 
28003900-53590 UMIGO General Printing and Binding 900 
28003900-54410 UMIGO Food, Supplies, and Meals 100 

SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution. 


PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of February, 2015. 


Resolution No. 15-7316 Page I of2 Exhibit A February 17,2015 



Mayor, City of Covina 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk, City of Covina 

APPROVED AS TO FORM; 

City Attorney 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Catherine M. LaCroix, Deputy City Clerk ofthe City of Covina, hereby CERTIFY that 

Resolution No. 15-7316 was adopted by the Covina City Council at a regular meeting of the City 

Council held this 17th day of February, 2015, and was approved and passed by the following 

vote: 

AYES: 


NOES: 


ABSTAIN: 


ABSENT: 


Catherine M. LaCroix 
Senior Deputy City Clerk 

Resolution No. 15-7316 Page 2 of2 Exhibit A February 17, 2015 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: CC 16 

STAFF SOURCE: 	 Dilu De Alwis, Finance Director Y 
Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Adopt Resolution 15-7317 Amending the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Budget 
to fund the Energy Efficiency Projects. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt Resolution No. 15-7317, amending the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget to finalize the 
funding for the Energy Efficiency Projects. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total cost of the project as approved by Council at the December 16, 2014 meeting is 
$773,753. The project costs are as follows; (1) PD HVAC $219,514 (General Fund) (2) 
Metrolink Parking Structure $192,646 (Prop. A) (3) Municipal Parking Lots $31,133 (Parking 
District) (4) Decorative Acorn Lights - Down Town $152,202 (So. Cal Edison rebates $104,780 
and $47,422 Street Impact Fees) and (5) City Owned Street Lights $178,258 (Gas Tax). 

Funding for projects (2) through (5) are available in the respective funds, however the General 
Fund portion in the amount of$219,514 needs to be funded through an Inter-fund loan from the 
Water Fund. The Council approved an Inter-fund loan policy under which the City Manager has 
the authority to execute the appropriate documents for amounts not to exceed $500,000 and for a 
term not to exceed 5 years. Staff is recommending that the General Fund borrow the required 
funds for project (1) and budget the appropriate debt service payment in the annual budget 
submission. It is anticipated that lower maintenance costs and energy savings on a new HV AC 
system will offset the cost of debt service. 

The attached exhibit details the accounts/dollars for each project. 

BACKGROUND 
At the December 16, 2014 City Council meeting, the Council approved the Energy Efficiency Project 
list and awarded contracts to ACCO Engineered Systems and Lighting retrofits with Facility 
Solutions Group. 

At the time of this meeting staff noted that when the funding sources for all the projects were 
identified, that will be brought back to the Council for approval. Staff has met internally and 
identified the funding for (l) PD HV AC (2) Metrolink Parking Structure Lights (3) Municipal 
Lot Lights (4) Decorative Acorn Lights and (5) City Owned Street Lights. As noted in the Fiscal 
Impact section of this report, projects (2) through (5) have an identified funding source with 



available cash on hand. However the HV AC system for the Police Department which is a 
General Fund project requires a short-term borrowing from the Water Fund to complete the 
project. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
The recommended projects support the Strategic Plan Goals of fostering innovation, efficiency 
and sustainability by improving the energy efficiency of different City facilities. Additionally, 
the significant energy and maintenance cost savings over the lifetime of the projects support the 
goal of enhancing the City'S financial well-being. 

EXHIBITS 
A. Resolution No. 15-7317 
B. Funding Sources 

REVIEW TEAM ONLY~~~~;;Si=:;;;__:::..CIty Attorney: :!! Finance Director: --"'c=:.._______ 

City Manager: --""""-_________ Other: _____________ 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-7317 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 GENERAL FUND 
BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing 
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California ("City"); and 

WHEREAS, the budget for the City of Covina for fiscal year commencing July 1, 2014 
and ending June 30, 2015 was approved on June 17,2014; and 

WHEREAS, the approved budget is in accordance with all applicable ordinances of the 
City and all applicable statutes of the State; and 

WHEREAS, the reallocation of the appropriations between departmental activities may 
be made by the City Manager, amendments (increases/decreases) to the Budget shall be by 
approval and Resolution of the City Council; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of the 
City of Covina, as follows: 

SECTION 1. Amend the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget as follows; 
• 10108900-56750 $570.00 
• 10101000-55200-FI414 - $219,514.00 
• 2400TOOI-52422-F1414 - $192,646.00 
• 27002800-52416-FI414 - $31,133.00 
• 23002300-52416-FI414 - $104,780.00 
• 47052300-52416-FI414 - $47,422.00 
• 23002300-52416-FI414 - $178,258 

SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2015. 

Peggy Delach, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM; 

Marco Martinez, City Attorney 

http:47,422.00
http:104,780.00
http:31,133.00
http:192,646.00
http:219,514.00


Energy Upgrade Projects 
Summary of Projects/Funding 
Fiscal Year 2015 

Facility Measure Details Cost Pereent 
Fnnding 
Souree 

Aeconnt(s) 

Static Pressure reset 

Police Department HVAC 

Supply air temperature reset 
Nighttime temperature setback 
Heating minimum flow reduction 
Packaged unit replacement 
Install Energy Management Control System 

$219,51~ 28% 
Loan from 

Water fund 1010890056750 = $570 

1010100055200 F1415= $219,514 

Metrolink Parking Structure Lighting Replace existing fixtures with LED w/occupancy sensors $192,64E 25% PropA 24ooT001 52422 F1414 = $192,646 

Municipal Parking Lots Lighting 
Replace HID shoebox with new LED bi-Ievel with 
occupancy sensors 

$31,133.00 4% Parking Dist. 2700280052416 F1414 = $31,133 

Gas Tax 

Decorative Acorn Lights Lighting Retrofit Decorative acorn fixtures with Amerlux LSK skit $152,202 20% 
$104,780, 

Street Impact 

2300230052416 F1414 = $104,780, 

47052300 52416 F1414 = $47,422 

Fees $47,422 

Streetlights Lighting Replace existing fixtures with LED fixtures $178,258 23% Gas Tax 23002300 52416 F1414= $178,258 

S 773,753 

Funding Summary: 
Gas Tax $ 283,038 
Prop A 192,646 

Prkng Dist 31,133 
Impact Fees 47,422 

General Fund 570 
General Fund 219,514 

$ 774,323 

$ (570) 

52416 Street Light System 
52422 Parking Facilities 

23002300 52416 F1414 
24ooT001 52422 F1414 
27002800 52416 F1414 
47052300 52416 F1414 
10108900 56750 
10101000 55200 Fl415 

Interest 

EXHIBIT B 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


PH 1 
MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: 

ST AFF SOURCE: 	 Nancy Fong, Interim Director of Community Development Jt\</ 
Alan Carter, City Planner a'. c... . I r V1\ 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Introduce and Waive Further Reading of Ordinance No. 15-2037, Planned 
Community Development Ordinance PCD 99-001 (Amendment No.1), 
adding "automobile rental" as a permitted use within and modifying the 
sign regulations for one property within the Shoppers Lane/Terrado Plaza 
Planned Community Development Area. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

1.) 	 Open the public hearing and receive public testimony; 

2.) 	 Make certain findings as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQ A) 
as defined in Section 15301(a), involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that 
existing at the time of the lead agency's determination; and 

3.) 	 Introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 15-2037, establishing Planned 
Community Development Ordinance PCD 99-001 (Amendment No.1) to allow, as a 
permitted use, "automobile rental" and to allow for the modification to the sign 
regulations for one property within the Shoppers Lane/Terrado Plaza Planned 
Community Development Area. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no direct impact to the General Fund. However, permitting this use under the 
appurtenant PCD-related zoning would result in the physical improvement to and the continuing 
auto rental use in the area, thus generating additional property and sales taxes for the City. 

BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS 
In 1999, the City adopted Ordinance No. 99-1851 to establish a Planned Community 
Development (peD) overlay zone for the Terrado Plaza business center and Shoppers Lane 
commercial area. The primary intent of the PCD overlay zone was to encourage diversification 
in locations of structures, uses and other site qualities. The Terrado Plaza and Shopper's Lane 
PCD overlay permits many types of retail and administrative businesses including auto sales 
under the conditional use permit process, but did not allow auto rental. 

In September 2014, the Planning staff granted Enterprise Rent-A-Car approval to operate its auto 
rental business temporarily at 728 South Citrus Avenue, a former bank site abutting Terrado 
Plaza. The business needed to relocate from its long-time property generally across the street, at 
635 South Citrus A venue, due to the Covina Sage Chevrolet project. 



At its December 9, 2014 meeting, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend to the City 
Council approval of Enterprise's PCD-related request and made written findings under 
Resolution No. 2014-017 PC that the PCD modification would be in the best interests of the City 
and would be consistent with the City's General Plan. By the same 5-0 vote, under Resolution 
No. 2014-020 PC, the Commission also granted application Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-028), 
allowing Enterprise to perform certain permanent site improvements to accommodate the 
business, subject to particular conditions of approval. In affirming both applications on 
December 9th 

, the Planning Commission made general comments on the overall project proposal 
and minor changes to the conditions ofapproval. 

The Commission's decision to grant the SPR petition was not appealed to the City Council 
within the required 10-day appeal period. However, the SPR is expressly contingent upon the 
approval of the PCD-associated application by the Council. Therefore, while only the "PCD 
Amendment" application is before the City Council this evening, Enterprise's SPR will 
automatically be voided if the Council does not approve the PCD modification. 

Presently, the City Council is requested to review and approve the proposed amendment to the 
PCD overlay zone as follows: 

I. 	 Adding "auto rental" as a permitted use; and 

2. 	 Allow building and freestanding signs that deviate from current applicable slgnage 
requirements. 

For further background information on this application and on Enterprise's current request, the 
City Council may refer to Exhibits A, B, and C at the end of the Commentary. The contents of 
the exhibits are described below. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
Pursuant to the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and State 
Guidelines, the project is categorically exempt based on CEQA Section 15301 (a), which includes 
existing facilities seeking minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use 
beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. The applicant is proposing 
interior and general parking-related improvements and, therefore, qualifies for this exemption. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Strategic Plan calls for the adoption of measures that would strengthen the economic base of 
the City. It is believed that the PCD proposal would meet this aim. 

EXHIBITS 
A. 	 Planning Commission staff report on proposal from 12/9114 meeting, including certain 

exhibits. 
B. 	 Planning Commission Resolution 2014-020 PC from 1219114 meeting (concerning SPR 

application), including improvement-related conditions of approval. 
C. 	 Planning Commission Resolution 2014-017 PC from 12/9114 meeting (concerning PCD 

application). 


2 




D. Ordinance No. 15-2037, amending peD 99-001. 

REVIEW TEAM_~O~N~L~Y~~;;ii~~City Attorney::::; Finance Director: _----\-~_~____ 

City Manager·........_J-_-=-~~-;:::~__-+~_ Other: ---------f----

3 




__ 

CITY OF COVINA 


PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT 
ITEM NUMBER PH 3 

DECEMBER 9, 2014 

TO: Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission 

FROM: Nancy Fong, AICP, Interim Director of Community Development 

SUBJECT: Planned Community Development (PC D) 99-001 Modification #1 and Site 
Plan Review (SPR) 14-028 

SITE AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

A. Project Information: 

Request: 	 Applications a) PCD 99-001 (Modification #1). a Planned Community 
Development Modification to add "automobile rental" as a permitted use 
and to establish, for the subject property, special signage criteria for a 
pylon sign and wall sib'llS and b) SPR 14-028. a Site Plan Review to 
establish an automobile rental facility (Enterprise Rent-A-Car) on the 
aforementioned property, including site improvements to accommodate 
the facility. 

Applicant: 	 Enterprise Rent-A-Car 
Property Owner: 	 Hillwood Properties 
Location: 	 728 South Citrus Avenue 
Assessor Parcel 
Map Nos.: 	 8451-002-048 

B. Site and Surrounding Land Uses-Table 1: 

Existing Uses 

Site 


General Plan Zoning 
C-3A (PCD) - Regional or Enterprise Rent-A-Car 
Community Shopping Center 

General Commercial 
(currently operating on 

with a Planned Community a temporary basis) 
Development overlay zone 

" General Commercial C-3A (PCD) - Regional or Sit-down Restaurant \ North 
Community Shopping Center 

" with a Planned Community " 
Develo ment overlay zone 

South • General Commercial \" C-3A (PCD) - Regional or • Commercial Bank 
~____-L.\ ______________~._C_o_n_1_m_u_n-LiryShop.~p_jn~g~YCen_t_er-LI________________~ 

EXHIBIT A (45 pages) 



I 
with a Planned Community 
Development overlay zone 

East General Commercial C-3A (PCD) Regional or Terrado Plaza 
Community Shopping Center Commercial-Offi ce 
with a Planned Community Complex 

I Development overlay zone I 

i West City of West Covina City of West Covina New Car Dealership 

C. Development Standards and Project Data-Table 2: The following Table illustrates 
certain key facts regarding the project proposal: 

l. 
2. 

Development 
Standards 
Lot Size 
Building Size 

Code Requirement 

N/A 
none 

Proposal 

1 acre (lparcel) 
6,468 square feet (leasable 
floor area) 

3. Current Hours of 
Operation 

No minimum M-F, 7:30 a.m.-6:00; SA, 
9:00 a.m. -1 :00 & SU 9:00 
a.m. 12:00 p.m. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

I 

Occupant Load 

Off-Street Parking 

Signage 

To be established by 
. Building Division and· 
i Fire Department 

Retail-1I200 SF Total provided -38 
Total Required 32 parking spaces 
parking spaces (Note: 
requirement could be 
considered lower due to 
predominate orientation 
of floor space being 
devoted to administrative 
functions) 
One 20 sq. ft., 6 ft. high One 45 sq. ft., 16.3 ft. 
monument sIgn with high pylon sign with front 
building signs being not building sign being 15.7 
more than 15 percent of percent of building face 

. appurtenant building face and all three building 
I and 2.5 feet in height. signs varying from 3 to 7 

feet in height. 

2 




ANALYSIS 

A. 	 Background: Enterprise Rent-A-Car recently relocated to the subject site (from its long
time location across the street at 635 South Citrus Avenue due to the purchase of that 
property by Covina Sage Chevrolet). Enterprise operates at this location the same type of 
typical car rental facility that previously existed across the street, with the addition of some 
corporate-related administrative functions. In September 2014, Planning approved 
application SPR 14-031, which permitted Enterprise to operate on the site on a temporary 
basis, subject to certain conditions, including the requirement that the business obtain 
certain necessary zoning applications to permit permanent operations (addressed below). 
The subject property, which is flat, generally rectangular in shape, and presently fully 
improved with a two-story, 6A68-square foot building approximately 28 feet from the front 
property line and parking improvements primarily on the southern and, to a lesser extent 
eastern side of the building, was previously used by mUltiple commercial banks. The 
property further lies within a commercial complex, a key component of which is the 
easterly office-oriented Terrado Plaza business center. 

B. 	 Proposed Project: Enterprise proposes to perform certain modifications to the building 
interior and to the parking area to accommodate its car rental-focused operations. These 
modifications, which would be performed in a single phase, are depicted on the associated 
submitted project plans and will be highlighted by the Planning staff during the Planning 
Commission meeting. In general, the interior work would entail the redesign of the first 
level of the building into new offices and areas serving company administration, customers, 
and car washing operations. (No vehicle repair or body and painting activities would occur 
on the property.) The exterior work would encompass the redesign and resurfacing of the 
primary parking area on the southern side ofthe building, including the removal of six trees 
and the elimination of 8 parking spaces, to accommodate parking for rental cars and 
customers as well as vehicular access to the car washing area in the rearward portion of the 
building. Enterprise employees would park in areas to the north and east of the building. 
No building additions or exterior modifications (except for minor work to complement the 
interior improvements) are proposed. Lastly. the applicant proposes to perform certain 
modifications to the existing signage to accommodate its business. The signage-related 
changes are described in Table 2 above. 

C. 	 peD 99-001 (Modification #1): In 1999, the City adopted this application for the area 
generally around the Terrado Plaza commercial complex and the northerly Shoppers Lane 
and adjacent car dealership-oriented block to foster economic development in the overall 
district. Because automobile rental is not listed as a permitted use under this zoning 
classification and because certain proposed signage of the proposed business slightly 
deviates from the associated provIslOns of the Covina Municipal Code, a "peD 

3 




Moditication" application is needed. The signage component of the application would only 
be applicable to the property at 728 South Citrus Avenue (APN 8451-002-048). 

Based on the above analysis. the Planning Commission must determine if the following 
findings for Planned Community Development Modification can be made: 

1. 	 The site for the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use. 

Findings of Facts: The proposed modification to the appurtenant PCD application 
relates principally to allowing a new use, automobile rental, typically an innocuous 
activity, to operate as a permitted use within the boundaries of the PCD 99-001 district. 
(Automobile rental is currently permitted by right in multiple similar zoning districts in 
the City, including "C-3/Central Business," "C-3A/Regional or Community Shopping 
Center," "C-4/Highway Commercial," and "C-5/Specified Highway Commercial.") No 
new physical development on the site is proposed other than certain above-noted 
building interior and parking area improvement work and new exterior signage to 
accommodate the use. The site would have sufficient parking, access, and building 
area to serve a car rental function. 

2. 	 The site for the proposed use relates to streets and highways adequate in width and 
pavement type to carry the quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed use. 

Findings of Facts: As stated in Finding A above, the proposed modification appertains 
to allowing a new use within the existing list of permitted uses in the district 
encompassing application PCD 99-001 only. No new physical development is 
proposed other than certain above-noted building interior and parking area 
improvement work and new exterior signage to accommodate the vehicle rental 
activity. The staff believes that adequate street widths and pavement exists to carry the 
traffic generated by the use, which would likely be less than the prior banking activities 
on the property. The automobile rental business would be somewhat limited by 
restrictions on operating hours and the occupancy load. 

3. 	 The proposed use is not detrimental to the surrounding properties or uses permitted in 
the general area. 

Findings of Facts: The car rental use, as noted in Finding A above, is permitted by 
right in the base ("C-3A") and similar zoning districts, and the signage that is proposed 
for consideration under the application is less intense in size and character than many 
other sign plans that the Planning staff has approved under the administrative Minor 
Variance process. With the incorporation of various conditions of approval, the 

4 




proposed use and signage should have no adverse effects on surrounding properties or 
uses permitted in the general area. 

4. 	 The conditions stated in the decision are deemed necessary to protect the public health, 
safety, and general welfare. Such conditions include, but are not limited to: 

1. 	 A time limit for development, 
2. 	 Regulation of use or uses, 
3. 	 Special yards, spaces, and buffer areas, 
4. 	 Fences, walls and screening devices, 
5. 	 Surface of parking areas subject to specifications established by the council, 
6. 	 Required street, service road or alley dedication and improvements, 
7. 	 Regulation of points of vehicular ingress and egress, 
8. 	 Regulation of signs, 
9. 	 Required landscaping and maintenance thereof, 
10. 	 Regulation of noise, vibrations, odors, glare, etc. 
11. 	 Required maintenance of grounds, 
12. 	 Regulation of time for certain activities during the construction phase and during 

the lifetime of the project, 
13. 	 Duration of use, 
14. 	 When there is more than one parcel of land involved, the land shall be recorded as 

one parcel for state and city code prior to issuance ofbuilding permit, 
15. 	 Require bonding or financial guarantee of any requirements or conditions made a 

part of the approval by the council, 
16. 	 Such other conditions as will make possible the development of the use in an 

orderly and efficient manner and in conformity with the intent and purposes set 
forth in this chapter. 

Finding of Facts: The proposed conditions of approval under the overall request 
would adequately address all potential impacts of the proposed use. These conditions 
include the prohibition ofloitering outside of the property, exceeding the applicable 
noise level limits of the Covina Noise Ordinance, and exterior speakers; limitations on 
the hours of operations; and, to compensate for tree removal, the repair or upgrade of 
the remaining landscaped areas. 

D. 	 SPR 14-028: The purpose of the site plan review is to assure the highest quality of 
planning, design and exterior appearance, to protect the public health, satety, welfare, and 
general interest, to reduce traffic congestion and to strengthen and sustain the character, 
desirability, and stability of the community. Under the Section 17.64.020 of the Covina 
Municipal Code (CMC), because the overall project proposal includes the aforementioned 
parking modifications, s Site Plan Review (SPR) application is needed. 

5 



Based on the above analysis, the Planning Commission must determine if the following 
findings for Site Plan Review can be made: 

I. 	 All provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are complied with. 

Findings of Facts: The site is currently developed with a 6,468-square foot building 
and associated parking and other improvements. The proposed project is to modify the 
interior and southern-most parking areas only to accommodate automobile sales as well 
as to perform certain typical changes to existing exterior signage. The underlying 
automobile rental use and the exterior signage, which do not conform to current zoning 
provisions, are addressed in the "PCD Modification" section of the report below. All 
other components of the proposed project comply with the applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Code. 

2. 	 The basic project elements are so arranged that traffic congestion is avoided, pedestrian 
and vehicular safety and welfare are protected, and no adverse effects will occur on 
surrounding properties. 

Findings of Facts: The project will consist of primarily administrative- and car rental
related uses, which are typically lower turnover-type activities (compared to retail and 
banking, the prior long-time use on the site). In evaluating the project proposal, the 
staff did not identify any potential for internal circulatory conflicts or external traffic 
congestion. Therefore, pedestrian and vehicular safety and welfare would be protected 
and there should not be any adverse effects on surrounding properties. 

3. 	 The project design conforms to the General Plan and any Design Guidelines or Specific 
Plan that may be applicable to the project. 

Findings of Facts: The project complies with the commercial development intensity 
provision of the General Plan (1.5 FAR). And any minor changes to the exterior of the 
building will be conditioned to coniorn1 to the existing 1960s-era though generally 
attractive building style and architecture. thus conforming to the Covina Design 
Guidelines. 

4. 	 The project design is harmonious, consistent, and complete within itself and 
functionally and visually compatible with neighboring land uses. 

Finding of Facts: The proposed project is designed to accommodate a car rental 
business. Along adjacent portions of South Citrus A venue, there are six somewhat 
similar auto and truck dealerships. The design of the proposed project is harmonious, 
consistent and complete within itself. Furthermore, the proposed project is functionally 

6 




and visually compatible with both the neighboring auto dealerships and other 
commercial land uses. And the staff believes that there would not be any conflicts with 
the easterly houses (the closest of which are non-conforming). There are no records of 
incompatibility-associated issues or land use-related conflicts between Enterprise and 
any other property during the many years that Enterprise operated across the street. 

5. 	 The development will constitute an adequate environment for the intended use by 
sustaining the desirability and stability of the neighborhood and community. 

Finding of Facts: The proposed project is designed primarily for the noted car rental 
use and should further sustain the City's Citrus Avenue auto row, which will provide 
stability to the neighborhood and community. In addition, the conditions of approval of 
the application will provide the City with safeguards for preventing any future issues. 

6. 	 Proposed lighting is so arranged as to reflect the light away from adjourning properties. 

Finding of Facts: The proposed project would consist of existing and new exterior 
lighting on the building and in the surface parking areas. These lights would be required 
to meet applicable City foot-candle standards to provide for adequate security while 
being directed, oriented and shielded to prevent light from shining on and spilling over 
onto adjacent properties and public streets. 

7. 	 Proposed signs will not, by size, location, color, or lighting, interfere with traffic or 
limit visibility. 

Finding of Facts: As noted above, certain exterior signage was also submitted to the 
City with the SPR application and, although certain components of it exceed the 
associated Code requirements. the sign has been determined to be acceptable under the 
associated "PCD Modification" application. A typical signage review requirement of 
the City calls for all signage to be located and designed in a manner that would not 
interfere with traffic or limit visibility. 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND NOTIFICATION 

The applicant was given a copy of the staff report, including the attachments. All property 
owners within a radius of at least 300 feet from the overall project site were mailed notices of the 
Planning Commission public hearing on November 26, 2014, a minimum of ten (10) days before 
the hearing, as required by law. In addition, the public hearing notice was published in the San 
Gabriel Examiner newspaper on November 28,2014. 

7 




ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and State 
Guidelines, the project is categorically exempt based on CEQA Section 15301(a), which includes 
existing facilities seeking minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use 
beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. The applicant is proposing 
interior and general parking-related improvements and, therefore, qualifies for this exemption. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Planned Community Development 
Modification and the Site Plan Review through the adoption of the attached Resolutions with 
Conditions ofApproval. 

Prepared by: 

Alan Carter 
City Planner 

EXHIBITS 

1. Area Map 
2. 300-foot Notification 
3. Project Plans (reductions), full size under separate cover 
4. Site Plan Review 14-031 letter (permitting temporary car rental operations) 
5. Planned Community Development Modification #1 Resolution 14-017 PC 
6. Site Plan Review Resolution] 4-020 PC with Conditions of Approval 
7. Current PCD (Ordinance No. 99-185]) 

8 




CITY OF COVINA 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 


728 SOUTH CITRUS AVENUE 


PCD 99-001 & SPR 14-028 


Subject Site 

it 

N 




8451 
CAli: , .. l (0 ..-!J 

,I' » 
,~-

",rrR 1:.' ... 
w// 
~ / 

/ 
/ 

l4
® 

" _23 .4,.. 
~r , 

" ,." ~1~"''',.. !":.._ t&IJ>H> ,.~ 
t CJ. I IflI 

"':'.!.:'j{~"_~"'.:),L£:: ~ ~ LOMA VISTA~
l 'CI ... l ...,/ I).••>11 '8 • j •••fol/;-'iJJ':'w 
33'1 32 I 31: 'f'-¥. '1.-.. .........
.~ -~ \L. L.!L..::J ~ to. I I .. t:t 

11'"1 ...... I ... { J "II I ." 
H 

@ 
34, 3$ 36. 37 
J't.t' " ,fr ~At. .,

\P tit ~JU';·
.I' l' 

! 
"..~.t.,,,.1t 

J' :0:: , 
f~ •• -, ~ 

, 1Ii:1' ..... 1 

( , .....0lil •• 

.'14 " 04S..... 
I/) !;@~ 
I- ~ r GJ'~ 
o 
,'S 

\ 

""I!l 

@> 

\0 ~WORKMAN 
3021I \ li CODE 

304511\ ( 3045 I ~021I TRACT NO. 15166 M,e. 334-10-11 ~l=tI TIlACT _NO. L664~ _ M.~, 381i-23-:,.24< \ fOR PREV. ASSM'T SEE: 

l~ 
I'"
I ""~J 
I AJ 

, 
T 

2Z 
L. 


21 

..... 

I 
~ 

(0 w1
I \~.·U 

@ @
9 10 

" liIl 

~.. L I 
ST. ~ 

~.. 
1'1 

~y,;;; 

.. 
I", 

",,'" 
IZeA 

-itrif 

@s 
"~ 1 II'~' 

"1..,.,1." 

t 

...~... 

;-1 ,., 
u.i 
~ 

... 13@ @7 ~I 
W 
~ 

1".111" 

14@ (06 
~ 

15 @ 0'5 
"4..#(, 

16 @ 04 
tlO #4# ' 

0 
t- n@ @3I  ,,; II.
w 
~ 

o..J 
~:.: 18@ @.? ~ :z~ Nh,:.:-r .',,1 ... ~. $#.~ .. , ~\ 19@~t @I It, 

flf'to A~ '1$ ,~.f"~ 
~ ST. II! 

304~ 

r) 

~"J 
J 

o 't",
\~ 
~-. 
f"..' 
\' 
.~ 

i 

I 

~,
\..) 

I 

http:381i-23-:,.24


r--------- .......-.------------------------ ._-------._--.._-
1 Parcel: 8451 002 021 Site: 152 Shoppers In Covina 91723 

Owner: Melendres Samuel & Theres Mail: 2245 Whisper Wind Ln Encinitas Ca 92024 

Use: Com,Shopping Ctr,Neighborhood Date: Sal8 : Xmpt: 

Sqft : 1,995 Bd/Bth: 1 Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 3,302 Acres: .08 

Type: 	 Legal: TRACT # 19651 LOT 10 Asd :$120.438 Imp: 51% 

r"# ..~- -. - p~';'~ei: ~451 002 ~22 .- ..... - -- - -_. S~t~~ 148 Sho~~~rs Ln C'~~;n~'91;2'3 ......- - .. 

! Owner: Redhead Roger D &Susan Mail: PO Box 4845 Covina Ca 91723 
1 Use: Com.Shopping Clr,Neighb<>rhood Date: 04/15/1999 Sale: $155,000 F Xmpt: 

Sqft : 2,160 Bd/Bth: 1 Vb: 1955 Rms: LotSF: 3,277 Acres: .08 
Type: Legal: TRACT #- 19651 LOT 11 Asd :$190,955 Imp: 67% 

I 

# 3 	 Parcel: 8451 002023 Site: 146 Shoppers Ln Covina 91723 
Owner: Kerr C Glean Co Tr Mall: 3066 Oakwood Dr Bountiful Ut 84010 


Use: Com, Shopping Ctr,Ne~ghborhood Date: 04/24/1998 Sale: $195,000 F Xmpt: 

Sqft : 2,280 Bd/Bth: I Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 3,573 Acres: .08 

Type: Legal: TRACT # 19651 lOT 12 Asd :$252.840 Imp: 60% 


Parcel: 8451 002 024 	 Site: 140 Shoppers Ln Covina 91723 
Owner: Wolfe David K &LaurelL Trs Mall: 502 Whiting Woods Rd Glendale Ca 91208 


Use: Com,Shopping Ctr,Neighborhood Date: 05/1012010 Sale: $150,000 F" Xmpt: 

Sqft : 4,560 ed/Bth: 1 Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 7,055 Acres: .16 

Type: Legal: TRACT # 19651 LOTS 13 A Asd :$203,994 Imp: 48% 


Parcel: 8451 002025 Site: 132 Shoppers Ln Covina 91723 

Owner: Melendres Samuel & Theres Mail: 716 S Conida Dr Covina Ca 91724 


, Use: Com.Store Date: 03/15/1996 SaTe : Xmpt: 
Sqft : 2.280 Bd/Bth: 1 Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 1,769 Acres: .04 
Type: Legal: TRACT NO 19651 E 15 FT Asd :$37,390 Imp :60%I 
# 6 	 Parcel: 8451 002 026 Site: 130 Shoppers Ln Covina 91723 


Owner: Melendres Samuel & Theres Mall: 2245 Whisper Wind Ln Encinitas Ca 92024 

Use: Com,Store Date: Sare : Xmpt: 

, Sqft : 2,280 BdlBth: 1 Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 1,686 Acres: .04 
. Type: Legal: TRACT NO 19651 W 15 FT Asd :$133,115 Imp: 45% 
I~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~....~..~ 

7 Parcel: 8451002027 	 Site: 126 Shoppers Ln Covina 91723 
Owner: Daquila Co LLC Mall: 5235 Mountain Springs Ranch Rd La Veme Ca 91750 

Use: Com.Shopping Ctr,Neighborhood Date: 06/28/2012 Sale: $575,000 F Xmpt;~Sqft : 4,560 Bd/Bth: I Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 6,898 Acres: .16IType; 	 Legal: TRACT # 19651 LOTS 16 A Asd :$586,500 Imp: 58% 

r '# 8 .p-~rcet: 8451 002028 Site: 118-Shopp~rs Ln Covi~a 91723 
I Owner: Billmeyer Robert A Co Tr Mail: 1566 Maritime Dr Carlsbad Ca 92011 
I Use: Com,Shopping Ctr,Neighborhood Date: 01111/2012 Sale : Xmpt: 

Sqft : 4.560 Bd/8th: I Vb: 1954 Rms: LotSF: 6,960 Acres: .16 

Type: Legal: TRACT # 19651 LOTS 18 A Asd :$209,411 Imp: 57% 


-# 9' .'~arcel: 8451 002029 --_. .. Site: 110 'Shoppers Ln covin'~-91723 -- ._..

r Owner: Tmac Covina LLC Mall: 100 N Barranca St #7THFL West Covina Ca 91791 
II Use: ?Om,ShoPping Ctr, Nei.ghborhood . Date: 08/30/2?12 Sale: $576.500 F Xmpt: 
! Sqft .4,560 ed/Bth. I Vb. 1955 Rms. LotSF: 6,927 Acres: .16
IType: Legar: TRACT # 19651 LOTS 20 A Asd :$576,200 Imp: 65% 
t~~--....~~~~~~~~~~_.__ 	 ... ~~ •• .. .. ~.~~~ ..~.~.~.~~..~_~~ .. ~.~~~._w~_~~~_~_~_.~ __~.~_.~_~.~~ 

# 10 	 Parcel: 8451 002030 Site: 666 S Citrus Ave Covina 91723 
Owner: McConaughy Gregory Mail: 32812 Mermaid Cir Dana Point Ca 92629 


Use: Com. Restaurant,Cocktaii lounge Date: 07/16/2014 Sale: Xmpt: 

Sqft : 3,930 Bd/8th: I Vb: 1955 Rms: LotSF: 6,282 Acres: .14 

Type: Legal: TRACT # 19651 LOT 22 Asd :$174,759 Imp: 64% 


.... , H III II.t SUli AmOllltl lItdlctJles ,hal/lte pru:.t shown IS QcniuJ/y/1'0'" (Ire prevIous trunsler and Ihe lilt nJtU( current transjt-I" was a zero Jollar transfer, 

Deellt!'d RelilJole. 8rll Is NOI Guaranteed. 



.- ----, 
. ~'-"~arCel: 8451002031 Site: 105 E Loma Vista St Covina 91723 

Owner: 702 Citrus LLC Mall: 597 Mount Williamson Way Boulder City Nv 89005 

: Use: Com,Restaurant,Cocktail Lounge Date: 12/13/2010 Sale: Xmpt:

ISqft : 3,196 Bd/8th: J Yb: 1963 Rms: LotSF: 24,262 Acres: .56 

\ Type: Legal: TRACT NO 15166 1/2 VAC Asd :$444,005 Imp: 64% 

# 12 Parcel: 8451 002 032 Site: 129 E Lorna Vista SI Covina 91723 
Owner: Ofnalux Associates lP Mall: 3801 Katella Ave #101 los Alamitos Ca 90720 


Use: Com,Prking Lot,Patron Or Employee Date: 08/27/2013 Sale: $7,840,000 F Xmpt: 

Sqft : 9,100 Bd/Bth: 1 Yb; 1974 Rms: LotSF: 8,497 Acres: .20 

Type: Legal: TRACT NO 15166 1/2 VAC Asd :$209,406 Imp: 5 % 


Parcel: 8451 002033 Site: 137 E Loma Vista St Covina 91723 
Owner: Montoya Tomas R &Montoy Mail: 137 E Lorna Vista St Covina Ca 91723 

Use: Res,S91 Fam Res Date: 12112/2005 Sale : $225,000 F·" Xmpt: Homeowners 
Sqft : 844 8d/8th: 2 1 1.00 Yb: 1950 Rms: LotSF: 6,908 Acres: .16 
Type: Legal: TRACT # 15166 LOT 5 Asd :$264,624 Imp: 30% 

# 1~"- Parce': 8451' 002034 Site: 145 E loma Vista St Covina 91723 

Owner: Salazar Johnny 0 Mall: 145 E Lama Vista St Covina Ca 91723 


Use: Res,Sg! Fam Res Date: 07/13/1992 Sale: $144,000 F·· Xmpt:
[ 
Sqft : 832 Bd/8th: 2 1 1.00 Yb: 1949 Rms: LotSF: 6,064 Acres: .14 

t Type: Legat: TRACT # 15166 LOT 6 Asd :$202,570 Imp: 31% 

! # 15 Parcel: 8451002035 Site: 153 E Lama Vista StCovina 91723 
Owner: Vasquez Mary A & CoJerick Mail: 153 E Lorna Vista St Covina Ca 91723 


Use: Res,S91 Fam Res Date: 09/04/2008 Sale: $290,000 F Xmpt: 

Sqft : 928 ad/Bth: 2 1 1.00 Yb: 1949 Rms: LotSF: 6,110 Acres: .14 

Type: Legal: TRACT # 15166 lOT 7 Asd :$251,000 Imp: 25% 


# 16 Parcel: 8451 002036 Site: 161 E Lama Vista St Covina 91723 
Owner: Latourelle Alan D Mail: 161 Lama Vis Covina Ca 91722 


Use: Res,Sgl Fam Res Date: 03/20/2013 Sale: $225,000 F Xmpt: 

Sqft : 832 ad/8th: 2 1 1.00 Vb: 1949 Rms: LotSF: 6,201 Acres: .14 

Type: Legal: TRACT # 15166 LOT 8 Asd ;$48,729 Imp: 32% 


· # 17 Parcel: 8451 002049 Site: 750 Terrado Piz Covina 91723 
Owner: Oinalux Associates LP Mail: 3801 Katella Ave #101 Los Alamitos Ca 90720 

· Use: Com,Shopping Ctr,Neighborhood Date: 08/27/2013 Sale: $7,840,000 F Xmpt: 
Sqft : 110,810 Bd/8th: 1 Yb: 1974 Rms: LotSF: 120,921 Acres: 2.78 

I Type: Legal: TRACT NO 15166 lOT CO Asd :$7,800,000 Imp: 72% 

18 -- Parcel: 8451 OO~- 050 _., Site: *no Site -A~dress· - --- .. -- _. 

~ Owner: Yeager William P Co Tr Mail: PO Box 5155 San Ramon Ca 94583 

Use: Com,Prking Lot, Patron Or Employee Date: 12/1111989 Sale : Xmpt: 

Sqft :6,000 Bd/8th: 1 Yb: Rms: LotSF:7,802 Acres:.18 

, Type: Legal: TRACT NO 15166 EX OF S Asd :$74,415 Imp: 4 % 
~~_~_~.~•.~.._~_~~~_~_~__ ~~~~~~~~~~~_~~~.. __~_~._.. __ ..~~~e.~._~.~~~~~._~~ 

I # 19 Parcel: 8451 002051 Site: 770 S Citrus Ave Covina 91723 
Owner: Yeager Family limited Mail: PO Box 5155 San Ramon Ca 94583

I Use: Com,Bank,Savings And Loan Date: 05/23/2002 Sale: Xmpt: 
· Sqft : 15.515 Bd/Bth: 1 Yb: 1962 Rms: LotSF: 28,562 Acres: .66 
Type: Legal: TRACT NO 15166 lOT CO Asd :$607,196 Imp: 50% 

I 

Parcel: 8453001 007 Site: 345 N Citrus St West Covina 91791 
Owner: Reynolds Holdings LLC Mall: 345 N Citrus St West Covina Ca 91791 


Use: Com,New Car Sales,Svc Date: 09/25/2012 Sale : $3,663,000 F Xmpt: 

Sqft : 108,330 Bd/Bth: J Yb: 1963 Rms: LotSF: 202,129 Acres: 4.64 

Type: Legal: PHILLIPS TRACT RO LA PU Asd :$4,500,000 Imp :5 % 


.... " In Ih/l Sale, ImOllnl //Id,ealt.! IhtJl Ihl! price shown IS actually/rD1II the preVIa/IS /rans/er ulUi the Ihe mOil current u('lIIs/er "'£IS a rlllr(J !lol/ar ,,,ms.ftr. 
Dtemtd Reltuore, /Jilt I. Not (juamnlud. 

http:Acres:.18


, ...._------_.•. ------_.. _----------,. 
I Parcel: 8453 001 010 Site: 2529 E Workman Ave West Covina 91791 

Owner: Hughes Richard H Tr Mail: 3300 E Whitebirch Or West Covina Ca 91791 
Use: Com,Auto Svc Shop Date: 06/0612008 Sale : Xmpt: 
Sqft : 5,160 Bd/Bth: I Vb: 1957 Rms: LotSF: 28,027 Acres: .64 
Type: 	 Legal: PHILLIPS TRACT RANCHO Asd :$243.245 Imp: 39%Ir-:-: . - .-- .' --- 

I # 22 Parcel: 8453001 047 	 Site: 305 N Citrus $1 West Covina 91791 
Owner: Takau Properties LlC Mail: 7059 Del Cerro Blvd San Diego Ca 92120 

Use: Com,Auto Svc Shop,No Gas Date: 08/22/2007 Sale : $2,050,000 F Xmpt: 
Sqft : 16,831 Bd/Bth: I Vb: 2002 Rms: LotSF: 16,239 Acres: .37 
Type: Legal: TR=PHILUPS TR RANCHO Asd :$1,720,000 Imp: 29% 

# 23 	 Parcel: 8453001 048 Site: 315 N Citrus St West Covina 91791 
Owner: Reynolds Holdings LLC Mail: 2604 Saddle Ridge Dr Covina Ca 91724 

Use: Com,Prking Lot,Patron Or Employee Date: 01/02/2013 Sale : Xmpt: 
Sqft : 14,900 Bd/Bth: I Vb: 1989 Rma: LotSF: 14,856 Acres: .34 
Type: Legal: MR 9-3-4 FOR OESC SEE 0 Asd :$450,000 Imp: % 

# 24 	 Parcel; 8453 001 049 Site: 315 N Citrus St West Covina 91791 
Owner: Reynolds D/L Family Trust Mail: 2604 Saddle Ridge Dr Covina Ca 91724 

Use: Com,Prking Lot,Patron Or Employee Date: 1211212012 Sale: Xmpt: 
Sqft : 17,500 Bd/8th: I Vb: 1989 Rms: LotSF: 17,204 Acres: .40 
Type: Legal: MR 9-3-4 FOR DESC SEE D Asd :$520,500 Imp: % 

# 25 	 Parcel: 8453 001 050 Site: 675 S Citrus Ave Covina 91723 

Owner: Reynolds Holdings LLC Mall: 345 N Citrus St West Covina Ca 91791 


Use: Com,New Car Sales.Svc Date: 03/31/1999 Sale : Xmpt: 
! Sqtt ; 6,257 Bd/Bth: I Vb: 1958 Rms: LotSF: 33,194 Acres: .76 
i Type: Legal: PHILLIPS TR S 115 FT OF Asd :$956.088 Imp: 47% 

r;;;s-- Parcel: 8453 001 051 Site: 2533 E Workman Ave West Covina 91791 
I Owner: Jn/D lLC Mail: 2533 E Workman Ave West Covina Ca 91791 
i Use: Com,Auto Svc Shop Date: 07/01/2014 Sale : $760,000 F Xmpt: 
: Sqtt : 2,420 Bd/8th: I Vb: 1959 Rms: LotSF: 5,569 Acres: .13 
: Typ...: Legal: M R 9-3-4 FOR OESC SEE Asd :$279.611 Imp : 39% 
I 

# 27 	 Parcel: 8453 001 052 Site: 2533 E Workman Ave West Covina 91791 
Owner: Jn/O l LC Mail: 2533 E Workman Ave West Covina Ca 91791 

, Use: Com.Prking Lot,Patron Or Employee Date: 0710112014 Sale: $760,000 F Xmpt! 
1 Sqft : Bd/Bth: 1 Vb: Rms: LotSF: 7.517 Acres: .17 
l Type: Legal: M R 9-3-4 FOR OESC SEE Asd :$155,579 Imp : 2 % 

...." ill/he Stile ..lmollnlllldicuuJ: Ihu//hlt price shown is {lc/uully /r()1II lh' prtl'ious /rcm:ifu and lite the most (IIrrenl trUlls/ltr WQS Q :ero dol/ar trul/s/er. 

Deemed Reliable. BIIt I" Not GuqrUllleed 



11 
;(l 
Q~~uI iii 
(\~ifq -t 

iil1<~q'
~~~. ~ 
~q 

i~~~(i! E~~~!; t 
~~}H! .~ 'J~ 
~~;.:. j~~~i~
W~h 'ii~ f~dl ~. a ~ ~> l < 

~ > 1 

0-./'-- 

~ iHII Z : ~ 

r i tii ~ .~ i 
J 

~ 
~ 
i 

~g Ii ~ig
" S~ i ~ I~inn 

!!! r 

~ '" 
\l 
~ 

~ 

~j P 
~ ~ 

~ 
H~~l 
U~~d 
r}~~
~~'t ~~~~ 

~ :J'~~: ·,~~i
; ~;I!i ii& ~i~~ ~J ~ ~p 

UI 

~ 
~. 

~ 

~ 

i 
i 
~ 

; 


~ 
t 
! 

, 
~ 

~~'i\"2 
~~ 

~I 
~~ I. 
~~ 
~~ 

~' ~ 
J~ 

11 

~ 
"f( 

~ 

§ 

~ 
ffl 
ffi 

il 
~~ 

;~ 
II 
~~ 

~i
!"
·1
i 
~ 

J 

UI 

~ 
~ 
~ 

~m~t 
iii~i~ ,ii~~;;, ,,3 
WiJ 
~~~l;
;il!!
I~,j,. 
jr~~~ 

~m~ 
~~m ., 

{\ 
Q 

m '" 

~ '" 
~ 
z
Q. 

~ 

r:~ Ii i ~H,; : 

~ HIlI ~ 

i) 11 ;1 
i I U 

i aI ~~ 
~ H 

~ ; Vi ~I 
~ u t 
~ ~,~ ~~ 

:, 
 <: :~f'/
-:0"'10
.'] ~, . , 

i! :~ 
~ 
Ii i It;1 n ~~ 1 

~~ ~ I, 
• 

~f&*o ... ~,: •••\I.I f! f! ~ i! f! ilf! ~ iH il 

~ ~ Hn~pp 
j a p~~H~~i 
i i ~ f ~ 
~ ~ 

r 
m 
~ z 
\l 

-1 .. 

• 

• 

!! < 
~ iii 
o i 
~ ~ 
o II
S )0
Z "I 
)0 

SITE PLAN 
ENTERPRISE 

RENT·A·CAR T.I. 
728 S. CITRUS AVE. 
COVINA, CA. 91722 



~i 

I 

\ 

I 

r i!! 
~I 
J! 
II 
\. 
I 

i I 

,;1 ~ 
, i,I § 

~ 

I, •\
I: ~ i~ \ 

~ , ~ 
! 
! 

!j !
il 
! •:il


Ii 
l 

i I 

i 
! 

i 

\ 
!I' I 

~rr1ns. 
m(/) 

iii=:;
.2 
6° 

(/) 
-; 

'I 
r o o ! 
;0 ;\c I!t 
\J : -:li! 
r I lq,» i~ :2 

~ ~ ~ , 

!:! < ~ ~ -t  n ill 
)-

»-< !:! ~~i 5~A! I 
~! ~~~ ~h:i Q ~ .. 1 -I1\.1; V.C'I ~ '~I ~!!~ ~  ~ , '"i ;>ijU i~ ~ ~ iI ~ r' 1 

"j; ~ ~p 9 
~ ~ ~ 

» 
:l!"I

.. 
~~ ~ ()&&I,~rIi ;{.~ ~: ~j H 

~ p,. ""0 ~ 
~h

I ; 
/r. t 

i 
~ 

~ 

ENTERPRISE 
RENT-A-CAR T.I.EXISTING 
728 S. CITRUS AVE.1ST FLOOR PLAN COVINA. CA. 91722 

i 



(~-~...:!:..

• (EJ~:::!.' ,., .' "'~ 
.."._.~.~. if ~fr -.I'---~"--~'~-'''-~!~-''''-~-!--ItPtT~~_~_~ __ _ ... 

ROOM"". 

.~-~~---+

• "1'1 
-: 111ft

II'" ~~ -Ie .... 
leC:;)",
I.U IIC U
lect.w. UC .......z 

ZZ·> 
WW::=:Oa::,..U 

~ 
g ROOM 

0203 

ij 

k i 
OPeN TO BELtlW ij ROOM.... 

~ 

•'" ~~;!L;:__ -=-=--=- f 
il~ OPEHSPA(;E;, ~ 

il AREA TABULATION,? 
il 

:7<IPI"'\.C/(lI'II~,~"::; ~ 

Jl'!ALL LEGEND, 

tJo>,s't!'o&~·GJIIi~.II>O.4.~~"'''''we
~Jl.~_lIO"'!JC"'kS>~ 

DE$C.RIPTION OF OPERATIO!i:2. 
iIIII!':'I"'_CI''I/&J'GLt~ ~cn1!I!!~"'CV"'I", >Q 

~OJFOf'EJIl.A'r.O'I. 
~"'''~CI'''Y 
~'I\IIItV...y

""'.. 
-ntClIlIIi ~u.. fit' 1<O""Z~"'"'ftllIliA<.S -'$~,l'lIfc; 11\1 
C;.I!I.c... T~ krTJ ~ .2.1 

!lTaIIQ!C ..n«.. T\oeelU ...l'1_ 

VICINITY MAP 

CITY OF COVINA 

tI 
 I!~ 

H~ 

Z n~ 

m ~ IceO) 
:I~ 
ci~ i ... ~ 
a::;:: 
au ~ I ~ 
81 t:::i ~ 
00 Iii 
a:: ~ ill 

l2E 

j 

"I. 
Za::
-0rno-...>Cy.
w" 

Z 

" 

~.~ 

EXISTING 2ND FLOOR PLAN 
'5c:.A:...E '.e',,'-c $ ~=======--41 



FL.OOR PL.AN NQn;::L <:2 
itj~~f'iiiS-l"'-.:r."()iilPt.... ,.~~POl">C~ 

0~~NlDo...... ea~""""-I..'!'.t(TT~ 

0~~~-"~ 
0tW$"'''~T 
0reJ~fOerc~<flOA!!!~J<eD8Y 

@tI!)~,cIIIt""""'-'-$ 

@teJ~s-"~\9 0;'!11!~;aII~ 
@1'!oIJ1IlQ.J. ... ~ 
0N!)'1QIU"~~ 

i ....,~.. 

~ 

J 

.. 
~ 

CARREHTAL 
~:Ff. 

-I--~-~ 
~ .. 

l'"rilU',J'" 

~ 

~~ 

~ 	

..: 1Ii~ 
Ill": ~ ....@f'IIU'$TOO!I:I9IIoC*I'TOOClI'II"II5IOfI...~ 

!!I: 11);;0~iIIIOI:'JI"~ 
I:c(::).
Lt)&3<2> 1: ..... 
Ill" UC ...... ,!
ZZfl> 
III III :0

I: .... U 

" 
@ ! 

e........ 	 " 

--". 

<:) 
i! 11",m... 

" ~ -0 ~"I'~.",,'" T
I-om'"i '~.~., . 	

~ 

~ -~~0-	 o 

o 

._____ e...,5-~0U!!0e:MtM,.--------

<2> , 
-<::"")- -0

.1" 

FLOOR PLAt(!) 
sc.,A,LE, ,/t!· ... -o' 

il'lALL L.E6END, 

~	_>M!:••...,... ............ ~..:l_f"JCiIOIC'I!'il\,lD!."'.o.t<."'!MIt.f'VlI't 
'JI' 6"" ew;;; 0-.. ~5'~ NCJ Ilt..... 6A+t 11<!!!l.l.... TlOl't ~ 
I'\AU. "fC 1IIe~~DI!:! ()II' ~ "*-""".1./iloI! MOIS~ 
oq;:",~......~ 0""". 01;. 0l[5~ ""'--L. NCJ UII•.II'i(\1r, 

~Pf1'~....e; 

~	1'EI"!~~·!t2·1>I_~_1."',",,"'·_ 

~_,>(f,5~T~"''''S/lto/lOt.tI'''NeI'''!ll.Ct1N.:: 
~ QIoi't'CIII'-C: -..:N'.~ 6(;., TO ~.,.Jtt.i. 

DE5YRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 
~()#~$ ~'&Q!"o;vrY, !O 

~QI'GIf"tAtoTl~ 


t!ooe;;~.~
:!:~=tD"~ ""QG_2,QQ"!of 

""'""" 
~"""l'lIelOG~MA~""'-.S"'~il!!llW'" 
GJ!'>C. """""I!!:!>5Cn,' r...v 

STGlIIt.Et ...TWI"'~W~'''' 

VICINITY MAP 


CITY OF COVINA 


':',"'.'1., 

~=--$ 


N 
III !!~Z Hi ~ 
c(oo 
:E~

"" I ",8 i ... ~ 
1:
IlIb,!
mt!,·o i'3hl 
I: !li iH 

12t 

S 

L 
I: o 
o... 
II. 

-.... 


A1 


http:STGlIIt.Et


----

"~W!!$~S~~;,~~ 


I\) 

.~ 
' 
l!> 
........ 


@ ...... a ..... TI ....... .
l\') ....wmt". ........ .. 
___ aI"flKMU LDCIL ~ anm...M ......ftB:'llllC:c.a

,...,..., ......
GENERAL NOTES 

1._IU'USlIIlIl~ 

.&uf1U(5 t/·1K" I'M! SIll t f/l&·-i.~ 


·UMlU -/-I/S"-wmiMWI- lJ1·+/1/16~ 


·MtCDPYI.MLUfI!(5SIiCllD{j~ 


, _, DllTINt!'YlOW IIItIS\ 'Kl1TD QfliflWllf 
l. FMSnxot 00001 iltllJO.U5lJSt \f SflliiWMtl>YSIEM 
j 1fOD£'AlJIIltiOtMjT£Ij.I,lSU~wmtOOlfOi 
IlUfIKlllW_l0(<lWllWllllUt<8-

ENTERPRISE OVERLAY 

..... llItU9ft. 

BRIAN S • .... 
EN1UPRISE HOLDINGS. 

alI'lNA,CA 
...ERAC32S1·-----"'-; Vl3/l4 
"'*'*f# iii liifi. 

PACKET D I Of 11 
w:::;.;....;.~_-~~-~ 
- ..__.....__....-J .. IipIoo...- ......--. ....._--......... 




BEFORE 
----~,.----,---------

BEFORE 

It; 
>< 
"~ ......AFTER~ ......"-
'1 

-. AFTER 

as 

tJIIRjJt
IS 

1hWIw 
8S 

"J~W!!}~S~~~~~ 


.. 

__._1I......aa • ........ _-_ .. 

...:u_....-....-:® ... _ ..... l81li.-. 

------- ...._
GENERAL NOTES 

1.1111"'" {IlMUII 1IOlI'1 
·WfljlG t/-1lf'· fA(£SIl{ i l/W,,,,," 
"WOOf -I, Ita'· Yllfi\.ovttL\P l~ f-/lf!IJ~
·m{(\P'r IDU umss IKIIIDiJ1HllW1SE 

1 'IlI'MNG ~!itIII!Ilr1!lla llIIll5lllOll'Ol1l!"'S' 
! 1'IIS«IIlII fJllOOl ",lfAIlSlII!lIf!IWIAI"'sYSTUl 
tlOO'ElII!iOIIOIlWfIWSUlSIlM1O!l101l!O!lJU' 
I AU flffTlJllI.sms lO(QlIftYWIIIIUl48 

ENTERPRISE OVERLAY 

_n I)(QDJf 

BRIAN S. 

EHlERPRISt HOLDIIIGS...~------
(OVINA, (A 

... ERA02S2 ... 11/13114 
Wi 1ft jjjiRr.

PACK£! D 2Of 11..____...___..._ ...110............... 
- .....--.....--......,I.~.....-..--..."""""," 



BEfORE tll~~!r:!$~S~~;,f~ 


BEfORE 

l\f 
>< •'.'t 
"- AfTER~ -1----- - ~_/; : ~-'7]
"- Ii·f:'···· 
't 

. JI 

L~ ® _".~'fO.--..u:t. ~"M_OfAIfttlI__...._BS:IM:r:e. 
__ 0Ma APftICMLI UX'.AL co.s..,.-- .... _
_W1Jli_ 
GENERAL NOTES 

J.1IIlff/M{I("'l(IS"'R~ 

+fiWHlC5 +!~lIr -IA1lSUf t l/H"-!.~ 


"'{AMM[T-/·11T-VlKYI.!MRIR· 1j8"+/lfiIs" 
·AI1ton'i.MIlJ!l.fSSHllIfDOfHElWlSf 

2, Wf* DlSlMtt1S'W50' UIIlm WOHD{IDlflYdS{ 
tM!DUllOOOOl~Dlt\nllJl!iIIlmYLII""IlIJ" 
<4NOIDWiIOIIOIIMTfIlAlWBSTflUOOIIWIlIKlUTKN 

s AllHHJI!(.Il!illillSTO(OWtJMI1tUl.4B 
...... 

ENTERPRISE OVERLAY 

IUiift~~-- ~~ -",_=•.---~ 
BRIAN S ..., 

ENTERPRISE IIOLOIIIGS ,.... 
rovtNA. (A 

Mit EtA( 32S2 ... 11/1:vJ4 

PAmT 0 30f 11----_.--_.......-..........-. ..
-."'--..---........~ .........--...~ 

http:AllHHJI!(.Il!illillSTO(OWtJMI1tUl.4B


----

3'-0" X15'-0" PYLON SIGN I "~~g;;f;~s?:~~~~ 


EXISTING VIEW 


PROPOSED VIEW 


frl 
>C @ .. _. IfI'IaI TI. amw:t. 

i: MI'II.'I.E ...n.--.ElIC1aa. 
__ .... IPPUCJIU lOCAL c.:L--""-........... _
',-

~ 
" 

11l1li_1""!IS NOn~ 
.. GWtiKS t /-'111.,. fACESlZI ! 1116"",,-'" 
,.u.U ·j.1JS'"-wm.OYtlW· l/1"''f/ln.· 
.. 1ti!DP\IMIl1NlfS,SIiilUDOTII£RWlSf 

2f'ifW11631SfOO1S'T{)SO'UlilESSlKlllDOTHfttt.'ISE 
11'III11IIilfrJl1lllJl_ltIS!1II111A1LIT1IVX1lIIDI 
t NO PIVWlO!I IlUOIIIIII_nI/lKlll WOOl 1(' 
S,AlLElKTllfJl5lli'ltSHWlWU'MJltUl48 



-----in.T<~ -

•
==enterPrrn~~~ 


ILLUMINATION VIEW 

ITEIA llH.lJItATION 
ARl0ll2500 SUIES rm GREEN VINYl 

B I WHI1I EXI'IlSfIl SUBSTRATE 
All0ll22 BOOVINYl (MAlTE) 
IilOIIN BOO SW 6251 SOO GlOSS METAl. rAiNT 

-.--

Z ci;1 

r-- 3'-0 ' 

~ 1'-6~' ~ 

-PHOIOCEll 
3'-0' 

CAB1NITSIlE ---- SWUCH 

FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEWllj 

• 3'X1S' CENTl:R POLE SIGN 

1t 100000l!- I!VlIID Sf£!S -f44 -J -GRAI'HICS DEPICTED ARE FOR 
MftMn --- ."'...., 

a 
001 ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONlYI IO:':'~.:o. -I ENTERPRISE~OLDINGS.USE ONLY APPROVED ARTWORK 
-~.;.. FOR PRODUCTION. I 



EXISTING VIEW 

"">< 
i:
"
~ 
" 

• 

7'-0" X23'-0" FLEX REPLACEMENT FACE I"~W!~~s~~~f~ 

@ __.--'1I.1IIINJ.!I._____~13f 

........n.--.EUC'nUC___ .... If"PI..IUIl! &OeM. __ 

... ~ ..... -_arfllE_ 

l_IIIILE\S~1ll 
-GWHKS <-FVf'· fAllSlll + JtJ&-.Jo. 
·1lJ.m ·1·1iI"·.IftIO'Ifwt-1iI"+IIM" 
'jj"II1'''MllllilmllOll'tI1''

'_'1SUNlI1I"1()1'fIllLLEIS1I0110ll1l<'_ 
l,I\5(lJ1ll1!l1lOOl!II!>K.\1lSlIllilfWllilMllSll1lll 
.... '_IIIIWTIII!IIJ!lI11Vll9l111lt0111f01 
).AUltEOIICAlSlGMSl'DCOMPIlWIDlUl.48 

ENTERPRISE OVERLAY 

PROPOSED VIEW 




fI\' 
,,~ 

-:t 
"(J> 
" 
'\ 

• 


--------- 23'..(JM --------

FRONT VIEW 

-B 

SEGION VIEW 

-100% SWIPE 

FIRST SURFACE 3M DIFFUSER 
BEHIND THE BLACK AND GREEEN 
SO THAT THERE IS NO EXPOSED SUBSTRATE 

161 SO. FT. )( 
8y;:::-:"O""'!I=-:::-,:"Cyou--,_..,,-\iOIida="'... .... ...,-_-_-,..-.. -_-:;::-'Il:-::~d"" 

O~"'_"'SIgn-"""'-you_SCALE 1:30 ..."..tong,-- ...... 

,,~~~f.;~s~~::~:. 

PARTS LIST: 
I!IM DlIOWIOl! 

Ijltl»iLS®21I.-...._" 

121S~~lilfnl'llK;. 

nl'f111IJf!R!)Sfj~~____ 

E 11I..ffllSU 

MAJUWt;Sl 

® ... _.......... IIIW.tII. 
.--.:...,. --.m Of 
JIDCU••lIII......B1C'IJKa. __ .... .".., UICaL c.s.- ........ ___YNE_ 

GENERAL NOTES 
llOUl.IO(£lUlOilSlll()1!n) 
"WINKS ti,lft·" fA£t5llt + 1/14·-1.~ 
·CJIINU~f.l/8" .. VMttMltM 1/8"1/1116" 
·AU Wf'HflR UMl[>S IIOIICOTtIElWiSt 

2 'iIf'M8S ~5WI{i 2S' mSO" IIMl.m 1I01ED\l'fiI£lWIS£ 
1./lISCOOI 0000l1!~Wl\1IS£ III smmrMII%lL< 
t NODMillCllot IUfIW WmfllffK»l 'M1JIlIJt m 
S..It1UfCfllfAlSMlMS.TO«1WltYlmfUl4& ....... 

ENTERPRISE FACE SF Nt 
r ..0" X23'-0' FLEX MATERIAl 

FOR AWNING 
....If ---~oiMIDlIJ 

BRIAN s. 
ENlfRPRISE MOttIINGS 

~ 

roYINA. CA- ..
lO983e 1!w7/l4 

~T-····--·--.u-_________ 

HY350S ( 1Of 2-..:_--_.._---_..."'-,.,......-"..-.......-----..~..........--........ 



111 
,>-<, 

i: -... 

'I 

(~ 

EXISTING VIEW 

PROPOSED VIEW 

3'-0" X15'-0" WAll SIGN t1~~!$~S~~::~~ 

® .... _ISEEBIIt,. • .mua:_II:QIIIIIII __~IF

M1DI_If_.....£UC1IIC.~ 
...... IIIPI'lltaE ..... CIIS. -_IF._......_

1.1llI!bII(!IO'l5SIIOlI'J 
.. r.t.U'It!l\.-t!·lt!"" f.l(ISlU + 111'·,1'
"OMfl +{ I/S~ .. vnm. MM 1/1- i /1/\/: 
-IlUllf'/1I\!1I'''USSIIIIRD01ll!tllll! 
1._~lI<!l5'lOWIlll~lSllOnD(lIlOlOfSf 
) I:IIHOOIIOOOOllIIIIlWlSUSlllf5lllTL\lJliiMlEll 
4, IIO&MUIONOIMmtlMSOISTfTlJOONWllJKlU1 f(I 
~ AllElKIlItIlSl&ltSTOIllMf'tYMIlIut4! 

ENTERPRISE OVERLAY 



DEOJRAnON=enterprise
rent-a-car 

ILLUMINATION VIEW 

. SWITCH 

INl "CABINS SIZE 

It'r -PHOTOUU 
3.0" 


CABINflSllE 


L 
FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW 

f-'¥--I-=+- ~~:~~=~~~ ~ 

WALl SIGN 

+---------+--1--1 GRAPHICS DEPICTED ARE FOR I 9 i HABURTO I EE0315AOI i I 
loAic~oo.WlNGNO-1 ENTERPRISE~OLDINGS_

I~ In~~wl,lU I "lnJtll ~ nlM1fW!UWfttJ I :.: I ..d fOR PRODUcnON. 11 



---

EXISTING VIEW 


3'-0" X15'-0" WAll SIGN 


I\'i 
~ 

~ 
'-. 

~ 
""

'1 

PROPOSED VIEW 


l'~~~!!~s~~~~~ 


TIIII ... II ..... tt.taIIUJI.® --..,.-........___II.IImIea. 
.... .-.~UICoIl.COIIIS.---,...-

U~_(llIIUSlIlOl!'1 
.. wrtllCS 4 {·va"· OOlUt t I/W·},· 
"(Qliff 'I· 1J1'" "l1XYlllVEtlAf ~ vr +11/16" 
·AIJ.(J)II'lII'!lUlOll5\IiO!InO_~ 

1._OI<lM(!'~1l)IO'U'US'iJOOn'C1l1!_ 
lflllllXllCooour_.SEIllWIllf.. IlI1l • 
• !til IIMIlIOli nUWEiIIllliOSlllUllOli W!1lIl!f1 E(~ 
1.lllrumJWSIOO!O",",,'WllHUlIi 

ENTERPRISE OVERLAY 



DECORATION=enterprise
rent-a-car 

fIl(O«N BOO sw ma SIMI GlOSS MflAlI'AIKfILLUMINATION VIEW 

- ~-g)I 

~lll/"~ 

T PHOTOCELl 

OOI~~g'SIll 
SWITCH 

L 
FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW 

r'T't.. ..1 

S' WALL SIGN 

GRAPHICS DEPICTED ARE FOR Ir.£IEUl ~-- . t-;;;-t---j ILWSTllATIVE PURPOSES ONLY!
1 ': I I USE ONLY APPROVED ARTWORK n-L......~,,_--.j ENTERPRISEHOLDINGS. 

FOR PRODUCTION. 



CITY OF COVINA 

125 East College Street • Covina, California 91723-2199 

Community Development Department Telephone (626) 384-5450 
Planning Division Fax (626) 384-5479 

!.NOTICE OF SITE PLAN REVIEW APPLICATION REVIEW COMPLETIONj 

September 25, 2014 

Mr. Timothy Williamson, Group Operations Manager 
Enterprise Holdings 
333 City Boulevard West 
Orange, CA 92868 

SUBJECT: 	 REVIEW COMPLETION OF APPLICATION SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR) 14
031 - PROPOSED TEMPORARY OPERATIONS FOR ENTERPRISE RENT-A
CAR AT 728 S. CITRUS AVENUE 

Dear Tim: 

The City of Covina Community Development Department, Planning Division has 
completed its review of application Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-031. The application entails a 
request to permit Enterprise Rent-A-Car to operate temporarily on a currently vacant 
commercial property that was formerly occupied by a bank at 728 South Citrus A venue. As you 
are aware, Enterprise has also submitted for City review and consideration zoning applications 
Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-028 and PCD 99-001 (Modification #1), which, if approved along 
with certain necessary building and other permits and submittals, would allow Enterprise to 
operate on the property permanently. 

The following requirements are applicable to this application: 

~. GENERALJ 

1. 	 Under this approval. Enterprise Rent-A-Car is permitted to operate temporarily on the 
appurtenant property. The applicant, or Enterprise, has further submitted zoning 
applications Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-028 and PCD 99-001 (Modification # 1), which, 
if approved along with certain necessary building and other permits and submittals by the 

EX-flnr! '-f 




Completion of Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-031 
728 S. Citrus Ave. (Temporary Enterprise Car Rental Operation) 
Page 2 of6 

City, by the Los Angeles County Fire Department, and by any other applicable agencies, 
would allow Enterprise to operate on the property permanently. Should Enterprise not 
obtain City approval of the aforementioned, initially considered zoning applications, the 
business shall cease all operations on the date of the denial of the applications and shall 
completely remove all items associated with the business from the property within thirty 
(30) days of that date. In addition, this application shall permit Enterprise to operate on 
the property temporarily, in the manner prescribed herein, until March 31, 2015. If 
Enterprise has not secured all necessary zoning and other approvals from the City, from 
the Los Angeles County Fire Department, and from any other applicable entities to 
function permanently on the property by March 31, 2015 (and if an amendment to this 
SPR application authorizing the continued temporary use of the site for car rental 
purposes has not been approved by the City by that date), the business shall cease all 
operations on and vacate the property by that date. 

2. 	 Should Enterprise Rent-A-Car obtain approval of the previously-submitted zoning 
applications Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-028 and PCD 99-001 (Modification #1), which 
(along with certain above-referenced, necessary approvals from other departments) would 
allow Enterprise to operate on the property permanently, the conditions and requirements 
of those zoning applications shall supersede the conditions and requirements of this 
application that are listed herein. 

3. 	 Please refer to the attached requirements of the Building and Safety Division, as further 
referenced under item 30 below, concerning permit issuance for the permitted temporary 
use of the site. 

4. 	 Enterprise may offer as vehicle rentals typical passenger cars, smaller and larger pickup 
trucks, sport utility vehicles, so-called crossover vehicles, conventional vans, and mini
vans. The renting of any other vehicles, including, but not limited to, moving-type trucks 
or commercial-oriented vehicles weighing in excess of 6,000 pounds shall require further 
City review and approval. Enterprise may also perform on the property various 
administrative activities associated with maintaining this particular branch or rental 
location and supporting associated corporate functions. 

5. 	 The on-site parking and short-term storage of permitted rental vehicles shall appertain to 
activities typically associated with a car rental business. Automobile impound, 
standalone "car storage," or any activity or business where any vehicles would be kept on 
the premises for more than thirty (30) consecutive days shall be prohibited. 

6. 	 No vehicle washing, detailing, repair, servicing, or maintenance shall occur on the 
property (except for very minor car cleaning and associated "car rental preparation
related" activities that would not trigger any permit requirements, that would not interfere 
with anyon-site parking or maneuverability, or that would not violate any provisions of 
the Covina Municipal Code or any other laws or requirements). 

2 




Completion of Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-03 I 
728 S. Citrus Ave. (Temporal)' Enterprise Car Rental Operation) 
Page 3 of6 

7. 	 All existing reciprocal access (and any parking) agreements with adjacent properties shall 
remain in effect. 

8. 	 All Enterprise-related vehicles offered for rent as well as the vehicles of employees, 
customers, and others (such as, but not limited to, maintenance-related personnel) shall 
park on the appurtenant property, unless otherwise legally authorized to park on an 
adjacent property and done so in a safe manner. Should any reciprocal parking 
agreement(s) authorizing any adjoining businesses to park on the subject site exist, the 
applicant shall work with the adjacent property owners and, if necessary, address such 
agreement(s) to ensure that the provisions under the first sentence of this stipulation are 
met. 

9. 	 The property shall maintain a trash bin for refuse disposal, and this bin shall be 
maintained at all times in the existing trash bin enclosure on the property. The trash bin 
enclosure shall meet all applicable requirements. 

10. 	 All business-related operations shall conform to the provisions of the Covina Noise 
Ordinance (Chapter 9.40 of the Covina Municipal Code). In addition, no exterior 
speakers on the property shall be permitted. 

11. 	 Concerning any persons associated with the car rental business, the management of the 
business shall at all times take reasonable steps a) to prevent any outside loitering and b) 
to encourage all individuals to be courteous with neighboring businesses and residences. 

12. 	 The conditions noted herein shall be listed and printed upon the face of and included as 
part of any required construction plans. 

13. 	 The subject property shall be developed, maintained, and operated in full compliance 
with the conditions of this letter, the applicable construction plans, and any laws, statutes, 
ordinances, or other regulations applicable to the project proposal or to any component or 
activity of the project. Failure of the applicant/property owner to cease any development 
or activity not in full compliance shall be a violation of these conditions. Any and all 
future construction or improvements on the site shall conform to all applicable 
development standards, requirements, and review-related procedures. 

14. 	 The project has been determined by the Planning Division to be Categorically Exempt 
under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). If a Notice of 
Exemption is filed with the City, then the period during which legal challenges can be 
filed based upon violations of CEQA would be reduced from 180 days to 35 days. To file 
the Notice of Exemption, please contact the Planning Division. 

15. 	 If necessary to meet City foot-candle-related standards concerning exterior lighting, 
additional outside lighting shall be added to the property for safety purposes. All existing 
and any new outside lighting shall be designed, located/oriented, and illuminated in a 



Completion of Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-03 I 
728 S. Citrus Ave. (Temporary Enterprise Car Rental Operation) 
Page 4 of6 

manner that meets the aforementioned City standards and that does not generate any glare 
onto adjacent properties or streets. 

16. 	 All on-site drainage shall continue to meet the applicable requirements of the Public 
Works Department. 

17. 	 Signs are not a part of this approval. A separate sign pennit must be submitted to the 
Planning Division for review and approval. In addition, it is strongly recommended that 
certain directional signage be installed on the property to bolster circulation safety, 
particularly for Enterprise-related customers. Such signage would also discourage or 
prevent drivers not associated with Enterprise from parking on the property and thus 
possibly interfering with the business. 

18. 	 The installation of any security system on the property, as addressed under Chapter 8.20 
of the Covina Municipal Code, shall first be coordinated with the Covina Police 
Department. 

19. 	 In accordance with the Covina Design Guidelines (CDG), any new roof, wall, and 
ground-mounted mechanical equipment. utility equipment, and utility meters shall be 
screened from surrounding public views with appropriate building materials, painting, 
and/or landscaping. 

20. 	 The completion of this review shall not waive compliance with all other sections of the 
Covina Municipal Code, the Covina Design Guidelines, and all other applicable City 
ordinances and plans as well as applicable non-City laws and regulations in effect at this 
time and any and all associated permit issuances. 

21. 	 Any new and changing ordinances adopted prior to the final approval of the project by the 
City may warrant new review. 

22. 	 Any new site- and building-related improvements concerning the overall project shall be 
of good workmanship and shall be developed or installed in accordance with the 
generally-accepted standards of the applicable industries. 

23. 	 The applicant shall perform any project-related construction or installation work that 
could be heard by any residents of the adjacent properties only between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday (excluding legal holidays), unless a special 
permit is obtained from the City. 

24. If any requirement noted herein is held or declared to be invalid, the entire approval shall 
be void and the privileges granted hereunder shall lapse. 

4 



Completion of Site Plan Review (SPR) \4-031 
728 S. Citrus Ave. (Temporary Enterprise Car Rental Operation) 
Page 50f6 

25. 	 The City shall have the reasonable right of entry to inspect the improvements and the key 
elements of the permitted temporary use that have been reviewed under this SPR 
application to verify compliance with these conditions. 

26. 	 The costs and expenses of any code enforcement activities, including, but not limited to, 
attorneys' fees, caused by the applicant and/or property owner's violation of any condition 
imposed by this SPR application, any other zoning-related determinations concerning the 
site, or any provision of the Covina Municipal Code or the Covina Design Guidelines 
shall be paid by the applicant/property owner. 

27. 	 The permittee shall defend, indemnifY and hold harmless the City. its agents, officers, and 
employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers, or 
employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this application determination, which action 
is brought within the applicable time period of Government Code Section 65009. The 
City must promptly notify the permittee of any claim, action, or proceeding and the City 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. If the City fails to promptly notifY the permittee of 
any claim, action or proceeding, or if the City fails to cooperate fully in the defense, the 
permittee shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnifY, or hold harmless the 
City. 

28. 	 The permittee shall reimburse the City for any court and attorney's fees which the City 
may be required to pay as a result of any claim or action brought against the City because 
of this grant. Although the permittee is the real party in interest in an action, the City 
may, at its sole discretion, participate at its own expense in the defense of the action, but 
such participation shall not relieve the permittee of any obligation under this condition. 

29. 	 The site, building, mechanical, landscaping, and other improvements on the appurtenant 
property shall be maintained in a sound and attractive condition, free of weeds, trash or 
debris, visible deterioration, graffiti, or other conditions that violate the Covina Municipal 
Code. The City may require that the applicant and/or property owner pay the actual and 
reasonable costs for code compliance services needed to address any problem conditions. 

30. 	 Certain requirements of the Building and Safety Division of the Public Works 
Department are applicable to this application. Please refer to attachment for details. 

31. 	 Certain requirements of the Environmental Services Division of the Public Works 
Department are applicable to this application. Please refer to attachment for details. 

Thank you again for your cooperation in submitting the requested information and for 
helping the City staff to complete this review in a timely fashion. Once more, we wish you and 
your associates well with business operations at the new location. If you have any questions on 
this letter, feel free to contact me at (626) 384-5454. 



Completion of Site Plan Review (SPR) 14-031 
728 S. Citrus Ave. (Temporary Enterprise Car Rental Operation) 
Page 6 of6 

Sincerely, 

Alan Carter 
City Planner 

ENCLOSURES 

CC: 	 Nancy Fong, Interim Community Development Director 
Vidal Marquez, Assistant Planner 
Jonathan Perez, Planning Aide 
Cyndie Petersen, Senior Administrative Technician 
Lynda Lara, Planning Intern 
Bill Hayes, Building Official 
Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager 
Lisa Brancheau, Assistant to the City Manager 
Robert Martinez, RAM Architecture, 15487 Seneca Road, Suite 203, Victorville, CA, 
92392 



CITY OF COVINA 


INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM 


To: Planning Division 

From: Basel Badawi, Building Division 

Subject: SPR 14-031 Munis 1473 (Enterprise Rent-A-Car) 

Address: 728 S. Citrus Ave. 

After you have successfully completed the Planning Division's plan review process your plans 
should be ready for submitting to the Building Section for review of State and local Building Code 
requirements. These are general comments intended to prepare the applicant for a successful and 
expeditious plan review through the Building Section. Please be prepared to address the following checked 
items: 

• 	 Please submit (6) sets of complete plans including any proposed utilities and earthwork; two sets 
shall be "stamped approved" by the Covina Planning Division and include the Building Section's 
comments for consultant review. This project must comply with the 2013 California Building 
Standards and 2013 energy code. 

• 	 Two sets each of any structural and energy calculations shall be submitted with the above 
mentioned plans. All calculations must bear an original signature from the documented author. 

• 	 This project must comply with Federal and State Accessibility requirements to and throughout the 
building. Include compliance methods and structural details on the plans. 

• 	 Demolition and renovations activities require an asbestos containing materials (ACM) survey. 
(SCAQMD RULE 1403) The ACM report shall be prepared by an accredited testing laboratory in 
accordance with SCAQMD rules and regulations. Proof of notification to the South Coast Air 
Quality Management District (SCAQMD), Office of Operations, shall be submitted to the Building 
Division with your pennit application for all renovations and demolition activities. Contact the 
SCAQMD at the address or number below for more infonnation. Once any demolition activity has 
been approved by the SCAQMD, a fonnal demolition plan and pennit must be obtained from the 
Building Division. 

o 	 SCAQMD Headquarters; 21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, CA, (909) 396-2381 

• 	 The Los Angeles County Fire Department needs to review your construction plans, to expedite 
this process you will need to contact one or more of their Regional plan check office(s): 
Appointments to discuss Fire Department requirements may be made between 7:30 a.m. and 
10:30 a.m. Please contact Fire Inspector Jennifer Baron (626) 974-8335 for more infonnation. 

clhuildinglplancomm 



Regional plan check offices for the Los Angeles County Fire Department: 

Glendora Office, Building Plan Review Only 

231 W. Mountain View Avenue 

Glendora, CA 91740 

(626) 963-0067 

Commerce Office, Sprinkler & Alarm Plan Review 

5823 Rickenbacker Road 

Commerce, CA 90040-3027 

(323) 890-4125 

Commerce Office. Land Development! Access 

5823 Riekcnbaeker Road 

Commerce, CA 90040-3027 

(323) 890-4243 

• 	 Please provide an additional digital copy (pdf preferred) of the building floor plan, elevations, 
and site plan to be submitted to the LA County Assessor. This copy should be in sufficient detail 
to allow the assessor to determine the square footage of the building and, in the case of 
residential buildings, the intended use of each room. 

~For additional information, please contact the LA County Assessor's, Public Service Desk at 888-807
2111. 

• 	 Construction activity within 500' of a residential zone is prohibited between the hours of 8:00pm 
and 7:00am and on Sundays and Holidays unless otherwise permitted by the City. 

• 	 The Building Section plan check process may address additional concerns. 

• 	 No permits will be issued for the permanent use of this facility, until final approval has been 
granted. Permits for maintenance/repairs for existing building will be issued at the discretion 
of the Building Official. 

cibulldingiplancomm 



ENVIRONMENT AL SERVICES REQUIREMENTS FOR APPLICATION 
SPR 14-031 (PROPOSED ENTERPRISE CAR RENTAL TEMPORARY 
OPERA TIONS AT 728 S. CITRUS A V. - MUNIS #1473) 

1. 	 Applicant is to submit a signed statement certifying that no onsite washing or detailing of 
cars will take place at the facility during temporary operations. 

2. 	 An initial plan review fee of $40 is required. 

For any questions here, please contact Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager, at 626
384-5480. 



ORDINANCE NO. 99-1851 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY,OF 

COVINA ESTABLISHING A REGIONAL OR COMMUNITY 

SHOPPING CENTER WITH A PLANNED COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT (C-3A1PCD) COMMERCIAL ZONE 

CLASSIFICAnON FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE CITY 

OF COVINA, ZCH 98-OO3IPCD 99-001. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Pursuant to public hearing and processing in the manner set forth by State law 

and local ordinance, and after recommendation thereon by the Planning Commission, the property 

classification set forth in Section 2 is made for the reasons of public interest, convenience and necessity. 

SECTION 2. The following described real property in the City of Covina, County of los 

Angeles, State of California, is hereby zoned Regional or Community Shopping Center with a Planned 

Community Development zone overlay Commercial {C-3A1PCD}: 

SEE A ITACHED LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS: (Exhibit A) 

SECTION 3. After giving full consideration to all evidence presented at said HEARING, both 

oral and documentary, and after being fully informed, said City Council does hereby find and decide: 

1. 	 That the site for the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 
use. 

Fact: 	 The project will comply with the city's normal requirements for lot coverage, 
parking, landscaping and site layout. These standards were written to assure 
that new development in the City does not exceed the capacity of their respective 
sites. 

2. 	 That the site for the proposed use relates to streets and highways adequate in width and 
pavement type to carry the quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed use. 

Fact: 	 Traffic on Citrus Avenue is currently at 73% of capacity and on Rowland Street it 
is at 39% of capacity_ The two (2) streets can accommodate the estimated 1.250 
average daily trips that would result from this proposal. 

3. 	 That the proposed use is not detrimental to the surrounding properties or uses permitted 
in the general area. 

ZCH 98·003/PCD 99-001 



Fact: 	 The project has been reviewed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act and the public hearing process. No major adverse impacts have been 
identified in this process. The project will be similar in character and nature as 
the existing center. No significant problems have been reported in association 
with the existing commercial uses. 

4. 	 That the conditions stated in the decision are deemed necessary to project the health. 
safety and general welfare. 

Fact: 	 The propos~ conditions of approval establish limits on the extent, nature and 
style and development to assure that future development will conform with City 
standards that protect the public. 

SECTION 4. The application for a Planned Community Development Overlay Zone is hereby 

granted subject to the following conditions deemed necessary to protect the public health. safety and 

general welfare of the community: 

1 . 	 This ordinance provides the ability to pursue development opportunities that will establish land 
uses that will improve the economic potential of all businesses, will create a pedestrian-friendly 
environment that fosters linkage between. all businesses, and promotes the renovation of 
buildings and streetscapes in order to protect the unique character of this shopping area. The 
Planning Commission is granted the authority to approve modifICations that do not exceed the 
overall development density of the project. All major modifications will require approval by the 
City Council of a new Planned Community Development. 

2. 	 .This approval shall allow up to 30,000 square feet of additional commercial space in the subject 
area. 

3. 	 Development of new structures on Lots 5.6 or 7 of Tract 16643 (137, 145 or 153 East Lorna Vista 
Street) will require approval by the Planning Commission with public notice provided to adjacent 
properties in a 300' radius in the manner provided under Chapter 17.60 of the Covina Municipal 
Code (CUPs). 

4. 	 A ten (10) foot landscaped strip and a six foot (6') block wall shall be provided when any new 
commercial development abuts residentially zoned property. 

5. 	 All future development shall conform with the Covina Design Guidelines and the Design for 
Development adopted for the area by the Covina Redevelopment Agency. Future buildings shall 
meet the Covina Municipal Code Zoning Chapter standards for site layout in the C-3A zone 
including but not limited to parking lot coverage, building setback, landscaping. walls and 
residential buffers. 

6. 	 All new development shall include pedestrian areas that are consistent with those shown on the 
approved conceptual plan. Decorative sidewalks. benches. trash receptacles, light fixtures and 
other new improvements shall be provided with emphasis on creating an attractive environment 
for pedestrians and visitors. The design and details of such improvements are subject to the 
approval of the Chief Planning Official. 

7. 	 New development shall be limited to a maximum height of twenty-five feet (25'). Architectural 
details such as ornamental towers. statutes and similar unoccupied features may exceed this limit 
with approval from the Chief Planning Official. 

B. New development shall be designed in a style that is consistent with the mid-twentieth century 
architecture used on existing buildings on Shoppers Lane. 

2 	 ZCH 98-003lPCD 99-001 



9. 	 Building setbacks shall conform with the standards of the C-3A zone district. 

10. 	 The existing detached single family residences are hereby granted the same amortization period 
as provided for Group A Non-conforming uses under the Covina Municipal Code. 

11. 	 Uses of property in the subject area shall conform with the following: 

Permitted Uses: 

a. 	 Retail Stores, Sales and Services: 
1. 	 Antique home furnishings, 
2. 	 Art gallery, show and studio, 
3. 	 Auto parts sales. excluding body and fender work and painting and mechanical 

auto wash, 
4. 	 Bakers: provided not more than five persons shall be employed and all products 

are sold on the premises, 
5. 	 Bakery sales. 
6. 	 Barber and/or beauty shop, 
7. 	 Bicycle shop, 
8. 	 Blueprinting and photocopying, 
9. 	 Book and stationery store, 
10. 	 Call office for delivery of laundry or dry cleaning, 
11. 	 Carpet and rug sales, no cleaning, 
12. 	 Cleaners, 
13. 	 Clothing and wearing apparel, 
14. 	 Coffee shop, 
15. 	 Cosmetic shop. 
16. 	 Craft shop, 
17. 	 Delicatessen, 
18. 	 Department store, 
19. 	 Discount house, 
20. 	 Drug store, 
21. 	 Electrical appliance supply and repair, 
22. 	 Fixit shop, 
23. 	 Florist, 
24. 	 Food stores. including poultry and egg, bakery, ice cream and confectionery; 

provided all products shall be sold on the premises, and provided there shall be 
no slaughtering, plucking or dreSSing of poultry on the premises, 

25. 	 Fruit store, 
26. 	 Furniture, 
27. 	 Furniture upholstery, 
28. 	 Furriers, 
29. 	 Garage, public, 
30. 	 Garden supply and tools, 
31. 	 Gift shop, 
32. 	 Haberdashery, 
33. 	 Hardware, 
34. 	 Health food stores, 
35. 	 Hobby shop and supply, 
36. 	 Home furnishings, 
37. 	 Household appliances, supply, repair and service, 
38. 	 Ice cream parlor. 
39. 	 Jewelry sales and repair, 
40. 	 Laundromat. 
41. 	 Leather goods and luggage, 

3 	 ZCH 9S-003/PCD 99-001 



42. Linoleum stores, 
43. Locksmith 
44. Luggage shop. 
45. Mail order house. 
46. Maternity shop. 
47. Meat market, 
48. Medical equipment and supplies, 
49. Mimeographing and duplicating, 
50. Music instructions. 
51. Music shop, 
52. Newsstand, . 
53. Novelty shop, 
54. OffICe furniture and machine, sales and repair, 
55. Orthopedic equipment and supplies, 
56. Paint and wallpaper materials and supplies, 
57. Pet shop and food stores, 
58. Pharmacy, 
59. Physicians' equipment and supplies. 
60. Photocopying. 
61. Photographers' studios, 
62. Photography supplies, 
63. Piano sales and service. 
64. Picture framing. 
65. Plant nursery, provided fertilizer be sold only in bags, 
66. Plumbing supply, retail, 
67. Public utility customer service office, 
68. Radio, television and phonographic supplies, sales and service, 
69. Redemption centers, 
70. Restaurant, tearoom, cafe, 
71. Sewing machine sales and service, 
72. Shoe sales and repair, 
73. Soda fountain, 
74. Sporting goods and equipment sales and rentals, 
75. Stationery stores, 
76. Stenographers, public, 
78. Supermarket, 
79. Tailor, 
80. Ticket agency, 
81. Tobacco store, 
82. Toy store, 
83. Vacuum cleaner sales and service, 
84. Variety store, 
85. Video store, 
86. Wearing apparel, 
87. Yarn shop: 

B. Other: 
1. Administrative or professional offices (any offices in which chattels or goods, 

wares or merchandise are not manufactured or sold), 
2. Bank and financial institutions. 
3. Bill paying office, 
4. Insurance brokers, adjusters and agents, 
5. Libraries and reading rooms, 
6. Museums, 
7. Notary public, 
8. Off-street parking. 

4 ZCH 98-003/PCD 99-001 



9. 	 Optometrists. 
10. 	 Parking lot. pUblic. 
11. 	 Real estate brokers. 

Conditional uses (pursuant to Chapter 17.62): 

a. 	 Automobile sales and services; 
b. 	 Automobile service station, except as otherwise provided for in Section 17.42.020, 

subject to the provisions of Section 17.62.025; 
c. 	 Drive-up facilities for pennitted uses; 
d. 	 Drop-off bins and facilities; 
e. 	 Educational or health activities including private schools, trade schools and health spas; 
f. 	 Liquor, Off-sale, subject to the provisions of Section 17.62.026; 
g. 	 Liquor, on sale in conjunction with a bona fide eating establishment; 
h. 	 Public and/or private dancing; 
i. 	 Used merchandise sales, except as provided for antique stores and book sellers. 

SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance and 

shall cause the same to be published according to law. 

APPROVED AND PASSED this 7th daYof~'I~ 

Mayor 

ArrEST: 

City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


City Attorney 

5 	 ZCH 9S-003lPCD 99-001 



I, MARY JO SOUTHALL, City Clerk, Covina, California, hereby CERTIFY that 

Ordinance No. 99-1851 was regularly introduced and placed upon its first reading at aa 

regular meeting of the Covina City Council held August 17. 1999. and that thereafter said 

Ordinance was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held September 7, 1999, 

and passed by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: Allen, Palmeri t Stapleton, MPT/Truax t M/Christiansen 

NOES: Council Members: None 

ABSENT: Council Members: None 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

~Qc4~ 

Covina City Clerk 



Lots 1 through 7 and 20 through 46 of Tract 15166 as recorded in Book 334 at Pages 10 and 11, 

Official Records of the County of Los Angeles; and 

Lots 1 through 24 of Tract 19651 as recorded in Book 506 at Pages 33 and 34, Official Records 

of the County of Los Angeles; and 

Lots 1 through 9 of Tract 18945 as recorded in Book 579 at Pages 25 and 26, Official Records of 

the County of Los Angeles. 

1 



,J) 

V) 

:J 
0::: 
r-
U 

\1. 
( 

::. ... 

S6 _ ,.., 1 

46 

t ~'" ',~' 
" 
" 

30 29 

37. ; 
~ 

o 
Ld 
V) 

«n: 

'" 

38 

40 
,,' 

28 27 ~ '26 ': 
'"f  -r-. 

L 

25 
I 

.., 

22 

.. 
" 

7" 

Z 
.J 

CI)
a: 
w a.. 
a..
0'# 
J: 
CI) 

- ..;}.---~---~ 

21 

".4 lUI 

13,@ 
... 
" 

:. ROWLAND 
Attachment ST 

w 
~. 

,

~ 
:Y 

.. 
... 

~\Wom\MAN 
".'. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-020 PC 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA, CALIFORNIA APPROVING A SITE PLAN REVIEW 
SPR 14-028 FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN 
AUTOMOBILE RENTAL FACILITY AT AND FOR 
PERFORMING VARIOUS ASSOCIATED SITE 
IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
728 SOUTH CITRUS AVENUE - APN: 8451-002-048 

WHEREAS, Enterprise Rent-A-Car (Applicant), has tiled a Site Plan Review, SPR 14
028, (Application) to convert the existing developed site at 728 South Citrus A venue, Covina, 
California 91723 (Property) to an automobile rental facility and, under this conversion, to 
perform certain modifications to the property to accommodate the new use; and 

WHEREAS, related to the Application, the Applicant has filed a Planned Community 
Development Modification, PCD 99-001 (Modification # 1) a) to add "automobile rental" as a 
permitted use for the subject property and to establish special signage criteria for proposed pylon 
(or freestanding) and building signage; and 

WHEREAS, on December 9, 2014, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed 
public hearing at which time oral and written evidence along with written recommendation from 
the Planning Division was presented to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission 
concluded said hearing on that date. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA, CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein and made an operative part of this Resolution. 

SECTION 2. Based upon the entire record made available at the December 9, 
2014 public hearing, the staff report, the oral presentation, and related documents submitted to 
the Planning Commission prior to and at the public hearing, the Planning Commission hereby 
finds and determines as follows: 

a. All provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are complied with. 

Findings of Facts: The site is currently developed with a 6.468-square foot 
building and associated parking and other improvements. The proposed project is 
to modify the interior and southern-most parking areas only to accommodate 
automobile sales as well as to perform certain typical changes to existing exterior 
signage. The underlying automobile rental use and the exterior signage, which do 
not conform to current zoning provisions, are addressed in the "PCD 
Modification" section of the report below. All other components of the proposed 
project comply with the applicable provisions of the Zoning Code. 

EXHIBIT B (14 pages) 



b. The basic project elements are so arranged that traffic congestion is avoided, 
pedestrian and vehicular safety and welfare are protected, and no adverse effects 
will occur on surrounding properties. 

Findings of Facts: The project will consist of primarily administrative- and car 
rental-related uses, which are typically lower turnover-type activities (compared 
to retail and banking, the prior long-time use on the site). In evaluating the 
project proposal, the staff did not identify any potential for internal circulatory 
conflicts or external traffic congestion. Therefore, pedestrian and vehicular safety 
and welfare would be protected and there should not be any adverse effects on 
surrounding properties. 

c. The project design conforms to the General Plan and any Design Guidelines or 
Specific Plan that may be applicable to the project. 

Finding of Facts: The project complies with the commercial development 
intensity provision of the General Plan ( 1.5 FAR). And any minor changes to the 
exterior of the building will be conditioned to conform to the existing 1960s-era 
though generally attractive building style and architecture, thus conforming to the 
Covina Design Guidelines. 

d. The project design is harmonious, consistent, and complete within itself and 
functionally and visually compatible with neighboring land uses. 

Finding of Facts: The proposed project is designed to accommodate a car rental 
business. Along adjacent portions of South Citrus A venue, there are six 
somewhat similar auto and truck dealerships. The design of the proposed project 
is harmonious, consistent and complete within itself. Furthermore, the proposed 
project is functionally and visually compatible with both the neighboring auto 
dealerships and other commercial land uses. And the staff believes that there 
would not be any conflicts with the easterly houses (the closest of which are non
conforming). There are no records of incompatibility-associated issues or land 
use-related conflicts between Enterprise and any other property during the many 
years that Enterprise operated across the street. 

e. The development will constitute an adequate environment for the intended use by 
sustaining the desirability and stability of the neighborhood and community. 

Finding of Facts: The proposed project is designed primarily for the noted car 
rental use and should further sustain the City's Citrus A venue auto row, which 
will provide stability to the neighborhood and community_ In addition, the 
conditions of approval of the application will provide the City with safeguards for 
preventing any future issues. 

f. Proposed lighting is 
properties. 

so arranged as to reflect the light away from adjourning 



Finding of Facts: The proposed project would consist of existing and new 
exterior lighting on the building and in the surface parking areas. These lights 
would be required to meet applicable City foot-candle standards to provide for 
adequate security while being directed, oriented and shielded to prevent light from 
shining on and spilling over onto adjacent properties and public streets. 

g. 	 Proposed signs will not, by size, location, color, or lighting, interfere with traffic 
or limit visibility. 

As noted above, certain exterior signage was also submitted to the City with the 
SPR application and, although certain components of it exceed the associated 
Code requirements, the sign has been determined to be acceptable under the 
associated "PCD Modification" application. A typical signage review 
requirement of the City calls for all signage to be located and designed in a 
manner that would not interfere with traffic or limit visibility. 

SECTION 3. The Planning Commission has determined that this application is 
categorically exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15031 (a), Class 1. The scope of the 
project is to perform general building interior- and parking-related modifications to establish an 
automobile rental facility. The Planning Commission further finds that there is no substantial 
evidence that the project will have a significant effect on the environment. 

SECTION 4. Based upon findings and conclusion set forth in Sections 1, 2 and 3 
above, the Planning Commission hereby approves the application: 

a. 	 The Site Plan Review application, SPR 14-028, is hereby approved, subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the written record before the Commission 
incorporated herein and attached hereto as Exhibit "A." 

b. 	 The Secretary of the Planning Commission is directed to serve, by first-class mail, 
a written notice of this decision to the Applicant within five (5) days. 

SECTION 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 
adoption, subject to a 10 calendar-day appeal period. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the members of the Planning Commission 
1h

of the ?:ty OfCO~Vinaat a.general meeting thereofheld on the 9 day of December 2014. 

\ .'.> 
, . 	 ..' .---. 1":: t· - •.. 

\,j,-..-.., . ~~~\:,\:f 
WIN PATTERSON, CHAIRMAN 
CITY OF COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION 



I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the City of Covina at a general meeting thereof held on the 9th day of December 
2014 by the following vote of the Planning Commission: 

AYES: HODAPP, j\r.I\NN i ~G" jV;Ci"1EEKI i'i, PATTEKSON 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: CONNORS 

NONEABSTAIN: 

COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY 




CITY OF COVINA 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-020 PC FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW SPR 14-028 


EXHIBIT A - CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

December 9,2014 


1.0 	 TIME LIMITS: 

1.1 	 The approval shall expire one year from the date of project approval by the 
Planning Commission if no project-related construction work has commenced. 

2.0 	 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

2.1 	 The approval is for the conversion of the developed site to an automobile rental 
facility with ancillary administrative operations. including the performing of an 
interior tenant improvement minor changes to the building exterior to 
accommodate the interior work, and certain modifications to the parking area to 
serve the new use, as shown in the approved project plans on file with the City. 

2.2 	 The approval is contingent upon the approval of the related application Planned 
Community Development 99-001 (Modification #1) by the City Council for 
adding "automobile rental" as a permitted use and, for the property at 728 South 
Citrus Avenue only, tor establishing a special sign criteria for wall signs and a 
pylon sign. 

2.3 	 This approval will not be effective until the applicant has filed with the Planning 
Division an affidavit stating that he is aware of and agrees to accept all of the 
conditions of the approval. 

2.4 	 The project or uses may proceed only in accordance with the approved plans on 
tile with the Community Development Department. all representations of record 
made by the applicant(s), the conditions contained herein. the Covina Municipal 
Code, and the Covina Design Guidelines. 

2.5 	 Failure to comply with any conditions of approval noted herein or any future 
violation of conditions may result in revocation of project approval by the City. 

2.6 	 Minor modifications to this approval that are determined by the City Planner or 
hislher designee to be in substantial conformance with the approved project plans 
and that do not intensify or change the use or require any deviations from adopted 
standards may be approved by the City Planner upon submittal of an 
administrative application and the required fee. 

2.7 	 Approval of this request shall not waive compliance with all other sections of the 
Covina Municipal Code, the Covina Design Guidelines, and all other applicable 



plans and non-City laws and regulations that are in effect at the time of building 
permit issuance. 

2.8 	 Any future proposed new or intensifies uses, building or interior expansions, 
and/or site improvement modifications shall first be reviewed and approved by 
the City for conformance with these approvals, the Covina Municipal Code, the 
Covina Design Guidelines. and the applicable permit issuance processes. If 
determined by the City Planner to exceed the scope or intent of these approvals or 
in any way conflict with the appurtenant conditions, then the City may require the 
approval of a new or additional zoning application (if needed). and/or the 
submittal of certain use- or impact-related studies to address any identified 
concerns. 

2.9 	 Any outdoor ground mounted mechanical and utility equipment shall be placed 
away t!'om the street frontage and public view, and shall be screened in 
conformance with Covina Municipal Code and Covina Design Guidelines. All 
roof mounted equipment and/or pr~jections. wall-mounted equipment, and utility 
meters must be screened from public view with appropriate building materials 
that are architecturally integrated with the building design. 

2.10 	 Any future building improvements shall conform to all provisions noted herein 
and shall address all applicable City planning- and building-related codes and 
standards and permit issuance requirements and processes. 

2.11 	 All landscape or planter areas shown on the approved landscape plan shall remain 
landscaped in perpetuity. These areas shall not be paved or used for storage or 
any similar purpose inconsistent with the intent of this approval. 

2.12 	 The automobile rental company or Enterprise may offer as vehicle rentals typical 
passenger cars, smaller and larger pickup trucks, sport utility vehicles, so-called 
crossover vehicles, conventional vans, and mini-vans. The renting of any other 
vehicles, including, but not limited to, moving-type trucks or commercial-oriented 
vehicles weighing in excess of 6,000 pounds shall require further City review and 
approval. Enterprise may also perform on the property various administrative 
activities associated with maintaining this particular branch or rental location and 
supporting associated corporate functions. 

2.13 	 The on-site parking and short-term storage of permitted rental vehicles shall 
appertain to activities typically associated with a car rental business. Automobile 
impound, standalone "car storage." or any activity or business where any vehicles 
would be kept on the premises for more than thirty (30) consecutive days shall be 
prohibited. 

2.14 	 Condition deleted by Planning Commission on December 9, 2014. 



2.15 	 All existing reciprocal access (and any parking) agreements with adjacent 
properties shall remain in effect. 

2.16 	 All Enterprise-related vehicles offered for rent as well as the vehicles of 
employees, customers, and others (such as, but not limited to, maintenance-related 
personnel) shall park on the appurtenant property, unless otherwise legally 
authorized to park on an adjacent property and done so in a safe manner. Should 
any reciprocal parking agreement(s) authorizing any adjoining businesses to park 
on the subject site exist, the applicant shall work with the adjacent property 
owners and, if necessary, address such agreement(s) to ensure that the provisions 
under the first sentence of this stipulation are met. 

2.17 	 The property shall maintain a trash bin for refuse disposal, and this bin shall be 
maintained at all times in the existing trash bin enclosure on the property. The 
trash bin enclosure shall meet all applicable requirements. 

2.18 	 The public hours of operation of the car rental facility shall be limited to a) 
Mondays through Fridays, 7:00 am to 8:00 pm; and b) Saturdays and Sundays, 
7:00 am to 6:00 pm. 

2.19 	 All business-related activities on the property shall conform to the provisions of 
the Covina Noise Ordinance (Chapter 9.40 of the Covina Municipal Code 
(CMC)). In addition, no speakers shall be permitted in any exterior area. 

2.20 	 Concerning any persons associated with the car rental business. the management 
of the business shall at all times take reasonable steps a) to prevent any outside 
loitering and b) to encourage all individuals to be courteous with neighboring 
businesses and residences. 

2.21 	 All employees shall park on site and in the portions of the parking area that lie 
immediately north and east of the building. Off-site parking on neighborhood 
streets is prohibited. 

2.22 	 One parking space immediately east of the building shall be designated for 
(pertaining to business-related supplies and materials) loading and unloading 
purposes (may also be used for employee parking). 

2.23 	 The automobile washing activity shall conform to all applicable City and any 
other requirements. No general automobile repair work (excluding. if necessary. 
minor maintenance or repair work associated with preparing cars for rent). no 
body and fender work. and no automotive painting shall occur on the property. 

2.24 	 Following construction completion. the entire parking facility shall be repaved or 
resurfaced. meeting applicable standards. 



2.25 	 The maximum number of persons permitted in the building at any time shall 
comply with the occupant load figure(s) to be established by the Building 
Division and the Los Angeles County Fire Department. 

2.26 	 The property and all improvements, including landscaping, must be maintained in 
a sound, healthy, and attractive condition free of weeds, visible deterioration. 
graffiti, debris and/or other conditions that violate the Covina Municipal Code. 

2.27 	 Any new site- and building-related improvements concerning the overall project 
shall be of good workmanship and shall be developed or installed in accordance 
with the generally-accepted standards of the applicable industries. 

2.28 	 The City shall have the reasonable right of entry to inspect the properties on the 
overall project site to verify compliance with the Conditions of Approval. 

2.29 	 The permittee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City. its agents, 
officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City or 
its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this application 
determination, which action is brought within the applicable time period of 
Government Code Section 65009. The City must promptly notify the permittee of 
any claim, action, or proceeding and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
If the City fails to promptly notify the permittee of any claim, action or 
proceeding, or if the City fails to cooperate fully in the defense. the permittee 
shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify. or hold harmless the City. 

2.30 	 The permittee shall reimburse the City for any court and attorney's fees which the 
City may be required to pay as a result of any claim or action brought against the 
City because of this grant. Although the permittee is the real party in interest in 
an action, the City may, at its sole discretion. participate at its own expense in the 
defense of the action, but such participation shall not relieve the permittee of any 
obligation under this condition. 

2.31 	 If any provision of this approval is held or declared to be invalid, then the entire 
approval shall be void and the privileges granted hereunder shall lapse. 

2.32 	 The costs and expenses of any code enforcement activities, including, but not 
limited to. attorneys' fees, caused by applicant's violation of any condition or 
mitigation measure imposed by this application or any provision of the Covina 
Municipal Code must be paid by the applicant. 

2.33 	 All grading and all exterior (during construction and following project 
completion) drainage on the property shall conform to all applicable requirements 
of the Public Works Department. 

2.34 	 Any proposed site features for the disabled that are associated with this project 
approval, including. but not limited to, property access identification, parking stall 
and unloading area dimensions. path of travel. and building access, must comply 



3.0 

with all applicable State Codes and must first be reviewed and approved by the 
Building Division (please contact the Building Division for specific 
requirements). 

2.35 	 Sign permits shall be obtained prior to the installation of any temporary or 
permanent signs, meeting all applicable requirements. 

2.36 	 The project has been determined by the Planning Division to be Categorically 
Exempt under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). If a Notice of Exemption is filed with the City, then the period during 
which legal challenges can be filed based upon violations of CEQA would be 
reduced from 180 days to 35 days. To file the Notice of Exemption, please 
contact the Planning Division. 

PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT: 

3.1 	 Final plans incorporating all conditions of approval and any plan-related changes 
required in the approval process shall be submitted for review and approval by the 
City Planner prior to building permit issuance. The construction plan/documents 
must include specific details and delineation incorporating these conditions of 
approval, including any required Planning Division-related modifications. 

3.2 	 All conditions of approval listed herein must be printed upon the face of and 
included as part of the final plans and specifications during the plan check 
process. 

3.3 	 All required plans must be coordinated for consistency and any easements of 
record or required easements shall be reflected on the site plan along with off-site 
improvements and off-site conditions of approval and buildings within 10 feet any 
property line. 

3.4 	 Detailed on-site landscape and irrigation plans must be submitted for review and 
approval by the City Planner or his/her designee, meeting applicable standards 
and requirements. The landscaped and planter areas shall conform to the same 
areas depicted on the conceptual landscape plan. In addition, the on-site 
landscape plans shall reflect an enhanced landscape design for all areas where 
planters are to be installed and, prior to landscape plan preparation, the proposed 
design details of the planters shall be reviewed by the City Planner. These plans 
shall further conform to the provisions of the City's Water-Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance (Chapter 17.82 of the Covina Municipal Code); 

3.5 	 In accordance with Chapter 11.36 of the Covina Municipal Code, no street trees 
adjacent to the site shall be cut or trimmed in any manner by any persons 
associated with property unless a \\'Titten pemlit from the Public Works 
Department is first obtained. 



3.6 	 The construction-related activities concerning the project shall confonn to the 
following requirements that address potential noise and associated impacts: 

a. 	 The applicant shall prepare a construction mitigation plan to mitigate noise 
as well as other construction-related impacts. The construction mitigation 
plan shall address the following areas: 1) site supervision, 2) site access, 3) 
deliverylhaul route and traffic control, 4) material storage, 5) construction 
parking, 6) work hours, 7) noise reduction, 8) erosion control, 9) dust and 
mud control. 10) debris cleanup, 11) street sweeping, 12) pedestrian and 
neighborhood safety, 13) project contact-related signage, and 14) 
subcontractor education. 

b. 	 All project construction activities shall only occur on Monday through 
Saturdays from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. only (unless a special construction 
pennit is granted by the City). No construction shall occur on Sundays or 
legal holidays. 

c. 	 All construction equipment shall be in proper operating condition and 
shall be fitted with standard factory noise attenuation features. All 
equipment shall further be properly maintained to assure that no additional 
noise, due to worn or improperly maintained parts, would be generated. 

d. 	 The applicant and/or his representative(s) shall frequently monitor for and, 
if detected, remove any and all graffiti on and/or repair damaged or 
vandalized construction-related fencing and/or related elements as quickly 
as possible. 

3.7 	 At least thirty days prior to the commencement of any project-related grading, the 
applicant and/or his/her representative(s) shall notify the occupants of all 
residential and institutional properties that lie within 150 feet of the subject 
property of the general parameters of the impending grading and construction 
activities. In addition, the applicant and/or his/her representative(s) shall attempt 
to address any neighbor complaints to the greatest extent practical and as 
expeditiously as possible. 

3.8 	 A complete exterior lighting plan shall be submitted for review and approval 
during building plan check. The plan shall illustrate light fixture features, 
locations, and compliance with applicable City Code provisions on illumination, 
design, and lighting orientation/glare prevention, and the City'S minimum one
foot candle standard. No exterior lighting on the site shall generate any glare 
onto any adjacent properties. The new lighting fixtures shall be reviewed with the 
construction plans to further ensure design compatibility with the building 
architecture. 



3.9 	 Locate, identifY and provide cross-sectional details of screening material in the 
construction documents to demonstrate that all new roof, wall, and ground
mounted mechanical equipment. utility equipment, and utility meters are screened 
from public view. 

3.10 	 The installation of any security system that is associated with the use, as 
addressed under Chapter 8.20 of the Covina Municipal Code, shall first be 
coordinated with the Covina Police Department. The installation of any security 
system(s), as discussed under Chapter 8.20 of the Covina Municipal Code, shall 
be coordinated with the Covina Police Department. Please determine at the 
earliest possible time whether a security system is to be utilized, as failure to 
inform Police of security system installation plans may delay building permit 
issuance relating to the Plan Check process. 

3.11 	 The following are requirements from the Building Division: After you have 
successfully completed the Planning Division's plan review process your plans 
should be ready for submitting to the Building Section for review of State and 
local Building Code requirements. These are general comments intended to 
prepare the applicant for a successful and expeditious plan review through the 
Building Section. Please be prepared to address the following checked items: 

a. 	 Please submit (6) sets of complete plans including any proposed utilities 
and earthwork; two sets shall be "stamped approved" by the Covina 
Planning Division and inc1ude the Building Section's comments for 
consultant review. This project must comply with the 2013 California 
Building Standards and 2013 energy code. 

b. 	 Two sets each of any structural and energy calculations shall be submitted 
with the above mentioned plans. All calculations must bear an original 
signature from the documented author. 

c. 	 This project must comply with Federal and State Accessibility 
requirements to and throughout the building. Include compliance methods 
and structural details on the plans. 

d. 	 Demolition and renovations activities require an asbestos containing 
materials (ACM) survey. (SCAQMD RULE 1403) The ACM report shall 
be prepared by an accredited testing laboratory in accordance with 
SCAQMD rules and regulations. Proof of notification to the South Coast 
Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD), Office of Operations, shall 
be submitted to the Building Division with your permit application for all 
renovations and demolition activities. Contact the SCAQMD at the 
address or number below for more information. Once any demolition 
activity has been approved by the SCAQMD, a formal demolition plan 
and permit must be obtained from the Building Division. 

SCAQMD Headquarters; 21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, CA, 



(909) 396-2381 

e. 	 The Los Angeles County Fire Department needs to review your 
construction plans, to expedite this process you will need to contact one or 
more of their Regional plan check office( s): Appointments to discuss Fire 
Department requirements may be made between 7:30 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. 
Please contact Fire Inspector Jennifer Baron (626) 974-8335 for more 
information. Regional plan check offices for the Los Angeles County Fire 
Department: 

l. 	 Glendora Office, Building Plan Review Only 
231 W. Mountain View Avenue 
Glendora, CA 91740 
(626) 963-0067 

11. 	 Commerce Office, Sprinkler & Alarm Plan Review 
5823 Rickenbacker Road 
Commerce, CA 90040-3027 
(323) 890-4125 

iii. 	 Commerce Office, Land Development / Access 
Rickenbacker Road 
Commerce, CA 90040-3027 
(323) 890-4243 

f. 	 Please provide an additional digital copy (pdf preferred) of the building 
floor plan, elevations, and site plan to be submitted to the LA County 
Assessor. This copy should be in sufficient detail to allow the assessor to 
determine the square footage of the building and, in the case of residential 
buildings, the intended use of each room. 

g. 	 For additional information, please contact the LA County Assessor's, 
Public Service Desk at 888-807-2111. 

h. 	 Construction activity within 500 teet of a residential zone is prohibited 
between the hours of 8:00pm and 7:00am and on Sundays and Holidays 
unless otherwise permitted by the City. 

1. 	 The Building Section plan check process may address additional concerns. 

3.12 	 Engineering Division requirements: Any off-site improvements within the public 
right-of-way will require a permit from Engineering Division of the Public Works 
Department. 

3.13 	 Revised Environmental Services Division requirements: 

a. Subsequent plan review: $40 per subsequent submission. 



b. 	 SWPPP: $600 plus fee for additional review for consultant if requested. 

c. 	 Specific Mitigation Review: $600 for any project with any of the following: 

• 	 Vehicle or site equipment fueling areas 

• 	 Vehicle or equipment maintenance areas including washing and repair 

• 	 Commercial or industrial waste handling or storage 

• 	 Outdoor handling or storage of hazardous materials 

• 	 Outdoor manufacturing areas 

• 	 Outdoor food handling or processing 

• 	 Outdoor animal care. confinement. or slaughter 

d. 	 Only Athens Services/Covina Disposal. 888-336-6100, is allowed to provide 
bins and pickup and dispose of trash and recyclables. including all C&D 
projects. Exception: Project contractor. using his own equipment and staff, 
can take recyclables to a recycling facility. 

e. 	 Non-Domestic Wastewater Disposal Permit may be required. Please check 
with Building Section. 

[ 	 OC 1 A - Complete form, sign. return original. attached copy to field plans. 

g. 	 Grease Interceptor/Clarifier/or Lint Filter will be required. 

3.14 	 The proposed project shall comply with the pertinent requirements of the Los 
Angeles County Fire Department. Submit a set of development plans that have 
been stamped approved by the Los Angeles County Fire Department. 

3.15 	 The following are the requirements of the Covina Water Division: the applicant 
shall meet all associated requirements concerning the new car washing area. 

4.0 	 PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY/FINAL 
BUILDING PERMITS: 

4.1 	 All building and site improvements along with landscaping and irrigation must be 
installed in accordance with plans and information on file with the Planning, 
Building, and Engineering Divisions. and the irrigation systems must be fully 
operational. Furthermore, all on-site landscaped areas must be maintained free of 
weeds and debris. 



4.2 	 All building, structural, parking, lighting, and landscape improvements shall be 
constructed, installed, or handled in a good workmanlike manner, consistent with 
the standard best practices of the subject trades and in a manner acceptable to the 
City. 

4.3 	 All exterior lighting fixtures must be installed in accordance with plans and 
analyses on file with the Planning and Building Divisions, and the lighting 
fixtures must be fully operational. 

4.4 	 The project site must be clean and free of trash and construction debris, and all 
construction equipment must be removed from the site. 

4.5 	 Any broken, damaged, or blighted features of the property or any building(s) 
thereon shall be repaired or removed. 

4.6 	 The applicant must comply with all of the requirements listed above as well as 
requirements determined during the Building Plan Check process. 

4.7 	 Final occupancy shall not be granted until such time as the applicant has obtained 
approval from the City Planner who has inspected the premises and the use for 
compliance with all terms and conditions of this of approvaL 

- END OF CONDITIONS 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-017 PC 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF COVINA RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA APPROVAL OF AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 99-1851 (PCD 99-001 
(MODIFICATION #1) TO ADD"AUTOMOBILE RENTAL" AS 
A PERMITTED USE AND MODIFYING THE SIGN 
REGULATIONS FOR ONE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
SHOPPERS LANEffERRADO PLAZA PLANNED 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AREA. 

WHEREAS, California Government Code, Section 65800 et seq. authorizes the 
adoption and administration ofzoning laws, ordinances, rules and regulations by cities as a means of 
implementing the General Plan: and 

WHEREAS, "auto rental" is identified as a permitted use in the "C-3 - Commercial 
Zone" of the City (Covina Municipal Code, Section 17.40.020); and 

WHEREAS, any use permitted in the "C-3 - Commercial Zone" of the City is also 
permitted in the "C-3A Commercial Zone" of the City (Covina Municipal Code, Section 
17.42.020). Therefore, "auto rental" is a permitted use in the "C-3A - Commercial Zone"; and 

WHEREAS, there is that certain area of the City known as the "Shoppers 
Lane/Terrado Plaza Planned Community Development Area" (the "Area") which is zoned "C-3A'\ 
but is also currently subject to special planned community development (PCD) zoning regulations 
under Ordinance 99-1851 (PCD 99-001) (the "PCD Ordinance"); and 

WHEREAS, while the Covina Municipal Code would generally permit "auto rental" 
uses within the Area, this type ofuse is not explicitly identified as permitted in the PCD Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, out of an abundance of caution, City staff is proposing an Ordinance 
which amends certain sections of the PCD Ordinance in order to explicitly add "auto rental" as a 
permitted use in order to be consistent with the general "C-3A" zoning; and 

WHEREAS, one building within the Area, more commonly known as 728 S. Citrus 
A venue (the "Building"), currently has a legal non-conforming freestanding pylon sign adjacent to it 
that is proposed to be modified and additional signage is proposed on the Building that varies from 
the Covina Zoning Code and Design Guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has carefully considered all pertinent 
testimony and the staff reports presented during a duly noticed public hearing on December 9,2014. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

EXHiBiT C (5 pages) 



SECTION 1: Based on the entire record before the Planning Commission, all written and 
oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, and the findings made in the staff reports and 
this Resolution, the Planning Commission of the City ofCovina hereby recommends that the City 
Council adopt an Ordinance which makes the following amendment(s) to the PCD Ordinance: 

Amend paragraph B of subsection 11 of Section 4 of Ordinance 99-1851 (PCD 99
001) to state as follows: 

"11. Uses of property in the subject area shall conform with the following: 

Permitted Uses: 

B. 	 Other: 

1. 	 Administrative or professional offices (any offices in which chattels 
or goods, wares or merchandise are not manufactured or sold). 

2. 	 Auto rental, 
3. 	 Bank and financial institutions, 
4. 	 Bill paying office, 
5. 	 Insurance brokers, adjusters and agents, 
6. 	 Libraries and reading rooms, 
7. 	 Museums, 
8. 	 Notary public, 
9. 	 Off-street parking, 
10. 	 Optometrists, 
11. 	 Parking lot, public, 
12. 	 Real estate brokers." 

SECTION 2: Based on the entire record before the Planning Commission, all written and 
oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, and the findings made in the staffreports and 
this Resolution, the Planning Commission of the City of Covina also hereby recommends that the 
City Council adopt an Ordinance which also makes the following additional amendment(s) to the 
PCD Ordinance: 

Add subsection 12 to Section 4 of Ordinance 99-1851 (PCD 99-001) to state as 
follows: 

"12. Permitted Signage at 728 South Citrus Avenue: 

With respect only to the Building located at 728 South Citrus A venue, (presently occupied 
by "Enterprise Rent-a-Car"), up to four (4) permanent, principal business-advertising 
signs may be located thereon, subject to the following standards: 

Sign "A": The existing legal non-conforming andfreestanding pylon sign along 
the Building's west-jacingfrontage along South Citrus Avenue may be modified, 
provided that the total new sign copy area shall not exceed fifty (50) squarefeet. 



Sign "B": A building-mounted sign may be erected above the Building's western 
entrance facing South Citrus A venue, provided that the total sign copy area may 
not exceed 16.5% of the building face area, and the total sign height may not 
exceed seven (7) feet. 

Signs "C-J" and "C-2": Two wall-mounted signs may be erected on the northern 
andsouthern sides ofthe Building (one sign on each building side), provided that 
the total sign height ofeither sign may not exceed three (3) feet. 

Except as provided herein, all signage within the property covered by this PCD Ordinance 
shall comply with the provisions of the Covina Municipal Code and Covina Design 
Guidelines. " 

SECTION 3: The Planning Commission finds that the above referenced Ordinance is in the 
public interest and reasonably related to the public welfare because: 

A. With respect to the "auto rental" use, it merely makes certain technical and 
clarifying amendments to the PCD Ordinance so that it conforms to those uses already 
permitted by the Covina Municipal Code for "C-3A" zoning. 

B. With respect to the signage regulations, the Ordinance only makes minor 
alterations to the existing sign program governing the Area and only affects one building 
therein (728 S. Citrus Ave.). It does not alter the underlying zoning, the existing layout of 
buildings, on-site parking, vehicle and pedestrian circulation, or other physical elements of 
the Area. Therefore, the site remains adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use, as 
amended by the Ordinance. Further, although the Ordinance may result in additional 
customer traffic coming to the Area, the impact on traffic will be negligible relative to South 
Citrus Avenue and Workman Avenue. Both are primary arterial streets serving the Area and 
will remain adequate in width and pavement to carry the quantity and kind of traffic 
generated by the proposed uses benefitting from this Ordinance. Lastly, the additional 
signage would not dominate or detract from the architectural integrity of the Building nor 
will it face toward any residential or other sensitive uses in the vicinity. 

SECTION 4: The Planning Commission also finds that adoption of this Ordinance is 
consistent with the City of Covina General Plan because: 

A. With respect to the "auto rental" use, it merely makes certain technical and 
clarifying amendments to the PCD Ordinance so that it conforms to those uses already 
permitted by the Covina Municipal Code for "C -3A" zoning. Overall, this technical 
amendment to the PCD Ordinance remains consistent with the objectives and policies of 
each element of the General Plan and does not obstruct their attainment. 

B. With respect to the signage regulations, the Area will continue to conform to 
the existing "General Commercial" land use designation set forth in the General Plan. 
Further, the Ordinance fosters the occupancy ofvacant tenant spaces within the Area and will 



enhance their ability to attract customers along South Citrus Avenue, thereby boosting the 
economic base of the City. On the other hand, the amendment made by this Ordinance is 
relatively minor, focused on one building within the Center (728 S. Citrus Ave.) and, 
therefore, will not result in excessive signage or visual blight which would be contrary to the 
goals and policies of the Covina General Plan. 

SECTION 5: The Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060( c )(2) because the activity, which merely involves making 
certain technical and clarifying amendments to the PCD Ordinance will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and 15060( c )(3) because the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the 
environment, directly or indirectly. Should specific projects subject to this Ordinance be proposed 
to the City, appropriate CEQA analysis will be conducted on a project-specific basis. 

SECTION 6: The Secretary shall certify to the adoption of this resolution. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the members of the Planning Commission of 
Covina this 9th day of December, 2014. 

, .. ~

t:J \~ y~~~-; , 'i 

CHAIRMAN WIN PATTERSON 
CITY OF COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION 



I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the City of Covina at a regular meeting thereof held on the 9th day of December, 
2014, by the following vote of the Planning Commission: 

AYES: 	 HODAPP, MANNING, MCMEEKIN, PATTERSON 
NONENOES: 


ABSENT: CONNORS 

NONEABSTAIN: 

COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY 




ORDINANCE NO. 15-2037 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE 99-1851 (PCD 99-001) TO ADD 

"AUTOMOBILE RENTAL" AS A PERMITTED USE 

AND MODIFYING THE SIGN REGULATIONS FOR 

ONE PROPERTY WITHIN THE SHOPPERS 

LANE/TERRADO PLAZA PLANNED COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT AREA, AND MAKING CERTAIN 

FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Pursuant to a Council public hearing conducted on February 17,2015, and 

processing in the manner set forth by State law and local ordinance, and after recommendation 

thereon by the Planning Commission after a duly noticed public hearing on December 9, 2014, 

this modification ("Modification") to Planned Community Development (PCD 99-001) is made 

for the reasons of public interest, convenience, and necessity. 

SECTION 2. The following described real property in the City of Covina, County of 

Los Angeles, State of California, is hereby subject to the Modification: 

Lots 1 through 7 and 20 through 46 of Tract 15166; and Lots 1 through 24 of Tract 

19651; and Lots 1 through 9 of Tract 18945, as documented in Official Records in the 

County of Los Angeles Registrar/Recorder's Office, State of California, also known as 

the "Shoppers LanelTerrado Plaza Planned Community Development Area" at 602 770 

South Citrus Avenue; 750 Terrado Plaza; 112 - 672 Shoppers Lane; and 130 - 186 East 

Rowland Street (the"Area"). 

SECTION 3. The proposed Modification amends paragraph B of subsection 11 of 

Section 4 of Ordinance 99-1851 (PCD 99-001) to state as follows: 

"11. Uses of property in the subject area shall conform with the following: 

Exhibit D peD 99-00 I (Mod) 



Permitted Uses: 

B. 	 Other: 

1. 	 Administrative or professional offices (any offices in which 
chattels or goods, wares or merchandise are not manufactured or 
sold). 

2. 	 A uto rental, 
3. 	 Bank and financial institutions, 
4. 	 Bill paying office, 
5. 	 Insurance brokers, adjusters and agents, 
6. 	 Libraries and reading rooms, 
7. 	 Museums, 
8. 	 Notary public, 
9. 	 Off-street parking, 
10. 	 Optometrists, 
11. 	 Parking lot, public, 
12. 	 Real estate brokers." 

SECTION 4. The proposed Modification also adds subsection 12 to Section 4 of 

Ordinance 99-1851 (PCD 99-001) to state as follows: 

"12. Permitted Signage at 728 South Citrus Avenue: 

With respect only to the Building located at 728 South Citrus Avenue, (presently 
occupied by "Enterprise Rent-a-Car"), up to four (4) signs may be located thereon, 
subject to the following standards: 

Sign (~": The existing legal non-conforming and freestanding pylon sign 
along the Building's west-facing frontage along South Citrus Avenue may be 
modified, provided that the total new sign copy area shall not exceed fifty (50) 
square feet. 

Sign ((B": A building-mounted sign may be erected above the Building's 
western entrance facing South Citrus Avenue, provided that the total sign copy 
area may not exceed 16.5% of the building face, and the total sign height may 
not exceed seven (7) feet. 

Signs ('C-l" and '(C-2": Two wall-mounted signs may be erected on the 
northern and southern sides ofthe Building, provided that the total sign height 
ofeither sign may not exceed three (3) feet. 

Exhibit D 	 2 PCD 99-001 (Mod) 



Except as provided herein, all signage within the property covered by this PCD 
Ordinance shall comply with the provisions of the Covina Municipal Code and Covina 
Design Guidelines." 

SECTION 5. After giving full consideration to all evidence presented at said hearing, 

both oral and documentary, reviewing the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and 

after being fully informed, the City Council hereby finds as follows: 

1. 	 The Modification to PCD 99-001 is consistent with the Covina General Plan 
because: 

A. 	 With respect to the "auto rental" use, it merely makes certain technical and 
clarifying amendments to the PCD Ordinance so that it conforms with 
those uses already permitted by the Covina Municipal Code for "C-3A" 
zoning. Overall, this technical amendment to the PCD Ordinance remains 
consistent with the objectives and policies of each element of the General 
Plan and does not obstruct their attainment. 

B. 	 With respect to the signage regulations, the Area will continue to conform 
to the existing "General Commercial" land use designation set forth in the 
General Plan. Further, the Ordinance fosters the occupancy of vacant 
tenant spaces within the Area and will enhance their ability to attract 
customers along South Citrus Avenue, thereby boosting the economic base 
of the City. On the other hand, the amendment made by this Ordinance is 
relatively minor, focused on one building within the Center (728 S. Citrus 
Ave.) and, therefore, will not result in excessive signage or visual blight 
which would be contrary to the goals and policies of the Covina General 
Plan. 

2. 	 The Modification only makes minor clarifying amendments with respect to "auto 
rental" use, and alterations to the existing sign program only affect one building 
within the Area. This Modification does not alter the existing layout of buildings 
and other structures, on-site parking, vehicle and pedestrian circulation, or other 
physical elements of the Area. Therefore, the site remains adequate in size and 
shape to accommodate the use, as amended by this Modification; 

3. 	 No additional buildings within the Area are proposed by this Modification. 
Further, although this Modification may result in additional customer traffic 
coming to the Area, the impact on traffic will be negligible relative to South 
Citrus Avenue and Workman Avenue. Both are four-lane primary arterial streets 
serving the Area and will remain adequate in width and pavement to carry the 
quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed uses benefitting from this 
Modification; 

Exhibit D 	 3 peD 99-001 (Mod) 



4. 	 The Modification is relatively minor in the context of the entire Area. With the 
exception of allowing additional and slightly larger signage on one building 
within the Area, all signage within the Area must continue to comply with all 
applicable local ordinances and regulations to minimize its impact on neighboring 
properties. Further, the additional signage would not dominate or detract from the 
architectural integrity of the building at 728 S. Citrus A venue. The additional 
signage allowed by this Modification will either face westerly into South Citrus 
Avenue or toward the adjacent commercial parking lots. It will not face toward 
any residential properties nor toward any other sensitive uses in the vicinity. 
Therefore, this Modification is not detrimental to the surrounding property or uses 
permitted in the Area; 

5. 	 The additional signage allowed by this Modification will result in a more 
balanced combination of signage and design on the southerly, western and 
northerly sides of the building at 728 S. Citrus A venue. In addition, the change 
would be consistent with prior direction about signage from the City Council and 
Planning Commission. Therefore, the Modification is necessary to protect the 
public peace, health, and safety. 

SECTION 6. In considering this application, the City Council affirms the determination 

of the Planning Commission that this Modification is not subject to the California Environmental 

Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) because the activity, which merely 

involves making certain technical and clarifying amendments to the pcn Ordinance, will not 

result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and 

15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA 

Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for 

resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. Should specific projects 

subject to this Ordinance be proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA analysis will be conducted 

on a project-specific basis. 

SECTION 7. The Modification to pcn 99-001, as set forth in Sections 3 and 4 above, is 

hereby granted, subject to the following conditions of approval which are deemed necessary to 

protect the public health, safety, and general welfare of the community: 

(Conditions of Approval attached behind this Ordinance) 

SECTION 8. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this ordinance and shall cause 

the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of said City; shall make a minute 

Exhibit D 	 4 peD 99-001 (Mod) 



passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting at which time the same is passed and 

adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the passage and adoption thereof, cause the 

same to be published as required by law, in a local weekly newspaper of general circulation and 

which is hereby designated for that purpose. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this __day of _~___, 2015. 

PEGGY DELACH, MA YOR 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

Exhibit D 5 PCD 99-001 (Mod) 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


PH2 
MEETING DATE: 	 Februaryl7,2015 ITEM NO.: _ 

STAFF SOURCE: 	 Nancy Fong, Interim Director of Community Development!V1V 
Alan Carter, City Planner '/ , 1 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Introduce and Waive Further Reading of Ordinance No. 15-2035, allowing 
medical, dental, and therapeutic offices as a permitted use in the "C
2INeighborhood Shopping Center," "C-3/Central Business," "C
3A1Regional or Community Shopping Center," "C-4IHighway 
Commercial," and "C-5/Specified Highway" zoning districts, subject to 
certain requirements. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

1.) 	 Open the public hearing and receive public testimony; 

2.) 	 Introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 15-2035, allowing medical, dental, 
and therapeutic offices as a permitted use in the "C-2INeighborhood Shopping Center," 
"C-3/Central Business," "C-3A/Regional or Community Shopping Center," "C
4/Highway Commercial," and "C-5/Specified Highway" zoning districts, subject to 
certain requirements. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no direct impact to the General Fund. While permitting these uses on retail-oriented 
properties could result in less sales tax generation, the proposal could enable long-time vacancies 
to be filled, thus fostering increased business activity or sales taxes at adjacent retail 
establishments. 

BACKGROUND 
Since the 1980s, medical, dental, and therapeutic offices have been prohibited in the City'S 
retail-oriented zoning districts. The City Council and the Planning Commission have discouraged 
non-retail use in retail-oriented zoning districts because they believed that retail centers should 
focus on uses that would maximize the sales tax generation. 

In September 2014, staff received a letter of request from the property owner of the community 
shopping center on the northwest corner of Azusa Avenue and San Bernardino Road. The 
proposed request was to allow medical and dental offices to address a longstanding vacancy 
problem in the center. The request was considered by the City Council and the Planning 
Commission at the special joint meeting on November 20,2014. The Council and Commission 
believed that medical, dental, and therapeutic offices could be considered in the commercial
retail zoning districts, though not medical clinics, oral surgical offices, or other more intense 



medicallhealth care uses, and directed staff to proceed with a Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
(ZOA) application. 

ANALYSIS 
In formulating the proposed ordinance to allow medical, dental, and therapeutic offices in the 
commercial-retail zones, staff found that various types of similar administrative offices, such as 
accountants and insurance agents, are permitted by right in the retail zones. Further, staff 
researched a number of similar-sized nearby cities and found that limited medical, dental, and 
therapeutic offices are allowed in commercial centers. It appeared that many communities have 
responded to the changing economy and embraced the concept of diversifying the uses by 
mixing retail with medical, dental, and/or therapeutic offices in commercial centers. 
Accordingly, staff has prepared an ordinance that would allow medical, dental, and therapeutic 
offices for chiropractors, physical therapists and similar uses, provided that the sum total of such 
uses occupy no greater than ten percent (10%) of the floor area of all buildings on the 
commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less. 

On January 27, 2015, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider the 
proposed ordinance. The Commission received one comment from the public who questioned the 
city's determination of an exemption from the California Environment Quality Act. Staff 
responded in the hearing that the proposal to add this minor amendment to the Municipal Code is 
not a project as defined by CEQA because it will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable 
indirect physical change to the environment. Staff explained to the Commission that if and when 
a parcel is proposed to develop a medical, dental or therapeutic office, then that proposal would 
be reviewed subjected to CEQA. Findings to this effect are included later in this report, as well 
as in the Planning Commission's resolution of recommendation and the proposed ordinance. 

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission stated that they were in agreement with staffs 
recommendations including the explanation of CEQA. However, the Commission deliberated on 
the issue of a maximum of 10,000 square feet. The Commission understood that the intent was to 
have such offices in tenant spaces between 2,000 or 3,000 square feet and not concentrated in 
anyone building or area of a commercial center. The Commission raised concerns that the 
proposed ordinance did not prohibit a single medical, dental or therapeutic office from taking up 
all 10,000 square feet in a building. The Commission recommended that a maximum individual 
use shall not exceed 3,500 square feet. 

The Commission then voted 4-0-1 to approve Resolution No. 2015-002 PC recommending to the 
City Council approval of the Ordinance request 'with the added restriction that no individual 
medical, dental, or therapeutic office shall be allowed to occupy more than 3,500 square feet of 
floor area. The final proposed ordinance reads as follows: 

"Administrative or professional offices (any offices in which chattels or 
goods, wares or merchandise are not manufactured or sold); Medical, dental and 
therapeutic offices for chiropractors, physical therapists and similar uses are also 
permitted, provided that such medical, dental and therapeutic office uses occupy 
no greater than ten percent (J 0%) or 10,000 square feet whichever is less of the 
jloor area ofall buildings on the commercial site; and no individual use occupies 
greater than 3,500 squarefeel o.fjloor area." 

2 



ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment is not subject to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (nCEQA") because a) pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3), the activity, which involves amending the 
City's regulations as to where medical, dental, and therapeutic offices can locate, will not result 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; b) pursuant to 
Guidelines Section 15060(c)(3), the activity is not a project; and c) as defined in Section 15378 
of the CEQA Guidelines, it would not have a potential for resulting in physical change to the 
environment, directly or indirectly. As specific projects subject to the associated, implementing 
ordinance are proposed, appropriate CEQA analyses will be conducted on a project-by-project 
basis. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Strategic Plan calls for the adoption of measures that would strengthen the economic base of 
the City. It is believed that the proposal would meet this aim by likely bolstering the vitality in 
and around many commercial centers by filling vacancies with complementing uses. 

EXHIBITS 
A. January 27, 2105 Planning Commission staff report and exhibits. 
B. Approved Planning Commission Resolution 2015-002 PC 
C. Ordinance No. 15-2035. 

REVIEW TEAM ONL~-Y~~~~~.City Attol'lley: i!: Finance Director: tf) ~ 0tA,y..) 


City Manager';,1-~~~~:i!:::~:::;;:;a;:=_ Other: _____________ 


3 




CITY OF COVINA 


PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT 
ITEM NUMBER PH 1 

January 27, 2015 

TO: 	 Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission 

FROM: 	 Alan Carter, City Planner 

SUBJECT: 	 Application ZOA 14-003, a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to allow medical, 
dental, and therapeutic offices as permitted uses in the "C-2INeighborhood 
Shopping Center," "C-4IHighway Commercial," and "C-S/Specified 
Highway" zoning districts. 

BACKGROUND 

Since 1984, medical, dental, and therapeutic offices have been prohibited in the following 
commercial zoning districts: C-2lNeighborhood Shopping Center, C-3/Central Business, C-
3A!Regional or Community Shopping Center, C-4/Highway Commercial, and C-S/Specified 
Highway. For years, many commercial property owners or real estate agentslbrokers have 
inquired about leasing tenant space for medical and dental offices within the commercial centers. 
However, the City Council and the Planning Commission have voiced their concerns and 
discouraged changes to allow non-retail use in retail-focused areas. 

In mid-2014, the Planning staff was contacted several times by the owner of the community 
shopping center on the northwest corner of Azusa A venue and San Bernardino Road requesting 
the City'S consideration to allow medical and dental offices in the center to address its 
longstanding vacancy problem. The property owner submitted a letter of request on September 
30,2104 as shown in Exhibit "3". 

As a result of considering a recent land use General Plan Amendment and Zone Change, the City 
Council and the Planning Commission conducted a special joint meeting on November 20, 2014 
to discuss city-wide land use issues. At the joint meeting, statf informed the City Council and 
Planning Commission about the letter of request from the property owner of the Azusa/San 
Bernardino commercial center to allow medical and dental offices in the center. The City 
Council and Planning Commission directed staff to proceed with a Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment (ZOA) application. 

Exhibit A (6 pages) 



ANALYSIS 

A. 	 Are Medical, Dental and Therapeutic offices appropriate uses within a commercial center? 
In 1984, the City believed that medical and dental uses should be oriented in and around 
the Inter-Community Medical Center in the downtown on properties zoned TC-P/Town 
Center-Medical and Professional Office and on properties around the community zoned C
P/Commercial-Administrative and Professional Office. At that time, the City also believed 
that retail centers should focus on uses that would maximize the sales tax generation. 
Further, medical and dental offices have a more restrictive parking ratio of I parking space 
per 150 square feet of total building area than retail centers which require 1 parking space 
per 200 square feet of total building area. There are a few medical or dental offices now 
operating on retail-zoned properties, but they are legal non-conforming uses, since they 
were established prior to 1984. 

In reviewing the various commercial zoning districts, staff found that general 
administrative offices, tax accountants, real estate agentslbrokers, banks, insurance 
agentslbrokers, optometrists, stock brokers are permitted by right. These types of office 
uses are side by side with retail stores, sandwich shops, restaurants and personal service 
stores like hair salons and dry-cleaning. The medical, dental and therapeutic offices are 
very similar to the nature of these types of office uses and businesses. General practice or 
family practice physicians, pediatricians, family practice dentists would be under the 
category of medical and dental offices. Chiropractors, physical therapist would be under 
the category of therapeutic offices. The patients visit the offices by appointment only. Staff 
would like to emphasize that the consideration of medical, dental and therapeutic 
offices in commercial zones does not include medical clinics, oral surgical offices or 
other more intense medicaVhealth care uses and labs. 

Staff researched a number of similar-sized nearby cities and found that limited medical, 
dental, and therapeutic offices are allowed in commercial centers. Many communities have 
responded to the changing economy and embraced the concept of diversifying the uses by 
mixing retail with medical, dental, and/or therapeutic offices in commercial centers. 
Further, the medical, dental or therapeutic offices would allow the infill of vacant tenant 
spaces. Therefore, the City'S current prohibition of medical, dental, and therapeutic offices 
from the commercial zoning districts could be considered too restrictive and dated. 

B. 	 The Proposed Changes to the Various Commercial Zoning Districts: 
Based on the above analysis, adding medical, dental and therapeutic offices to commercial 
zoning districts might be appropriate. It would allow for more flexible zoning provisions, 
without adversely affecting the public health, safety, or welfare, and may bolster the 
vitality in and around many commercial centers by tilling vacancies with these types of 
complementing uses. In addition, this change could result in at least some overall trip 
reductions around the community. 

2 	

EXHIBIT 




In order to preserve the retail uses in commercial centers, staff recommends limiting the 
amount of square to<?tage set aside for medical, dental or therapeutic offices. Because 
medical, dental, and therapeutic offices require I parking space per ISO square feet of total 
building area while retail uses require I per 200 square feet of total building area, limiting 
the amount of total building area they can be leased for medical, dental or therapeutic 
offices would accommodate the uses without negatively impacting the parking 
requirements. Staff recommends a maximum of ten (10) percent of the floor area of the 
commercial center or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less. Staff can easily track the 
percentage or the square footage through business license records. 

The proposed changes will be added to the C-2lNeighborhood Shopping Center, C-
4/Highway Commercial, and C-5/Specified Highway. The proposed changes do not need to 
be added to C-3/Central Business or C-3A/Regional or Community Shopping Center, 
because the zonings districts reference the C-2lNeighborhood Shopping Center. The 
proposed changes will read as follows: 

"Administrative or professional offices (any offices in which chattels or goods, wares 
or merchandise are not manufactured or sold); Medical, dental and therapeutic offices 
for chiropractors, physical therapists and similar uses are also permitted, provided that 
such medical, dental and therapeutic office uses occupy no greater than ten percent 
(lO%) or J0,000 square feet whichever is less of the floor area ofall buildings on the 
commercial site;" 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT FINDINGS OF FACTS 

The Planning Commission should make the following findings so as to forward a 
recommendation of approval to the City Council for the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment. 

1. 	 The Zoning Ordinance Amendment application is in the public interest and related to 
furthering the public welfare because it reasonably amends the City's zoning provisions 
to permit limited medical, dental, and therapeutic offices in the retail-oriented zoning 
districts (as defined in the associated resolution and ordinance), which the staff believes 
would result in positive effects to the overall City and would not generate any negative 
parking-related or other impacts. 

2. 	 As indicated in the statf report, the current prohibition of medical, dental, and therapeutic 
offices from shopping centers and properties in the retail-focused zoning districts could 
be considered to be too restrictive as well as dated. This amendment will allow for more 
flexible zoning provisions, without adversely affecting the public health, safety, or 

3 

EXHIBIT 




welfare, and may bolster the vitality in and around many commercial centers by filling 
vacancies with typically innocuous, complementing uses. In addition, as also noted in the 
report, this change could result in at least some overall trip reductions around the 
community. And by allowing more such activities in the City, the Code amendment 
could meet the needs of an aging, more medical/therapeutic service-dependent 
population. 

3. 	 The approval of this Zoning Ordinance Amendment is consistent with the City of Covina 
General Plan as follows. 

a. 	 It accommodates moderate commercial infill development and redevelopment of 
underutilized parcels through reasonable amendments to the City's zoning provisions 
that would preserve Covina's economic base, image and character while minimizing 
adverse traffic impacts. 

b. 	 It encourages the creative and appropriate reuse of land to foster economic growth 
within the City. 

c. 	 It provides a more flexible but still reasonable framework for permitting medical, 
dental, and therapeutic offices in additional suitable locations in the City, thereby 
maintaining an adequate amount of and distribution of such uses around the 
community, but not in a manner that would inhibit or impose an undue burden on the 
City's ability to accommodate traffic and public safety needs. (No other special land 
use, circulation, environmental, or public safety impacts are identified with this Code 
amendment that could render it to be inconsistent with the General Plan. And no 
additional regulations governing such uses would be changed.) Therefore, this 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment is believed to further the objectives and 
policies of each Element of the General Plan. 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND NOTIFICATION 

The public hearing notice was published in the San Gabriel Valley Examiner newspaper on 
January IS, 201S. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment is not subject to the California Environmental 
Quality Act ("CEQA") because a) pursuant to Section lS060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3), the activity, which involves amending the 
City's regulations as to where medical, dental, and therapeutic offices can locate, will not result 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; b) pursuant to 
Guidelines Section lS060(c)(3), the activity is not a project; and c) as defined in Section 1S378 

4 

EXHIBIT 




of the CEQA Guidelines, it would not have a potential for resulting in physical change to the 
environment, directly or indirectly. As specific projects subject to the associated, implementing 
ordinance are proposed, appropriate CEQA analyses will be conducted on a project-by-project 
basis. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning statT recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing to 
consider the proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment and recommend approval of the 
application to the City Council. 

Prepared by: 

~~ 
Alan Carter 
City Planner 

EXHIBITS 

1. Resolution 2015-002 PC recommending approval to City Council 
2. Proposed Ordinance 
3. Letter of Request from Property Owner, Mr. Navi 

5 

EXHIBIT 




Covina Properties, LLC 


595 Evelyn Place Tdl-phont: (323) 277-7500 
Beverly Hills. California tJ0210 Facsimile: (.U3~ 277-7501 

Jonathan B. Navi 
111-"'>tLf<" .~'II1S..J 

September 30, 2014 

City Council of the City of Covina 
125 E College St 
Covina, CA 91723 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Covina Properties, LLC is the owner and property manager for the shopping center located at 513-621 
North Azusa Avenue, Covina, California 91722. We have been working diligently with the City of Covina 
to get permission to lease spaces to a wider spectrum of tenants such as doctors, dentists, chiropractors 
and massage parlors. 

Accordingly, the number of parking spaces was a question raised by the City of Covina. On September 
18,2010 we met with Ms. Nancy Fong to review relevant documents pertaining to this matter. We also 
met with Mr. Alan Carter regarding the number of available parking spaces and also adequate Handicap 
parking and Van Accessible Handicap parking spaces on May 28, 2014. The results of both meetings 
were positive: we have adequate parking spaces to be able to lease 10% of our total square footage to 
the new kind of tenants previously mentioned. 

Ms. Nancy Fong advised that we write this formal letter to the City Council of the City of Covina 
requesting allowing us to lease to the wider spectrum of tenants, including doctors, dentists, 
chiropractors and massage parlors. 

During our meetings with both Ms. Nancy Fong and Mr. Alan Carter, it was discussed how such a permit 
was granted in the past to other property owners. In fact, a shopping center located just north of our 
property was granted these permits and they were able to lease to West Coast Dental located at 1406 
North Azusa Avenue, Covina, CA 91722. 

We kindly request the issuance of permission to our property so that we, like other property owners in 
Covina, can also lease to doctors, dentists, chiropractors ad massage parlors. 

Please let us know the next step in this process. We look forward to hearing back from you shortly. 

Very truly yours, 

COVINA PROPERTIES, LLC 

Parviz Navi 
(323) 277-7500 EXHIBIT 

EXHiBit 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-002 PC 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 15-2035, AMENDING 
SECTIONS 17.38.020, 17.44.020 AND 17.46.020 OF TITLE 17 (ZONING) 
OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO ALLOW LIMITED 
MEDICAL, DENTAL AND THERAPEUTIC CLINICS AS A PERMITTED 
USE IN THE CITY'S C-2, C-3, C-3A, C-4 AND C-5 COMMERCIAL 
ZONES. 

WHEREAS, California Government Code, Section 65800 et seq. authorizes the 
adoption and administration ofzoning laws, ordinances, rules and regulations by cities as a means of 
implementing the General Plan; and 

WHEREAS, City staffhas prepared Ordinance No. 15-2035, which amends Sections 
17.38.020, 17.44.020 and 17.46.020 ofTitle 17 (Zoning) ofthe Covina Municipal Code in order to 
allow limited "medical, dental and therapeutic clinics" as a permitted use in the City's C-2, C-3, C
3A, C-4, and C-5 commercial zones, provided that such uses do not occupy greater than ten percent 
(10%) of all buildings on the commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less, and no 
individual use occupies greater than 3,500 square feet of floor area; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has carefully considered all pertinent 
testimony and the staffreport presented during a duly noticed public hearing on January 27, 2015 for 
Ordinance No. 15-2035. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Based on the entire record before the Planning Commission, all written and 
oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, and the findings made in the staff report and 
this Resolution, the Planning Commission of the City of Covina hereby recommends that the City 
Council adopt Ordinance No. 15-2035 entitled: "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTIONS 17.38.020, 17.44.020 AND 
17.46.020 OF TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO ALLOW 
LIMITED MEDICAL, DENTAL AND THERAPEUTIC CLINICS AS A PERMITTED USE IN 
THE CITY'S C-2,C-3, C-3A, C-4 AND C-5 COMMERCIAL ZONES", which is attached hereto as 
Attachment "A" and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2: The Planning Commission finds that the above referenced ordinance is in the 
public interest and reasonably related to the public welfare because it reasonably amends the City's 
zoning regulations to permit limited medical, dental, and therapeutic offices in retail-oriented 
commercial zoning districts. The City's current total prohibition on such uses in the City'S 
commercial zones is outdated and not consistent with standards adopted by other similar cities. Such 

Exhibit B 



Resolution No. 2015-002 PC 
January 27,2015 
Page 2 of3 

amendments will help in reducing vacancies in the City's commercial centers by allowing more uses 
that, in a limited amount, can be complementary and not detrimental to the City's commercial 
centers. By limiting medical, dental and therapeutic clinics to ten percent (10%) of the total floor 
area ofa commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less, with no individual use occupying 
greater than 3,500 square feet offloor area, any potential negative parking and traffic-related impacts 
will be avoided. 

SECTION 3: The Planning Commission also finds that adoption of this ordinance is 
consistent with the City ofCovina General Plan because (i) it accommodates moderate commercial 
infill development and redevelopment ofunderutilized parcels as a high priority through reasonable 
amendments to the City's zoning provisions in order to preserve the City's economic base, image 
and character while minimizing adverse traffic impacts, (ii) it encourages creative and appropriate 
reuse of land to foster economic growth within the City, (iii) it provides more flexible but still 
reasonable land use standards that limit the amount of"medical, dental and therapeutic clinics" to ten 
percent (10%) ofa commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less, with no individual use 
occupying greater than 3,500 square feet offloor area. This will ensure that an adequate amount of 
and distribution ofparking assets and traffic facilities are maintained, and so that they do not inhibit 
or impose an undue burden on the City's ability to accommodate traffic and public safety needs. 
Therefore, this Ordinance furthers the objectives and policies of each element of the General Plan 
and does not obstruct their attainment. 

The Planning Commission also finds that this ordinance is consistent with the City ofCovina 
General Plan because it merely adds a new use to the City'S commercial zones to a very limited 
extent. No other special land use, circulation, environmental or public safety impacts are identified 
with such an amendment that could render it inconsistent with the General Plan. No other 
regulations governing such uses would be changed. They would remain subject to the same setback, 
height, floor area and other development standards as provided in the Code. 

SECTION 4: The ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060( c )(2) because the activity, which involves a minor amendment 
to the City's commercial zoning rules to allow limited medical, dental and therapeutic offices on 
commercial sites will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the 
environment; and 15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 ofthe 
CEQA Guidelines, California Code ofRegulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential 
for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. As specific projects subject 
to this ordinance are proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA analysis will be conducted on a 
project-specific basis. 

SECTION 5: The Secretary shall certify to the adoption of this resolution. 



Resolution No. 2015-002 PC 
January 27, 2015 
Page 3 of3 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the members of the Planning Commission of Covina this 27th 
day of January, 2015. 

CHAIRMAN WIN PATTERSON 
CITY OF COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION 

I hereby certifY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the City of Covina at a regular meeting thereof held on the 27th day of January, 
2015, by the following vote of the Planning Commission: 

AYES: CONNORS, HODAPP, MANNING, PATTERSON 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MCMEEKIN 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

COVINA PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY 




Attachment"A" 

"AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING SECTIONS 17.38.020, 17.44.020 AND 17.46.020 OF TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE 
COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO ALLOW LIMITED MEDICAL, DENTAL AND 
THERAPEUTIC CLINICS AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE CITY'S C-2, C-3, C-3A, C-4 AND C
5 COMMERCIAL ZONES" 

[Attached behind this page] 



ORDINANCE NO. 15-2035 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING 
SECTIONS 17.38.020, 17.44.020 AND 17.46.020 OF 
TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL 
CODE, TO ALLOW LIMITED MEDICAL, DENTAL 
AND THERAPEUTIC CLINICS AS A PERMITTED 
USE IN THE CITY'S C-2, C-3, C-3A, C-4 AND C-5 
COMMERCIAL ZONES. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Subsection (C)(l) of Section 17.38.020 of Chapter 17.38 of Title 
17 (C-2 Zoning) of the Covina Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"17.38.020 Permitted uses. Buildings, structures and land shall be used, and buildings 
and structures shall hereafter be erected, structurally altered or enlarged only for the 
following uses, plus such other uses as the commission and council may deem (pursuant 
to Chapter 17.60 CMC) to be similar and not more obnoxious or detrimental to the public 
health, safety and welfare. All uses shall be subject to the property development 
standards in CMC 17.38.050 through 17.38.210: 

C. Other: 

1. 	 Administrative or professional offices (any offices in which 
chattels or goods, wares or merchandise are not manufactured or 
sold). Medical, dental and therapeutic offices for chiropractors, 
physical therapists and similar uses are also permitted, provided 
that the sum total of such uses occupy no greater than ten 
percent (10%) of the floor area of all buildings on the 
commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less; and no 
individual use occupies greater than 3,500 square feet offloor 
area; 

2. 	 Bank and financial institutions; 

" 

SECTION 2. The first listed use in Section 17.44.020 of Chapter 17.44 of Title 
17 (C-4 Zoning) of the Covina Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Exhibit C 1 



"17.44.020 Permitted uses. Buildings, structures and land shall be used, and buildings 
and structures shall hereafter be erected, structurally altered or enlarged only for the 
following uses, plus such other uses as the commission and council may deem (pursuant 
to Chapter 17.60 CMC) to be similar and not more obnoxious or detrimental to the public 
health, safety and welfare. All uses shall be subject to the property development 
standards in CMC 17.44.050 through 17.44.220: 

Administrative or professional offices (any office in which chattels or goods, 
wares or merchandise are not manufactured or sold), Medical, dental and therapeutic 
offices for chiropractors, physical therapists and similar uses are also permitted, 
provided that the sum total of such uses occupy no greater than ten percent (10%) of 
the floor area ofall buildings on the commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever 
is less; and no individual use occupies greater than 3,500 square feet offloor area; 

Aerial photography and survey service; 

" 

SECTION 3. The first listed use in Section 17.46.020 of Chapter 17.46 of Title 
17 (C-5 Zoning) of the Covina Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"17.46.020 Permitted uses. Buildings, structures and land shall be used, and structures 
shall hereafter be erected, structurally altered or enlarged only for the following uses, 
plus such other uses as the commission and council may deem (pursuant to Chapter 17.60 
CMC) to be similar and not more obnoxious or detrimental to the public health, safety 
and welfare. All uses shall be subject to the property development standards in CMC 
17.46.050 through 17.46.210: 

Administrative or professional offices (any office in which chattels or goods, 
wares or merchandise are not manufactured or sold). Medical, dental and therapeutic 
offices for chiropractors, physical therapists and similar uses are also permitted, 
provided that the sum total of such uses occupy no greater than ten percent (10%) of 
the floor area ofall buildings on the commercial site or 10,000 square feet, whichever 
is less; and no individual use occupies greater than 3,500 square feet offloor area; 

Animal hospital; 

" 

SECTION 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days 
after its adoption. 

SECTION 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to 

Exhibit C 2 



be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutionaL 

SECTION 6. CEQA. This ordinance is not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (nCEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) because the 
activity, which involves a minor amendment to the City's commercial zoning rules to 
allow limited medical, dental and therapeutic offices on commercial sites will not result 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and 
15060( c )(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA 
Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no 
potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. As 
specific projects subject to this ordinance are proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA 
analysis will be conducted on a project-specific basis. 

SECTION 7. Certification. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this 
ordinance and shall cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of 
said City; shall make a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting 
at which time the same is passed and adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the 
passage and adoption thereof, cause the same to be published as required by law, in a 
local newspaper of general circulation and which is hereby designated for that purpose. 

ORDINANCE PASSED AND APPROVED on this __ day of_~_ 
2015. 

PEGGY DELACH, MA YOR 

ATTEST: 

Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Marco Martinez, City Attorney 

Exhibit C 3 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


PH3 
MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: 

STAFF SOURCE: Nancy Fong, AICP, Interim Director of Community Development 
Alan Carter, City Planner a. .c,.. . 

ITEM TITLE: 	 Application Zoning Ordinance Amendment (ZOA) 14-002, a request to 
modify the City's parking requirements citywide concerning automotive 
repair shops and automotive body and paint shops. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

1.) 	 Open the public hearing and receive public testimony; 

2.) 	 Introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 15-2036, modifying the City's 
parking requirements citywide concerning automotive repair shops and automotive body 
and paint shops. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no direct impact to the General Fund. However, the proposed changes in parking 
standards for automotive related businesses would allow the opportunities for in-fill 
redevelopment of existing parcels and for filling vacancies of existing buildings or expansion of 
existing automotive related businesses. This would result in fostering increased business activity 
or sales tax revenue for the City. 

BACKGROUND 
In November 2014, staff received a Site Plan Review (SPR) application to establish an auto body 
and paint shop in a vacant, former warehouse and storage building at 781 East San Bernardino 
Road. The proposed shop did not meet the applicable parking standard of 1 parking space per 
200 square feet of building area. Based on the advice of the City Attorney, the appropriate way 
to address the shortfall in parking is to amend the Zoning Ordinance to change the parking 
standard for automotive body and paint shops as well as automotive repair shops. 

ANALYSIS 
In formulating the proposed ordinance to change the parking standard for automotive body and 
paint shops plus automotive repair shops, staff first considered the basic operational 
characteristics of these types of uses to determine the practical parking demand for typical shops. 
Staff determined that automotive body and paint shops and automotive repair shops had similar 
operational features and, therefore, should continue to have the same parking standard. Second, 
staff surveyed several surrounding cities to identify their parking requirements for both types of 
automotive shops. Staff determined from the survey that the City's current parking requirement 
for automotive body and paint shops and for automotive repair shops is restrictive and warranted 
modification. Accordingly, stafJ has prepared an ordinance that would require for both auto 

1 




body and paint shops and auto repair shops three parking spaces for each service bay or roll-up 
door plus additional parking spaces based on the applicable floor area standards for the 
office/retail! customer areas. 

On January 13, 2015, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider the 
proposed ordinance. There were no public comments made at the meeting. At the conclusion of 
the hearing, the Commission stated that they were in agreement with staffs recommendations, 
with one exception. The Commission deliberated on the issue of whether the proposed parking 
requirement should be based on a standard of three parking spaces per service bay or three 
parking spaces per roll-up door, noting that there are certain automotive-associated businesses in 
the City (such as the Sears Auto Repair at 710 West Arrow Highway) that have more service 
bays than roll-up doors. In sum, the Commission wanted to ensure that the new parking standard 
that they would recommended to the City Council would be viable. The Commission then voted 
5-0 to approve Resolution No. 2015-001 PC, recommending to the City Council approval of the 
Ordinance request with the added clarification that the parking standard would be "three (parking 
spaces) per service bay or roll-up door, whichever is greater, plus ... " The final proposed 
ordinance reads as follows (under Section 1, off-street parking space requirements for both 
"Automotive repair shops" and "Automotive body and paint shops"): 

"Three per service bay or roll-up door, whichever is greater, plus additional 
parking spaces based on the applicable floor area standard for 
officelretaillcustomer areas. " 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment is not subject to the California Environmental 
Quality Act ("CEQA") because a) pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3), the activity, which involves amending the 
City's off-street parking regulations, will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect 
physical change in the environment; b) pursuant to Guidelines Section 15060(c)(3), the activity 
is not a project; and c) as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, it would not have a 
potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. As specific 
projects subject to the associated, implementing ordinance are proposed, appropriate CEQA 
analyses will be conducted on a project-by-project basis. 

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Strategic Plan calls for the adoption of measures that would strengthen the economic base of 
the City. The proposed Ordinance would accommodate moderate commercial infill development 
and redevelopment of underutilized parcels as a high priority through reasonable amendments to 
the City's zoning provisions in order to preserve the City's economic base, image, and character, 
while minimizing adverse traffic impacts. It encourages creative and appropriate reuse of land to 
foster economic growth within the City. 

EXHIBITS 
A. January 13,2015 Planning Commission staff report and exhibits. 
B. Approved Planning Commission Resolution 2015-001 PC. 
C. Ordinance No. 15-2036. 

2 



REVIEW TEAM ON 
City AUGl'lley: t!!!5::t:!:! Finance Director: ~ fvc D4:i) 

City Manager: _~..;;:;:::;.-________ Other: ____________ 

3 




CITY OF COVINA 


PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT 
ITEM NUMBER PH 1 

January 13,2015 

TO: Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission 

FROM: Nancy Fong, AICP, Interim Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Application ZOA 14-002, a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to change off
street parking standards for automobile repair shops and to add off-street 
parking standards for automobile body and paint shops to Section 17.72.010 
of Chapter 17.72 of the Covina Municipal Code 

BACKGROUND 

In late November 2014, staff received a Site Plan Review application request to establish an auto 
body and paint shop on an existing building and site located at 781 East San Bernardino Road. 
The site and building was a warehouse and storage facility but is unoccupied now. The existing 
building is 8,962 square feet in gross floor area. The current Zoning Code only shows parking 
standard for automobile repair shops at a ratio of 1 parking space per 200 square feet of building 
area but it does not specify the parking standard for automobile body and paint shops. Using the 
auto repair shops parking standard, it becomes clear that the site having only 14 parking spaces 
does not meet the parking requirement. The applicant has been advised that a Variance 
application will be required. However, after consulting with the City Attorney, it was his advice 
that the appropriate way to address the shortfall of parking spaces issue is to amend the Zoning 
Ordinance to add and change the current parking standard for automobile repair and automobile 
body and paint shops. The City Attorney stated that it would be difficult to make the legal 
findings to support the Variance request to reduce the number of required parking spaces. 

ANALYSIS 

A. 	 The Basic Operational Characteristics of Automobile Repair and Automobile Body and 
Paint Shops: Understanding the basic operation characteristic of an automobile repair shop 
or automobile body and paint shop would help in determining the parking needs for this 
type ofland use. Usually, an automobile repair shop is conducted inside a building that has 
individual bays with roll-up doors. The individual bay may have a hoist to elevate a car for 
engine/transmission repair or for maintenance purposes where a mechanic or employee 
works on the car. The car to be repaired stays in the bay until repaired or maintained, and 
the duration it stays in the bay could range for a short period of a couple of hours to a day 
or two depending on the extensiveness of the work. Most of the time, the repair is done 

EXHIBIT A (5 pages) 



within the day and a few cars may need to be stored on site for further repair, but usually 
the cars are parked inside the bay for safety and security. Automobile body and paint shop 
operation is similar except that the repair of automobile body with painting may take a 
couple of days or even longer if auto parts have to be ordered. A car may move from one 
bay to another bay depending on the work that needs to be done on the automobile body 
such as assembling the parts, sanding and preparing for painting. Cars being worked on 
would be stored inside the bay and cars waiting in line may be stored on site but most 
likely in a screened and fenced area. This type of business usually does not have a large 
office area and customer area. 

B. 	 The Comparison of City Auto Repair Parking Standards with the Nearby Cities: As 
mentioned in the background section of the report, the current parking standard for 
automobile repair shop is 1 parking space per 200 square feet of building area. How does 
this parking standard stand with nearby the cities and would nearby cities have specific 
parking standards for automobile body and paint shops? Staff surveyed 9 nearby cities and 
the following table summarized their parking standards for automobile services use such as 
repair and body shops. 

(I fV USE PARKING REQUIREMENf 

1. Covina Auto Repair 1 parking space/ 200 s.f. of gross floor area 
2. Baldwin 

Park 
Automotive Service Repair 1 parking space/ 250 s.f. of building area + 

3 per service bay 
3. Azusa Vehicle Service 2 parking spaces + 3 spaces per service bay 

(service bays do not count as spaces) 

4. Glendora Automotive services 1 parking space/ 250 s.f. of gross floor areal 
but not less tha n 7 

5. EI Monte Auto Repair 1 parking space/ 300 s.f. of gross floor area 
6. Monrovia Auto Repair 1 parking space/ 250 s.f. of gross floor area 

I 

7. West 
Covina 

Automobile service stations 1 parking space/2 employees 
Minimum of 2 such spaces+ 1 parking space 
per service bay 

8. La Puente Automobile and truck repair 
garages 

1 parking space/ 250 s.f. of gross floor area 

9. Ontario Automotive Repair minor/major, 
body and paint 

1 parking space/ 400 s.f. of gross floor area 

10. Pomona Automotive repair facility 1 parking space/ }OO s.f. of gross floor area 

Six surveyed cities have parking standards based on square footage of the building area 
ranging from I space per 250 square feet to 400 square feet of gross floor area. Three 
surveyed cities have different parking standards and are by number of bays ranging from 
1 space to 3 spaces per bay, plus additional parking spaces for employees or building 
area. 



The City parking standard for auto repair shop is the most restrictive; that is, it requires 
the most number of parking spaces. Therefore, a change to the parking standard is worth 
considering. Staff believes that requiring spaces per bay, as opposed to the size of the 
building, will retlect the parking demand more accurately. 

C. 	 Proposed Standards for Auto Repair and Auto Body and Paint Shops: Based on the basic 
operational characteristics of the auto repair and body shop use, most bays generate an 
employee plus one or two cars that are waiting for service. Therefore, staff recommends the 
Off-Street Parking Standards contained in Chapter 17.72.010 be amended by modifying 
and adding the off-street parking standards for automobile repair and automobile body and 
paint shops as follows: 

Use Parkin2 Spaces Required 
Automotive repair shops Three per service bay or roll-up door plus 

additional parking space based on the applicable 
tloor area standard for office/retail/customer 
areas 

Automotive body and paint shops Three per service bay or roll-up door plus 
additional parking space based on the applicable 
tloor area standard for officelretail/customer 
areas 

Under the current Zoning Code, the parking requirement for an "automotive repair shop" is 
restrictive. Due to the limited off-street parking space available to some commercial sites, 
this higher parking requirement has limited intill redevelopment opportunities in the City. 
The proposed amendment to the parking standards described above will allow for the more 
efficient use of limited off-street parking assets tailored to this specific land use. 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT FINDINGS OF FACTS 

The Planning Commission should make the following findings so as to forward a 
recommendation of approval to the City Council for the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment. 

1. 	 The zoning ordinance amendment is in the public interest and reasonably related to the 
public welfare because it reasonably amends the applicable off-street parking standard to 
a more realistic figure for "automobile repair shops" and provides specific off-street 
parking standards for "automobile body and paint shops," that previously did not have 
such standards. 



2. 	 Under the current Zoning Code and as staff has indicated in the report, the parking 
requirements for an "automotive repair shop" is restrictive. Due to the limited off-street 
parking space available to some commercial sites, this higher parking requirement has 
limited infill redevelopment opportunities in the City. This amendment will allow for the 
more efficient use of limited off-street parking assets tailored to this specific use, based 
upon the researched parking requirements for "automobile repair shop," and "automotive 
body and paint shops". 

3. 	 The approval of this zoning ordinance amendment is consistent with the City of Covina 
General Plan as follows. 

a. 	 It accommodates moderate commercial infill development and redevelopment of 
underutilized parcels as a high priority through reasonable amendments to the City's 
zoning provisions in order to preserve the City's economic base, image and character 
while minimizing adverse traffic impacts. 

b. 	 It encourages creative and appropriate reuse of land to foster economic growth within 
the City. 

c. 	 It provides a more flexible but still reasonable off-street parking standard for 
"automotive repair shops" and "automobile body and paint shops" so that an adequate 
amount of, and distribution of, parking assets are maintained, and so that they do not 
inhibit or impose an undue burden on the City's ability to accommodate traffic and 
public safety needs. Therefore, this proposed zoning ordinance amendment furthers 
the objectives and policies of each element of the General Plan and does not obstruct 
their attainment 

4. 	 This approval of the zoning ordinance amendment is consistent with the City of Covina 
General Plan because it merely changes off-street parking standards for "automobile 
repair shops" and adds a specific off-street parking standard for "automotive body and 
paint shops", and changes the off-street parking standard for "automobile repair shop", 
wherever they are currently permitted in the City under the Zoning Code. No other 
special land use, circulation, environmental or public safety impacts are identified with 
such an amendment that could render it inconsistent with the General Plan. No other 
regulations governing such uses would be changed. They would remain subject to the 
same setback, height, floor area and other development standards as provided in the 
Code. 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND NOTIFICATION 

The public hearing notice was published in the San Gabriel Examiner newspaper on December 
18,2014. 



ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

The proposed zoning ordinance amendment is not subject to the California Environmental 
Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) because the activity, which involves 
amending the City's off-street parking regulations will not result in a direct or reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and 15060(c)(3) because the activity is 
not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. As specific projects subject to this ordinance are 
proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA analysis will be conducted on a project-specific basis. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing to consider the 
proposed zoning ordinance amendment and make a recommendation of approval to the City 
Council. 

Prepared by: 

IBIT 
IJiIIOmelnt Director 

EXHIBITS 

1. Resolution 2015-001 PC recommending approval to City Council 
2. Proposed Ordinance 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-001 PC 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. lS-XXXX, AMENDING 
SECTION 17.72.010 OF CHAPTER l7.72 OF TITLE 17 (ZONING) OFTRE 
COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO CHANGE OFF-STREET P ARKlNG 
STANDARDS FOR AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOPS AND TO ADD OFF
STREET PARKING STANDARDS FOR AUTOMOTIVE BODY AND 
PAINT SHOPS. 

WHEREAS, California Government Code, Section 65800 et seq. authorizes the 
adoption and administration ofzoning laws, ordinances, rules and regulations by cities as a means of 
implementing the General Plan.; and 

WI-IEREAS, City staff has prepared Ordinance No. lS-xxxx, which amends Section 
17.72.010 of Chapter 17.72 ofTitle t 7 (Zoning) ofthe Covina Municipal Code in order to change 
off-street parking standards for "automotive repair shops" and to add off-street parking standards for 
"automotive body and paint shops"; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has carefully considered all pertinent 
testimony and the staff report presented during aduly noticed public hearing on January 13,2015 for 
Ordinance No. 15-xxxx. . 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Based on the entire record before the Planning Commission, all written and 
oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission~ and the fUldings made in the staff report and 
this Resolution, the Planning Commission of the City of Covina hereby recommends that the City 
Counci.1 adopt Ordinance No. 15-xxxxentitfed: "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 17.72.010 OF CHAPTER 17.72 
OF TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO CHANGE OFF-STREET 
PARKING STANDARDS FOR AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOPS AND TO ADD OFF-STREET 
PARK.fNG STANDARDS FOR AUTOMOTIVE BODY AND PAINT SHOPS", which is attached 
hereto as Attachment "A" and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2: The Planning Commission finds that the above referenced ordinance is in the 
public interest and reasonably related to the public welfare because. with respect to "automotive 
repair shops", it reasonably amends the applicable off-street parking standard to a more realistic 
figure. With respect to "automotive body and paint shops>" the ordinance provides similar off-street 
parking standards for a use that previously did not have such standards. Due to the limited off-street 
parking space available to some commercial sites, the current parking standard in the Zoning Code 
has limited infill redevelopment opportunities in the City. This amendment will allow for the more 

EXHIBIT B (8 pages) 



Resolution No. 20 I5-00 I PC 
January 13, 2015 
Page 2 00 

efficient use of limited off-street parking assets tailored to these specific uses, based upon actual 
researched parking requirements for "automotive repair shops'j and "automotive body and paint 
shops". 

SECTION 3: The Planning Commission also finds that adoption of this ordinance is 
consistent with the City of Covina General Plan because (i) it accommodates moderate commercial 
infiH development and redevelopment of underutilized parcels as a high priority through reasonable 
amendments to the City's zoning provisions in order to preserve the City's economic base, image 
and character while minimizing adverse traffic impacts, (ii) it encourages creative and appropriate 
reuse of land to foster economic growth within the City, (iii) it provides more flexible but still 
reasonable off-street parking standards for "automotive repair shops" and «automotive body and 
paint shops" so that an adequate amount ofand distribution ofparking assets are maintained, and so 
that they do not inhibit or impose an undue burden on the City's ability to accommodate traffic and 
public safety needs. Therefore, this Ordinance furthers the objectives and policies ofeach element 
of the General Plan and does not obstruct their attainment. 

The Planning Commission also finds that this ordinance is consistent with the City ofCovina 
General Plan because it merely changes off-street parking standards for "automotive repair shops" 
and adds a specific off-street parking standard for "automotive body and paint shops", wherever they 
are currently pennitted in the City under the Zoning Code. No other special land use, circulation, 
environmental or public safety impacts are identified with such an amendment that could render it 
inconsistent with the General Plan. No other regulations governing such uses would be changed. 
They would remain subject to the same setback, height, floor area and other development standards 
as provided in the Code. 

SECTION 4: The ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act 
C'CEQA") pursuant to Sections lS060(c)(2) because the activity, which involves amending the 
City's off-street parking regulations will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect 
physical change in the environment; and 15060( c )(3) because the activity is not a project as defined 
in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines. California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, 
because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. 
As specific projects subject to this ordinance are proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA analysis 
will be conducted on a project-specific basis. 

SECTION 5: The Secretary shall certify to the adoption of this resolution. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the members ofthe Planning Commission of 
Covina this 13th day of January, 2015. 

CHAIRMAN WIN PA ITERSON 
CITY OF COVINA PLANNfNG COMMISSION 



Resolution No. 2015-001 PC 
Janual)' 13. 2015 
Page 3 ofl 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the City of Covina at a regular meeting thereof held on the 13th day of January, 
2015, by the following vote of the Planning Commission: 

AYES: CONNORS, HOOAPP~ :V:ANNiNG, MCMEEKIN, PATTERSON 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONe: 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

COV~G~Y 



Attachment "A" 

"AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA. CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING SECTION 17.72.010 OF CHAPTER 17.72 OF TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE 
COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO CHANGE OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS FOR 
AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOPS AND TO ADD OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS FOR 
AUTOMOTIVE BODY AND PAINT SHOPS" 

[Attached behind this page] 



ORDINANCE NO. 15

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING 
SECTION 17.72.010 OF CHAPTER 17.72 OF TITLE 
17 (ZONING) OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODEt 

TO CHANGE OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS 
FOR AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOPS AND TO ADD 
OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS FOR 
AUTOMOTIVE BODY AND PAINT SHOPS. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA! CALIFORNIA t DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Section 17.72.010 of Chapter 17.72 of Title 17 (Zoning) of the 
Covina Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"17.72.010 Off-street parking - Space requirements. 

At the time of the erection of any building and/or strucLure pennitted hereinafter listed or 
at the time any such building or structure is enlarged or increased in capacity by adding 
dweHi ng units, guest rooms, second dwelling units, floor area or seats, or at such time 
that a higher usage is applied, there shall be provided for such new construction or 
intensified use, enlargement or increased capacity and use of land the foHowing 
minimum off-street parking space with adequate provisions for safe ingress and egress, 
and the parking space or spaces shaH thereafter be maintained in cOlmection with such 
building or structure and use of land: 

I 

Use Parking Spaces Required 

Animal 
hospital, 

shelter and 
kennel 

Two for each employee 

Automobile 
courts and 

motels 

One for each sleeping unit or 
dwelling unit, plus one for each 

employee (covered or uncovered) 

Automotive 
repair shops 

GRe for eaeh 20Q sql:lazr.e feet ef 
gross floor area TI"ee per service 
bay or roll-up door, whichever is 
greater, plus additional parking 
spaces based on the applicable 

floor area standard/or 
office/l'elaiVcustomer areas. 



Automotive Three per service bay or roll-up 
body and door, whichever is greater, plus 

paint shops additional parking spaces hased 
on the applicahle floor area 

standardfor office/retail/customer 
areas. 

Batting Two for each cage, plus one for 
cage each employee 

Bowling Five for each alley 

alleys 


I, 

SECTION 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days 
after its adoption. 

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision. paragraph. 
sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to 
be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4. CEQA. This ordinance is not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) because the 
activity, which involves amending the City's off-street parking regulations will not result 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change jn the environment; and 
IS060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA 
Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no 
potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. As 
specific projects subject to this ordinance are proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA 
analysis will be conducted on a project-specific basis. 

SECTION 5. Certification. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this 
ordinance and shaH cause the same to be entered i.n the book of original ordinances of 
said City; shall make a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting 
at which time the same is passed and adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the 
passage and adoption thereof, cause the same to be published as required by law, in a 
local newspaper of general circulation and which is hereby designated for that purpose. 

2 



ORDINANCE PASSED AND APPROVED on this __ day of,~___m •••m •••~_.",_' 
2015. 


PEGGY DELACH, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Marco Martinez, City Attorney 

3 



ORDINANCE NO. 15-2036 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING 
SECTION 17.72.010 OF CHAPTER 17.72 OF TITLE 
17 (ZONING) OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
TO CHANGE OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS 
FOR AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOPS AND TO ADD 
OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS FOR 
AUTOMOTIVE BODY AND PAINT SHOPS. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA, CALIFORNIA, DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Section 17.72.010 of Chapter 17.72 of Title 17 (Zoning) of the 
Covina Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"17.72.010 Off-street parking - Space requirements. 

At the time of the erection of any building and/or structure permitted hereinafter listed or 
at the time any such building or structure is enlarged or increased in capacity by adding 
dwelling units, guest rooms, second dwelling units, floor area or seats, or at such time 
that a higher usage is applied, there shall be provided for such new construction or 
intensified use, enlargement or increased capacity and use of land the following 
minimum off-street parking space with adequate provisions for safe ingress and egress, 
and the parking space or spaces shall thereafter be maintained in connection with such 
building or structure and use of land: 

Use Parking Spaces Required 

Animal 
hospital, 

shelter and 
kennel 

Two for each employee 

Automobile 
courts and 

motels 

One for each sleeping unit or 
dwelling unit, plus one for each 

employee (covered or uncovered) 

Automotive 
repair shops 

One for each 200 square feet of 
gross floor area Three per service 
bay or roll-up door plus additional 

parking spaces based on the 
applicable floor area standard for 

officelretaiVcustomer areas. 

Automotive Three per service bay or roll-up 

Exhibit C 



body and 
paint shops 

door plus additional parking 
spaces based on the applicable 

floor area standard for 
office/retaiVc ustomer areas. 

Batting 
cage 

Two for each cage, plus one for 
each employee 

Bowling 
alleys 

Five for each alley 

" 

SECTION 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days 
after its adoption. 

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to 
be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4. CEQA. This ordinance is not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (,'CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) because the 
activity, which involves amending the City'S off-street parking regulations will not result 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and 
15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA 
Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no 
potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. As 
specific projects subject to this ordinance are proposed to the City, appropriate CEQA 
analysis will be conducted on a project-specific basis. 

SECTION 5. Certification. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this 
ordinance and shall cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of 
said City; shall make a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting 
at which time the same is passed and adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the 
passage and adoption thereof, cause the same to be published as required by law, in a 
local newspaper of general circulation and which is hereby designated for that purpose. 

ORDINANCE PASSED AND APPROVED on this __ day of 
2015. 

PEGGY DELACH, MAYOR 

Exhibit C 2 



CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: 	 February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: PH4 

STAFF SOURCE: 	 Kim Raney, Interim City Manager 
Elizabeth Hull, Successor Agency Attorney .J,11 
Lisa Brancheau, Assistant to the City Manager (J'V 

ITEM TITLE: 	 City Council to conduct a public hearing and consider adoption of 
resolutions reapproving Lease with Option to Purchase, approving an 
Amended and Restated Opemting Covenant Agreement, and accepting an 
Economic Development Subsidy Report as they pertain to 633 - 635 
South Citrus Avenue, Covina 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
1) Open the public hearing and consider public testimony; and 

2) Adopt Resolution No. 15-7318 of the City of Covina Accepting the Economic Development 
Subsidy Report prepared pursuant to Government Code 53083 for property located at 633 - 635 
South Citrus Avenue, Covina, CA 

3) Adopt Resolution No. 15-7319 of the City Council of the City of Covina Reapproving a 
Lease with Option to Purchase by and between the City of Covina and Covina MJL, LLC, for 
property located at 633 635 South Citrus Avenue, Covina, CA; and 

4) Adopt Resolution No. 15-7320 Approving an Amended and Restated Operating Covenant 
Agreement by and between the City of Covina and Covina MJL, LLC for property located at 633 

635 South Citrus Avenue, Covina, CA 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is a positive long-term impact to the General Fund that will occur as a result of increased 
sales tax revenues. Other benefits that will be experienced are the creation of significant new 
numbers of employment opportunities and property tax values will increase. 

It should be noted that as an incentive for the development and opemtion of an auto dealership 
within the City, Sage has requested financial assistance from the City for a period of up to thirty 
(30) years in an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue received by 
the City from sales over $50 million generated on the property annually. 

The cumulative total of any and all Covenant payments paid by the City pursuant to this 

Covenant Agreement shall not exceed Three Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($3,750,000). 


BACKGROUND 

The City Council considered these documents at the October 21, 2014 meeting. At which time, 

the City Council approved all of the documents. Following that meeting, it was determined that 

the Operating Covenant Agreement inaccurately described the operating covenant payment cap. 




Additionally, Sage Automotive Group has been able to provide additional information regarding 
the job creation and tax generation that are relevant to the Economic Development Subsidy 
Report. Finally, a change in the law related to prevailing wages became effective on January 1, 
2015 so the Operating Covenant Agreement was revised to address that change. 

The specific changes in the Economic Development Subsidy report between the October 21, 
2014 version approved by the Council and draft presented for consideration this evening are: 

1. Changing the subsidy cap under the Operating Covenant Agreement from $20 million 
to $3.75 million. 

2. Clarifying the rent subsidy under the Lease Agreement commenced on October 22, 
2014, the day following the approval of the Lease. 

3. Providing additional explanation of the public purpose of the economic development 
subsidies. 

4. Clarifying the amount of additional tax revenue to be received by the City as a result of 
the development of the site, including approximately $775,000 in sales tax and $5000 in property 
tax. At the time of the original report the plans and financial data was still being reviewed and 
the dollar values necessary to determine the tax revenue was not available. 

5. Clarifying the number and types of jobs to be created as a result of the economic 
development subsidy. The original report inaccurately reported the total number of jobs being 
created was 35 and it was unknown at the time how many of those would be full time or part 
time jobs. Sage Automotive has subsequently clarified that they have or will be creating 
approximately 130 permanent jobs and 130 temporary jobs. All of the jobs are anticipated to be 
full time jobs. 

The specific changes in the Operating Covenant Agreement between the October 21, 2014 
version approved by the Council and the draft presented for consideration this evening are: 

1. In Section 2 ..2.1, to clarify the subsidy cap as $3,750,000. It was incorrectly reported 
originally as $20 million. 

2. In Section 2.8, to clarify that pursuant to SB 854, effective January 1,2015, prevailing 
wages will be required and there are specific reporting/monitoring requirements that must be 
complied. 

There are no changes to the Lease Agreement. It is presented for re-approval in an abundance of 
caution as the rent abatement provisions are described in the Economic Development Report 
which is being reconsidered this evening. 

CEQA DETERMINATION 
City staff, with the assistance of the City'S CEQA consultant, reviewed the Project and prepared 
an Initial Study pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15063. The Initial Study evaluated 
potential environmental impacts in the following categories: Aesthetic Resources, Agricultural 
Resources, Air Quality, Biological Resources, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Hydrology and Water Quality, 
Land UselPlanning, Mineral Resources, Noise, Population and Housing, Public Services, 



Recreation, Traffic and Transportation, Utilities and Service Systems, and Mandatory Findings 
of Significance. The Initial Study identified potentially significant impacts related to Aesthetic 
Resources, Cultural Resources, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, and Noise. However, the 
Initial Study also identified various mitigation measures that would reduce all impacts to less 
than significant levels. Each mitigation measure identified in the Initial Study has been included 
in the Mitigation Monitoring Program, which is attached as Exhibit A to the Resolution attached 
to this Staff Report. Therefore, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ("MND") was prepared for the 
Project pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15070. 

The City provided copies of the draft MND and Initial Study to the public and the State 
Clearinghouse for a thirty-day review and comment period beginning on September 11, 2014 and 
ending on October 13, 2014 pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21091(b). During the 
review period, the City received 1 comment letter on the MND and Initial Study and has drafted 
a written response to the comment letter, which are included in the Final MND ((See Exhibit A 
to this report for the Final MND document). 

The City Council approved the Final MND on October 21,2014. Since the approval of the Final 
MND, staff has not identified any changes to the Project, changes to the circumstances under 
which the Project is being undertaken, or significant new information that would indicate that 
there would be new significant impacts not analyzed in the Final MND. Thus, the preparation of 
a subsequent EIR under State CEQA Guidelines section 15162 is not required. 

PROJECT 
Sage Automotive Group ("Applicant") proposes to develop a car dealership at 635 South Citrus 
Avenue in the City of Covina, California ("Project"). The site is currently occupied by an 
existing 21,101 square-foot building that supports office space, customer areas, and an on-site 
car washing facility for Enterprise Rent-A-Car, as well as an approximately 82,210 square-foot 
parking lot. The Project would convert the existing use and enlarge the existing building by 
approximately 8,777 square feet and increase the building height by approximately 6 feet. 
Construction would involve two phases: Phase 1 would involve construction and operation of a 
temporary dealership. While dealership activities are operating from the temporary structures, 
construction to prepare the existing commercial building for use as a permanent dealership 
would begin ("Phase 2"). 

LEASE WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE & OPERATING COVENANT AGREEMENT 
On October 7, 2014, the City Council approved the appropriation of funds to the Successor 
Agency for the transfer of property at 633-635 S. Citrus Avenue, Covina. As owner of the 
property, the City wishes to lease the property with an option to purchase to Covina MJL, LLC. 
Covina MJL, LLC will hold the property which will be developed by Sage Automotive Group as 
Sage Covina Chevrolet ("Sage"). Sage will build and operate an auto dealership on the property. 
To accomplish this, Covina MJL, LLC and the City executed a Lease With Option To Purchase 
Agreement (635 S. Citrus Avenue) ("Lease") and Operating Covenant Agreement (Sage Auto 
Group) ("Original OCA"), which were approved by the City on October 21, 2014 by Resolution 
No. 14-7299 and Resolution No. 14-7300, respectively. 

The Lease is for fair market value. Under the Lease, Sage has the option to purchase the 
Property for $3.3 million with escalator if the option is not exercised in the first 5 years. The 
Lease provides for a six month rent abatement and then rent of $30,000 per month. Under the 
tenns of the Lease, Sage took control of the property effective October 22, 2014 and, having 
received all appropriate permits, opened a temporary dealership on November 18, 2014. The 



leasehold interest in the property is conveyed subject to the City's police powers set forth under 
California Constitution Article XI, Section 7. Pursuant to the City's general police powers, the 
City may take those actions which benefit the health, safety and welfare of the community. The 
City determined that entering into the Lease is in the best interest of the community for the 
economic development reasons addressed below and to ensure the rehabilitation of a historically 
underutilized property at the gateway to the community. 

The Lease authorizes Sage to convert the Property to a car dealership and enlarge the existing 
building by approximately 8,777 square feet and increase the building height by approximately 6 
feet, with construction in two phases: Phase I would involve construction and operation of a 
temporary dealership and, while dealership activities are operating from the temporary 
structures, Phase 2 will involve construction the permanent dealership facilities.. The City has 
determined that the dealership would result in substantial benefits to the City and its citizens. 
The proposed development will revitalize a corner at the entrance to the City which has been 
underdeveloped for many years. The City's Redevelopment Agency, before its dissolution, had 
actively sought the development of the site. The Redevelopment Agency staff had worked with a 
number ofpotential developers but had been unable to bring a development to fruition at the site. 
This project will bring new jobs, both technical and professional, to the community. 

Consistent with the Lease, the OCA requires Sage, for a period of no less than thirty (30) years, 
to operate a new vehicle car dealership at the site. For the term of the OCA Sage may use the 
property, or allow a third party to use the property, only for the purposes of the operation of the 
car dealership in accordance with the OCA. A new automobile dealership serves the additional 
public purpose of fostering a business and civic environment that may attract additional 
businesses and investment in the community due to the availability of the increased public and 
private services and economic activity resulting therefrom, thereby assisting the City in its goal 
offurthering the development ofthe community and revitalizing a site that has been substantially 
underused for decades. 

The OCA requires Sage to operate the dealership on the Property for a period of no less than 30 
years. The OCA also requires Sage to maintain the site, not to accept incentives from another 
community to relocate the dealership, and other commitments and covenants designed to 
maximize the benefit to the community to ensure the Lease and OCA benefit the public health, 
safety and welfare of the community. In consideration for these operating covenants and 
commitments, the original OCA provided the City would pay an economic development subsidy 
to Sage in an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue in excess of$50 
million per year that is generated from the Project, not to exceed $20,000,000, for a period ofno 
more than 30 years. 

Because both the Lease and OCA provide an economic development subsidy, Government Code 
section 53083 required the City to prepare an Economic Development Subsidy Report which 
outlines: (l) the name and address of all corporations or any other business entities, except for 
sole proprietorships, that are the beneficiary of the economic development subsidy; (2) the start 
and end dates and schedule, if applicable, for the economic development subsidy; (3) a 
description of the economic development subsidy, including the estimated total amount of the 
expenditure of public funds by, or of revenue lost to, the local agency as a result of the economic 
development subsidy; (4) a statement of the public purposes for the economic development 
subsidy; (5) projected tax revenue to the local agency as a result of the economic development 
subsidy; (6) estimated number of jobs created by the economic development subsidy, broken 



down by full-time, part-time, and temporary positions. The City prepared an Economic 
Development Subsidy Report in written form and made it available to the public and on its 
website at www.cLcovina.ca.us. A noticed public hearing was held on October 21, 2014 to 
consider all written and oral comments on the economic development subsidy provided under the 
Lease, in the form of rent abatment for the first six months of the Lease term, and the economic 
development subsidy provided under the Original OCA in the form of twenty-five percent (25%) 
of all sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is generated from the Project, not to 
exceed $20,000,00. These economic development subsidies purchase from Sage a long term 
operating covenant to continue to operate the Project on the Property, provide increased 
maintenance obligations, and create a contractual obligation not to seek incentives from another 
jurisdiction and relocate. 

After providing the requisite noticed public hearing, the City accepted the Economic 
Development Report on October 21, 2014 concurrently with its approval of the Lease and 
Original OCA. 

Subsequent to the approval of the Lease, Original OCA and Economic Development Report on 
October 21, 2014, the City determined that the Economic Development Report and Original 
OCA inaccurately memorialized the economic development subsidy provided under the Original 
OCA, and that the economic development subsidy under the Original OCA should instead be 
twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is 
generated from the Project, not to exceed $3,750,000 over the life of the subsidy. 

To correct the misrepresentation of the value of the subsidy under the OCA and, based upon 
additional information being available, the Economic Development Report has been revised. The 
additional detail in the Economic Development Report relates to the increased property tax 
revenue, additional public benefits and clarifies the anticipated jobs that will result from the 
Lease and OCA. The City and Sage have negotiated an Amended and Restated Operating 
Covenant Agreement to reflect the cap of $3,750,000 in subsidy under the OCA and City staff 
has prepared a new Economic Development Report. 

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

This project is in keeping with the Strategic Plan goal ofenhancing financial well-being. 


EXHIBITS 
A. Resolution No. 15-7318 
B. Resolution No. 15-7319 
C. Resolution No. 15-7320 

City Manager: Other: 

http:www.cLcovina.ca.us


RESOLUTION NO. 15-7318 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINA 

ACCEPTING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

SUBSIDY REPORT PREPARED PURSUANT TO 


GOVERNMENT CODE 53083 FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 

AT 633-635 SOUTH CITRUS AVENUE, COVINA 


WHEREAS, the City of Covina owns that certain real property located at 633-635 South Citrus 
Avenue, in the City of Covina, California (APN 8453-001-900 & 8453-001-906) ("Property"); 
and 

WHEREAS, Covina MJL, LLC, doing business as Sage Automotive Group ("MJL, LLC"), 
desires to develop a car dealership ("Project") on the Property, which is currently occupied by an 
existing 21,101 square-foot building that supports office space, customer areas, and an on-site 
car washing facility for Enterprise Rent-A-Car, as well as an approximately 82,210 square-foot 
parking lot; and 

WHEREAS, the Project would convert the Property to a car dealership and enlarge the existing 
building by approximately 8,777 square feet and increase the building height by approximately 6 
feet, with construction in two phases: Phase 1 would involve construction and operation of a 
temporary dealership and, while dealership activities are operating from the temporary 
structures, Phase 2 would involve construction to prepare the existing commercial building for 
use as a permanent dealership would begin; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2014, the City adopted Resolution No. 14-7299 approving a Lease 
With Option To Purchase Agreement (635 S. Citrus Avenue) between City and MJL, LLC 
("Lease"), in which City agrees to lease the Property, with an option to purchase the Property, to 
MJL, LLC so that it could build and operate the Project on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2014, the City also adopted Resolution No. 14-7300 approving an 
Operating Covenant Agreement (Sage Auto Group) between City and MJL, LLC ("Original 
OCA") to assist MJL, LLC with the construction and operation of the Project to the Property for 
a period of 30 years; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Government Code Section 53083, the City prepared an Economic 
Development Report regarding the economic development subsidy provided under the Lease to 
the MJL, LLC in the form of the first six months of the Lease rent-free, and the economic 
development subsidy provided under the Original OCA to MJL, LLC in the form of twenty-five 
percent (25%) ofall sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is generated from the 
Project, not to exceed $20,000,000, and after providing the requisite noticed public hearing, 
accepted the Economic Development Report on October 21, 2014 concurrently with its approval 
of the Lease and Original OCA; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of the Lease, Original OCA and Economic 
Development Report, the City determined that the Economic Development Report and Original 
OCA inaccurately calculated the economic development subsidy provided under the Original 

65002.00115\9360611.7 
EXHIBIT A, 9 Pages 



OCA, and that the economic development subsidy under the Original OCA should instead be 
twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is 
generated from the Project, not to exceed $3,750,000 for the term of the subsidy; and 

WHEREAS, City and MJL, LLC have negotiated an Amended and Restated Operating 
Covenant Agreement ("OCA"), and City staff has prepared a new Economic Development 
Report, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, to correct this inaccurate calculation as 
well as provide additional detail to the Economic Development Report regarding the increased 
property tax revenue, additional public benefits and anticipated jobs that will result from the 
Lease and OCA; and 

WHEREAS, the City reaffirms its determination that the Lease and OCA will result in 
substantial benefits to the City and its citizens in the way of the creation of significant new 
numbers ofemployment opportunities, property tax values. sales tax revenues and other ancillary 
benefits; and 

WHEREAS, the City additionally reaffirms its determination that the Project on the Property 
serves the additional public purpose of fostering a business and civic environment that may 
attract additional businesses and investment in the community due to the availability of the 
increased public and private services and economic activity resulting therefrom; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will revitalize and redevelop a site that has been underutilized for many 
years; and 

WHEREAS, based on information provided by City staff, and other such written and oral 
evidence as presented to the City, the City reaffirms its prior findings and determination that the 
Project on the Property is reasonably related to a legitimate governmental purpose in that the 
Project will assist the City in its goal of furthering the development of the community; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 53083, the City provided the 
Economic Development Report on its website and held a noticed public hearing on February 17, 
2015 to consider all written and oral comments on the OCA; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized pursuant to California Constitution Article XI, Section 7 to 
convey the Property for economic development purposes; and 

WHEREAS, all other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF COVINA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and are 
incorporated herein and made an operative part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. Findings. The City Council additionally finds and determines that: (a) there are 
identifiable public purposes fulfilled by the Lease and OCA, as set forth in the Recitals; (b) the 
public purposes set forth in the Recitals outweigh the private benefit to private persons; and (c) 

65002.00115\9360611.7 



the findings set forth in this Resolution are based upon substantial written and oral evidence 
presented to the City Council. 

Section 3. CEQA. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Pub. Res. 
Code, § 21000 et seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs, tit. 14 § 15000 et seq.), 
the City is the lead agency for the proposed Project. In the City's role as the lead agency under 
CEQA, City staff reviewed the Project and prepared an Initial Study pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15063. On the basis of the Initial Study, the City concluded that the Project 
will not have significant impacts on the environment with implementation of mitigation and 
prepared a Mitigated Negative Declaration ("MND"). After completion of all legal prerequisites 
for the approval of the MND, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14·7298 finding that the 
MND and Initial Study contain a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts 
associated with the Project and adopting the MND. The City Council further finds that no 
changes in the Project, changes in circumstances under which the Project is being undertaken, or 
significant information has arisen that would result in new significant impacts, and that 
consequently no subsequent CEQA document under State CEQA Guidelines section 15162 need 
be prepared. 

Section 4. Acceptance of Economic Development Subsidy Report. The City Council finds and 
determines that the Economic Development Subsidy Report is in compliance with applicable law 
and specifically Government Code Section 53083. 

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution is held invalid, the remainder of this 
Resolution shall not be affected by such invalidity, and the provisions of this Resolution are 
severable. 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of February, 2015. 

Peggy Delach, Mayor 
City ofCovina 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk City Attorney 

Exhibit: A -Economic Development Subsidy Report 

65002.00115\9360611.7 



EXHIBIT"A" 


ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUBSIDY REPORT 


65002.00115\9360611.7 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUBSIDY REPORT 

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53083 


FOR AN OPERATING COVENANT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF COVINA 


AND 

COVINA MJL, LCC 


AND 


FOR A LEASE WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE 

BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF COVINA 


AND 

COVINA MJL, LLC 


Pursuant to Government Code Section 53083, the City Council of the City of Covina must hold a 
noticed public hearing and, prior to the public hearing, provide all of the following information 
in written form and available to the public and through the City's website, regarding a proposed 
economic development subsidy to be provided by the City pursuant to an Amended and Restated 
Operating Covenant Agreement by and between the City of Covina and Covina MJL, LLC 
("Agreement") and a Lease with Option to Purchase ("Lease") between the same entities. Notice 
was published in the local newspaper for a public hearing to be held on February 17,2015. This 
report shall remain available to the public and posted on the City's website until the end date of 
the economic development subsidy, as further described in number 2 below. 

There are two (2) economic development subsidies; one economic development subsidy is 
provided through the Agreement and the other economic development subsidy is provided 
through the Lease. 

1. 	 The name and address of all corporations or any other business entities, except for 
sole proprietorships, that are the beneficiary of the economic development subsidy_ 

The Agreement and Lease are with Covina MJL, LLC, who will lease the property and 
own and operate the business that will benefit from the economic development subsidy. 

Business Address: Corporation Address: 

Sage Chevrolet - Covina Covina MJL, LLC 

633-635 South Citrus Avenue 812 South Brand 

Covina, CA 91722 Glendale, CA 91204 


65002.00115\9336959.3 



2. The start and end dates and schedule, if applicable, for the economic development 
subsidy. 

(1) If the Agreement is approved by the City Council, the start date of the economic 
development subsidy under the Agreement will be on or around February 17, 2015 and 
the end date will be no later than 30 years after the start date, on or around February 17, 
2045. The end date may occur earlier than 30 years from the effective date upon 
payment of the economic development subsidy in the aggregate amount of $3,750,000. 
The economic development subsidy will be paid annually, one hundred twenty days 
following the end of each Operating Year, as defined in the Agreement. 

(2) If the Lease is approved by the City Council, the start date of the economic 
development subsidy under the Lease was October 22, 2014 and the end date will be no 
later than 6 months from the start date, on or around April 22, 2015. The rent subsidy 
commenced following the initial approval of the Lease and the Economic Development 
Report. 

3. 	 A description of the economic development subsidy, including the estimated total 
amount of the expenditure of public funds by, or of revenue lost to, the local agency 
as a result of the economic development subsidy_ 

(1) The economic development subsidy in the Agreement is equal to twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the sales tax revenue in excess of the sales tax revenue received from 
the first $50 million of sales by the business operating on the property during each 
calendar year, not to exceed a total aggregate payment amount of Three Million Seven 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($3,750,000) during the term of the Agreement. 

(2) The economic development subsidy in the Lease is equal to a rent abatement for 
the first six months of the Lease term. The monthly lease amount is $30,000 so the abated 
lease payments equal $180,000. The rent abatement commenced with the original 
execution of the Lease following the approval of the Lease and Economic Development 
Report on October 21, 2014. 

4. 	 A statement of the public purposes for the economic development subsidy. 

Covina MJL, LLC is a subsidiary of Sage Holding Co., which is an established 
automobile dealership operator. Covina MJL, LLC desires to lease (with an option to 
purchase) property located at 633-635 S. Citrus Ave, Covina, in order to operate a new 
General Motors point of service in the Covina market area. However, it is not financially 
feasible for Covina MJL, LLC to do so at this time based on the current market 
conditions. 

If Covina MJL, LLC is able to lease the Property and use it to establish a new automobile 
dealership, the City has determined that this would result in substantial benefits to the 
City and its citizens including, without limitation, the creation of significant new numbers 
of employment opportunities, property tax revenues, sales tax revenues and other 
ancillary benefits. 

65002.00115\9336959.3 



Further, the creation of a new automobile dealership serves the additional public purpose 
of fostering a business and civic environment that may attract additional businesses and 
investment in the community due to the availability of the increased public and private 
services and economic activity resulting therefrom, thereby assisting the City in its goal 
of furthering the development of the community and revitalizing a site that has been 
substantially underused for decades. 

By entering into the Agreement and Lease with Covina MJL, LLC, the City is able to 
ensure that the dealership will operate on the Property for a period of no less than 30 
years and obtain MJL, LLC's commitment to maintain the Property and not to seek 
incentives from another jurisdiction and relocate, the occurrence of which could result in 
the Property being vacant or underutilized and cause a severe decline in sales and 
property taxes from the Property. 

5. 	 The projected tax revenue to the local agency as a result of the economic 
development subsidy. 

The City anticipates that the development of a new General Motors dealership at the 
Property will result in an approximate increase of sales tax revenue 8.4% which increased 
revenue will be distributed between the City and Covina MJL, LLC as provided for in the 
Agreement until the end date of the Agreement, as set forth in number 2 above. 

It is estimated that the new dealership on the Property will generate approximately Eighty 
Million Dollars ($80,000,000) in annual revenue. Pursuant to the Agreement, the City 
will annually receive all sales tax revenue for the first Fifty Million Dollars 
($50,000,000) in the dealership's revenue, equal to approximately Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000). Thereafter, Covina MJL, LLC and City will split the sales 
tax revenue generated by the remaining revenue of the dealership, estimated to be 
approximately Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000), which would result in 
approximately Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000) of sales tax revenue, with 
the City receiving seventy-five percent (75%), equal to approximately Two Hundred 
Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000) and Covina MJL, LLC receiving Twenty-Five 
percent (25%), equal to approximately Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000). 

Additionally, the City anticipates that the development of a new General Motors 
dealership at the Property will result in an approximate increase of property tax revenue 
equal to $5,000 annually due to the fact that the property will be owned by a private 
owner as opposed to the property being owned by a governmental agency where no 
property tax was generated. The property tax will be distributed to the City and other 
local agencies in accordance with applicable state law. 

6. 	 The estimated number of jobs created by the economic development subsidy, 
broken down by full-time, part-time, and temporary positions. 

The development of the new automobile dealership is anticipated to result m 
approximately 260 full-time jobs, as follows: 

• 130 temporary jobs 

65002.00115\9336959.3 



• l30 pennanentjobs 

The automobile dealership is not anticipated to generate any part-time positions. 


65002.00115\9336959.3 



REAL PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND JOINT ESCROW 

INSTRUCTIONS 


(633-635 S. Citrus, Covina) 


Buyer: Covina MJL, LLC 
Buyer's Address: 812 South Brand 

Glendale, Ca 91204 
Atten: Joseph Sage 

Purchase Price: $3,300,000.00 

Initial Deposit Amount: $300,000 

This REAL PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND JOINT 
ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS ("Agreement") is dated as of ("Effective Date"), 
and is entered into by and between the CITY OF COVINA, a municipal corporation ("Seller"), 
and Buyer, as listed above. Seller and Buyer enter into this Agreement with reference to the 
following recitals of fact (each, a "Recita}"): 

RECITALS 

A. Seller owns certain real property located in the City of Covina, California, as 
further described in Exhibit "A" attached to this Agreement ("Premises).; 

B. Buyer has made an offer to purchase the Premises from Seller for fair market 
value, and Seller desires to sell the Premises to Buyer pursuant to the tenns and conditions of this 
Agreement 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PROMISES AND 
COVENANTS OF SELLER AND BUYER SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT AND 
OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, SELLER AND BUYER AGREE, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Definitions. The following words, tenns and phrases are used in this Agreement 
with the following meanings, unless the particular context or usage of a word, tenn or phrase 
requires another interpretation: 

1.1.1 Agreement. This Real Property Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint 
Escrow Instructions by and between Seller and Buyer, including all ofthe attached exhibits. 

1.1.2 Business Day. Monday through Friday, exclusive of Federal, State or 
City holidays. 

1.1.3 Buyer. Defmed in the initial paragraph of this Agreement. 

-2
65002.00236\8686008.6 

http:3,300,000.00


1.1.4 Buyer Title Policy. A standard CLTA owners' policy of title insurance 
issued by the Title Company, with coverage in the amount of the Purchase Price, showing title to 
the Premises vested in Buyer, subject only to Permitted Exceptions. 

1.1.5 City. The City of Covina, a California municipal corporation. 

1.1.6 Claim. Any claim, loss, cost, damage, expense, liability, lien, action, 
cause of action (whether in tort, contract, under statute, at law, in equity or otherwise), charge, 
award, assessment, fine or penalty of any kind (including consultant and expert fees and 
expenses and investigation costs of whatever kind or nature and, if an Indemnitor improperly 
fails to provide a defense for an Indemnitee, then Legal Costs of the Indemnitee) and any 
judgment. 

1.1.7 Close of Escrow. The first date on which the Escrow Agent files the 
Grant Deed with the County for recording in the official records of the County. 

1.1.8 County. The County of Los Angeles, California. 

1.1.9 Default An Escrow Default, a Monetary Default or a Non-Monetary 
Default. 

1.1.10 Effective Date. Defined in the initial paragraph of this Agreement. 

1.1.11 Escrow. An escrow, as defined in Civil Code Section 1057 and 
Financial Code Section 17003(a), that is conducted by the Escrow Agent with respect to the sale 
of the Premises from Seller to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.1.12 Escrow Agent Fidelity National Title or such other Person mutually 
agreed upon in writing by both Seller and Buyer. 

1.1.13 Escrow Closing Date. The earlier of: (a) on or before the thirtieth 
(30th) day after the Escrow Agent's receipt of written confirmation from both Seller and Buyer 
of the satisfaction or waiver of all other conditions precedent to the Close of Escrow; (b) 
______; or (c) another date mutually agreed upon in writing between the Parties for the 
Close ofEscrow, in the Parties' respective sole and absolute discretion. 

1.1.14 Escrow Closing Statement A statement prepared by the Escrow Agent 
indicating, among other things, the Escrow Agent's estimate of all funds to be deposited or 
received by Seller or Buyer, respectively, and all charges to be paid by Seller or Buyer, 
respectively, through the Escrow. 

1.1.15 Escrow Default. The unexcused failure of a Party to submit any 
document or funds to the Escrow Agent as reasonably necessary to close the Escrow, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

1.1.16 Escrow Opening Date. The first date on which a copy of this 
Agreement signed by both Seller and Buyer is deposited with the Escrow Agent, as provided in 
Section 2.1. 

-3
65002.00236\8686008.6 



1.1.17 Event of Default. The occurrence of anyone or more of the following: 

(a) Monetary Default. A Monetary Default that continues for seven 
(7) calendar days after Notice to the Party in Default, specifying in reasonable detail the amount 
ofmoney not paid or the bond or surety not provided; 

(b) Escrow Default. An Escrow Default that continues for seven (7) 
calendar days after Notice to the Party in Default, specifying in reasonable detail the document 
or funds not submitted to the Escrow Agent; 

(c) Non-Monetary Default. Any Non-Monetary Default that is not 
cured within thirty (30) days after Notice to the Party in Default describing the Non-Monetary 
Default in reasonable detail. In the case of such a Non-Monetary Default that cannot with 
reasonable diligence be cured within thirty (30) days after the effective date of Notice of such 
Default, an Event of Default shall occur, if the Party in Default does not do all of the following: 
(a) within thirty (30) days after Notice of such Non-Monetary Default, advise the other Party of 
the intention of the Party in Default to take all reasonable steps to cure such Non-Monetary 
Default; (b) duly commence such cure within such thirty (30) day period; and (c) diligently 
prosecute such cure to completion within a reasonable time under the circumstances. 

1.1.18 Federal. The federal government of the United States of America. 

1.1.19 FIRPT A Affidavit. A certification that Seller is not a "foreign person" 
within the meaning of such term under Section 1445 of the United States Internal Revenue Code. 

1.1.20 Form 593. A California Franchise Tax Board Form 593-C. 

1.1.21 Government. Any and all courts, boards, agencies, commissions, 
offices or authorities of any nature whatsoever of any governmental unit (Federal, State, County, 
district, municipal or otherwise) whether now or later in existence. 

1.1.22 Grant Deed. A deed conveying Seller's interest in the Premises from 
Seller to Buyer, at the Close of Escrow, substantially in the form of Exhibit "e" attached to this 
Agreement. 

1.1.23 Hazardous Substance. Any flammable substance, explosive, 
radioactive material, asbestos, asbestos-containing material, polychlorinated biphenyl, chemical 
known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity, pollutant, contaminant, hazardous waste, 
medical wastes, toxic substance or related material, explosive, petroleum, petroleum product or 
any "hazardous" or ''toxic'' material, substance or waste that is defined by those or similar terms 
or is regulated as such under any Law, including any material, substance or waste that is: (a) 
defined as a "hazardous substance" under Section 311 of the Water Pollution Control Act (33 
U.S.C. § 1317), as amended; (b) designated as "hazardous substances" pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 
1321; (c) defined as a "hazardous waste" under Section 1004 of the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq., as amended; (d) defined as a "hazardous 
substance" or "hazardous waste" under Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Superfund 
Reauthorization Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. § 9601, et seq., or any so-called "superfund" or 

-4
65002.00236\8686008.6 



"superlien" law; (e) defined as a "pollutant" or "contaminant" under 42 U.S.C. § 9601(33); (t) 
defined as "hazardous waste" under 40 C.F.R. Part 260; (g) defined as a "hazardous chemical" 
under 29 C.F.R. Part 1910; (h) any matter within the definition of "hazardous substance" set 
forth in 15 U.S.C. § 1262; (i) any matter, waste or substance regulated under the Toxic 
Substances Control Act ("TSCA") [15 U.S.C. Sections 2601, et seq.]; G) any matter, waste or 
substance regulated under the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. Sections 1801, 
et seq.; (k) those substances listed in the United States Department of Transportation (DOT) 
Table [49 C.F.R. 172.101]; (1) any matter, waste or substances designated by the EPA, or any 
successor authority, as a hazardous substance [40 C.F.R. Part 302]; (m) defined as "hazardous 
waste" in Section 25117 of the California Health and Safety Code; (n) defined as a "hazardous 
substance" in Section 25316 of the California Health and Safety Code; (0) that is subject to any 
other Law regulating, relating to or imposing obligations, liability or standards of conduct 
concerning protection of human health, plant life, animal life, natural resources, property or the 
enjoyment of life or property free from the presence in the environment of any solid, liquid, gas, 
odor or any form of energy from whatever source; or (P) that is or becomes regulated or 
classified as hazardous or toxic under Law or in the regulations adopted pursuant to Law. 

1.1.24 Hazardous Substance Discharge. Any deposit, discharge, generation, 
release or spill of a Hazardous Substance that occurs at, on, under, into or from the Premises or 
during transportation of any Hazardous Substance to or from the Premises, or that arises at any 
time from any construction, installation, use or operation or other activities conducted at, on, 
under or from the Premises, whether or not caused by a Party. 

1.1.25 Indemnify. Where this Agreement states that any Indemnitor shall 
"indemnify" any Indemnitee from, against or for a particular Claim, that the Indemnitor shall 
indemnify the Indemnitee and defend and hold the Indemnitee harmless from and against such 
Claim (alleged or otherwise). "Indemnified" shall have the correlative meaning. 

1.1.26 Indemnitee. Any Person entitled to be Indemnified under the terms of 
this Agreement. 

1.1.27 Indemnitor. A Party that agrees to Indemnify any other Person under 
the terms ofthis Agreement. 

1.1.28 Initial Deposit. The amount listed as the Initial Deposit on page 1 of 
this Agreement, which shall be deposited with the Escrow Agent by Buyer on the Escrow 
Opening Date. 

1.1.29 Law. Every law, ordinance, requirement, order, proclamation, directive, 
rule or regulation of any Government applicable to the Premises, in any way, including relating 
to any development, construction, use, maintenance, taxation, operation, occupancy of or 
environmental conditions affecting the Premises, or relating to any taxes, or otherwise relating to 
this Agreement or any Party's rights, obligations or remedies under this Agreement, or any 
transfer of any of the foregoing, whether in force on the Effective Date or passed, enacted, 
modified, amended or imposed at some later time, subject in all cases, however, to any 
applicable waiver, variance or exemption. 

-5
65002.00236\8686008.6 



1.1.30 Legal Costs. In reference to any Person, all reasonable costs and 
expenses such Person incurs in any legal proceeding or other matter for which such Person is 
entitled to be reimbursed for its Legal Costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and 
expenses and consultant and expert witness fees and expenses. 

1.1.31 Monetary Default. Any failure by either Party to payor deposit, when 
and as this Agreement requires, any amount of money, bond or surety required to be provided 
under this Agreement, whether to or with a Party or a Third Person. 

1.1.32 Non-Monetary Default. The occurrence of any of the following, except 
to the extent constituting a Monetary Default or an Escrow Default: (a) any failure of a Party to 
perform any of such Party's obligations under this Agreement; (b) any failure of a Party to 
comply with any material restriction or prohibition in this Agreement; or (c) any other event or 
circumstance that, with passage of time or giving of Notice, or both, or neither, would constitute 
a breach of this Agreement by a Party. 

1.1.33 Notice. Any consent, demand, designation, election, notice or request 
relating to this Agreement, including any Notice of Default. All Notices must be in writing. 

1. 1.34 Parties. Collectively, Seller and Buyer. 

1. 1.35 Party. Individually, either Seller or Buyer, as applicable. 

1.1.36 Permitted Exception. All of the following: (a) all items shown in the 
Preliminary Report as exceptions to coverage under the proposed Buyer Title Policy; (b) any lien 
for non-delinquent property taxes or assessments; (c) any Laws applicable to the Premises; (d) 
this Agreement; (e) any existing improvements on the Premises, if any; (f) any other document 
or encumbrance expressly required or allowed to be recorded against the Premises pursuant to 
the terms of this Agreement. 

1.1.37 Person. Any association, corporation, governmental entity or agency, 
individual, joint venture, joint-stock company, limited liability company, partnership, trust, 
unincorporated organization or other entity of any kind. 

1.1.38 Preliminary Report. A preliminary report issued by the Title Company 
in contemplation of the issuance of the Buyer Title Policy, accompanied by copies of all 
documents listed in Schedule B of the report as exceptions to coverage under the proposed Buyer 
Title Policy. 

1.1.39 Premises. That certain real property specifically described in Exhibit 
"A" attached to this Agreement. 

1.1,40 Purchase Price. The amount listed as the Purchase Price on page 1 of 
this Agreement. 

1.1,41 Real Estate Taxes. All general and special real estate taxes (including 
taxes on fixtures and equipment, sales taxes, use taxes and the like), supplemental taxes, 
possessory interest taxes, special taxes imposed pursuant to a special taxing district, assessments, 

-6
65002.00236\8686008.6 



municipal water and sewer rents, rates and charges, excises, levies, license and permit fees, fines, 
penalties and other governmental charges and any interest or costs with respect thereto, general 
and special, ordinary and extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, of any kind or nature 
whatsoever regarding the Premises that may be assessed, levied, imposed upon, or become due 
and payable out of or in respect of, or charged with respect to or become a lien on, the Premises. 

1.1.42 Seller. The City of Covina, California. 

1.1.43 State. The State of California. 

1.1.44 Third Person. Any Person that is not a Party, an Affiliate of a Party or 
an officer, director, manager, shareholder, member, principal, partner, employee or agent of a 
Party. 

1.1.45 Title Company or such other Person mutually agreed upon in writing 
by both Seller and Buyer. 

1.1.46 Unavoidable Delay. A delay in either Party performing any obligation 
under this Agreement arising from or on account of any cause whatsoever beyond the Party's 
reasonable control, including strikes, labor troubles or other union activities, casualty, war, acts 
of terrorism, riots, litigation, governmental action or inaction, regional natural disasters or 
inability to obtain required materials. Unavoidable Delay shall not include delay caused by a 
Party's financial condition or insolvency. 

2. PURCHASE AND SALE OF PREMISES 

2.1 Escrow. Seller shall sell the Premises to Buyer and Buyer shall purchase the 
Premises from Seller, subject to the Permitted Exceptions, on the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. For the purposes of exchanging funds and documents to complete the sale of the 
Premises from Seller to Buyer and the purchase of the Premises by Buyer from Seller, pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Seller and Buyer agree to open the Escrow with 
the Escrow Agent. Buyer shall cause the Escrow to be opened within two business (2) days 
following the Effective Date. Escrow Agent shall promptly confirm the Escrow Opening Date in 
writing to each of the Parties. The provisions of Section 3 are the joint escrow instructions of the 
Parties to the Escrow Agent for conducting the Escrow. 

2.2 Payment ofPurchase Price. Buyer shall purchase the Premises from Seller for the 
Purchase Price, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Buyer shall pay the 
Purchase Price to Seller at the Close of Escrow in immediately available funds. 

2.3 Initial Deposit. Buyer shall deliver the Initial Deposit to Escrow Agent on the 
Escrow Opening Date. 

-7
65002.00236\8686008.6 



2.4 Buyer's Approval of Title to Premises. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that it 
has received the Preliminary Report for the Premises and has approved the status of title to the 
Premises. 

2.5 "AS-IS" Acquisition. Except for the representations and warranties set forth 
herein that expressly survive the Close of Escrow, the Close of Escrow shall evidence Buyer's 
unconditional and irrevocable acceptance of the Premises in the Premises' AS IS, WHERE IS, 
SUBJECT TO ALL FAULTS CONDITION, AS OF THE CLOSE OF ESCROW, WITHOUT 
WARRANTY as to character, quality, performance, condition, title, physical condition, zoning, 
land use restrictions, the availability or location of utilities or services, the location of any public 
infrastructure on or off of the Premises (active, inactive or abandoned), the suitability of the 
Premises for Buyer's intended use or any other use or the existence or absence of Hazardous 
Substances affecting the Premises and with full knowledge of the physical condition of the 
Premises, the nature of Seller's interest in and use of the Premises, all laws applicable to the 
Premises and any and all conditions, covenants, restrictions, encumbrances and all matters of 
record relating to the Premises. The Close of Escrow shall further constitute Buyer's 
representation and warranty to Seller that: (a) Buyer has had ample opportunity to inspect and 
evaluate the Premises and the feasibility of the uses and activities Buyer is entitled to conduct on 
the Premises; (b) Buyer is experienced in real estate development; (c) Buyer is relying entirely 
on Buyer's experience, expertise and Buyer's own inspection of the Premises in the Premises' 
current state in proceeding with acquisition of the Premises; (d) Buyer accepts the Premises in 
the Premises' condition as of the Close of Escrow; (e) to the extent that Buyer's own expertise 
with respect to any matter regarding the Premises is insufficient to enable Buyer to reach an 
informed conclusion regarding such matter, Buyer has engaged the services of Persons qualified 
to advise Buyer with respect to such matters; (t) Buyer has received assurances acceptable to 
Buyer by means independent of Seller or Seller's agents of the truth of all facts material to 
Buyer's acquisition of the Premises; and (g) the Premises is being acquired by Buyer as a result 
of Buyer's own knowledge, inspection and investigation of the Premises and not as a result of 
any representation made by Seller or Seller's agents relating to the condition of the Premises, 
unless such statement or representation is expressly and specifically set forth in this Agreement. 
Seller hereby expressly and specifically disclaims any express or implied warranties regarding 
the Premises other than those expressly set forth herein. 

3. JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 

3.1 Escrow Instructions. This Section 3 constitutes the joint escrow instructions of 
the Parties to Escrow Agent for conduct of the Escrow for the purchase and sale of the Premises, 
as contemplated by this Agreement. Buyer and Seller shall sign such further escrow instructions 
consistent with the provisions of this Agreement as may be reasonably requested by Escrow 
Agent. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any further 
escrow instructions requested by Escrow Agent, the provisions of this Agreement shall control. 

3.2 Escrow Agent Authority. Seller and Buyer authorize Escrow Agent to: 

3.2.1 Charges. Pay and charge Seller and Buyer for their respective shares of 
the applicable fees, taxes, charges and costs payable by either Seller or Buyer regarding the 
Escrow; 

-8
65002.00236\8686008.6 



3.2.2 Settlement/Closing Statements. Release each Party's Escrow Closing 
Statement to the other Party; 

3.2.3 Document Recording. File any documents delivered for recording 
through the Escrow with the office of the Recorder of the County for recordation in the official 
records of the County, pursuant to the joint instructions of the Parties; and 

3.2.4 Counterpart Documents. Utilize documents signed by Seller or Buyer 
in counterparts, including attaching separate signature pages to one original of the same 
document. 

3.3 Buyer's Conditions Precedent to Close of Escrow. Provided that the failure of 
any such condition to be satisfied is not due to a Default under this Agreement by Buyer, Buyer's 
obligation to purchase the Premises from Seller on the Escrow Closing Date shall be conditioned 
upon the satisfaction or waiver (waivers must be in writing and signed by Buyer) of each of the 
following conditions: 

3.3.1 Title Policy. Title Company is committed to issue the Buyer Title 
Policy to Buyer upon payment ofTitle Company's premium for such policy; 

3.3.2 Seller Escrow Deposits. Seller deposits all of the items into Escrow 
required by Section 3.6; 

3.3.3 Settlement/Closing Statement. Buyer reasonably approves Buyer's 
Escrow Closing Statement; 

3.3.4 Seller Pre-Closing Obligations. Seller performs all of the material 
obligations required to be performed by Seller pursuant to this Agreement prior to the Close of 
Escrow. 

3.4 Seller's Conditions Precedent to Close of Escrow. Provided that the failure of any 
such condition to be satisfied is not due to a Default under this Agreement by Seller, Seller's 
obligation to sell the Premises to Buyer on the Escrow Closing Date shall be conditioned upon 
the satisfaction or waiver (waivers must be in writing and signed by Seller) of each of the 
following conditions precedent to such sale on or before the Escrow Closing Date: 

3.4.1 Buyer Escrow Deposits. Buyer deposits all of the items into Escrow 
required by Section 3.5; 

3.4.2 Settlement/Closing Statement. Seller reasonably approves Seller's 
Escrow Closing Statement; and 

3.4.3 Buyer Pre-Closing Obligations. Buyer performs all of the material 
obligations required to be performed by Buyer pursuant to this Agreement prior to Close of 
Escrow. 

-9
65002JJ0236\8686008.6 



3.5 Buyer's Escrow Deposits. Buyer shall deposit the following items into Escrow 
and, concurrently, provide a copy of each document submitted into Escrow to Seller, at least one 
(1) Business Day prior to the Escrow Closing Date: 

3.5.1 Closing Funds. All monetary amounts required to be deposited into 
Escrow by Buyer under the terms of this Agreement to close the Escrow, all in immediately 
available funds; 

3.5.2 Escrow Closing Statement. Buyer's Escrow Closing Statement signed 
by the authorized representative(s) of Buyer; and 

3.5.3 Other Reasonable Items. Any other money or documents required to 
be delivered by Buyer under the terms of this Agreement or as otherwise reasonably requested 
by Escrow Agent or Title Company in order to close the Escrow or comply with applicable Law 
that have not previously been delivered by Buyer. 

3.6 Seller's Escrow Deposits. Seller shall deposit the following items into Escrow 
and, concurrently, provide a copy of each document (excluding the Grant Deed) deposited into 
Escrow to Buyer, at least one (1) Business Day prior to the Escrow Closing Date: 

3.6.1 Grant Deed. The Grant Deed signed by the authorized representative(s) 
ofSeller in recordable form; 

3.6.2 Escrow Closing Statement. Seller's Escrow Closing Statement signed 
by the authorized representative(s) of Seller; 

3.6.3 FIRPTA Affidavit. A FIRPTA affidavit signed by the authorized 
representative(s) of Seller, in the form used by the Escrow Agent; 

3.6.4 Form 593. A Form 593 signed by the authorized representative(s) of 
Seller; and 

3.6.5 Other Reasonable Items. Any other money or documents required to 
be delivered by Seller under the terms of this Agreement or as otherwise reasonably requested by 
Escrow Agent or Title Company in order to close the Escrow or comply with applicable Law that 
have not been previously delivered by Seller. 

3.7 Closing Procedure. Upon Escrow Agent's receipt of written confirmation from 
both Buyer and Seller that each of their respective conditions precedent to the Close of Escrow 
are satisfied or waived, Escrow Agent shall close the Escrow by doing all of the following: 

3.7.1 Recording and Distribution of Documents. Escrow Agent shall cause 
the following documents to be filed with the Recorder of the County for recording in the official 
records of the County regarding the Premises in the following order of priority at Close of 
Escrow: (a) the Grant Deed; and (b) any other documents to be recorded regarding the Premises 
through the Escrow upon the joint instructions of the Parties. At Close of Escrow, Escrow Agent 
shall deliver conformed copies of all documents filed with the Recorder of the County for 
recording in the official records of the County through the Escrow to Seller, Buyer and any other 

-10
65002.00236\8686008.6 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-7319 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINA 

REAPPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR A 


LEASE WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE 

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINA 


AND MJL, LLC, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

633-635 SOUTH CITRUS AVENUE, COVINA 


WHEREAS, well in advance of the Dissolution Act, the Covina Redevelopment Agency 
("Redevelopment Agency") purchased that certain real property located at 633-635 South Citrus 
Avenue, in the City of Covina, California (APN 8453-001-900 & 8453-001-906) ("Property") 
and, upon its dissolution, the Property automatically transferred to the Successor Agency to the 
Covina Redevelopment Agency ("Successor Agency"); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 34177( e), the Successor 
Agency is responsible for disposing of the assets and properties of the dissolved Redevelopment 
Agency expeditiously and in a manner aimed at maximizing value; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Finance ("DOF") approved the Successor Agency Long Range 
Property Management Plan on July 31, 2014, which authorized the Successor Agency to sell the 
Property for fair market value; and 

WHEREAS, previously the Successor Agency and City had approved the sale of the property 
from the Successor Agency to the City; and 

WHEREAS, that action was approved by the DOF and on October 7, 2014, the Covina City 
Council adopted Resolution No. 14-7289 appropriating funds to the Successor Agency for the 
purchase of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Covina MJL, LLC, doing business as Sage Automotive Group ("MJL, LLC"), 
desires to develop a car dealership ("Project") on the Property, which is currently occupied by an 
existing 21,101 square-foot building that supports office space, customer areas, and an on-site 
car washing facility for Enterprise Rent-A-Car, as well as an approximately 82,210 square-foot 
parking lot; and 

WHEREAS, the Project converts the Property to a car dealership by enlarge the existing 
building by approximately 8,777 square feet and increasing the building height by approximately 
6 feet, with construction in two phases: Phase 1 involves construction and operation of a 
temporary dealership and, while dealership activities are operating from the temporary 
structures, Phase 2 involves construction to prepare the existing commercial building for use as a 
permanent dealership; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to lease the Property, with an option to purchase the Property, to 
Sage Auto Group so that they can build and operate the Project on the Property, which will result 
in substantial benefits to the City and its citizens in the way of the creation of significant new 
numbers of employment opportunities, property tax values, and sales tax revenues; and 

EXHIBIT B, 57 Pages
65002.00115\9360604.6 



WHEREAS, on October 21,2014, the City adopted Resolution No. 14-7299 approving a Lease 
With Option To Purchase Agreement (635 S. Citrus Avenue) between City and MJL, LLC 
("Lease"), in which City agrees to lease the Property, with an option to purchase the Property, to 
MJL, LLC so that it could build and operate the Project on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21,2014, the City also adopted Resolution No. 14-7300 approving an 
Operating Covenant Agreement (Sage Auto Group) between City and MJL, LLC ("Original 
OCA") to assist MJL, LLC with the construction and operation of the Project to the Property for 
a period of 30 years; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Government Code Section 53083, the City prepared an Economic 
Development Report regarding the economic development subsidy provided under the Lease to 
the MJL, LLC in the form of a rent abatement for the first six months of the Lease term, and the 
economic development subsidy provided under the Original OCA to MJL, LLC in the form of 
twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is 
generated from the Project, not to exceed $20,000,000, and after providing the requisite noticed 
public hearing, accepted the Economic Development Report on October 21, 2014 concurrently 
with its approval of the Lease and Original OCA; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of the Lease, Original OCA and Economic 
Development Report, the City determined that the Economic Development Report and Original 
OCA inaccurately memorialized the economic development subsidy provided under the Original 
OCA, and that the economic development subsidy under the Original OCA should instead be 
twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is 
generated from the Project, not to exceed $3,750,000 during the term of the subsidy; and 

WHEREAS, City has prepared a new Economic Development Report and an Amended and 
Restated Operating Covenant Agreement to correct this inaccuracy as well as provide additional 
detail to the Economic Development Report regarding the increased property tax revenue, 
additional public benefits and anticipated jobs that will result from the Lease and OCA; and 

WHEREAS, the City is required to hold a noticed public hearing and publish the Economic 
Development Report on its website prior to granting an economic development subsidy; and 

WHEREAS, because the City has completed a new Economic Development Report, it is 
required to reapprove the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized pursuant to California Constitution Article XI, Section 7 to 
convey the Property for economic development purposes; and 

WHEREAS, all other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF COVINA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and are 
incorporated herein and made an operative part of this Resolution. 

65002.00115\9360604.6 



Section 2. CEQA. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Pub. Res. 
Code, § 21000 et seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs, tit. 14 § 15000 et seq.). 
the City is the lead agency for the proposed Project. In the City's role as the lead agency under 
CEQA, City staff reviewed the Project and prepared an Initial Study pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15063. On the basis of the Initial Study. the City concluded that the Project 
will not have significant impacts on the environment with implementation of mitigation and 
prepared a Mitigated Negative Declaration ("MND"). After completion of all legal prerequisites 
for the approval of the MND, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-7298 finding that the 
MND and Initial Study contain a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts 
associated with the Project and adopting the MND. The City Council further finds that no 
changes in the Project, changes in circumstances under which the Project is being undertaken, or 
significant information has arisen that would result in new significant impacts. and that 
consequently no subsequent CEQA document under State CEQA Guidelines section 15162 need 
be prepared. 

Section 3. Reapproval of Agreement. The City Council hereby reapproves the Ground Lease 
and Option to Purchase Agreement (635 S. Citrus Avenue) between the City of Covina and MJL, 
LLC, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A". The City Manager is hereby 
authorized and directed to take any action necessary to carry out the purposes of this Resolution, 
including without limitation, executing the Ground Lease and Option to Purchase Agreement and 
executing any documents necessary to convey the Property to Sage Automotive Group upon its 
exercise of the option to purchase the Property, if applicable. 

Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution is held invalid, the remainder of this 
Resolution shall not be affected by such invalidity, and the provisions of this Resolution are 
severable. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 
adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day ofFebruary, 2015. 

ATTEST: 

Peggy Delach, Mayor 
City of Covina 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Mary Lou Walczak. City Clerk 

Exhibit: A -Lease with Option to Purchase 

City Attorney 

65002.00115\9360604.6 



EXHIBIT"A" 


LEASE WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE 


65002.00115\9360604.6 



GROUND LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(635 S. Citrus Avenue) 

This Ground Lease and Option to Purchase Agreement (635 S. Citrus Avenue) (this 
"Agreement") is dated October 21,2014, for reference purposes only, and is entered into by and 
between the CITY OF COVINA, a California municipal corporation ("Landlord"), and Covina 
MJL, LLC, a limited liability company ("Tenant"). Landlord and Tenant may be referred to in 
this Agreement each individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Covina 
("Successor Agency") conveyed to Landlord that certain improved real property located at 635 
S. Citrus Avenue, City of Covina, County of Los Angeles, State of California (Assessor Parcel 
Number 8453-001-906), more particularly described in Exhibit A attached to and incorporated 
into this Agreement by this reference ("Property"), following approval by the Oversight Board 
to the Successor Agency and the California Department of Finance. 

B. Tenant desires to lease the Property and obtain an option to purchase the Property 
from Landlord and Landlord desires to lease the Property and grant Tenant an option to purchase 
the Property. 

C. Tenant also desires to obtain certain entitlements on the Property and to develop 
the Property, which currently contains a 23,350 square foot building, into a General Motors 
automobile sales and service center, as more particularly described in Exhibit B attached to and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference (the "Business"). 

TERMS 

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS 
AND AGREEMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND FOR OTHER GOOD 
AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE RECEIPT AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY LANDLORD AND TENANT, LANDLORD AND TENANT AGREE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE 1 

GROUND LEASE 

1.1 Tenant to Lease Property from Landlord. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant 
and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord the Property on the terms and conditions contained in 
this Agreement. This grant of an exclusive leasehold interest in the Property shall not relieve 
Tenant from the requirement to obtain, at its sole expense, any land use permits or other 
approvals for Tenant's use of the Property. 

1.2 Use. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the requirements of any 
approvals obtained in connection therewith, Tenant shall use the Property for the sole purpose of 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -1



developing and operating the Business. Tenant's use of the Property shall comply with all 
applicable laws, ordinances and regulations. Tenant shall only use the Property during the Term 
for the uses set forth in this Section 1.2 and for no other use without the express written consent 
of Landlord, which may be granted in Landlord's sole and absolute discretion. 

1.2.1 Operation of Business. Tenant shall develop and operate the Business on 
the Property in accordance with that certain Operating Covenant Agreement, dated October 21, 
2014 and by and between Landlord and Tenant. 

1.2.2 Compliance with CEQA Conditions. Tenant shall at all times and at 
Tenant's sole expense comply with all mitigation measures included within the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 635 South 
Citrus Avenue Project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA). 

1.2.3 Abandonment. Tenant shall not abandon, vacate without the payment of 
Rent or surrender the Property or any portion of the Business during the Term. 

1.2.4 Nuisance. Tenant shall not itself and shall not allow any other person to 
use all or any portion of the Property for any unlawful purpose and shall not itself and shall not 
allow any other person to perform, permit or suffer any act or omission upon or about all or any 
portion of the Property that would result in a nuisance or a violation of any applicable law, or 
that would violate, suspend, void or increase the rate of any insurance required pursuant to 
Section 1.11. 

1.2.5 Hazardous Substances. Tenant shall not use, create, generate, store, 
deposit, dispose of or allow any hazardous substances on, under, about or within the Property in 
violation of any federal, state, or local law, rule, regulation, order, decree or other requirement. 

1.3 Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years 
commencing on the Effective Date ("Initial Term"). Tenant shall have six (6) five (5) year 
options to renew (each, an "Option Term") (Initial Term and any Option Terms exercised by 
Tenant are collectively referred to as the "Term"). Tenant shall exercise its right to an Option 
Term by providing Landlord with written notice of such exercise, which delivery of such notice 
to renew shall be binding upon the Parties. 

1.3.1 Holding Over. In the event Tenant shall hold over and continue to occupy 
the Property after the Term has expired, Tenant's occupancy of the Property shall be pursuant to 
the same terms and conditions of this Agreement, subject to the following: 

1.3.1.1 Month-to-Month. Should Tenant still occupy the Property after 
the Term of this Agreement has expired, tenancy may continue on a month-to-month basis if 
Landlord consents in writing. Tenant shall pay a new rental amount equal to one-hundred 
twenty-five percent (125%) of the Rent owed in the last month of the Initial Term or any 
exercised Option Term, whichever is later, and shall pay all other amounts due to Landlord under 
this Agreement. Such month-to-month tenancy shall continue until any of the following occur: 
(a) Tenant formally exercises its right to an Option Term, as set forth in Section 1.3; (b) either 
Party terminates this Agreement in accordance with Section 1.8; or (c) either Party gives the 
other written notice of intent to terminate the Agreement at least one (1) month prior to the date 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -2



of termination. Landlord's receipt of increased monthly rent under this Section 1.3.1.1 shall not 
constitute an extension of the Term or Tenant's exercise of an Option Term. 

1.3.1.2 Tenant at Sufferance. Should Tenant still occupy the Property 
after the Term has expired and without Landlord's written consent, Tenant will be a tenant at 
sufferance. Without waiving any rights given the wrongful holding over of the Property, Tenant 
shall pay a new rental amount for each month or portion thereof while Tenant wrongfully holds 
over, equal to two hundred percent (200%) of the Rent owed in the last month of the Initial Term 
or any exercised Option Term, whichever is later, and shall pay all other amounts and penalties 
due to Landlord under this Agreement. Landlord's receipt of increased monthly rent under this 
Section 1.3.1.2 shall not constitute an extension of the Term or Tenant's exercise of an Option 
Term, nor a waiver of Tenant's wrongful holding over and shall not prejudice any other rights or 
remedies available to Landlord under this Agreement or by law. 

1.4 Rent. Tenant shall not be required to submit any payment of rent for the first six 
(6) months subsequent to the Effective Date. Commencing on the seventh (7th) month following 
the Effective Date ("Rent Commencement Date") and for each month thereafter, Tenant shall 
pay to Landlord monthly rental payments equal to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000) per month, 
to be paid in cash no later than the first of each month ("Rent"). In addition to any increases in 
Rent required pursuant to Section 1.3.1, on each anniversary of the Rent Commencement Date 
during the Term, the Rent shall increase by the Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County CPI-U, 
not to exceed 2 percent, for the following twelve month period. All Rent shall be paid to 
Landlord at the address to which notices to Landlord are given, or to such other person or such 
other place as directed from time to time by written notice to Tenant by Landlord. 

1.4.1 Accord and Satisfaction; Partial Payments. No payment by Tenant or 
receipt by Landlord of a lesser amount than the Rent owed under this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be other than a partial payment by Tenant. Any endorsement or statement on any 
check or letter accompanying any check or payment shall not be deemed an accord or 
satisfaction. Landlord may accept any such check or payment without prejudice to Landlord's 
right to recover the balance ofthe Rent due to Landlord or pursue any other remedy. 

1.4.2 Tenant's Late Payments; Administrative Charges. If Tenant fails to make 
any payment to Landlord required under this Agreement within ten (10) days after such payment 
is first due and payable, then in addition to any other remedies of Landlord, and without reducing 
or adversely affecting any of Landlord's other rights or remedies, Tenant shall pay interest at an 
annual rate equal to the lesser of: (a) twelve percent (12%) per annum; or (b) the highest rate of 
interest, if any, that law allows under the circumstances, to Landlord on such late payment, 
beginning on the date such payment was first due and payable and continuing until the date when 
Tenant actually makes such payment in full. 

1.4.3 Possessory Interest Tax. Tenant hereby recognizes and understands that 
this Agreement may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation, and that Tenant 
may be subject to the payment of property taxes levied on such interest. Any such imposition of 
a possessory interest tax shall be a tax liability of Tenant solely, and shall be paid for by Tenant; 
and any such tax payment shall not reduce any Rent due to Landlord. Tenant shall also pay all 
interest and penalties any government entity assesses for late payment of any possessory interest 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -3



taxes that this Agreement requires Tenant to pay. Tenant shall within a reasonable time after 
written notice from Landlord give Landlord reasonable proof that Tenant has paid any 
possessory interest taxes that this Agreement requires Tenant to pay. Nothing herein shall 
prohibit Tenant from the right to challenge any assessment of possessory interest tax in 
accordance with the procedures set forth by the taxing authority and where applicable withhold 
any overcharge by such taxing authority until the disputed matter is resolved. 

1.4.4 Personal Property Taxes. Tenant shall pay and discharge all personal 
property taxes relating to any personal property stored at, used in the operation of or otherwise 
relating to the Property, before delinquency. Tenant shall also pay all interest and penalties any 
governmental agency assesses for late payment of any such personal property tax. 

1.4.5 Utilities. Tenant shall arrange and pay for all fuel, gas, light, power, 
water, sewage, garbage disposal, telephone, television, internet, satellite and other similar 
charges or services, and the expenses of installation, maintenance, use, and service in connection 
with any and all of the foregoing, for the Property. Landlord shall have no responsibility for 
providing or paying for any utilities or services for the Property. Landlord shall not be liable for 
any interference with or disruption of any utilities or services for the Property. 

1.4.6 Security Deposit. 

1.4.6.1 Amount. Tenant shall provide Landlord with a security deposit 
in the amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) ("Deposit") on or before the 
Effective Date. 

1.4.6.2 Tenant Default. Should Tenant default with respect to any 
provision of this Agreement, including but not limited to the payment of Rent, Landlord may 
use, apply or retain all or any part of the Deposit for the payment of Rent, any other sum in 
default, or for the payment of any other amount Landlord may spend or become obligated to 
spend by reason of Tenant's default, or to compensate Landlord for any other loss or damage 
Landlord may suffer by reason of Tenant's default. If any portion of the Deposit is so used, 
applied or retained, Tenant shall within five (5) calendar days after written demand deposit cash 
with the Landlord in an amount sufficient to restore the Deposit to its original amount. The 
Deposit shall not be deemed a limitation on Landlord's damages or a payment of Rent due for 
the last month of the Term. 

1.4.6.3 Commingling of Funds. Landlord is not required to keep the 
Deposit separate from its general funds, and Tenant is not entitled to any interest earned on the 
Deposit. 

1.4.6.4 Waiver. Tenant specifically waives the prOVISIons for 
California Civil Code Section 1950.7 regarding the use and repayment of the Deposit. 

1.4.6.5 Deposit Return. At the expiration of the Term the Deposit shall 
be first applied to any monetary defaults of Tenant and thereafter any remaining balance, if any, 
shall be fully refundable to Tenant within sixty (60) calendar days after Tenant has vacated the 
Property. 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -4



1.4.7 Additional Expenses. Tenant shall be solely responsible for and shall 
discharge before delinquency each and every item of expense, of every kind and nature 
whatsoever, related to or arising from the Property, or by reason of or in any manner connected 
with or arising from the leasing, operation, management, maintenance, repair, use, or occupancy 
of, or construction affecting, the Property, except as otherwise expressly set forth in this 
Agreement. 

1.4.8 Damages. Landlord may recover from Tenant all damages Landlord 
incurs by reason of a default of this Agreement by Tenant, including reasonable costs of 
recovering possession and any and all other damages legally recoverable by Landlord, and 
reimbursement of Landlord's reasonable out of pocket costs, including legal costs and bank fees 
for dishonored checks. Landlord may recover such damages at any time after a default of this 
Agreement has occurred, including after termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any 
law to the contrary, Landlord need not commence separate actions to enforce Tenant's 
obligations for each month's Rent not paid, or each month's accrual of damages for Tenant's 
default, but may bring and prosecute a single combined action for all such Rent and damages. 

1.5 "As Is" Condition of Property. Tenant accepts the Property in its "As Is/Where 
Is" condition, without warranty of any kind, express or implied, including any warranty as to 
title, physical condition, soil conditions, zoning, land use restrictions, CEQA restrictions, the 
availability or location of utilities or services, the suitability of the Property for the Business or 
any other use, and with full knowledge of the physical condition of the Property and all laws 
applicable to the Property. Tenant has not relied and is not relying on any express or implied, 
oral or written representations or warranties made by Landlord or its representatives, and all such 
representations and warranties are specifically disclaimed by Landlord. Landlord makes no 
representations and warranties concerning the physical condition of the Property and the 
presence or absence of hazardous materials, lawsuits and other adverse facts or conditions 
relating to the Property. 

1.6 Risk of Loss. Tenant shall bear the sole and complete risk of loss or damage to 
all fixtures, improvements and personal property ofTenant while on the Property. 

1.7 No Discrimination. Tenant, for itself and its successors and assigns, agrees that 
Tenant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
marital status, race, color, religion, creed, national origin, or ancestry, and that Tenant will 
comply with all applicable local, state and federal fair employment laws and regulations. Tenant 
covenants and agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, and every successor in interest to the 
Property or any part thereof, that there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any 
person or group ofpersons on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, ancestry 
or national origin in the lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the 
Property, nor shall Tenant, or any person claiming under or through Tenant, establish or permit 
any such practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, 
use or occupancy of lessees, sublessees or vendees of the Property. 

1.8 Termination. 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -5



1.8.1 By Landlord. Without limiting Landlord's ability to seek other remedies 
(either at law or in equity) that may be available to Landlord pursuant to statute or judicial 
decision, Landlord may terminate this Agreement and all of its obligations hereunder, at its 
option, upon the occurrence ofeither of the following: 

1.8.1.1 Tenant's breach of any of its monetary obligations under this 
Agreement and failure to cure such breach within five (5) days after receipt of written notice 
from Landlord; or 

1.8.1.2 Tenant's breach of any of Tenant's non-monetary obligations 
under this Agreement and failure to cure such breach within ten (10) days after receipt of written 
notice from Landlord or, if such cure cannot be completed within ten (10) days, Tenant's failure 
to commence such cure within tent (10) days after its receipt of written notice and thereafter 
diligently prosecute such cure to completion. 

1.8.2 By Tenant. Tenant may terminate this Agreement upon Landlord's breach 
of any of Landlord's obligations under this Agreement and Landlord's failure to cure such 
breach within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice from the Tenant or, if such cure cannot 
be completed within ten (10) days, Landlord's failure to commence such cure within ten (10) 
days after its receipt of written notice and thereafter diligently prosecute such cure to completion. 
Tenant sole and exclusive remedy in the event of a default by Landlord is to terminate this 
Agreement. Tenant hereby waives any right to maintain an action against Landlord for specific 
performance of any term or provision of this Agreement. 

1.8.3 Recovery of Damages Following Termination. If this Agreement is 
terminated by Landlord pursuant to Section 1.8.1, then upon any such termination of this 
Agreement, Landlord may recover from Tenant: 

1.8.3.1 Any unpaid Rent at time of termination; 

1.8.3.2 Any other amount actually incurred and reasonably necessary to 
compensate Landlord for all the detriment proximately caused by Tenant's failure to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement or which in the ordinary course of things would be likely to 
result therefrom. 

1.8.4 Vacating the Property. At the termination of this Agreement, Tenant shall 
quit and surrender possession of the Property to Landlord in as good order and condition as they 
were delivered to Tenant on the Effective Date, reasonable wear and tear and damage by the 
elements excepted, and shall remove its personal property and any equipment from the Property, 
with the exception of any improvements constructed on the Property as set forth in Exhibit B or 
as approved, in writing, by Landlord. Tenant agrees to pay any costs incurred by Landlord if 
Tenant fails to comply with the provisions of this Section 1.8.4, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and costs expended on any action by Landlord to compel removal by Tenant of its personal 
property and any equipment. Landlord may remove Tenant's personal property and equipment 
and dispose of or store them at Tenant's sole cost and expense. For purposes of this Agreement, 
the improvements and fixtures to the Property set forth in Exhibit B or as approved, in writing, 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -6



by Landlord shall not be deemed to be Tenant's personal property or equipment in application of 
this Section 1.8.4. 

1.8.5 Governmental Approvals. Tenant understands and agrees that Landlord is 
required to complete certain actions prior to Tenant's occupancy and use of the Property. Such 
actions include, but are not limited to, review of the Business on the Property in accordance with 
CEQA and approval by the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency and the California 
Department of Finance of the transfer of the Property from the Successor Agency to Landlord. 
In the event that these actions are not completed prior to the Effective Date, either Party shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement. 

1.9 Maintenance. 

1.9.1 Maintenance Standard. Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep the 
Property free of noxious weeds and trash, and in good and proper condition in compliance with 
all applicable laws and regulations concerning the use of the Property. Tenant shall make any 
repairs to the Property caused by or incident to Tenant's use of the Property or implementation of 
this Agreement. 

1.9.2 Maintenance Default. If, at any time during the Term there is an 
occurrence of an adverse condition on any area of the Property in contravention of Section 1.9.1 
(each such occurrence being a "Maintenance Deficiency"), then Landlord may provide notice to 
Tenant in writing of the Maintenance Deficiency. If Tenant fails to cure or commence and 
diligently pursue to cure the Maintenance Deficiency within ten (l0) calendar days of Tenant's 
receipt of notice of the Maintenance Deficiency, a default shall be deemed to have occurred and 
Landlord may exercise any and all remedies available to Landlord hereunder including, but not 
limited to, curing the Maintenance Deficiency by Landlord at Tenant's sole expense. 

1.9.3 Graffiti. Graffiti, as defined in Government Code Section 38772(d)(2), 
that has been applied to any exterior surface of a structure or improvement on the Property, that 
is visible from any public right-of-way adjacent or contiguous to the Property. shall be removed 
by Tenant by either painting over the evidence of such vandalism with a paint that has been 
color-matched to the surface on which the paint is applied or removed with solvents. detergents 
or water, as appropriate. If any such graffiti is not removed within seventy-two (72) hours after 
the time Tenant discovers or receives written notice of the graffiti or, in the case of graffiti that 
cannot reasonably be removed within seventy-two (72) hours after the time Tenant discovers or 
receives notice of the graffiti if Tenant does not duly commence such cure and diligently 
complete such cure within a reasonable time under the circumstances, then Landlord may 
exercise any and all remedies available to Landlord hereunder including, but not limited to, 
removal of the graffiti by Landlord at Tenant's sole expense. 

1.9.4 Water Quality Management Plan and Stormwater BMP Maintenance 
Agreement. Teanant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain the property consistent with the 
Water Quality Management Plan Stormwater BMP Maintenance and Right of Entry Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -7



1.10 Entry and Inspection. Tenant shall pennit Landlord or Landlord's agents to 
enter the Property at all times upon reasonable prior written notice for the purpose of inspecting 
the Property, exhibiting the Property to lenders, insurer or lessees, for maintaining and making 
necessary repairs, restorations and replacements to the Property, and for otherwise detennining 
Tenant's compliance with this Agreement. Any entry to the Property obtained by Landlord by 
any of said means, or otherwise, shall not under any circumstances be construed or deemed to be 
a forcible or unlawful entry into or detainer of the Property or an eviction, actual or constructive, 
ofTenant from the Property, or any portion thereof. 

1.11 Insurance. 

1.11.1 Time for Compliance. This Agreement shall not be effective until Tenant 
provides satisfactory proof to Landlord that it has secured all insurance required under this 
Section 1.11. 

1.11.2 Types; Amounts. Tenant shall obtain, and shall require any subcontractor 
to obtain, insurance in the amounts described below unless specifically altered or waived by 
Landlord in writing ("Required Insurance"). In the event that Tenant breaches its obligations 
under this Section 1.11.2, Landlord may, in its reasonable discretion, require Tenant to increase 
the policy limits for any or all of the Required Insurance or obtain the Required Insurance at 
Tenant's sole expense. 

1.11.2.1 General Liability Insurance. Tenant shall maintain occurrence 
version general liability insurance, or equivalent fonn, with a combined single limit of not less 
than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence, which limit may be satisfied by a 
combination ofprimary and umbrella policies. 

1.11.2.2 Property Insurance. Tenant shall maintain property insurance 
against loss, damage, or destruction by fire or other hazards, in an amount equal to 100 percent 
of the replacement value (without deduction for depreciation) of all improvements set forth in 
Exhibit B and any additional improvements approved, in writing, by Landlord pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

1.11.2.3 Automobile Insurance. Tenant shall maintain a policy of 
automobile insurance in customary commercially reasonable form of not less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, which limit may be satisfied by a combination of primary 
and umbrella policies as determined by Tenant. 

1.11.3 General Provisions. The general liability insurance and property insurance 
policies shall name Landlord, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as 
additional insureds. The Required Insurance shall be primary as to Tenant's defense and 
indemnification obligations herein with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs 
covering Landlord, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if in 
excess stand in an unbroken chain of coverage in excess of Tenant's scheduled underlying 
coverage. The Required Insurance shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions, and 
shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its protection to Landlord, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -8



1.11.4 Certificates; Insurer Rating; Cancellation Notice. Prior to the Effective 
Date, Tenant shall furnish to Landlord properly executed certificates of insurance which 
evidence all Required Insurance. Tenant shall maintain the Required Insurance at all times while 
this Agreement is in effect, and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorsement which will 
expire prior to that date. All policies shall be endorsed to provide the Required Insurance shall 
not be suspended, voided, reduced, canceled, or allowed to expire except on thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to Landlord. Unless approved in writing by Landlord, Tenant shall place the 
Required Insurance with insurers authorized to do business in the State of California and with a 
current A.M. Best rating ofat least A-:VII. 

ARTICLE 2 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 

2.1 Feasibility Period. 

2.1.1 Feasibilitv Period: Documents. Tenant shall have forty-five (45) days 
after the Effective Date to approve title matters and to determine in Tenant's discretion the 
feasibility of leasing the Property ("Feasibility Period"). Landlord shall provide Tenant with 
copies of all documents in Landlord's possession or control relating to the Property and the 
general feasibility of the Business, including but not limited to, zoning, use permits for 
commercial use, government approvals and entitlements, engineering drawings, biological 
surveys or reports, grading plans, improvement plans, conditions of approval, soils reports, 
surveys, and environmental reports ("Due Diligence Materials"). On or before the expiration of 
the Feasibility Period, Tenant, in its sole and absolute discretion, will have the right to terminate 
the Agreement. In the event Tenant terminates the Agreement pursuant to this Section 2.1.1: 
(a) Tenant shall receive a full refund of the Deposit; and (b) except for obligations that the 
Agreement expressly states survive termination, neither Party shall have any further rights 
against the other. On or prior to the end of the Feasibility Period, Tenant shall provide written 
notice to Landlord of its approval of the Property. Failure by Tenant to provide written notice to 
Landlord of its approval of the Property shall be deemed to be an approval of the Property by 
Tenant. 

2.1.2 Right of Access. During the Feasibility Period, Landlord will give Tenant 
and its inspecting agents, architects and engineers access to the Property for purposes of 
conducting physical and environmental inspections of the Property and a detailed review of 
contracts, books, records, accounts and other matters pertaining thereto; provided, however, that 
Tenant shall not conduct any test that disturbs the condition of the Property or the use of the 
Property by Landlord without Landlord's prior approval, not to be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed, and Tenant provides proof of insurance pursuant to Section 1.11 and indemnifies 
Landlord for any damage, costs or claims arising from Tenant or its agents' entry or tests on the 
Property pursuant to Section 4.17. 

2.2 Tenant's Covenant to Develop Business. Upon the expiration of the Feasibility 
Period, Tenant covenants to and for the exclusive benefit of Landlord that Tenant shall develop 
and operate the Business on the Property. Tenant covenants and agrees for itself, its successors 
and assigns that the Property shall be improved and developed with the Business, in conformity 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -9



with the tenns and conditions of this Agreement and all applicable laws and conditions of each 
governmental authority with jurisdiction over the Business. The covenants of this Section 2.2 
shall run with the land of the Property, until the earlier of: (a) the date of issuance of a Certificate 
ofCompletion for the Business; or (b) tennination of this Agreement. 

2.3 Tenant to Obtain all Governmental Approvals. Tenant shall be solely 
responsible for preparing and submitting a complete development application and any other 
required application, document, fee, charge or other item (including, without limitation, deposit, 
fund or surety) required for construction of the Business, pursuant to all applicable laws and 
approvals, to each necessary governmental entity for review and approval (including but not 
limited to Planning, Building, Public Works and Health Departments). The City of Covina's 
zoning, building and land use regulations (whether contained in ordinances, the City's municipal 
code, conditions of approval or elsewhere), shall be applicable to the construction of the 
Business on the Property by Tenant, pursuant to this Agreement. Tenant acknowledges that any 
changes to any plans or specifications for the Business shall be subject to all applicable laws and 
approvals. Tenant shall obtain all entitlements, permits and other approvals for construction of 
the Business on the Property from each governmental entity, within One Hundred Twenty (120) 
days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and prior to the commencement of any 
construction of the applicable portiones) of the Business. This One Hundred Twenty (120) day 
timeframe may be extended upon the receipt of written request for such extension from Tenant 
and approval by the City Manager, in its sole and absolute discretion. 

2.4 Reservations. The approval of this Agreement by Landlord shall not be binding 
on the City Council or the Planning Commission, Design Review Committee or any other 
commission, committee, board or body of Landlord regarding any approvals of the Business 
required by such bodies. No action by Landlord with reference to this Agreement or any related 
documents shall be deemed to constitute issuance or waiver of any required City pennit, 
approval or authorization regarding the Property, the Business or Tenant. Except as otherwise 
expressly provided in this Agreement, Tenant obtains no right, pennit or entitlement to construct 
or install the Business on the Property or any portion of the Property by virtue of this Agreement. 

2.5 Completion of the Business. Tenant shall open the Business to the general 
public within twelve (12) months of the Effective Date. This twelve (12) month timeframe may 
be extended upon the receipt of written request for such extension from Tenant and approval by 
the City Manager, in its sole and absolute discretion. 

2.5.1 Tenant understands and agrees not to make any modifications to the plans 
and specifications for the Business, as set forth in Exhibit B, without first obtaining written 
approval of Landlord, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, unless expressly provided 
otherwise herein. Any changes to the plans and specifications for the Business, without first 
acquiring said approval, will be at the sole risk and expense ofTenant. 

2.5.2 Inspections. Landlord may enter upon the Property at any time, without 
notice to Tenant, in order to inspect the Property, the improvements thereon, and Tenant's 
operations, provided that all ofLandlord's representatives shall comply at all times with Tenant's 
health and safety procedures. Tenant shall not be liable to Landlord or its representatives for 
damage to property or bodily injury in any circumstances where there is a breach of Tenant's 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -10



health and safety procedures by such representatives. After development of the Property is 
completed as anticipated by this Section, Landlord shall be required to provide notice as set forth 
in Section 1.10. 

2.6 Tenant's Payment of Costs and Fees. Tenant and Landlord agree that Landlord 
shall not provide any financial assistance to Tenant in connection with the construction or 
installation of the Business, nor shall Landlord bear any responsibility for the construction of the 
Business. Tenant shall be solely responsible for paying for the costs of all design work, 
construction, labor. materials, fees, permits, applications, surety bonds and other expenses 
associated with the Business and the Property. Tenant shall pay any and all fees pertaining to the 
review and approval of the Business by each governmental and utility service providers, 
including the costs of preparation of all required construction, planning and other documents 
reasonably required by each governmental authority or utility service provider pertinent to the 
construction, installation or operation of the Business on the Property. including. but not limited 
to, specifications, drawings, plans, maps, permit applications, land use applications, zoning 
applications, environmental review and disclosure documents and design review documents. 
Tenant shall obtain any and all necessary governmental approvals, prior to the commencement of 
applicable portions of construction of the Business, and Tenant shall take reasonable precautions 
to ensure the safety and stability of surrounding properties during the construction and 
installation of the Business. 

2.7 Prevailing Wages. 

2.7.1 Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has made no representation, express 
or implied, to Tenant or any person associated with Tenant regarding whether or not laborers 
employed relative to any construction on the Property must be paid the prevailing per diem wage 
rate for their labor classification, as determined by the State of California, pursuant to California 
Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq. Tenant agrees with Landlord that Tenant shall assume the 
responsibility and be solely responsible for determining whether or not laborers employed 
relative to any construction on the Property must be paid the prevailing per diem wage rate for 
their labor classification, as determined by the State of California, pursuant to California Labor 
Code Sections 1720 et seq. Landlord shall not be under any duty to monitor or ensure the 
compliance of Tenant with any State of California labor laws, including, without limitation, 
prevailing wage laws. 

2.7.2 Tenant shall indemnify Landlord in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 4.17 against any claims pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1781 arising from the 
construction of the Business or any additional improvements on the Property. 

2.8 Prohibited Liens. 

2.8.1 Prohibited Liens. Tenant shall keep the Property free from any liens 
ansmg out of any work performed, material furnished, or obligations incurred by Tenant 
("Prohibited Lien'). Tenant shall provide written notice to Landlord of each Prohibited Lien 
within five (5) days following Tenant's receipt of notice of such Prohibited Lien. Tenant shall, 
within thirty (30) days after receiving notice of a Prohibited Lien (but in any case within fifteen 
(15) days after Tenant receives notice of commencement of foreclosure proceedings regarding 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -11



any Prohibited Lien), cause such Prohibited Lien to be paid, discharged, and cleared from title to 
the Property; provided, however, that if Tenant disputes such Prohibited Lien in good faith, 
Tenant may maintain an appropriate dispute of such Prohibited Lien without payment, if Tenant 
provides a bond in lieu of the Prohibited Lien which is in conformance with applicable law and 
which is in an amount and form reasonably acceptable to Landlord releasing the Property from 
the disputed Prohibited Lien. Tenant shall thereafter prosecute such action with reasonable 
diligence and continuity. 

2.8.2 No Liens Against Public Property. Tenant acknowledges that the Property 
is owned by Landlord and is thus not subject to the imposition of mechanic's liens or other liens 
in favor of providers of labor, materials, or services on or to the Property. Tenant shall inform 
each provider of labor, material, or services on or to the Property of the statutory unavailability 
of such liens with respect to the Property, and that Landlord is not responsible for payment of 
any claims by such providers of labor, material, or services. 

2.9 Alterations. Upon completion of construction of the Business, Tenant shall not 
make any alterations, improvements or additions in, on, or about the Property that are not set 
forth in Exhibit B, without first obtaining Landlord's prior written consent. However, 
Landlord's prior written consent will not be necessary for any alteration, improvement, or 
addition which costs less than five thousand dollars ($5,000), including labor and material. 

2.9.1 All alterations, improvements or additions in, on or about any of the 
Property by Tenant shall comply with all applicable laws. 

2.9.2 Alterations, improvements or additions in, on or about the Property, 
whether temporary or permanent in character, shall immediately become Landlord's property 
upon expiration of the Term or lawful termination of this Agreement, and shall remain on the 
Property without compensation to Tenant, unless expressly provided otherwise herein. 

ARTICLE 3 

OPTION TO PURCHASE THE PROPERTY 

3.1 Grant of Option. Landlord grants to Tenant the right and option (the "Option") 
to purchase the Property for the fair market value of the Property, as negotiated by Landlord and 
Tenant (the "Purchase Price"), on each anniversary of the Effective Date during the Term 
pursuant to Section 3.3. If the Option is exercised prior to the fifth (5th) anniversary of the 
Effective Date, the purchase price shall be Three Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($3,300,000). If the Option is exercised at some point thereafter, the Purchase Price shall 
increase by 5% on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Effective Date and every five (5) years 
thereafter until the Option is exercised. The Purchase Price shall be paid in cash at the close of 
escrow. No Rent shall be applied to the Purchase Price without the express written agreement of 
the Parties. Tenant's right and option to purchase the Property pursuant to the Option is 
exclusive to Tenant, unless assigned as provided herein. Landlord agrees that any Security 
Deposit in Landlord's possession shall be applied to the purchase price 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -l2



3.2 Independent Contract Consideration. Upon the Effective Date, Tenant shall 
deliver to Landlord the sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) ("Independent Contract 
Consideration"), which amount has been bargained for and agreed to as adequate consideration 
for the Option. The Independent Contract Consideration is in addition to and independent of all 
other consideration provided in this Agreement and is nonrefundable to Tenant in all events. 

3.3 Exercise of Option. If Tenant is not in material default under this Agreement it 
may exercise the Option prior to the termination of the Option, as set forth in Section 3.4. To 
exercise the Option, Tenant shall provide Landlord written notice of the intent to exercise the 
Option 90 days before the next anniversary of the Effective Date. Tenant shall then execute and 
delivery to Landlord three (3) originals of the purchase and sale agreement in substantially the 
same form as set forth on Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated into this Agreement by this 
reference, executed by the authorized representative(s) of Tenant ("Option Purchase 
Agreement"). Landlord shall counter-execute the originals of the Option Purchase Agreement 
signed by Tenant and deliver one fully executed original to Tenant and the escrow agent, as 
chosen by mutual agreement of the Parties. The Option Purchase Agreement will constitute the 
joint escrow instructions to the escrow agent from Landlord and Tenant regarding the purchase 
and sale transaction for the Property between the Parties. 

3.4 Termination of Option. The Option shall automatically and immediately 
terminate, without further notice, upon the occurrence of any of the following: (a) Tenant fails to 
exercise the Option at expiration of the Term; (b) Tenant, at any time during the Term, gives 
written notice to Landlord of its election to terminate the Option; or (c) this Agreement is 
terminated. 

3.5 Right of First Refusal. If at any time during the Term Landlord receives from a 
third party a bona fide written offer ("Purchase Offer") to purchase the Property at a purchase 
price and terms acceptable to Landlord, Tenant shall have a right of first refusal to purchase the 
Property ("Right of First Refusal") as provided in this Section 3.5. If Landlord elects to accept 
the Purchase Offer, Landlord shall give written notice of all of the terms of the Purchase Offer to 
Tenant ("Offer Notice"). Tenant shall have the right to exercise its Right of First Refusal for a 
period of thirty (30) days after Landlord delivers the Offer Notice to Tenant. Exercise of the 
Right of First Refusal may only be made by Tenant providing written notice to Landlord 
("Acceptance Notice") that Tenant will purchase the Property in strict accordance with the terms 
set forth in the Offer Notice. In the event Tenant provides Landlord with the Acceptance Notice 
in strict accordance with the terms set forth in this Section 3.5, then such action shall be deemed 
to be a binding contract between Tenant and Landlord for the purchase of the Property in 
accordance with the terms of the Offer Notice. Tenant's failure to provide Landlord with the 
Acceptance Notice within said thirty (30) day period shall authorize Landlord to sell the Property 
to the third party or its assigns making the Purchase Offer on the same terms and conditions as 
provided in the Offer Notice, and Tenant's Right of First Refusal and Option shall be 
immediately, automatically and irrevocably terminated without the requirement of further notice. 
In the event, however, the Property is not sold to the party or its assigns that made the Purchase 
Offer, then Tenant shall thereafter have the same Right of First Refusal upon Landlord receiving 
any subsequent offer to purchase from any third party that Landlord elects to accept and which 
occurs during the Term. 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -13



ARTICLE 4 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

4.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the first date on which 
all of the following have occurred ("Effective Date"): (a) Landlord has received three (3) 
counterpart originals of this Agreement signed by the authorized representative( s) of Tenant; (b) 
this Agreement has been approved by Landlord's governing body; (c) this Agreement has been 
signed by the authorized representative(s) of Landlord; and (d) the Property has been transferred 
by Quitclaim Deed from the Successor Agency to Landlord, which transfer has been approved 
by the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency and the California Department of Finance in 
accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 34181(f). Landlord shall send written notice of 
the Effective Date to Tenant within seven (7) days following the occurrence of the Effective 
Date. In the event that the Effective Date occurs later than August 1,2014, Tenant shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement and such termination shall not constitute a default by either 
Party. 

4.2 Waivers And Releases. BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, TENANT 
WAIVES AND RELEASES LANDLORD AND ITS REPRESENTATIVES FROM ALL 
CLAIMS ARISING OR RELATING TO THE PROPERTY OR THE BUSINESS AS OF THE 
DATE OF MUTUAL EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT OR AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO 
THE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN, 
SUSPECTED OR UNSUSPECTED. WITH RESPECT TO THE WAIVERS AND RELEASES 
CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION 4.2, TENANT WAIVES THE PROVISIONS OF 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL SECTION 1542 AND ALL SIMILAR PROVISIONS AND 
PRINCIPLES OF LAW. SECTION 1542 PROVIDES: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE 
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER 
FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF 
KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS 
OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR. 

Initials of Tenant 

4.3 Notices. 

4.3.1 Any and all notices required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered, sent by recognized overnight 
delivery service or mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid, to the parties at the addresses indicated below: 

Tenant: 	 Covina MJL, LLC 
812 South Brand 
Glendale, CA 91204 
Atten: Joseph Sage 

65002.00236\8686008.6 	 -14



Copy to: 	 Feldman Bennan Schwartz, LLP 
20750 Ventura Boulevard, Ste. 210 
Woodland Hills, CA 91364 
Atten: Craig Bennan 

Landlord: 	 City of Covina 
125 E. College Street 
Covina, CA 91723 
Attention: City Manager 

Copy to: 	 Best Best & Krieger LLP 
5 Park Plaza Suite 1500 
Irvine, California 92614 
Attention: City Attorney 

4.3.2 Any party may change its address for service of notices by service of a 
notice to the other party in the manner set forth above. Any notice given personally shall be 
deemed given upon service, notices sent by overnight service shall be deemed received on the 
next business day and any notice given by certified or registered mail shall be deemed given on 
the third (3rd) business day after such notice is mailed. 

4.4 Time of Essence. The parties acknowledge that time is of the essence in the 
perfonnance ofeach provision of this Agreement. 

4.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the attached exhibits, 
contains the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties regarding the subject matter of 
this Agreement. Any modifications to this Agreement must be set forth in a writing signed by 
both Parties. 

4.6 Assignment or Subletting. Tenant shall not assign or sublease this Agreement 
without the prior express written consent of Landlord, which consent may be withheld in 
Landlord's reasonable discretion. Tenant may assign or sublet Tenant's interest in this 
Agreement or the Property without the prior written consent to the Landlord to an Affiliate or 
entity owned or Controlled by Tenant. "Affiliate" means and refers to any Person, directly or 
indirectly, Controlling or Controlled by or under common Control with the Developer, whether 
by direct or indirect ownership of equity interests, by contract or otherwise. "Control" means 
and refers to possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the 
management and policies of a Person, whether by ownership of equity interests, by contract or 
otherwise. 44Controlling" and 44Controlled" mean and refer to exercising or having Control. 

4.7 Construction of Agreement. Section headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience of reference only and shall not be considered or referred to in resolving questions of 
interpretation or construction. In detennining the meaning of, or resolving any ambiguity with 
respect to, any word, phrase or provision in this Agreement, neither this Agreement or any 
uncertainty or ambiguity in this Agreement will be construed or resolved against either Party 
(including the Party primarily responsible for drafting and preparation of this Agreement), under 

65002.00236\8686008.6 



any rule of construction or otherwise, it being expressly understood and agreed that the Parties 
participated equally or had equal opportunity to participate in the drafting of this Agreement. 
Unless the context otherwise requires, all periods tenninating on a given day, period of days, or 
date shall terminate at 5 :00 p.m. Pacific Time on such date or dates and references to "days" 
shall refer to calendar days, unless otherwise specified in this Agreement; provided, however, in 
the event that any period terminates on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, under the laws of the 
State of California or the United States of America, the tennination of such period shall occur on 
the next succeeding business day. 

4.8 Third Party Beneficiaries. The Parties intend that the rights and obligations 
under this Agreement shall benefit and burden only the Parties to this Agreement, and do not 
intend to create any rights in, or right of action to or for the use or benefit of any third party that 
is not one of the Parties to this Agreement, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

4.9 Broker's Commissions. Neither party is represented by a broker. Each party 
shall indemnify the other for the claims of any broker who purports to have represented such 
party. 

4.10 Severability. If any term, prOVlSlOn or portion of this Agreement or the 
application of this Agreement to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, 
or the application of such tenn or provision or portion of this Agreement to persons or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be 
affected thereby, and each such tenn and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

4.11 No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to constitute the 
creation of a partnership or joint venture between Landlord and Tenant or any contractor or other 
person relating to the Property. Tenant is not an agent or representative of Landlord or vice 
versa. 

4.12 Legal Costs. In the event of the filing of any legal action between Landlord and 
Tenant, arising out of the obligations of the Parties pursuant to this Agreement, the prevailing 
Party will be entitled to payment of its costs and expenses, including its attorneys' fees. 

4.13 Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of 
the Parties, their successors and assigns. 

4.14 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and when so 
executed by the Parties, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument that shall be binding upon the Parties, 
notwithstanding that the Parties may not be signatories to the same counterpart or counterparts. 
The Parties may integrate their respective counterparts by attaching the signature pages of each 
separate counterpart to a single counterpart. 

4.15 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. Any legal action brought to enforce or interpret this 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -16



Agreement must be brought in the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County 
of Los Angeles, California. 

4.16 Non-liability of Landlord, Officials and Employees. No member, official, 
employee, or consultant of Landlord shall be personally liable to Tenant, or any successor in 
interest of Tenant, in the event of any default or breach by Landlord of this Agreement or for any 
amount which may become due to Tenant or to its successor by virtue of this Agreement, or on 
any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

4.17 Indemnity and Release. 

4.17.1 Tenant Indemnity Obligations. Tenant hereby agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold Landlord and its officials, officers, agents and employees free and harmless from and 
against any and all claims, demands, causes ofaction, costs, liabilities, expenses, losses, damages 
or injuries of any kind in law or equity, to persons or property, including wrongful death, in any 
manner arising from or related to this Agreement, the Business, the use or occupancy by Tenant 
andlor its agents, employees or subtenants of the Property, andlor Tenant's breach of any 
condition of this Agreement. Tenant shall defend, with counsel selected by Landlord, at 
Tenant's sole expense, any and all such suits, actions or proceedings, legal or equitable that may 
be brought or instituted against Landlord, its officials, officers, agents or employees. Tenant 
shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against Landlord, its 
officials, officers, agents or employees. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for any and all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by Landlord in connection with this Agreement or the indemnity 
herein provided. Tenant's obligation shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement, 
and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by Landlord or its officials, 
officers, agents or employees. 

4.17.2 Liability of Landlord. Landlord shall not be liable for and Tenant shall 
indemnify Landlord in accordance with Section 4.17.1 regarding any injury or damage to any 
property (of Tenant or any other person) or to any person occurring on or about the Property. In 
addition, Tenant acknowledges that Landlord would not have entered into this Agreement if it 
were to be liable in damages under this Agreement, or with respect to this Agreement or the 
application thereof. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Landlord 
shall not be liable in damages to Tenant, or to any successor in interest of Tenant, or to any other 
person, and Tenant covenants not to sue for damages or claim any damages: (a) for any breach of 
this Agreement or for any cause of action that arises out of this Agreement; (b) for the taking, 
impairment or restriction of any right or interest conveyed or provided under or pursuant to this 
Agreement; or (c) arising out of or connected with any dispute, controversy or issue regarding 
the application or interpretation or effect of the provisions of this Agreement. 

4.18 Legal Challenges. Subject to the provisions and conditions of this Section 4.18, 
Tenant assumes the risk of delays or damages that may result to Tenant from any legal action 
filed by any person or entity related to Landlord's approval of this Agreement or issuance of any 
associated governmental approvals, including but not limited to legal actions contesting the 
adequacy of the CEQA review undertaken in connection with this Agreement, the transfer of the 
Property from the Successor Agency to Landlord, or Tenant's uses of the Property. If any person 
or entity files a legal action regarding Landlord's approval of this Agreement or issuance of any 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -17



associated governmental approval, Tenant shall indemnify Landlord pursuant to Section 4.17 
against such legal action. Nothing contained in this Section 4.18 is intended to be nor shall be 
deemed or construed to be an express or implied admission that Landlord may be liable to 
Tenant or any other person for damages or other relief regarding any alleged or established 
failure of Landlord to comply with any law. 

4.19 Waiver. The waiver by Landlord or Tenant of any breach of any term, covenant, 
condition or provision contained herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, 
covenant, condition or provision for any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, 
covenant, condition or provision contained herein. 

4.20 No Relocation or Assistance. Tenant acknowledges that Tenant is not entitled to 
relocation assistance or any other benefits under the Uniform Relocation Assistance Act or any 
other applicable provision of law upon termination ofthis Agreement. 

4.21 Compliance with Laws. Tenant shall, at Tenant's own cost and expense, comply 
with all statutes, ordinances, regulations and requirements of all governmental entities, both 
federal and state and county or municipal, relating to any use and occupancy of the Property, 
whether those statutes, ordinances, regulations and requirements are now in force or are 
subsequently enacted. 

4.22 Independent Representation by Counsel. The Parties represent and declare that 
in executing this Agreement they rely solely upon their own judgment, belief and knowledge, 
and the advice and recommendations of their own independently-selected counsel, concerning 
the nature, extent and duration of their rights and claims hereunder, and that, except as provided 
herein, they have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this Agreement, by 
any representations, statements or omissions pertaining to any of the matters herein contained by 
any Party or by any persons representing any Party. 

[Signatures on following pages) 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -18



SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 


GROUND LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(635 S. Citrus Ave.) 


LANDLORD 

CITY OF COVINA, 

a California municipal corporation 


By:_______________ 

Kim Raney, Interim City Manager 

Dated:______________ 

Attest: 

By:_____________ 

Mary Lou Walczak 

City Clerk 


Approved as to legal form: 

By:____-------- 
City Attorney 

-1965002.00236\8686008.6 



-------------

SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 


GROUND LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(635 S. Citrus Ave.) 


TENANT 
COVINA, MJL, LLC, 

A California Limited Liability Company 


By:______________ 

Name: 

Its:-------------- 

By:______________ 

Name:------------ 
Its:_______________ 

Dated:_____________ 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -20



EXHIBIT A 

TO 


GROUND LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(635 S. Citrus Ave.) 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

[To Be Inserted] 

EXHIBIT A 65002.00236\8686008.6 



EXHIBITB 

TO 


GROUND LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(635 S. Citrus Ave.) 


DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Sage Covina Chevrolet dealership to sell new and used vehicles at 635 S. Citrus Ave., 


Covina, CA 


65002.00236\8686008.6 EXHIBITB 



EXHIBITC 

TO 


GROUND LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(635 S. Citrus Ave.) 


FORM PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 


-1
65002.00236\8686008.6 



Person designated in the written joint escrow instructions of the Parties to receive an original or 
confonned copy of each such document. Each confonned copy of a document filed for 
recording shall show all recording infonnation. The Parties intend and agree that this Section 
3.7.1 shall establish the relative priorities of the documents to be recorded in the official records 
of the County through the Escrow, by providing for recordation of senior interests prior to junior 
interests, in the order provided in this Section 3.7.1; 

3.7.2 Funds. Distribute all funds held by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the 
Escrow Closing Statements approved in writing by Seller and Buyer. respectively; 

3.7.3 FIRPTA Affidavit. File the FIRPTA Affidavit with the United States 
Internal Revenue Service; 

3.7.4 Form 593. File the Form 593 with the California Franchise Tax Board; 
and 

3.7.5 Title Policy. Obtain from the Title Company and deliver to Buyer the 
Buyer Title Policy issued by the Title Company. 

3.8 Close of Escrow. The Close of Escrow shall occur on or before the Escrow 
Closing Date. If for any reason the Close of Escrow has not occurred on or before the Escrow 
Closing Date. then any Party not then in Default under this Agreement may cancel the Escrow 
and terminate this Agreement. without liability to the other Party or any other Person for such 
cancellation and tennination. by delivering Notice of tennination to both the other Party and 
Escrow Agent. Following any such Notice of termination of this Agreement and cancellation of 
the Escrow. the Parties and Escrow Agent shall proceed pursuant to Section 3.12. Without 
limiting the right of either Party to cancel the Escrow and terminate this Agreement. pursuant to 
this Section 3.8. if the Escrow does not close on or before the Escrow Closing Date and neither 
Party has exercised its contractual right to cancel the Escrow and terminate this Agreement under 
this Section 3.8 before the first date on which Escrow Agent Notifies both Parties that Escrow is 
in a position to close in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. then the 
Escrow shall close as soon as reasonably possible following the first date on which Escrow 
Agent Notifies both Parties that Escrow is in a position to close in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

3.9 Escrow Costs. Escrow Agent shall Notify Buyer and Seller of the costs to be 
borne by each of them at the Close of Escrow by delivering an Escrow Closing Statement to both 
Seller and Buyer at least four (4) Business Days prior to the Escrow Closing Date. Each party 
shall pay its own costs and expenses arising in connection with the Closing (including. without 
limitation. its own attorneys' and advisors' fees. charges, and disbursements). except the 
following costs (the "Closing Costs"), which shall be allocated between the parties as follows: 

(a) Escrow fees and costs shall be paid one-half by Seller and one-half 
by Buyer; 

(b) The cost of the Title Policy attributable to the standard coverage 
portion shall be paid by Seller; 

-11
65002.00236\8686008.6 



(c) The cost of the Title Policy attributable to the extended coverage 
portion shall be paid by Buyer; and 

(d) Buyer shall pay the cost of any documentary transfer taxes in 
connection with the recording of the Grant Deed; 

(e) All other closing fees and costs shall be charged to and paid by 
Seller and Buyer in accordance with customary practices in the County. 

3.1 0 Allocation of Taxes. Real Estate Taxes relating to the Premises, if any, shall be 
prorated between Seller and Buyer as ofMidnight on the date prior to the Close ofEscrow. 

3.11 Escrow Cancellation Charges. If the Escrow fails to close due to Seller's Default 
under this Agreement, Seller shall pay all ordinary and reasonable Escrow and title order 
cancellation charges charged by Escrow Agent or Title Company, respectively, if any. If the 
Escrow fails to close due to Buyer's Default under this Agreement, Buyer shall pay all ordinary 
and reasonable Escrow and title order cancellation charges charged by Escrow Agent or Title 
Company, respectively, if any. If the Escrow fails to close for any reason other than the Default 
of either Buyer or Seller, Buyer and Seller shall each pay one-half (1/2) of any ordinary and 
reasonable Escrow and title order cancellation charges charged by Escrow Agent or Title 
Company, respectively, if any. 

3.12 Escrow Cancellation. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to a contractual 
right granted to a Party in this Agreement to terminate this Agreement (other than due to an 
Event of Default by the other Party), the Parties shall do all of the following: 

3.12.1 Cancellation Instructions. The Parties shall, within seven (7) Business 
Days following Escrow Agent's written request, sign any reasonable Escrow cancellation 
instructions requested by Escrow Agent; 

3.12.2 Return of Funds and Documents. Within seven (7) Business Days 
following receipt by the Parties of a settlement statement of Escrow and title order cancellation 
charges from Escrow Agent (if any) or within seven (7) Business days following Notice of 
termination, whichever is earlier: (a) Buyer or Escrow Agent shall return to Seller all documents 
previously delivered by Seller to Buyer or Escrow Agent, respectively, regarding the Escrow; (b) 
Seller or Escrow Agent shall return to Buyer all documents previously delivered by Buyer to 
Seller or Escrow Agent, respectively, regarding the Escrow; (c) Escrow Agent shall, unless 
otherwise provided in this Agreement, return to Buyer all funds deposited in Escrow by Buyer, 
less Buyer's share of customary and reasonable Escrow and title order cancellation charges (if 
any) in accordance with Section 3.11; and (d) Escrow Agent shall, unless otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, return to Seller all funds deposited in Escrow by Seller, less Seller's share of 
customary and reasonable Escrow and title order cancellation charges (if any) in accordance with 
Section 3.11. 

3.13 Eminent Domain. If any portion of the Premises or any interest in any portion of 
the Premises becomes the subject of any eminent domain proceeding prior to Close of Escrow, 
including the filing of any notice of intended eminent domain action or proceedings in the nature 
of eminent domain, Seller shall give Buyer Notice of such occurrence and Buyer shall have the 

-12
65002.00236\8686008.6 



option, exercisable within ten (10) Business Days after receipt of such Notice from Seller, to 
either: (a) cancel the Escrow and terminate this Agreement, in which case the Parties and the 
Escrow Agent shall proceed in accordance with Section 3.12; or (b) continue with this 
Agreement in accordance with its terms, in which event Seller shall assign to Buyer, at the Close 
of Escrow, any right of Seller to receive any eminent domain award attributable to the Premises 
acquired by Buyer pursuant to this Agreement. 

4. REMEDIES 

4.1 BUYER'S RIGHT TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE AND LIMITATION ON 
RECOVERY OF DAMAGES. 

4.1.1 ELECTION OF REMEDIES. DURING THE CONTINUANCE OF 
AN EVENT OF DEFAULT BY SELLER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT PRIOR TO THE 
CLOSING, BUYER SHALL BE LIMITED TO EITHER OF THE FOLLOWING REMEDIES: 
(1) AN ACTION AGAINST SELLER FOR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THIS 
AGREEMENT; OR (2) TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND AN ACTION TO 
RECOVER THE INITIAL DEPOSIT. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL SELLER BE 
LIABLE TO BUYER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR ANY AMOUNT EXCEEDING THE 
AMOUNT SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 4.1.1, ANY SPECULATIVE, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, COLLATERAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES OR 
FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFITS SUFFERED OR CLAIMED TO HA VE BEEN SUFFERED BY 
BUYER. 

4.1.2 WAIVER OF RIGHTS. SELLER AND BUYER EACH 
ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT SELLER WOULD NOT HAVE ENTERED INTO 
THIS AGREEMENT IF SELLER WERE TO BE LIABLE TO BUYER FOR ANY 
MONETARY DAMAGES, MONETARY RECOVERY OR ANY REMEDY DURING THE 
CONTINUANCE OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY SELLER, 
OTHER THAN SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR TERMINATION 
OF THIS AGREEMENT AND PAYMENT OF THE AMOUNT SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE "(2)" 
OF SECTION 4.1.1. ACCORDINGLY, SELLER AND BUYER AGREE THAT THE 
REMEDIES SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 4.1.1 ARE REASONABLE 
AND SHALL BE BUYER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS AND REMEDIES DURING 
THE CONTINUANCE OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY 
SELLER. BUYER WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO PURSUE ANY REMEDY OR DAMAGES 
AGAINST SELLER ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OTHER 
THAN THOSE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN SECTION 4.1.1. 

4.1.3 STATE CIVIL CODE SECTION 1542 WAIVER. BUYER 
ACKNOWLEDGES THE PROTECTIONS OF STATE CIVIL CODE SECTION 1542 
REGARDING THE WAIVERS AND RELEASES CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION 4.1, 
WHICH CIVIL CODE SECTION READS AS FOLLOWS: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS 
WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT 
TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF 

-13
65002.00236\8686008.6 



EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM 
OR HER MUST HAVE MA TERIALL Y AFFECTED HIS OR 
HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR. 

4.1.4 ACKNOWLEDGMENT. BY INITIALING BELOW, BUYER 
KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES THE PROVISIONS OF STATE CIVIL 
CODE SECTION 1542 AND ALL OTHER STATUTES AND JUDICIAL DECISIONS 
(WHETHER STATE OR FEDERAL) OF SIMILAR EFFECT SOLELY REGARDING THE 
WAIVERS AND RELEASES CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION 4.1. 

Initials of Authorized 

Buyer Representative(s) 


4.1.5 STATEMENT OF INTENT. STATE CIVIL CODE SECTION 1542 
NOTWITHSTANDING, IT IS THE INTENTION OF BUYER TO BE BOUND BY THE 
LIMITATIONS ON DAMAGES AND REMEDIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 4.1, AND 
BUYER HEREBY RELEASES ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AGAINST SELLER FOR 
MONETARY DAMAGES, MONETARY RECOVERY OR OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE 
RELIEF RELATED TO ANY EVENT OF DEFAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY 
SELLER, EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION 4.1, WHETHER OR 
NOT ANY SUCH RELEASED CLAIMS WERE KNOWN OR UNKNOWN TO BUYER AS 
OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE. 

4.2 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES TO SELLER. IF THE CLOSE OF ESCROW DOES 
NOT OCCUR ON OR BEFORE THE ESCROW CLOSING DATE DUE TO BUYER'S 
DEFAULT, THEN SELLER SHALL RETAIN THE INITIAL DEPOSIT, AS LIQUIDATED 
DAMAGES. THE AMOUNT OF THE INITIAL DEPOSIT IS THE REASONABLE 
ESTIMATE BY THE PARTIES OF THE DAMAGES SELLER WOULD SUFFER FROM 
SUCH DEF AUL T, IT BEING AGREED THAT IT IS EXTREMELY DIFFICULT, IF NOT 
IMPOSSIBLE AND IMPRACTICABLE, TO FIX THE EXACT AMOUNT OF DAMAGE 
THAT WOULD BE INCURRED BY SELLER AS A RESULT OF SUCH DEFAULT BY 
BUYER. UPON SUCH A DEFAULT BY BUYER, ESCROW SHALL BE CANCELED AND 
THE PARTIES SHALL PROCEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION Error! Reference 
source not found •. IN ADDITION, IF ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE INITIAL DEPOSIT 
HAS BEEN DEPOSITED INTO ESCROW BY BUYER, ESCROW AGENT IS HEREBY 
IRREVOCABL Y INSTRUCTED BY BUYER AND SELLER TO DISBURSE THE INITIAL 
DEPOSIT TO SELLER AS LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR BUYER'S DEFAULT UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT AND FAILURE TO COMPLETE THE PURCHASE OF THE 
PREMISES, PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 1671, ET. SEQ. 

4.3 Legal Actions. Either Party may institute legal action, at law or in equity, to 
enforce or interpret the rights or obligations of the Parties under this Agreement or recover 
damages, subject to the provisions of Section 4.1 or Section 4.2. as applicable. 

4.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative. Except as otherwise expressly stated in this 
Agreement, the rights and remedies of the Parties set forth in this Agreement are cumulative and 
the exercise by either Party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the 

-14
65002.00236\8686008.6 



exercise by such Party, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the 
same Default or the same rights or remedies for any other Default by the other Party. 

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

5.1 Notices, Demands and Communications Between the Parties. Any and all 
Notices submitted by one Party to another Party pursuant to or as required by this Agreement 
shall be proper, if in writing and sent by messenger for immediate personal delivery, nationally 
recognized overnight (one Business Day) delivery service (Le., United Parcel Service, Federal 
Express, etc.) or by registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, to the address of the recipient Party, as designated below in this Section 5.1. Notices 
may be sent in the same manner to such other addresses as either Party may from time to time 
designate by Notice in accordance with this Section 5.1. Notice shall be deemed received by the 
addressee, regardless of whether or when any return receipt is received by the sender or the date 
set forth on such return receipt, on the day that the Notice is sent by messenger for immediate 
personal delivery, one Business Day after delivery to a nationally recognized overnight delivery 
service or three (3) calendar days after the Notice is placed in the United States mail in 
accordance with this Section 5.1. Any attorney representing a Party may give any Notice on 
behalf of such Party. The Notice addresses for the Parties, as of the Effective Date, are as 
follows: 

To Buyer: 	 At the address listed as Buyer's Address 
on page 1 of this Agreement 

To Seller: 	 City ofCovina 

125 E. College 

Covina, CA 

Atten: City Manager 


With a copy to: 	 Best Best & Krieger LLP 
18101 Von Karman Ave. 
Irvine, CA 92612 
Attn: Elizabeth Wagner Hull 

5.2 Relationship of Parties. The Parties each intend and agree that Seller and Buyer 
are independent contracting entities and do not intend by this Agreement to create any 
partnership, joint venture or similar business arrangement, relationship or association between 
them. 

5.3 Calculation of Time Periods. Unless otherwise specified, all references to time 
periods in this Agreement measured in days shall be to consecutive calendar days, all references 
to time periods in this Agreement measured in months shall be to consecutive calendar months 
and all references to time periods in this Agreement measured in years shall be to consecutive 
calendar years. Any reference to Business Days in this Agreement shall mean consecutive 
Business Days. 

-15
65002.00236\8686008.6 



5.4 Governing Law. The procedural and substantive laws of the State shall govern 
the interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement, without application of conflicts of laws 
principles or statutes. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is entered into, is 
to be fully performed in and relates to real property located in the County. All legal actions 
arising from this Agreement shall be filed in the Superior Court of the State in and for the 
County or in the United States District Court with jurisdiction in the County. 

5.5 Unavoidable Delay; Extension of Time of Performance. Performance by either 
Party under this Agreement shall not be deemed or considered to be in Default, where any such 
Default is due to the occurrence of an Unavoidable Delay. Any Party claiming an Unavoidable 
Delay shall Notify the other Party: (a) within twenty (20) days after such Party knows of any 
such Unavoidable Delay; and (b) within twenty (20) days after such Unavoidable Delay ceases to 
exist. The extension of time for performance under this Agreement resulting from the 
occurrence of an Unavoidable Delay shall commence on the date of occurrence of the condition 
causing the Unavoidable Delay and shall in no event be longer than ninety (90) days after written 
notice is received by a Party from the other Party of the occurrence of such an Unavoidable 
Delay; provided, however, that failure to perform by a Party due to the occurrence of an 
Unavoidable Delay shall not constitute a breach or Default of this Agreement. Notice of an 
Unavoidable Delay must describe the Unavoidable Delay in reasonable detail. The Party 
claiming an extension of time to perform due to an Unavoidable Delay shall exercise 
commercially reasonable efforts to cure the condition causing the Unavoidable Delay, within a 
reasonable time. 

5.6 Real Estate Commissions. Seller shall not be liable for any real estate 
commissions, brokerage fees or finder fees that may arise from or be related to this Agreement. 
Buyer shall pay any fees or commissions or other expenses related to its retention or employment 
ofreal estate brokers, agents or other professionals. 

5.7 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is 
intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any Person 
other than the Parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns, nor is anything in 
this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge any obligation of any Third Person to any Party 
or give any Third Person any right of subrogation or action over or against any Party. 

5.8 Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and 
assigns. 

5.9 Time Declared to be of the Essence. As to the performance of any obligation 
under this Agreement of which time is a component, the performance of such obligation within 
the time specified is of the essence. 

5.10 Entire Agreement. This Agreement integrates all of the terms and conditions 
mentioned in this Agreement or incidental to this Agreement, and supersedes all negotiations or 
previous agreements between the Parties with respect to the Premises. 

-16
65002.00236\8686008.6 



5.11 Waivers and Amendments. All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must 
be in writing and signed by the authorized representative(s) of the Party making the waiver. 
Failure to insist on anyone occasion upon strict compliance with any term, covenant, condition, 
restriction or agreement contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such term, 
covenant, condition, restriction or agreement, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any 
rights or powers under this Agreement, at anyone time or more times, be deemed a waiver or 
relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or times. All amendments to this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by the authorized representative(s) of both Seller and 
Buyer. 

5.12 Survival of Agreement. All of the proVISIOns of this Agreement shall be 
applicable to any dispute between the Parties arising from this Agreement, whether prior to or 
following expiration or termination of this Agreement, until any such dispute is finally and 
completely resolved between the Parties, either by written settlement, entry of a non-appealable 
judgment or expiration of all applicable statutory limitations periods and all terms and conditions 
of this Agreement relating to dispute resolution, indemnity or limitations on damages or 
remedies shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

5.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterpart originals 
each of which is deemed to be an original and all ofwhich shall constitute one agreement. 

5.14 Facsimile or Electronic Signatures. Signatures delivered by facsimile or 
electronically shall be binding as originals upon the Party so signing and delivering; provided, 
however, that original signature(s) of each Party shall be required for each document to be 
recorded. 

[Signatures on following page] 

-17
65002.00236\8686008.6 



------------

--------------

--------------

SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 


REAL PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND JOINT ESCROW 

INSTRUCTIONS 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed and entered into this 
Agreement by and through the signatures of their respective authorized representative(s) as 
follow: 
SELLER: BUYER: 

CITY OF COVINA, 
a municipal corporation 

By:._____________ 

Name: 
By:_____________ 

Title: 

Attest: By:_____________ 

Name: 
By:_____________ 

City Clerk Title:_____________ 

Approved as to form: 

Best Best & Krieger LLP 

City Attorney 

-18
65002.00236\8686008.6 



EXHIBIT A 

TO 


REAL PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND JOINT ESCROW 

INSTRUCTIONS 


Premises Legal Description 


EXHIBIT A 
65002.00236\8686008.6 



EXHIBITB 

TO 


REAL PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND JOINT 

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 


Grant Deed 


EXHIBIT 2 
65002.00236\8686008.6 



-------

-------------------------------

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Attention: 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 
Exempt from Recording Fees Government Code section 27383 

GRANT DEED 

The undersigned declares: 

Documentary Transfer Tax is: 

County of Los Angeles; City of Covina 
Assessor's Parcel Nos.: [SEE EXHIBIT "I"] 
o computed on full value of interest or property conveyed, or 
o computed on full value of liens or encumbrances remaining at time of 

sale. 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which IS hereby 
acknowledged, 

City of Covina, California ("Grantor"), 

hereby grants to 

("Grantee"), 

that certain real property legally described in Exhibit "1" attached to and by this reference 
incorporated into this Grant Deed, subject to: 

1. Real property taxes and assessments, not delinquent. 

2. Covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, exceptions, reservations, 
rights, rights-of-way and other matters ofrecord. 

Dmed: 	____________ CITY OF COVINA, CALFORNIA, a public 
municipal corporation 

By:_____________ 

65002.00236\8686008.6 	 -3



EXHIBIT "I" 

TO 


GRANT DEED 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -4



EXHIBITD 


WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN AND STORMWATER BMP 

MAINTENANCE AND RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 


65002.00236\8686008.6 -5



WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN AND STORMWATER BMP 
MAINTENANCE AND RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

THIS WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN AND 
STORMWATER BMP MAINTENANCE AND RIGHT OF ENTRY 
AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into in the City of Covina, 
California, this day of 20 by and between 
__________,_ hereinafter referred to as "Lessee" and the City of 
Covina ("City"), a municipal corporation. This Agreement applies to property located at _ 
________, APN No. in the County of Los Angeles, State 
ofCalifornia. The Agreement is subject to the following recitals: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City owns real property ("Property") in the City of 
Covina, County of Los Angeles, State of California, more specifically described in 
Exhibit "A", which exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; 

WHEREAS, Lessee has entered into that certain 
____________ agreement with the City, dated , 20 
("Lease") whereby the City has leased the Property to Lessee in order to operate a 
development project known as located within the 
Property C"Project"); and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the City's regulatory approval of the 
Project and also as a condition of the Lease, the City required the Project to employ Best 
Management Practices, hereinafter referred to as "BMPs," to minimize pollutants in 
urban runoff; 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with the City'S regulatory approval and 
the Lease, Lessee has chosen to install and/or implement BMPs as described in the Water 
Quality Management Plan, on file with the City, hereinafter referred to as "WQMP", to 
minimize pollutants in urban runoff and to minimize other adverse impacts of urban 
runoff; 

WHEREAS, the WQMP has been certified by the Lessee and reviewed 
and approved by the City; 

WHEREAS, the BMPs, as a condition of the City's regulatory approval 
of the Project and of the Lease, are the sole responsibility of the Lessee in accordance 
with the tenns of this Agreement; and 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -6



WHEREAS, the Lessee is aware that periodic and continuous 
maintenance, including, but not necessarily limited to, filter material replacement and 
sediment removal, is required to assure peak performance of all BMPs in the WQMP and 
that, furthermore, such maintenance activity will require compliance with all local, State, 
or Federal laws and regulations, including those pertaining to confined space and waste 
disposal methods, in effect at the time such maintenance occurs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually stipulated and agreed as follows: 

1. 	 Responsibility for Operation and Maintenance of BMPs: Lessee shall diligently 
maintain all BMPs in a manner assuring peak performance at all times. Lessee 
shall conduct a maintenance inspection of all Structural and Treatment Control 
BMP's on the Property at least once per year and retain documentation of such 
inspection. Said maintenance inspection must verify the legibility of all required 
stencils and signs and Lessee shall repaint and label as necessary. All reasonable 
precautions shall be exercised by Lessee and Lessee's representative or contractor 
in the removal and extraction of any material(s) from the BMPs and the ultimate 
disposal of the material(s) in a manner consistent with all relevant laws and 
regulations in effect at the time. As may be requested from time to time by the 
City, the Lessee shall provide the City with documentation pertaining to any and 
all BMP inspections and/or identifying the material(s) removed, the quantity, and 
disposal destination. 

2. 	 Right of Access: Lessee hereby provides the City or City's designee complete 
access, of any duration, to the BMPs and their immediate vicinity at any time, 
upon reasonable notice, or in the event of emergency, as determined by City's 
Director of Public Works ("Director"), upon no advance notice, for the purpose of 
inspection, sampling, testing of the BMPs, and in case of emergency, to undertake, 
in the City's sole discretion, necessary repairs or other preventative measures at 
Lessee's expense as provided in paragraph 3 below. City shall make every effort 
at all times to minimize or avoid interference with Lessee's use of the Property. 

3. 	 City Maintenance at Lessee's Expense: In the event Lessee, or its successors, 
sublessees or assigns, fails to accomplish the necessary maintenance contemplated 
by this Agreement, within five (5) calendar days after being given written notice 
by the City, or in the event of emergency, as determined by the Director, after 24 
hours written notice, the City is hereby authorized to cause any maintenance 
necessary to be done and charge the entire cost and expense to the Lessee or 
Lessee's successors, sublessees or assigns, including administrative costs, 
attorneys fees and interest thereon at the maximum rate authorized by the Civil 
Code from the date of the notice of expense until paid in full. Nothing in this 
section or this Agreement creates an obligation by the City to maintain or repair 
any BMP, nor does this section prohibit the City from pursuing other legal 
recourse against Lessee, including those remedies provided for in the Lease. 

65002.00236\8686008.6 	 -7



4. 	 Recording: This Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Los 
Angeles County, California, at the expense of the Lessee and shall constitute 
notice to all successors and assigns of Lessee of the obligation herein set forth. 

5. 	 Attorney's Fees: In event of legal action occasioned by any default or action of 
either Party to this Agreement, or its successors or assigns, the defaulting Party 
and its successors or assigns agree(s) to pay all costs incurred by the non
defaulting Party in enforcing the tenns of this Agreement, including reasonable 
attorney's fees and costs. 

6. 	 Binding on Successors: The obligations herein undertaken shall be binding upon 
the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties hereto. 
The tenn "Lessee" shall include not only the present Lessee, but also its heirs, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Lessee shall notify any 
successor, assign, sublessee, or occupant in possession of all or part of the 
Property about the existence of this Agreement. Lessee shall provide such notice 
prior to such successor, assign, sublessee or occupant obtaining any interest in all 
or part of the Property. Lessee shall provide a copy of such notice to the City at 
the same time such notice is provided to the successor, assign, sublessee, or 
occupant in possession. 

7. 	 Indemnity and Insurance: The Lessee, its heirs, successors, executors, 
administrators and assigns agree to defend, indemnify and holds hannless the 
City, its officials, employees and its authorized agents from any and all damages, 
accidents, casualties, occurrences or claims which might arise or be asserted 
against the City and which are in any way connected with the construction, 
operation, presence, existence or maintenance of the BMP by the Lessee, or from 
any personal injury or property damage that may result from the City or other 
public entities entering the Property under Sections 2 or 3 of this Agreement 
except those damages, accidents, casualties, occurrences or claims or failure to act 
resulting from the City's negligence or willful misconduct. The Lessee shall 
maintain liability insurance specifically covering the BMP and City. The City 
shall specify amount of coverage and require proof of insurance to be provided to 
City on a regular basis as detennined by the City. 

8. 	 Time of the Essence: Time is of the essence in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

9. 	 Notice: Any notice to a party required or called for in this Agreement shall be 
served in person, or by deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid or 
when sent by facsimile, to the address set forth below. Notice(s) shall be deemed 
effective, when sent by facsimile or by U.S. mail, upon receipt, or seventy-two 
(72) hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail. whichever is earlier. A party may change 
a notice address only by providing written notice thereofto the other party. 

65002,00236\8686008,6 	 -8



---------------------

---------------------

---------------------

IF TO CITY: IF TO LESSEE: 


City of Covina 
125 E. College Street 
Covina, CA 91723 

Attn: 

Telephone: _________________ 

Fax: 


With a copy to: 

Attn: _____________________ 
Telephone: _________________ 
Fax: 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their 
signatures as of the date first written above. 
CITY: LESSEE: 

By:______________________ By:_____________________ 
Name 

Its:_____________________ Title:_____________________ 

ATTEST: OWNER: 

City Clerk Date 

By:_____________________ 

Name 
Title:-------------------- 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

NOTARIES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

65002.00236\8686008.6 -9



State of California 	 ) CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
) ss. 

County of Los Angeles ) 

On _____________________________________________________________ 

(dare),beforeme,--------------------------------~(~he=r=e~in=s=e=rt~n=am==e~an==d~t=it=le~o=f~ili==e~o=ffi=lc=e~Q"
personally appeared. ___________________________________________________________ 

who proved to me on ilie basis of satisfactory evidence to be ilie person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to 
ilie wiiliin instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in hislher/their auiliorized 
capacity(ies), and that by hislher/ilieir signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf 
of which ilie person(s) acted, executed ilie instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of ilie State of California iliat ilie 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature 	 [Seal] 

EXHIBIT 10 
65002.00236\8686008.6 



State of California 	 ) CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
) ss. 

County of Los Angeles ) 

On _____________________________________________________________ 

(date), before me, ________________________________-->.(h=e=r=e...=in=s=e=rt'-"n=am=e:;...:an=d:....:t=it=le'-'o=f;....;::t=he.:.....;:;:;.o=ffi=lc=e""",r), 
personally appeared __________________________________________________________ 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to 
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in hislher/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by hislher/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf 
ofwhich the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature 	 [Seal] 

65002.00236\8686008.6 	 EXHmITC 



EXHIBIT A 

(Legal description) 


65002.00236\8686008.6 -2



RESOLUTION NO. 15-7320 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINA 

APPROVING AN AMENDED AND RESTATED 


OPERATING COVENANT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINA 


AND COVINA MJL, LLC FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

633-635 SOUTH CITRUS AVENUE, COVINA 


WHEREAS, the City of Covina owns that certain real property located at 633-635 South Citrus 
Avenue, in the City of Covina, California (APN 8453-001-900 & 8453-001-906) ("Property"); 
and 

WHEREAS, Covina MJL, LLC, doing business as Sage Automotive Group ("MJL, LLC"), 
desires to develop a car dealership ("Project") on the Property, which is currently occupied by an 
existing 21,101 square-foot building that supports office space, customer areas, and an on-site 
car washing facility for Enterprise Rent-A-Car, as well as an approximately 82,210 square-foot 
parking lot; and 

WHEREAS, the Project would convert the Property to a car dealership and enlarge the existing 
building by approximately 8,777 square feet and increase the building height by approximately 6 
feet, with construction in two phases: Phase 1 would involve construction and operation of a 
temporary dealership and, while dealership activities are operating from the temporary 
structures, Phase 2 would involve construction to prepare the existing commercial building for 
use as a permanent dealership would begin; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21,2014, the City adopted Resolution No. 14-7299 approving a Lease 
With Option To Purchase Agreement (635 S. Citrus Avenue) between City and MJL, LLC 
("Lease"), in which City agrees to lease the Property, with an option to purchase the Property, to 
MJL, LLC so that it could build and operate the Project on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21,2014, the City also adopted Resolution No. 14-7300 approving an 
Operating Covenant Agreement (Sage Auto Group) between City and MJL, LLC ("Original 
OCA") to assist MJL, LLC with the construction and operation of the Project to the Property for 
a period of 30 years; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Government Code Section 53083, the City prepared an Economic 
Development Report regarding the economic development subsidy provided under the Lease to 
the MJL, LLC in the form of the first six months of the Lease rent-free, and the economic 
development subsidy provided under the Original OCA to MJL, LLC in the form of twenty-five 
percent (25%) ofall sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is generated from the 
Project, not to exceed $20,000,000, and after providing the requisite noticed public hearing, 
accepted the Economic Development Report on October 21,2014 concurrently with its approval 
of the Lease and Original OCA; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of the Lease, Original OCA and Economic 
Development Report, the City determined that the Economic Development Report and Original 

EXHIBIT C, 27 Pages65002.00115\9492122.2 



OCA inaccurately calculated the economic development subsidy provided under the Original 
OCA, and that the economic development subsidy under the Original OCA should instead be 
twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue in excess of $50 million per year that is 
generated from the Project, not to exceed $3,750,000; and 

WHEREAS, City and MJL, LLC have negotiated an Amended and Restated Operating 
Covenant Agreement ("OCA"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and City staff 
has prepared a new Economic Development Report to correct this inaccurate calculation as well 
as provide additional detail to the Economic Development Report regarding the increased 
property tax revenue, additional public benefits and anticipated jobs that will result from the 
Lease and OCA; and 

WHEREAS, the City reaffirms its determination that the Lease and OCA will result in 
substantial benefits to the City and its citizens in the way of the creation of significant new 
numbers of employment opportunities, property tax values, sales tax revenues and other ancillary 
benefits; and 

WHEREAS, the City additionally reaffirms its determination that the Project on the Property 
serves the additional public purpose of fostering a business and civic environment that may 
attract additional businesses and investment in the community due to the availability of the 
increased public and private services and economic activity resulting therefrom; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will revitalize and redevelop a site that has been underutilized for many 
years; and 

WHEREAS, based on information provided by City staff, and other such written and oral 
evidence as presented to the City, the City reaffirms its prior findings and determination that the 
Project on the Property is reasonably related to a legitimate governmental purpose in that the 
Project will assist the City in its goal of furthering the development of the community; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 53083, the City provided the 
Economic Development Report on its website and held a noticed public hearing on February 17, 
2015 to consider all written and oral comments on the OCA; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized pursuant to California Constitution Article XI, Section 7 to 
convey the Property for economic development purposes; and 

WHEREAS, all other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF COVINA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and are 
incorporated herein and made an operative part ofthis Resolution. 

Section 2. CEQA. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (pub. Res. 
Code, § 21000 et seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines (CaL Code Regs, tit. 14 § 15000 et seq.), 
the City is the lead agency for the proposed Project. In the City's role as the lead agency under 

65002.00115\9492122.2 



CEQA, City staff reviewed the Project and prepared an Initial Study pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15063. On the basis of the Initial Study, the City concluded that the Project 
will not have significant impacts on the environment with implementation of mitigation and 
prepared a Mitigated Negative Declaration ("MND"). After completion of all legal prerequisites 
for the approval of the MND, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-7298 finding that the 
MND and Initial Study contain a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts 
associated with the Project and adopting the MND. The City Council further finds that no 
changes in the Project, changes in circumstances under which the Project is being undertaken, or 
significant infonnation has arisen that would result in new significant impacts, and that 
consequently no subsequent CEQA document under State CEQA Guidelines section 15162 need 
be prepared. 

Section 3. Authorization. The City Council finds and detennines that the OCA is authorized by 
law and constitutes a valid and binding agreement between City and MJL, LLC. 

Section 4. AWroval. The City Council hereby approves the OCA in substantially the fonn 
attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager, 
with the concurrence of the City Attorney, to execute and deliver on behalf of the City the OCA 
and such other documents and instruments as may be necessary or convenient in furtherance of 
the actions authorized in this Resolution. 

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution is held invalid, the remainder of this 
Resolution shall not be affected by such invalidity, and the provisions of this Resolution are 
severable. 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of February, 2015. 

Peggy Delach, Mayor 
City of Covina 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk City Attorney 

Exhibit: A - Amended and Restated Operating Covenant Agreement 

65002.00115\9492122.2 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) 
CITY OF COVINA ) 

I, Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk for the City of Covina do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Covina, County of Los Angeles, State of California, held on the 17th day of February, 
2015 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTENTIONS: 

Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk 

65002.00115\9492122.2 



EXHIBIT"A" 


AMENDED AND RESTATED 

OPERATING COVENANT AGREEMENT 


GSOO2.()()11S\9492122.2 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City of Covina 
125 E. College Street 
Covina, California 91723-2199 
Attn: City Manager 

Space above line for Recorder's use only 
Exempt from recording fees per Govt. Code § 27383 
Exempt from Documentary Transfer Tax per Rev. & 
Tax. Code § 11911 

CITY OF COVINA 

AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING COVENANT AGREEMENT 
(Sage Auto Group) 

This Amended and Restated Operating Covenant Agreement (Sage Auto Group) 
("Covenant Agreement") is dated February 17,2015, for reference purposes only and is entered 
into by and between the CITY OF COVINA, a California municipal corporation ("City"), and 
COVINA MJL, LLC, a California limited liability company ("Tenant"). City and Tenant enter 
into this Covenant Agreement with reference to the following recited facts (each a "Recital"): 

RECITALS 

A. Tenant leases property located 633-635 S. Citrus Ave., in the City of Covina, 
California ("Property"), on which Tenant intends to build an automobile dealership and service 
businesses more commonly referred to as Sage Covina Chevrolet (the "Business"). 

B. The City has determined that Tenant's lease of the Property and development of 
the Business to the Property would result in substantial benefits to the City and its citizens 
including, without limitation, the creation of significant new numbers of employment 
opportunities, property tax revenues, sales tax revenues and other ancillary benefits. 
Accordingly, the City has also determined that its entry into this Covenant Agreement serves a 
significant public purpose, while providing only incidental benefits to a private party. 

C. As an incentive for the development and operation of the Business within the 
City, Tenant has requested financial assistance from the City for a period of up to thirty (30) 
years in an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of all sales tax revenue received by the 
City from sales over $50 million generated on the Property, subject to the limitations set forth in 
this Covenant Agreement. 

D. Tenant has been awarded a new sales point from General Motors for the opening 
of the Business and is not relocating a previously operated dealership as part of this 
development. 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



E. Tenant and City previously entered into an Operating Covenant Agreement, dated 
October 21, 2014 ("Original OCA"). Following the adoption of the Original OCA, Tenant 
refined the Business' projected revenue as it continued to develop and determined that the 
Business is anticipated to generate an annual revenue of approximately Eighty Million Dollars 
($80,000,000). Based on this projection, the maximum amount of Covenant Payments that 
Tenant could receive would not reach the original Covenant Payment cap of Twenty Million 
Dollars ($20,000,000). Instead, the City will annually receive all sales tax revenue for the first 
Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000) in revenue generated by the Business, equal to Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000). Thereafter, Tenant and City will split the sales tax revenue 
generated by the remaining revenue of the Business, in the amount of approximately Thirty 
Million Dollars ($30,000,000), which would result in approximately Three Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($300,000) of sales tax revenue, with the City receiving seventy-five percent (75%), 
equal to approximately Two Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000) and Tenant 
receiving Twenty-Five percent (25%), equal to approximately Seventy Five Thousand Dollars 
($75,000). Based on these projections it is anticipated that Tenant will receive approximately 
Two Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($2,250,000) over the thirty (30) year 
Covenant Period. Prior to adoption of the Original OCA, Tenant and City staff agreed that the 
Covenant Payment cap would be Three Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($3,750,000). Due to a clerical error, this revised cap was not memorialized in the Original 
OCA. 

F. The purpose of this Covenant Agreement is to amend and restate the Original 
OCA with the correct Covenant Payment cap of Three Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($3,750,000). 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PROMISES AND 
COVENANTS SET FORTH IN THIS COVENANT AGREEMENT, CITY AND TENANT 
AGREE, AS FOLLOWS: 

TERMS 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE; PARTIES; DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Effective Date of Covenant Agreement. This Covenant Agreement will not 
become effective until the date ("Effective Date") on which all of the following are true: 

1.1.1 This Covenant Agreement has been approved and executed by the 
appropriate authorities of Tenant, as defined herein, and delivered to the City; 

1.1.2 Following all legally required notices and hearings, this Covenant 
Agreement has been approved by the City Council; and 

1.1.3 This Covenant Agreement has been executed by the appropriate 
authorities ofthe City and delivered to Tenant. 

The Effective Date shall be confirmed in writing by the parties. 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



If all of the foregoing conditions precedent have not been satisfied by November 21, 
2014, then this Covenant Agreement may not thereafter become effective and any prior 
signatures and approvals of the Parties will be deemed void and of no force or effect, unless the 
date set forth in this paragraph is extended by written agreement of the representatives of Tenant 
and City. 

1.2 Parties to Covenant Agreement. 

1.2.1 The City. Notices shall be sent to the City as follows: 

To the City: 	 City of Covina 
Attn: City Manager 
125 East College Street 
Covina, CA 91723 

With a copy to: 	 Best Best & Krieger LLP 
Attn: Covina City Attorney 
18101 Von Karman Ave, Suite 1000 
Irvine, CA 92612 

1.2.1.1 The City represents and warrants to Tenant that, to the City's 
actual current knowledge: 

(a) The City is a public body, corporate and politic, 
exercising governmental functions and powers and organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of California; 

(b) The City has taken all actions required by law to 
approve the execution of this Covenant Agreement; 

(c) The City's entry into this Covenant Agreement and/or 
the performance of the City's obligations under this Covenant Agreement does not violate any 
contract, agreement or other legal obligation of the City; 

(d) The City'S entry into this Covenant Agreement and/or 
the performance of the City's obligations under this Covenant Agreement does not constitute a 
violation ofany state or federal statute or judicial decision to which the City is subject; 

(e) There are no pending lawsuits or other actions or 
proceedings which would prevent or impair the timely performance of the City's obligations 
under this Covenant Agreement; 

(t) The City has the legal right, power and authority to enter 
into this Covenant Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and the 
execution, delivery and performance of this Covenant Agreement has been duly authorized and 
no other action by the City is requisite to the valid and binding execution, delivery and 
performance of this Covenant Agreement, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein; and 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



(g) The individual executing this Covenant Agreement is 
authorized to execute this Covenant Agreement on behalf of the City. 

1.2.1.2 The representations and warranties set forth above are material 
consideration to Tenant and the City acknowledges that Tenant is relying upon the 
representations set forth above in undertaking Tenant's obligations set forth in this Covenant 
Agreement. 

1.2.1.3 As used in this Covenant Agreement, the term "City's actual 
current knowledge" shall mean, and shall be limited to, the actual current knowledge of the City 
Manager as of the Effective Date, without having undertaken any independent inquiry or 
investigation for the purpose of making such representation or warranty and without any duty of 
inquiry or investigation. 

1.2.1.4 All of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Covenant 
Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the City and its nominees, 
successors and assigns. 

1.2.2 Tenant. Notices shall be sent to Tenant as follows: 

To Tenant: 	 Covina MJL, LLC 
812 So. Brand 
Glendale, CA 91204 
Atten: Joseph Sage 

With copies to: 	 Feldman Berman Schwartz, LLP 
20750 Ventura Boulevard, Ste. 210 
Woodland Hills, CA 91364 
Atten: Craig Berman 

1.2.2.1 Tenant represents and warrants to the City that, to its actual 
current knowledge: 

(a) Tenant is a duly formed California limited liability 
company, qualified and in good standing to do business under the laws of the State of California; 

(b) The individual(s) executing this Covenant Agreement 
is/are authorized to execute this Covenant Agreement on behalf of Tenant; 

(c) Tenant has taken all actions required by law to approve 
the execution of this Covenant Agreement; 

(d) Tenant's entry into this Covenant Agreement and/or the 
performance of its obligations under this Covenant Agreement does not violate any contract, 
agreement or other legal obligation ofTenant; 

(e) Tenant's entry into this Covenant Agreement and/or the 
performance of its obligations under this Covenant Agreement does not constitute a violation of 
any state or federal statute or judicial decision to which Tenant is subject; 
65002.00115\9341876.5 



(f) There are no pending lawsuits or other actions or 
proceedings which would prevent or impair the timely performance of Tenant's obligations 
under this Covenant Agreement; 

(g) Tenant has the legal right, power and authority to enter 
into this Covenant Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and the 
execution, delivery and performance of this Covenant Agreement have been duly authorized and 
no other action by Tenant is requisite to the valid and binding execution, delivery and 
performance of this Covenant Agreement, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein; and 

(b) Tenant has executed a lease agreement for the Property 
for a period of no less than Thirty (30) years, a copy of which has been provided to the City. 
Tenant and City acknowledge that the lease agreement for the Property includes an option to 
purchase the Property. 

1.2.2.2 The representations and warranties set forth herein are material 
consideration to the City and Tenant acknowledges that the City is relying upon the 
representations set forth above in undertaking the City's obligations set forth above. 

1.2.2.3 As used in this Covenant Agreement, the term "actual current 
knowledge of Tenant" shall mean, and shall be limited to, the actual current knowledge of 
Joseph Sage, as of the Effective Date, without having undertaken any independent inquiry or 
investigation for the purpose of making such representation or warranty and without any duty of 
inquiry or investigation. 

1.2.2.4 All of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Covenant 
Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of Tenant and its permitted 
nominees, successors and assigns. Wherever the term "Tenant" is used herein, such term shall 
include any permitted nominee, assignee, successor, or subtenant of Tenant. 

1.2.2.5 The qualifications and identity of Joseph Sage and Covina MJL, 
LLC. are of particular concern to the City, and it is because of such qualifications and identity 
that the City has entered into this Covenant Agreement with Covina MJL, LLC. No voluntary or 
involuntary successor-in-interest of Covina MJL, LLC shall acquire any rights or powers under 
this Covenant Agreement without the City's prior written consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonable withheld or delayed. No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest of the 
Tenant shall acquire any rights or powers under this Agreement except as expressly set forth 
herein. 

(a) Tenant shall not, except as permitted by this Agreement, 
assign or attempt to assign this Agreement or any right herein with respect to the Project, nor 
make any total or partial sale, transfer, conveyance or assignment of the whole or any part of the 
Property or the improvements thereon, without prior written approval of the City, which shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. Any attempted transfer that has not been so approved by City shall be 
void. Except as permitted below, transfers of any interest in the Tenant entity shall constitute a 
prohibited transfer hereunder. 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement 
to the contrary, City approval of an assignment of this Agreement or any interest herein shall not 
be required in connection with any of the following: 

(i) Any transfers among the principals of the 
Tenant entities so long as the existing principals thereof shall be and remain in management 
control of the Tenant entity with at least a fifty-one percent (51%) ownership or beneficial 
interest in the Tenant entity. 

(ii) The granting of temporary or 
permanent easements or permits to governmental or quasi-governmental agencies to facilitate the 
development of the Property, or any component thereof. 

(c) City consent will be granted if: 

(i) the proposed assignee/transferee expressly 
assumes, in writing, Tenant's obligations hereunder as to times following the effective date of 
the assignment or transfer; and 

(ii) the proposed assignee/transferee has 
demonstrated to the reasonable satisfaction of City that such person or entity has adequate 
financial capacity to fulfill all obligations of this Agreement. 

1.2.3 The City and Tenant are sometimes individually referred to as "Party" and 
collectively as "Parties." 

1.3 Definitions. 

1.3.1 "Base Amount" means the amount of sales tax generated by the Business 
operating on the Property and actually received by the City from the first $50 million of sales by 
the Business operating on the Property during each calendar year. 

1.3.2 "Businesses" means the operation of Sage Covina Chevrolet on the 
Business Site as a permanent new and pre-owned automobile sales dealership with related 
service and parking and other ancillary functions, in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Covenant Agreement or such other car manufacturer or brand as may be consented to by the 
City, said City consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Business shall be operated 
pursuant to an agreement with General Motors, Inc., for sales and service of new and pre-owned 
automobiles, or pursuant to an agreement with another manufacturer of automobiles, which 
manufacturer has been approved by the City, in its reasonable discretion, in addition to the sale 
ofparts for such brand(s) ofautomobiles and related sales ofpre-owned automobiles. 

1.3.3 "Business Activities" means and refers to activities of Tenant on the 
Business Site, over the internet, or otherwise that result in the sale or lease of any tangible 
personal property (including, but not limited to, new and used automobiles) through the 
Businesses where such sale or lease is subject to sales or use tax pursuant to the Sales Tax Law. 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



1.3.4 "City" means the City of Covina, a California municipal corporation, and 
any nominee, assignee of, or successor to, its rights, powers and responsibilities. 

1.3.5 "Operating Year" means and refers to the twelve (12) month period 
starting on the Effective Date and each consecutive subsequent twelve (12) month period until 
the 30th anniversary of the Effective Date. Each Operating Year may be referred to in this 
Covenant Agreement in numerical succession as "Operating Year 1," "Operating Year 2" and so 
on up to "Operating Year 30." 

1.3.6 "Covenant Payment(s)" means those contingent payments to be made by 
the City to the Tenant pursuant to Section 2.2 ofthis Covenant Agreement for the purchase ofthe 
Covenants and Tenant's timely and faithful performance thereunder. 

1.3.7 "Covenants" means those covenants described in Section 2.1 herein. 

1.3.8 "Eligibility Period" means the period commencing as of the first (1st) 
day of Operating Year 1 and ending on the last day of Operating Year 30. 

1.3.9 "Liquidated Damages" means, for purposes of Section 2.77, as follows: 

1.3.9.1 If the breach occurs during Operating Years 1 through 10, an 
amount equal to sixty-six percent (66%) of the Covenant Payments paid to Tenant at any time 
prior to the Operating Year in which the breach occurs. 

1.3.9.2 If the breach occurs during Operating Years 11 through 30, an 
amount equal to thirty-three percent (33%) of the Covenant Payments paid to Tenant at any time 
prior to the Operating Year in which the breach occurs. 

1.3.10 "Penalty Assessments" means and refers to penalties, assessments, 
collection costs and other costs, fees or charges resulting from late or underpaid payments of 
Sales Tax and which are levied, assessed or otherwise collected from Tenant. 

1.3.11 "Project" means the construction of the Business on the Property. 

1.3.12 "Property" means that certain real property located at 633 635 S. Citrus 
Ave, Covina, California. 

1.3.13 "Sales Tax" means and refers to all sales and use taxes levied under the 
authority of the Sales Tax Law attributable to the Business Activities excluding that which is to 
be refunded to Tenant because of an overpayment ofsuch tax. 

1.3.14 "Sales Tax Law" means and refers to: (a) California Revenue and 
Taxation Code Section 7200 et seq., and any successor law thereto; (b) any legislation allowing 
City or other public agency with jurisdiction in City to levy any form of local Sales Tax on the 
operations of Tenant; and (c) regulations of the Board of Equalization ("BOE") and other 
binding rulings and interpretations relating to (a) and (b) of this Section 1.3.14. 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



1.3.15 "Sales Tax Revenues" means the net Sales Tax actually received by the 
City from the BOE pursuant to the application of the Sales Tax Law (as such statutes may 
hereafter be amended, substituted, replaced, re-numbered, moved or modified by any successor 
law) attributable to the Business Activities in a particular Operating Year. Sales Tax Revenues 
shall not include: (a) Penalty Assessments; (b) any Sales Tax levied by, collected for or allocated 
to the State of California, the County of Los Angeles, or a district or any entity (including an 
allocation to a statewide or countywide pool) other than City; (c) any administrative fee charged 
by the BOE; (d) any Sales Tax subject to any sharing, rebate, offset or other charge imposed 
pursuant to any applicable provision of federal, state or local (except City's) law, rule or 
regulation; (e) any Sales Tax attributable to any transaction not consummated within the 
Eligibility Period; or (f) any Sales Tax (or other funds measured by Sales Tax) required by the 
State of California to be paid over to another public entity (including the State) or set aside 
and/or pledged to a specific use other than for deposit into or payment from the City's general 
fund. 

1.3.16 "Tenant" means and refers to Covina MJL, LLC, a limited liability 
company, and its successors and assigns, cumulatively. 

2. 	 COVENANTS RUNNING WITH THE LAND; COVENANT PAYMENTS; 
REMEDIES FOR BREACH. 

2.1 	 Covenants Running with the Land. 

2.1.1 Operating and Use Covenant. Tenant covenants and agrees that, for a 
period of no less than Thirty (30) years following the Effective Date (unless terminated sooner 
pursuant to specific provisions of this Covenant Agreement), Tenant shall operate, or cause to be 
operated upon the Property, the Business Activities in a commercially reasonable business 
manner, consistent with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
Subject to Section 3.8, the Business Activities shall be operated in accordance with the 
reasonable and customary practices in surrounding communities. Tenant will operate, or cause 
to be operated, the Businesses in a commercially reasonable and prudent manner, with the 
objective of generating the greatest feasible amount of Sales Tax Revenues. Tenant's obligations 
pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence include, without limitation, the obligation to 
obtain or cause to be obtained all federal, state and 10ca1licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business and to advertise, market and promote the business in a commercially 
reasonable fashion, consistent with the objective of maximizing the amount of Sales Tax 
Revenues. For the term of this Operating Covenant, the Tenant may use the Property, or allow a 
third party to use the Property, only for the purposes of the operation of the Business Activities 
in accordance with this Covenant Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City 
Manager, in his or her sole and exclusive discretion. 

2.1.2 Covenant to Designate City as Point of Sale. Tenant covenants and 
agrees that, for the term of the Operating and Use Covenant as described in Section 2.1.1, Tenant 
shall consummate or cause to be consummated at the Business Site all taxable sales transactions 
resulting from the Business Activities and identify the City as such in all reports to the California 
State Board of Equalization ("BOE") in accordance with the Bradley-Bums Uniform Local Sales 
and Use Tax Law (Revenue and Taxation Code 7200, et seq.), as it may be amended or 

65002.001 15\9341876.5 



substituted. Tenant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all taxable sales transactions for 
Business Activities are consummated at the Business Site, consistent with all applicable statutory 
and BOE regulatory requirements applicable to the Business Activities and the designation of the 
City as the "point of sale" for all taxable sales occurring as a result of the Business Activities. 

2.1.3 Tenant's Additional Obligations Regarding Repairs and Alterations 
to the Property. Tenant covenants and agrees that, for the term of the Operating and Use 
Covenant as described in Section 2.1.1, the Tenant shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, the 
Property and the Businesses in good condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and free from 
the accumulation of trash or other debris and agrees to promptly remove, or cause the removal 
of, all graffiti upon the Property. Tenant shall also maintain or cause to be maintained the 
landscaping upon the Businesses and Property in a good condition. 

2.1.4 Covenant Against Solicitation and Acceptance of Economic Incentives 
During the Term of the Operating Use Covenant. Tenant covenants and agrees that, for the 
term of the Operating and Use Covenant as described in Section 2.1.1, Tenant will not directly or 
indirectly solicit or accept any "Financial Assistance" from any other public or private person or 
entity, if such Financial Assistance is given for the purpose of causing or would result in 
Tenant's breach of any of the Covenants. For purposes of this Section 2.1.4 the term "Financial 
Assistance" means any direct or indirect payment, subsidy, rebate, or other similar or dissimilar 
monetary or non-monetary benefit, including, without implied limitation, payment of land 
subsidies, relocation expenses, public fmancings, property or sales tax relief, rebates, exemptions 
or credits, relief from public improvement obligations, and payment for public improvements to 
or for the benefit of Tenant or any subtenant of Tenant. This Covenant shall not apply to 
financial incentives provided by General Motors related to the sale of individual car sales. 

2.1.5 Use of Property. Tenant covenants and agrees that the Property shall be 
put to no use other than those uses specified in the City's General Plan, the Specific Plan, zoning 
ordinances, and this Covenant Agreement, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
Nothing in this Section 2.1.5 shall limit, expand, modify or otherwise affect any right of the 
Tenant to continue any legal nonconforming use upon the Property following changes in the 
City's General Plan or zoning ordinances. 

2.2 Covenant Payments. 

2.2.1 Statement of Intent. The consideration to be paid to the Tenant in 
exchange for the Covenants and Tenant's performance of its obligations set forth in this 
Covenant Agreement, and subject to satisfaction of all conditions precedent thereto, shall consist 
of City's payment to the Tenant for each Operating Year during the Eligibility Period that the 
City receives Sales Tax Revenue, an amount equal to the sum of twenty-five percent (25%) of 
the Sales Tax Revenues received by the City in excess of the Base Amount for that Operating 
Year ("Covenant Payment"). Notwithstanding any other provision of this Covenant Agreement, 
the cumulative total of any and all Covenant Payments paid by the City pursuant to this 
Covenant Agreement shall not exceed Three Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($3,750,000). 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



2.2.2 City's Notice of Determination of Operating Year Sales Tax Revenues 
and Covenant Payment. Within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days following an 
Operating Year within the Eligibility Period, the City will detennine the Sales Tax Revenues 
applicable to that Operating Year and send the Covenant Payment due for that Operating Year to 
Tenant ("Notice ofDetennination"). 

2.3 Tenant's Notice of Appeal; Negotiation Period. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of law, including, without implied limitation, any statutes of limitation provided 
therefore in the California Government Code or the California Code of Civil Procedure, the 
City's detennination of each Covenant Payment shall be deemed final, conclusive, and non
appealable unless, within sixty (60) calendar days from the receipt of the Covenant Payment by 
Tenant, Tenant notifies the City in writing that Tenant appeals the Covenant Payment, which 
notice must specifically identifY the matter appealed and all of the bases for such appeal and 
include the following documentation: (i) certified copies of quarterly reports to the BOE which 
set forth the amount of sales tax paid to the BOE during the Operating Year in connection with 
Business Activities; (ii) any and all bills, invoices, schedules, vouchers, statements, receipts, 
cancelled checks, and any other documents evidencing the amount of sales tax paid from the 
Business Activities during such Operating Year; and (iii) any and all invoices, and inventory 
records for such Operating Year, certified as accurate and complete by an authorized official of 
the party submitting such records ("Notice of Appeal"). Any Covenant Payment that is not 
appealed in the manner and within the time limits set forth above shall be final and conclusive as 
against Tenant and all others claiming by or through Tenant. The provisions of this Section 2.3 
shall be strictly construed and Tenant waives, to the maximum legal extent, any statutory or 
judicially created right to institute any administrative or judicial proceeding to contest any matter 
set forth in a Notice of Appeal that is not timely appealed in strict accordance with this Section 
2.3. If Tenant files a timely Notice of Appeal with the City, the City and Tenant shall negotiate 
in good faith to resolve their dispute for a period of no less than thirty (30) calendar days 
("Negotiation Period"). If, by the end of the Negotiation Period, the City and Tenant are unable 
to resolve the dispute set forth in the Notice of Appeal, each of them may exercise any judicial 
remedy available to them pursuant to this Covenant Agreement for the resolution of such 
dispute; provided, however, that any provision of law to the contrary notwithstanding, such 
judicial remedy must be instituted (defined as the filing of an action in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in strict accordance with the tenns of this Covenant Agreement) within one hundred 
twenty (120) calendar days following the end of the Negotiation Period or be barred forever. In 
connection therewith, the City and Tenant irrevocably consent to the appointment of a referee to 
resolve such dispute in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedure Section 638 et seq., 
and to pay equal amounts of the cost of such referee. 

2.3.1 No Accrual of Interest for Disputed Covenant Payment(s). The City 
and Tenant agree that any disputed amount shall not accrue interest during the pendency of any 
Negotiation Period or subsequent legal proceeding (including any appeals filed in connection 
therewith), unless the court makes a detennination upon recommendation of the referee that the 
City acted in bad faith with regard to the dispute, in which case, any amount ultimately adjudged 
to be owing by the City shall be deemed to have accrued interest at the rate of six percent (6%) 

65002.001 15\9341 876.5 



simple interest per annum, commencing on the ninetieth (90th) calendar day following the end of 
the Negotiation Period and continuing thereafter until paid. Tenant hereby waives, to the 
maximum legal extent, the right to the imposition of any different rate of interest in accordance 
with any provision of law. 

2.3.2 Covenant Payment Paid From Any Source of City Funds. Any 
Covenant Payment due under this Section 2.2 may be payable from any source of any funds of 
the City legally available for such purpose. The City covenants to reasonably consider such 
actions as may be necessary to include all payments owed hereunder in each of its annual 
budgets during the Eligibility Period and to reasonably consider the necessary annual budgetary 
appropriations for all such payments. 

2.3.3 Not a Pledge of Sales Tax. Tenant acknowledges that the City is not 
making a pledge of Sales Tax Revenues, or any other particular source of funds; the definition of 
Sales Tax Revenues, as used herein, is used merely as a measure of the amount payment due 
hereunder and as means of computing the City's payment in consideration for the Covenants. It 
is acknowledged by Tenant that he City's obligation to make payments is specifically contingent 
upon receipt by the City of the Sales Tax Revenues derived from operation of the Fulfillment 
Center. 

2.3.4 Making Covenant Payment Is A Contingent Obligation of City. The 
City'S obligations under this Section 2.2 are contingent on a fiscal year to fiscal year basis and, 
for each Operating Year within the Eligibility Period, the City's obligations to make any 
payments to Tenant under this Covenant Agreement are expressly contingent upon Tenant, for 
the entirety of such Operating Year, completely fulfilling its material obligations under this 
Covenant Agreement. If for any reason Tenant fails to authorize the release or use of all or any 
part of sales tax information regarding the Businesses in a manner satisfactory to the BOE or 
provide any information reasonably required by the City to perform the City's obligations under 
this Covenant Agreement, or if all or any part of the sales tax information of Tenant is 
unavailable to the City or the City is not legally authorized to use such information for the 
purposes of performing its obligations under this Covenant Agreement, the Covenant Payment 
shall be based solely upon the information so received, if any. 

2.3.5 HOE Determination of Improperly Allocated Sales Tax Revenues. If, 
at any time during or after the Eligibility Period of this Covenant Agreement, the BOE 
determines that all or any portion of the Sales Tax Revenues received by the City were 
improperly allocated and/or paid to the City, and if the BOE requires repayment of, offsets 
against future sales tax payments, or otherwise recaptures from the City those improperly 
allocated and/or paid Sales Tax Revenues, then Tenant shall, within thirty (30) calendar days 
after written demand from the City, repay all Covenant Payments (or applicable portions thereof) 
theretofore paid to Tenant which are attributable to such repaid, offset or recaptured Sales Tax 
Revenues. If Tenant fails to make such repayment within thirty (30) calendar days after the 
City's written demand, then Tenant shall be in breach of this Covenant Agreement and such 
obligation shall accrue interest from the date of the City's original written demand at the then
maximum legal rate imposed by the California Code of Civil Procedure on prejudgment 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



monetary obligations, compounded monthly, until paid. Additionally, the City may deduct any 
amount required to be repaid by Tenant under this Section 2.3.5 from any future Covenant 
Payments otherwise payable to Tenant under this Covenant Agreement. This Section 2.3.5 shall 
survive the expiration or tennination of this Covenant Agreement. 

2.4 Default. 

2.4.1 Tenant Default. City shall provide Tenant with written notice of 
Tenant's failure ("Tenant Default") to strictly abide by any material provision of this Covenant 
Agreement, including, without limitation, the Covenants. Tenant shall have thirty (30) days 
from the date of such notice to either cure such Tenant Default, or, if such Tenant Default cannot 
be reasonably cured during such thirty (30) day period, to commence to cure within said thirty 
(30) day period and diligently prosecute such cure to completion thereafter. 

2.4.2 City Default. Tenant shall provide City with written notice of City's 
failure ("City Default") to strictly abide by any material provision of this Covenant Agreement. 
City shall have thirty (30) days from the date of such notice to either cure such City Default, or, 
if such City Default cannot be reasonably cured during such thirty (30) day period, to commence 
to cure within said thirty (30) day period and diligently prosecute such cure to completion 
thereafter. 

2.S General Remedies for Default. Except as provided in Section 2.7, upon either a 
City or an Tenant Default (as defined in Section 2.4) uncured within the applicable cure period, 
Tenant or City (as applicable) shall have the right to seek all available legal and equitable 
remedies, including, without implied limitation, general and consequential damages, unless 
otherwise expressly provided to the contrary herein. Unless prohibited by law or otherwise 
provided by a specific tenn of this Covenant Agreement, the rights and remedies of the City and 
the Tenant under this Covenant Agreement are nonexclusive and all remedies hereunder may be 
exercised individually or cumulatively, and the City may simultaneously pursue inconsistent 
and/or alternative remedies. Either Party may, upon the Default of the other Party and in 
addition to pursuing all remedies otherwise available to it, tenninate this Covenant Agreement 
and all of its obligations hereunder without cost, expense or liability to itself. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing or anything to the contrary in this Covenant Agreement, in the event of a City 
Default, Tenant shall only be permitted to pursue collection of the Covenant Payments on an 
Operating Year-to-Operating Year basis as such Covenant Payments become due hereunder. 
Tenant hereby expressly waives any right Tenant may have to seek, demand or collect, on an 
accelerated basis, any Covenant Payments that may be due after the date ofany City Default. 

2.6 The City's Rights to Terminate its Obligations under Section 2.2. The City's 
obligations under Section 2.2 shall automatically terminate without cost, expense, or liability to 
City, upon the occurrence of anyone or more of the following: (i) Tenant Default; (ii) the end of 
the Eligibility Period; (iii) the aggregate sum of the Covenant Payments being equal to Three 
Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($3,750,000); or (iv) upon the final 
determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that anyone or more of the Covenants are 
void, voidable, invalid, or even unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, including, without 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



limitation, legal infinnity. Tennination of the City's obligations under Section 2.2 in accordance 
with subsection (i) of this Section 2.6 shall not operate to forgive, modify, discharge or excuse 
Tenant's obligations arising under this Covenant Agreement. 

2.7 Liquidated Damages. 

2.7.1 Tenant Default With Respect to Obligations Under Sections 2.1.1 and 
2.1.2. The Parties acknowledge that the consideration to the City for its entry into this Covenant 
Agreement and the perfonnance of its obligations hereunder include the City's receipt of Sales 
Tax Revenues, employment and other payroll taxes, property taxes, and other direct and indirect 
financial and non· financial benefits arising from the operation of the Business Activities and the 
location of the Businesses at the Property, located within the City. Tenant agrees that the City 
will suffer damages if Tenant commits any Tenant Default with respect to any of its obligations 
arising under Sections 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 that is uncured within the applicable cure period. The 
Parties agree that the exact detennination of such damages would be impracticable and 
extremely difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the Parties have detennined that Liquidated 
Damages represents a reasonable estimate of the damages which would be suffered by the City if 
Tenant commits any Tenant Default with respect to any of its obligations set forth in Sections 
2.1.1 and 2.1.2 that is uncured within the applicable cure period. Accordingly, as its sole and 
exclusive monetary remedy for an Tenant Default with respect to any of its covenants and 
obligations set forth in Sections 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 that is uncured within the applicable cure period, 
the City shall be entitled to: (1) tenninate this Covenant Agreement and the entirety of its 
obligations hereunder, including any accrued and unpaid Covenant Payments, and (2) receive 
from Tenant the applicable amount ofLiquidated Damages. 

2.7.2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF REASONABLENESS OF 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. UPON AN TENANT DEFAULT WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF 
ITS OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 2.1.1 AND 2.1.2, FOLLOWING NOTICE 
AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 2.4.1, THE CITY AND 
TENANT ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT IT WOULD BE EXTREMELY 
DIFFICULT AND IMPRACTICAL TO ASCERTAIN THE AMOUNT OF DAMAGES THAT 
WOULD BE SUFFERED BY THE CITY WITH RESPECT TO SUCH DEFAULT. HA VING 
MADE DILIGENT BUT UNSUCCESSFUL ATTEMPTS TO ASCERTAIN THE ACTUAL 
DAMAGES THE CITY WOULD SUFFER, THE PARTIES AGREE THAT THE 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AMOUNT REPRESENTS A REASONABLE ESTIMATION OF 
THOSE DAMAGES. THEREFORE, UPON AN TENANT DEF AUL T WITH RESPECT TO 
ANY OF ITS OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 2.1.1 AND 2.1.2, AS ITS SOLE 
AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR SUCH DEFAULT, THE CITY SHALL BE ENTITLED 
TO (1) RECEIPT OF THE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, WHICH TENANT SHALL PAY 
WITHIN TEN (to) DA YS FOLLOWING WRITTEN DEMAND FROM THE CITY, AND (2) 
TERMINATE THIS COVENANT AGREEMENT AND THE ENTIRETY OF ITS 
OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, INCLUDING ANY ACCRUED BUT YET UNPAID 
COVENANT PAYMENTS. 

Initials ofAuthorized Initials of Authorized 
City Representative Tenant Representative 

65002,00115\9341876.5 



2.8 Prevailing Wages. 

2.8.1 TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT BECAUSE PROJECT IS PAID 
FOR, IN PART, WITH PUBLIC FUNDS, THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO REQUIREMENTS 
FOR PAYMENT OF PREVAILING WAGES. TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES 
THAT TENANT SHALL ASSUME ANY AND ALL RESPONSIBILITY AND BE SOLELY 
RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING THAT LABORERS EMPLOYED RELATIVE TO THE 
CONSTRUCTION OR INSTALLATION OF THE PROJECT MUST BE PAID THE 
PREVAILING PER DIEM WAGE RATE FOR THEIR LABOR CLASSIFICATION, AS 
DETERMINED BY THE STATE, PURSUANT TO LABOR CODE SECTION 1720 ET SEQ. 
TENANT AGREES TO SUBMIT TO CITY ALL WAGE INFORMATION AND 
CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING 
PREVAILING WAGES. 

2.8.2 TENANT, ON BEHALF OF ITSELF, ITS SUCCESSORS, AND 
ASSIGNS, WAIVES AND RELEASES CITY FROM ANY RIGHT OF ACTION THAT MAY 
BE AVAILABLE TO ANY OF THEM PURSUANT TO LABOR CODE SECTION 1781. 
TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES THE PROTECTIONS OF CIVIL CODE SECTION 1542 
RELATIVE TO THE WAIVER AND RELEASE CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION 2.8, 
WHICH READS AS FOLLOWS: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS 
WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT 
TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF 
EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM 
OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR 
HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR. 

2.8.3 BY INITIALING BELOW, TENANT KNOWINGL Y AND 
VOLUNTARILY WAIVES THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 1542 SOLELY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE WAIVERS AND RELEASES OF THIS SECTION 2.8. 

Initials ofAuthorized 

Tenant Representative 


2.8.4 ADDITIONALLY, TENANT SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND 
HOLD HARMLESS CITY AGAINST ANY CLAIMS PURSUANT TO LABOR CODE 
SECTION 1781 ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT OR THE CONSTRUCTION OR 
INSTALLATION OF ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE PROJECT. NOTHING IN THIS 
SECTION 2.8 SHALL RELEASE OR LIMIT ANY RIGHTS OF TENANT AGAINST CITY 
ARISING FROM A BREACH BY CITY OF ITS RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATION AND 
WARRANTY AS IDENTIFIED IN THIS SECTION 2.8. 

2.8.5 Prevailing Wage Compliance Monitoring. The Project is subject to 
compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. Tenant and 
all contractors and subcontractors performing work shall comply with all requirements and 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



regulations relating to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement. If Tenant awards a 
contract to perform public works (as defined in Labor Code section 1720 et seq.) on or after 
April I, 2015, then pursuant to Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, all contractors and 
subcontractors that engage in the performance of any work on the Project shall be registered with 
the Department of Industrial Relations to perform public work. Tenant shall have an affirmative 
obligation to verify that all contractors and subcontractors remain registered with the Department 
of Industrial Relations throughout the course of the Project, and shall not permit a contractor or 
subcontractor of any tier to perform any work on the Project without first being registered. 
Tenant shall include the requirements of Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 in its contracts 
with all contractors and subcontractors. In accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4, Tenant 
shall require that its contractors and subcontractors furnish certified payroll records directly to 
the Department of Industrial Relations on a weekly basis and in the format prescribed by the 
Department of Industrial Relations, which may include electronic submission. To the extent 
Tenant performs any work itself, Tenant shall comply with all requirements of contractors and 
subcontractors set forth in this section and as otherwise required by law. 

3. GENERAL TERMS. 

3.1 Tax Consequences. Tenant acknowledges that it may experience tax 
consequences as a result of its receipt of the payments provided for in this Covenant Agreement 
and agrees that it shall bear any and all responsibility, liability, costs, and expenses connected in 
any way therewith. 

3.2 Rights Not Granted Under Covenant Agreement. This Covenant Agreement is 
not, and shall not be construed to be, a Development Agreement under Government Code 
Section 65864 et seq. This Covenant Agreement is not, and shall not be construed to be, an 
approval or an agreement to issue permits or a granting of any right or entitlement by the City 
concerning the Property, Business Activities, Businesses, or any other project, development, or 
construction by the Tenant in the City. This Covenant Agreement does not, and shall not be 
construed to, exempt Tenant from the application and/or exercise ofthe City's or City's power of 
eminent domain or its police power, including, but not limited to, the regulation of land uses and 
the taking ofany actions necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its citizenry. 

3.3 Consent. Whenever consent or approval of any party is required under this 
Covenant Agreement, that party shall not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition such 
consent or approval unless otherwise allowed by a specific provision of this Covenant 
Agreement. 

3.4 Notices and Demands. All notices or other communications required or 
permitted between the City and Tenant under this Covenant Agreement shall be in writing, and 
may be (i) personally delivered, (ii) sent by United States registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, (iii) sent by telecopier, or (iv) sent by nationally recognized 
overnight courier service (e.g., Federal Express), addressed to the Parties at the addresses 
provided in Section 1.2, subject to the right of either party to designate a different address for 
itself by notice similarly given. Any notice so given by registered or certified United States mail 
shall be deemed to have been given on the second business day after the same is deposited in the 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



United States mail. Any notice not so given by registered or certified mail, such as notices 
delivered by telecopier or courier service (e.g., Federal Express), shall be deemed given upon 
receipt of the same by the party to whom the notice is given. 

3.5 Nonliability of the City or City Officials and Employees. No board member, 
official, contractor, consultant, attorney or employee of the City or City shall be personally liable 
to Tenant, any voluntary or involuntary successors or assignees, or any lender or other party 
holding an interest in the Property, in the event of any default or breach by the City, or for any 
amount which may become due to the Tenant or to its successors or assignees, or on any 
obligations arising under this Covenant Agreement. 

3.6 Conflict of Interests. No board member, official, contractor, consultant, attorney 
or employee of the City or City shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Covenant Agreement nor shall any such board member, official or employee participate in any 
decision relating to this Covenant Agreement which affects hislher personal interests or the 
interests of any corporation, partnership or association in which he/she is directly or indirectly 
interested. 

3.7 Entire Agreement; Good Faith Negotiations. This Covenant Agreement 
contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties and supersedes any previous 
agreements between the Parties concerning the subject matter of this Covenant Agreement. No 
other understanding, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Covenant Agreement 
shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. All prior written or oral offers, 
counteroffers, memoranda of understanding, proposals and the like are superseded by this 
Covenant Agreement. 

The Parties acknowledge that this Covenant Agreement is the product of mutual 
arms-length negotiations and that each party has been, or has had the opportunity to have been, 
represented by legal counsel in the negotiation and drafting of this Covenant Agreement. 
Accordingly, the rule ofjudicial construction which provides that ambiguities in a document are 
to be construed against the drafter of that document shall have no application to the interpretation 
or enforcement of this Covenant Agreement. In any action or proceeding to interpret and/or 
enforce this Covenant Agreement, the trier of fact may refer to extrinsic evidence not in conflict 
with any specific provision of this Covenant Agreement to ascertain and give effect to the intent 
of the Parties hereto. 

3.8 Time Deadlines Critical; Extensions and Delays; No Excuse Due to Economic 
Changes. Time is of the essence in the performance of the City'S and Tenant's obligations 
under this Covenant Agreement. In addition to specific provisions of this Covenant Agreement 
providing for extensions of time, times for performance hereunder shall be extended where 
delays or defaults are due to war; insurrection; any form of labor dispute; lockouts; riots; floods; 
earthquakes; fires; acts of God or of third parties; third party litigation; acts of a public enemy; 
referenda; acts of governmental authorities (except that the failure of the City to act as required 
hereunder shall not excuse its performance); moratoria; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; and 
freight embargoes (collectively, "Enforced Delays") provided, however, that the Party claiming 
the extension notify the other Party of the nature of the matter causing the default; and, provided 
further, that the extension of time shall be only for the period of the Enforced Delays. 

65002.00115\9341816.5 



3.8.1 ANYTHING IN THIS COVENANT AGREEMENT TO THE 
CONTRARY NOTWITHSTANDING, TENANT EXPRESSLY ASSUMES THE RISK OF 
UNFORESEEABLE CHANGES IN ECONOMIC CIRCUMSTANCES AND/OR 
MARKET DEMAND/CONDITIONS AND WAIVES, TO THE GREATEST LEGAL 
EXTENT, ANY DEFENSE, CLAIM, OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED IN WHOLE OR 
IN PART ON ECONOMIC NECESSITY, IMPRACTICABILITY, FRUSTRATION OF 
PURPOSE, CHANGED ECONOMIC CIRCUMSTANCES OR SIMILAR THEORIES. 

3.8.2 TENANT EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT ADVERSE CHANGES IN 
ECONOMIC CONDITIONS, EITHER OF TENANT SPECIFICALLY OR THE 
ECONOMY GENERALLY, OR CHANGES IN THE MARKET CONDITIONS OR 
DEMANDS, SHALL NOT OPERATE TO EXCUSE OR DELAY THE STRICT 
OBSERVANCE OF EACH AND EVERY OF THE OBLIGATIONS, COVENANTS, 
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF TIDS COVENANT AGREEMENT. 
TENANT EXPRESSLY ASSUMES THE RISK OF SUCH ADVERSE ECONOMIC OR 
MARKET CHANGES, WHETHER OR NOT FORESEEABLE AS OF TENANT'S 
EXECUTION OF THIS COVENANT AGREEMENT. 

INITIALS OF AUTHORIZED TENANT REPRESENTATIVE ___ 

3.9 Attorneys' Fees. In the event of the bringing of an arbitration, action or suit by a 
Party hereto against another Party hereunder by reason of any breach of any of the covenants or 
agreements or any intentional inaccuracies in any of the representations and warranties on the 
part of the other Party arising out of this Covenant Agreement or any other dispute between the 
Parties concerning this Covenant Agreement or the Property, then, in that event, the prevailing 
party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be entitled 
to have and recover of and from the other Party all costs and expenses of suit or claim, including 
actual attorneys' fees. Any judgment, order or award entered in any final judgment or award 
shall contain a specific provision providing for the recovery of all costs and expenses of suit or 
claim, including actual attorneys' fees (collectively, the "Costs") incurred in enforcing, 
perfecting and executing such judgment or award. For the purposes of this Section 3.9, "Costs" 
shall include, without implied limitation, attorneys' and experts' fees, costs and expenses 
incurred in the following: (i) post judgment motions and appeals, (ii) contempt proceedings, (iii) 
garnishment, levy and debtor and third party examination, (iv) discovery; and (v) bankruptcy 
litigation. This Section 3.9 shall survive any termination of this Covenant Agreement. 

3.10 Amendments to This Covenant Agreement. Any amendments to this Covenant 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of both the City and 
Tenant. The City Manager is authorized on behalf of the City to approve and execute minor 
amendments to this Covenant Agreement, including, but not limited to, the granting of 
extensions of time to Tenant, not to exceed ninety (90) days in the aggregate. 

3.11 Jurisdiction and Venue. Any legal action or proceeding concerning this 
Covenant Agreement shall be filed and prosecuted in the appropriate California state court in the 
County of Los Angeles, California. Both Parties hereto irrevocably consents to the personal 
jurisdiction of that court. The City and Tenant each hereby expressly waive the benefit of any 
provision of federal or state law or judicial decision providing for the filing, removal, or change 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



of venue to any other court or jurisdiction, including, without implied limitation, federal district 
court, due to any diversity of citizenship between the City and Tenant, due to the fact that the 
City is a party to such action or proceeding or due to the fact that a federal question or federal 
right is involved or alleged to be involved. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
City and Tenant specifically waive any rights provided to it pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 394. Tenant acknowledges that the provisions of this Section 3.11 are material 
consideration to the City for its entry into this Covenant Agreement, in that the City will avoid 
the potential cost, expense and inconvenience of litigating in a distant forum. 

3.12 Counterpart Originals; Integration. This Covenant Agreement may be 
executed in duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, but when taken 
together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. This Covenant Agreement and any 
exhibits represent the entire understanding of the Parties and supersedes all negotiations, letters 
of intent, memoranda of understanding or previous agreements between the parties with respect 
to all or any part of the subject matter hereof. 

3.13 No Waiver. Failure to insist on anyone occasion upon strict compliance with 
any of the terms, covenants or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of such term, 
covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any rights or powers hereunder 
at anyone time or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such other right or power 
at any other time or times. 

3.14 Successors and Assigns. This Covenant Agreement shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal 
representatives, successors and assigns. 

3.1S No Third Party Beneficiaries. The performance of the respective obligations of 
the City and Tenant under this Covenant Agreement are not intended to benefit any party other 
than the City or Tenant, except as expressly provided otherwise herein. No person or entity not a 
signatory to this Covenant Agreement shall have any rights or causes of action against any party 
to this Covenant Agreement as a result of that party's performance or non-performance under 
this Covenant Agreement, except as expressly provided otherwise herein. 

3.16 Warranty Against Payment of Consideration for Covenant Agreement. 
Tenant warrants that it has not paid or given, and will not payor give, any third party any money 
or other consideration for obtaining this Covenant Agreement. Third parties, for the purposes of 
this Section 3.16, shall not include persons to whom fees are paid for professional services if 
rendered by attorneys, financial consultants, accountants, engineers, architects and the like when 
such fees are considered necessary by Tenant. 

3.17 Severability. The City and Tenant declare that the provisions of this Covenant 
Agreement are severable. If it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that any term, 
condition or provision hereof is void, voidable, or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, then 
such term, condition or provision shall be severed from this Covenant Agreement and the 
remainder of the Covenant Agreement enforced in accordance with its terms. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, if Section 2.2 is deemed void by a court of competent jurisdiction either Party may 
terminate this Agreement without penalty or cost. 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



3.18 Further Acts and Releases. The City and Tenant each agree to take such 
additional acts and execute such other documents as may be reasonable and necessary in the 
performance oftheir obligations hereunder. 

3.19 Estoppels. At the request of Tenant or any holder of a mortgage or deed of trust 
secured by all or any portion of the Property, the City shall promptly execute and deliver to 
Tenant or such holder a written statement of the City as to any of the following matters as to 
which Tenant or such holder may inquire: (i) that no default or breach exists, or would exist with 
the passage of time, or giving ofnotice, or both, by Tenant pursuant to this Covenant Agreement, 
if such be the case; (ii) the total amount of Covenant Payments made by the City to Tenant 
pursuant to this Covenant Agreement prior to the date of such written statement; (iii) the amount 
of any Covenant Payments earned by or due and owing to Tenant pursuant to this Covenant 
Agreement as of the date of such written statement; (iv) the Covenant Payments for a particular 
Operating Year; (v) if the City has determined that Tenant is in default or breach hereunder, the 
nature of such default and the action or actions required to be taken by Tenant to cure such 
default or breach; and (vi) any other matter affecting the rights or obligations of Tenant 
hereunder as to which Tenant or such holder may reasonably inquire. The form of any estoppel 
letter shall be prepared by Tenant or such holder at its sole cost and expense and shall be 
reasonably acceptable in form and content to the City and Tenant. The City may make any of 
the representations described above based on the actual current knowledge of the then-current 
City Manager. 

3.20 Joint Defense of Third Party Attack Upon Covenant Agreement. If any third 
party should commence any action or proceeding to set aside, annul, void or attack this Covenant 
Agreement or any provisions hereof, Tenant and City agree to reasonably and mutually 
cooperate in the defense of such action or proceeding. For purposes of this Covenant 
Agreement, third party shall mean any action, lawsuit, administrative action or judicial 
proceeding including those for injunctive relief brought by including but not limited to residents, 
taxpayers, taxpayer associations, business entities, municipalities, or any other person, entity or 
public entity that may bring such an action. The parties shall select mutually acceptable legal 
counsel to jointly represent them and shall share equally the expense of such legal counsel and 
litigation costs. 

3.21 State of California Legislation Impact on Covenant Payment. Tenant 
acknowledges that the California legislature has in the past adopted certain legislation which 
diverted to the State of California a portion of the Sales Tax Revenues which were otherwise 
payable to the City. Tenant acknowledges that it is possible that the legislature may enact 
similar legislation in the future which would cause a corresponding reduction of and/or delay in 
the payment of the Sales Tax Revenues and that such reduction will cause Tenant a 
corresponding reduction and/or delay in the payment of the Covenant Payments due to Tenant 
during such time as such legislation is in effect. Furthermore, Tenant acknowledges that it is 
possible that the legislation described above, or some variant thereof, may be enacted and 
effective during one or more subsequent times during the Eligibility Period and may materially 
and negatively impact the amount of Sales Tax Revenues and, accordingly, Covenant Payments. 
The City does not make any representation, warranty or commitment concerning the future 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



actions of the California legislature with respect to the allocation of Sales Tax Revenues to the 
City. Tenant agrees that it is undertaking its obligations under this Covenant Agreement after 
having considered, and is expressly assuming the risk of, the possibility of the enactment of such 
legislation. 

The foregoing paragraph notwithstanding, City acknowledges that the California 
legislature may provide for the payment to City of other revenues for the purpose of offsetting 
any losses in Sales Tax Revenues reSUlting from the enactment of legislation of the type 
described in the immediately preceding paragraph. City agrees that, should the California 
legislature provide for such offsetting revenues, then for purposes of this Covenant Agreement 
and the computation of any Covenant Payments which may become due to Tenant hereunder, 
City will consider, on an Operating Y ear~to-Operating Year basis, any such offsetting revenues 
which are (i) indexed to Sales Tax and offset the loss of Sales Tax Revenues to the City on a 
dollar for dollar basis, (ii) actually received by the City, and (iii) not subject to any restrictions 
on use beyond those which are otherwise generally applicable to sales tax revenues received by 
California municipalities, to be Sales Tax Revenues within the meaning of this Covenant 
Agreement. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent the City'S receipt of 
Sales Tax Revenue is impaired or restricted in any way or otherwise eliminated for any reason, 
and not offset by other revenues from the State and such revenues are not subject to any 
restrictions on use beyond those which are otherwise generally applicable to sales tax, the City 
shall not be obligated to make any Covenant Payments during the period within which the City's 
receipt of Sales Tax Revenue is so restricted, impaired or eliminated. 

[Signatures on the following page] 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE 

AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING COVENANT AGREEMENT 


(Sage Auto) 


Tenant and City sign and enter into this Covenant Agreement by and through the signatures of 
their authorized representatives set forth below: 

CITY: TENANT: 

CITY OF COVINA, COVINA MJL, LLC, 
a California municipal corporation a California limited liability company 

By:_____________ By:_____________ 

Interim City Manager, Kim Raney Joseph Sage 

Attest: 

By:_____________ 

Chief Deputy City Clerk, Catherine LaCroix 

Approved as to form: 

By:	_____________ 

City Attorney 

Signatures must be notarized 

65002.00115\9341876.5 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 


A notary pdJIle arother aftIc:er ccmpleting thi8 
certllIcaIa veriIBa only the IdenIIty d the IndMdual 
who __ate docu'rIera to which ... cerfiIcaIe ia 
atiIIchIId, and not1he IrulhfuIr1eR. 1ICCUI8Cy, or 

oflMt docurnInl 

SIatB of Cllllamia 
~ntyd____________________-J) 

On __________________~~ __~--~----~~~--~~-------
(inaert name and..dthe oIIaIr) 

~.~~--~~~~------~--~~~----~~----~~--~who pRMd 10 1M on the bMII d utilfadDy ewidence 10 be 1he peman(s) whole name(.) I8fare 
tIUIMIcriIMIcI to 1he...... inIIIIument and IIdmowIIdgecI to me thId hel8helll'ley ewec:aDd the ..... In 
hillla1lhelr aathoriZIICI car-dt.y(ies). and that by hist'heI-..rsigmlb.l'e(a) an the ~ lie 
pel8CJn(s), ar1he entity upon behalfofwhich the paraon(a} 1ICtad, eDCUb!Id the InaIrumenL 

I CIII1ify Wtder PENAlTY OF PERJURY underthelawa of the SbIIe of C8Itorna1hatthe foIagoing 
.,.-.graph il,1rue and c:amtd. 

(Selll) 

65002.00115\9341876.5 

http:65002.00


CITY OF COVINA 

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY 


MEETING DATE: February 17,2015 ITEM NO.: NB 1 

INFORMATION SOURCE: J. Scott Tiedemann, Attorney 

ITEM TITLE: Approval of Agreement for Employment by and between 
the City of Covina and Andrea Miller 

STAFF RECOMMEDATION: 

Approve the employment agreement between the City of Covina and Andrea Miller (City 
Manager). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The salary and benefits are described in Exhibit A. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the direction of the City Council, Attorney J. Scott Tiedemann has negotiated an employment 
agreement to retain the services of Andrea Miller as City Manager subject to approvall 
ratification by the City Council. Miller would commence work on March 2,2015. The salary, 
benefits and other terms and conditions of employment are outlined in Exhibit A. 

EXHIBITS: 

A. Agreement for Employment - City Manager 

~~~§~~==$:;;~:;;;;==- Finance Director: ----'~-T-----

City Manager ----,~---lt----+--T---- Other: ___________ 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 


This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into this 21 st day 

of January 2015, by and between the CITY OF COVINA ("City"), a California City, and 

Andrea Miller ("Miller"), an individual. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to: (l) secure and retain the services of 

Miller; (2) have Miller perform all the regular functions of the City Manager position as 

specified in the City's Municipal Code; (3) provide inducement to Miller to maintain 

such employment; and (4) establish the terms and conditions ofMiller's services to the 

City pursuant to this agreement; 

WHEREAS, Miller has the required skills and expertise to fulfill such position 

and desires to accept employment from the City; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

including the Recitals which are made a part hereof, City and Miller hereby agree as 

follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Employment: 

The City hereby employs Miller as the City Manager of the City, and Miller 

hereby accepts that employment effective February 20, 2015. Miller's actual start date 

will be March 2,2015, when she will begin earning pay and benefits. 

2. Duties: 

Miller shall perform those duties and have those responsibilities that are 

commonly assigned to a city manager of a general law city in California, and as set forth 

in Section 2.08 of the City's Municipal Code. Miller shall perform such other legally 

permissible and proper duties and functions consistent with the office of the City 

Manager as the City Council shall from time to time assign. 

3. Term: 

A. The term of Miller's employment as City Manager shall be for an 

indefinite term pursuant to Section 2.08.070 of the City'S Municipal Code. 

Exhibit A (page 1 of 9) 



B. Miller acknowledges that she is an at-will employee. Except as set 

forth in Paragraph 3.C., the City Council may remove Miller as City Manager at any time 

by a majority vote. Miller shall have no right to appeal a decision by the City Council to 

remove her as City Manager. 

C. Miller may not be removed as City Manager during the ninety (90) 

calendar days following any general municipal election held in the City in which one or 

more members of the City Council are elected. 

D. Miller may resign from her employment as City Manager at any 

time during the term of this Agreement upon giving thirty (30) days written notice to the 

City Council. 

4. Devotion to City Business: 

A. Miller's position as City Manager is considered a full-time 

position. Miller shall focus her professional time, ability, and attention on City business 

during the term of this Agreement. Miller shall not spend significant time in any other 

non-employer connected business activities without prior approval from the City Council. 

B. Miller shall not engage, without the express prior written consent 

of the City Council, in any other business duties or pursuits whatsoever or, directly or 

indirectly, render any services of a business, commercial, or professional nature to any 

other person or organization, whether for compensation or otherwise, that is or may be 

competitive with the City, that might cause a conflict of interest with the City or that 

otherwise might interfere with the business or operation of the City or the satisfactory 

performance ofMiller's duties as City Manager. 

5. fuYm: 
A. City agrees to pay Miller for services rendered, beginning with an 

annual base salary of Two Hundred Five Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars ($205, 

500.00). Said amount shall be payable in at the same time and in the same manner as 

other employees of the City are paid. Miller's base salary may be adjusted upward at any 

time in the sole discretion of the City Council. 

B. The City Council shall evaluate Miller's performance during the 

month ofFebruary or March of each calendar year. Following the completion of the 

evaluation, the City Council may in its sole discretion grant Miller a performance bonus. 

Exhibit A (page 2 of 9)2 



Following the completion of the evaluation, the City Council may in its sole discretion 

grant Miller a performance bonus in any amount from Zero Dollars ($0) to a maximum of 

Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) or any sum in between. 

C. Any adjustment to Miller's salary does not require an amendment 

to this Agreement to be effective, but rather may be established by resolution of the City 

Council and set forth in a public ally available salary schedule. 

6. Retirement: 

A. City agrees to maintain Miller's enrollment as a classic member of 

the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) in the PERS plan selected by City in its 

sole discretion. Miller shall make contributions to PERS in the amounts described in the 

2013 Executive Compensation Rules, including any revisions thereto, or successor rules 

which may be adopted from time to time by the City Council. 

B. The City will contribute One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) each 

month to Miller's deferred compensation plan, also known as a 457 Plan. The City also 

agrees that it will continue to administer a 457 plan in which Miller may participate 

during her employment with the City. 

7. Health and Medical Benefits Insurance: 

City shall provide Miller with the same health and medical benefits plan or plans 

which are provided to other City executive employees under the 2013 Executive 

Compensation Rules, including any revisions thereto, or successor rules which may be 

adopted from time to time by the City Council. 

8. Leaves: 

Miller shall receive vacation, holiday, and sick leave according to the terms of the 

2013 Executive Compensation Rules, including any revisions thereto, or successor rules 

which may be adopted from time to time by the City Council. Miller shall be credited 

with one (1) week of sick leave, 72 hours ofadministrative leave, and two (2) weeks of 

vacation immediately upon her start date. 

9. Miscellaneous Benefits and Insurances: 

In addition to the compensation and benefits set forth herein, Miller shall be 

entitled to all other non-salary benefits and insurances set forth in the 2013 Executive 

Compensation Rules, including any revisions thereto, or successor rules which may be 

Exhibit A (page 3 of 9) 3 



adopted from time to time by the City Council, unless any such benefits and/or 

insurances are or become prohibited by law. 

10. Equipment: 

A. Miller shall be provided with appropriate technology, which is 

necessary to conduct City business, at City expense. If Miller elects to use her personal 

cell phone to conduct City business, then she shall be reimbursed for the expenses 

associated with her City business use of the phone subject to appropriate IRS reporting 

requirements. The City agrees that Miller may request City staff to provide necessary 

maintenance and repairs to personal devices that Miller uses to conduct City business, 

e.g. cell phones and laptop computers. 

B. Miller will receive an automobile allowance of six hundred dollars 

and zero cents ($600) to be used for leasing/purchasing, maintaining and/or insuring a 

personal vehicle which Miller may use from time to time in conducting City business. 

Miller shall maintain all statutorily required liability insurance thereon and is responsible 

for all expenses incurred in connection with the vehicle, including maintenance, 

operating, insurance, and repair expenses, including those which may exceed the monthly 

automobile allowance provided for herein. 

11. Professional and City Business Expenses: 

A. City agrees to pay the professional dues and subscriptions which 

are necessary for Miller's continuation or full participation in regional, state, or local 

associations and organizations necessary and desirable for Miller's continued 

professional participation, growth and advancement, or for the good of the City in an 

amount up to $3000 per year. Furthermore, the City shall budget and pay for the 

professional dues and subscriptions to such additional organizations as may be approved 

by the City Council. 

B. City agrees to pay the travel and subsistence expenses of Miller for 

official travel, meetings, and occasions reasonably adequate to continue the professional 

development ofMiller, and for Miller's reasonable pursuit of necessary official and other 

functions for the City including, but not limited to, regional, state, and local conferences, 

governmental groups, and committees upon which Miller serves as a member. 

Notwithstanding the above, the number ofconferences or meetings the City will pay for 

Exhibit A (page 4 of 9) 4 



each year and attendance at out-of-state conferences and meetings shall be at the 

discretion of the City Council as set forth in the City's budget. 

12. 	 Taxes: 

Miller shall be responsible for her federal, state, local, or other taxes resulting 

from any compensation or benefits provided to her by the City. The City shall withhold 

from any compensation or benefits provided under this Agreement all federal, state, local 

or other taxes as may be required pursuant to law or governmental regulation or ruling. 

The City shall not be liable (except in cases of City errors or omissions) for any state or 

federal tax consequences to Miller or to any designated beneficiary hereunder, the heirs, 

administrators, executors, successors, and assigns of Miller. Miler shall assume sole 

liability for any state or federal tax consequences of this Agreement or any related 

agreement and agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from such tax 

consequences. 

13. 	 Work Product: 

All data, studies, reports, and any other documents prepared by Miller while 

performing her duties during the term of this Agreement shall be furnished to and become 

the property of the City, without restriction or limitations on their use. All ideas, 

memoranda, specifications, plans, procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program 

data, input record data, written information, and other materials either created by or 

provided to Miller in connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held 

confidential by written consent of the City Council, and shall not be used by Miller for 

any purposes other than the performance of her duties. Nor shall such materials be 

disclosed to any person or entity not connected with the performance of services under 

this Agreement, except as required by law. 

14. 	 Severance Compensation in the Event Miller is Removed as City 

Manager: 

In the event the City Council removes Miller as City Manager, Miller shall be 

entitled to severance pay in an amount equal to six (6) months of her monthly base salary 

on the effective date of her removal to be paid in one lump sum subject to statutorily 

mandated tax withholdings. 

Exhibit A (pale 5 of 9)5 



15. Conflicts of Interest: 

A. During the term of this Agreement, Miller shall not engage in any 

business or transaction or maintain a financial interest which conflicts, or reasonably 

might be expected to conflict in any manner, with the proper discharge of Miller's duties 

under this Agreement. Miller shall comply with all requirements of law, including, but 

not limited to, Section 87100 et seq., Section 1090, and Section 1125 of the Government 

Code, and all other similar statutory and administrative rules. Whenever any potential 

conflict arises or may appear to arise, the obligation shall be on Miller to seek to legal 

advice concerning whether such conflict exists and Miller's obligations arising therefrom. 

B. Miller is responsible for submitting to the Fair Political Practices 

Commission the appropriate Conflict of Interest Statements within thirty (30) days of 

appointment, annually thereafter, and at the time of separation from the position. 

16. Reimbursement to City: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if Miller is convicted 

ofa crime involving an abuse of her office or position, Miller shall fully reimburse the 

City as follows: 

A. For any paid leave salary provided by the City pending an 

investigation. (See Government Code section 53243). 

B. For any funds provided by the City for the legal criminal defense 

ofMiller. (See Government Code section 53243.1). 

C. For any cash settlement provided by the City related to the 

termination of Miller's employment. (See Government Code section 53243.2). 

D. For purposes of this Section, "abuse of office or position" means 

either of the following: 

(i) An abuse of public authority, including, but not limited to, 

waste, fraud, and violation of the law under color of authority. See Government Code 

section 53243.4(a). 

(ii) A crime against public justice, including, but not limited to, 

a crime described in Title 5 (commencing with Section 67), Title 6 (commencing with 

Section 85), or Title 7 (commencing with Section 92) of Part 1 of the Penal Code. See 

Government Code section 53243.4(b). 

6 Exhibit A (page 6 of 9) 



17. Surety Bond: 

Pursuant to Covina Municipal Code section 2.08.030, Miller may be required to 

secure a corporate surety bond to be approved by the City Council, in such sum as may 

be determined by the City Council, conditioned on the faithful performance of the duties 

imposed on the City Manager by Chapter 2.08 of the Covina Municipal Code. The fee 

for such bond shall be paid by the City. 

18. Notices: 

Any notices to be given hereunder by either party to the other in writing may be 

effected either by personal delivery or by mail. Mailed notices shall be addressed to the 

parties as set forth below, but each party may change its address by written notice given 

in accordance with this paragraph. Notices delivered personally will be deemed 

communicated as of actual receipt. Mailed notices will be deemed communicated and 

received as of five (5) calendar days following the date of mailing: 

CITY: 	 City of Covina 


Attention: Mayor 


125 E. College Street 


Covina, CA 91723-2199 


MILLER: 	 Andrea Miller 

125 E. College Street 

Covina, CA 91723-2199 

19. Entire Agreement: 

This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and 

supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties 

with respect to the employment of Miller by City, and contains all of the covenants and 

agreements between the parties with respect to that employment. Each party to this 

Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, 

oral or otherwise, have been made by either party, or anyone acting on behalfofeither 

party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other employment agreement, 

statement or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon 

either party. 

Exhibit A (page 7 of 9)7 



20. Modifications: 

Any modifications to this Agreement shall be effective only if in writing and 

signed by both of the parties hereto. 

21. Effect of Waiver: 

The failure ofeither party to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, 

covenants, or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall not be deemed a 

waiver of that term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any 

right or power at anyone time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that 

right or power for all or any other times. 

22. Partial Invalidity: 

If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 

be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provision shall nevertheless continue in 

full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

23. Governing Law: 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State ofCalifornia in full force and effect as of the date ofexecution. 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

/1/ 

Exhibit A (pale 8 of 9)8 



24. Indemnification: 

Except for an act ofmisappropriation ofpublic funds, or an indictment, the filing 

of an infonnation, a plea of guilty or nolo contendere for a crime involving moral 

turpitude, City agrees that it shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Miller from any 

and all demands, claims, suits, actions, and legal proceedings, to the maximum extent 

pennitted by law, brought against Miller in her individual capacity for acts arising out of 

or omissions in the scope of her employment or as agent and employee of City. Ifa 

conflict in good faith arises with regard to defense of claims between the legal position of 

Miller and that of City, Miller may engage her own legal counsel, in which event City 

shall indemnify Miller, including direct payment of all such reasonable costs related 

thereto. 

This Agreement is entered into this ___ day of January, 2015. 

CITY OF COVINA 

By: 	_____________ 
Mayor Peggy Delach Andrea Miller 

Attest: 

Mary Lou Walczak, City Clerk 

Approved as to fonn: 

J. Scott Tiedemann, Attorney 

Exhibit A (page 9 of 9)9 


	Agenda
	CC1
	CC2
	CC3
	CC4
	CC5
	CC6
	CC7
	CC8
	CC9 
	CC10
	CC11
	CC13
	CC14
	CC15
	CC16
	PH1
	PH2
	PH3
	PH4 
	NB1



